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| am confident about Hyve's
long-term outlook, thanks to
the tireless efforts of our teams
throughout the last 18 months.

Mark Shashoua
Mark Shashouo

e

Lear mosa aout Hyve af hyve.group e
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Our world revolves
around meeting
three fundamental
customer needs...

..and we do that by
getting to the heart of
business communities.




02 Hyve Greup plc

Global Communities

The road to recovery £17'7m

In-person events have
resumed in the majority of
our markets, and emerging
trends are ilflustrating the
pent-up demand for
community connection.

We are Hyve

When people come together, powerful things happen.
Hyve Group plc is the next-generation events business
powering global industry communities and creating
platforms for progress. We connect whole industry
ecosystemns through our unmissable in-person events,
online platforms and hyper-productive facilitated
meetings. By uniting vibrant industry communities
through our omnichannel platforms, we aspire to
shape the future for the industries we serve.
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41

events ranin FY21

3

events posiponed
to FY22 due to
COviD-19

Eastern & Southern
Europe

£‘.6.1rrjn

2020 L4y

38

events cancelled
due o COVID- 19

/

Russia

£27.3m

Hyve Group plc

Total 2021 revenue

£55.2m

2020: £99.4m

a3
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The continuing impact of COVID-19

o M R R

How COVID-19

accelerated

COVID-19 accelerated trends we were
already seeing, especially in ferms of
digital adoption and remote working.
To meet demand, we fast-tracked our
own omnichannel evolution.
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Leaner and more agile
structure

In response ta the pandemic, we have adapted
ta a quicker pace of work ond deciston-making,
allowing us to innovate and evolve ot pace.

Product, tech and data
function to support
omnichannel evolution

we appointed a n*giio! teamn to lead the
innovation enddevelopment that our

cceelerared ¢ channel strotegy requires.

Ehabling trade,
networking
and learning online

With in-persen events still impacted by
COVID-19-reloted restrictions, we found
new and cregtive ways to serve our
customers' ngeds in digital formats.

-Strengthening

our communities
throughout the
year

More than 100 webinars and
online events were created for our
customers to keep the conversation
going and enable them fo do
business during lsckdown.

vapert and Accounts 2021 Hywe Group ple

Active management
of our portfolio,
including strategic
acquisitions

We acquired Retail Meoiup, a first-of-ils-
kind online networking plaiform, to ofter
highly productive, double-opt-in online
meetings for our Shoptalk and Groceryshop
communities, The acquisition of 121 Group
following the year end grew our facilitated
meetings portfolio further,

i

05
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Our future is omnichannel

Our acquisition
of Retail Meetup —
is already delivering

Serol Meetup is o fiet cfits kind oahine platform 7

We acquired Retail Meetup in
December 2020 to accelerate
the development of our
omnichannel strategy.

How it works

L 2

Get your ticket,
comgplete your

identity peop
wani to meet, res
those meetngs a~a

‘or the ecommerce market that enac’es
attendees to retwork and trade ot scale

It cllows us to provide opportunit'es for our
customers fo connect outs de o tre man
In-parsar events, at muitip.e toucrpoirts
throughout the year. lo dafe, we hove hesfed
three Meetup evenrts serv ng aur Shopto k
and Groceryshon customer communities

RETAlLMeetup

3

Cpt in 1o ne;
meeting requ
you receive

select peer group

discussions

s

The meetings were highly
productive. | got five new
CPG leads for our sites, cne
job cand'date, and had a
great round table discussior
o the future of retail

tAeetuos tocs place cver

Just six hours (tnat's over

three micnths of meef ngs
ftrey ware out enc

teenc)

4

s time to mee* Lz
Engage in
video-conference
meatings ana
Tabletaiks
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e - - 738

Loved the speed date
like format as | really
think it made best use
of everyone's time
wWe also loverd all

the Groceryshop

info leading up 1o

the event

bookings for

139

Tabiletulks
-

Al meetings are
double opt-in,
leading to
attendaonce rates
of more than

90%

Groceryshop
Spring Meetup .
March 2021 e
This was probably the best

1 288 virtual conference | have
’

attended in the last few

industry professiona’s maonths. Very well done
cannected (that's over Smalr group Tabletalks
were extremely productive
and informative | cannot
wa't ta attend this in
person in 2022

yi

of the in-person avent)

89%

ot Meatups

NIRRT E

customicrs .
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Our future is omnichannel

An introduction to facilitated meetings

The concept

Pre-arranged, one-~ta-ane,
15-minute, hyper-focused meetings,
taking place at selected in-person
evenls.

The technology

Our in-house digital platform
endbles smart matchmaking, with
a double-opt-in mechanism and
olgorithmic scheduling to ensure
the perfect match,

The benefit to
customers

Access to the maost relevant people,
plus increased productivity and

return on investment from in-person
events.

The results

In addition ta the opportunity for
direct monetisation, greater
customer satisfaction leads to
improved retention,  higher-
quality buyer audience and
upsel! opportunities.

Supporting our
customers at every
step of the journey

Sign up

* Vendors create accounts
and uplcad their products
and services.

Buyers create their profiles.

or
Really good job of showing
off everybody’s products.

The setup looks great.

Wk e enan’ed by nighly sopmisticoted fecrno ogy, e
trom voae of oor focioted mees ngs prograrmes hed
che reg.ant ond thooghrully seleciod rawcuals
toergupart froderglegonat h-gprohio v cuild or
=sery vuston ar ond the perscnial zed s & ~Fzred
oy aur fearme throoghout the pracess

Match

Vendors browse buyers’ profiles.
Buyers browse products and services,

inguiries are made ond meetings are
scheduled through the platform,

e

It was really good to get to
know brands and understand
their values without having to
spend loads of time walking
the floor.

We b oo geep andarstanding af our castamers

and the audieaces *hat tney wan' 10 see more of
Jureammrar fy tegms then deve op progasirons
wnick gve those audisrces o compelling reason ta
attens agur evert's and take part i” Gur ’.ﬂeah"rrg.s
orogrom e, rasullieg e corirued expans on ot
ourcesrmen wes and furthes apgorionr es for groweh
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} Meet

Scan here 10

watch our video
on the focilitated * Vendors and buyers arrive af the

‘Curated Meetings’ event with a personalised agenda of
programme ot - meetings already in place.

Autumn Fair

Spett Learnit

Maeeting selection cee .- namr

o by

L e T T

Fiter £3ham M [T : i v Aoty s
oo ) U F—1 e

© bt il AT \é:,‘ é\,

It's been fantastic to actually sit down
with all of these different suppliers
and brands... | wouldn’t have
recessarily gone to their stand.

've made really good relationships,
and look forward to following up

with everyone after the show.

©C

t

fin my very first 15-minute

i meeting, I've placed an order

| which is literally my quickest
order placed ever!

One word to describe Curated
Meetings — efficient!

T v canatn sy [

[ . [T

X i b s i S uws R

L

T

Tow S tid v o Ol Ko 1 8 st T

- - e Lo

G eman

" e A i e

Al

iken Ll U5} i

Cur customer success teoms support ond guide our Our scheduling algarithm creates on optimised Maating imvitoions are sent and our commusily
customers through the process of creating profiles to schedule of 15-minule meetings within the allocated teams wark closely with cusiomers 1o ensure o hign
ensure that they are representing their business and times at the event, ensuring thot our aHendees get os aftendance raote At the end of an evenl Gur communty
products in the bes* way possible rmany high-gualily conversalions as passihle, with develnpment fearr: keeg in fouch with our costomers

peaple they ore perfectly malched o do biuaness wilh oifering them g~ cngoing service catside of the evar®
Athree step process enables vendors to reques? boundornes

rreetings dunng week one Buyers accept or deci ne
meeling requests ard imtate further requests duning
week two. Vendors confirm duning the lasi week,




Ents havéd
our cust®&mers

s

Autumn Fair 2021

+16.2 — N

exhibilor NPS vs, -571in 2018

+50.7

visitor NPS vs, -14.0 in 2019 ol a5 £ - . :




Glee 2021

+31.0

exhibitor NPS
vs. -42.01n 2019

+51.2

visitor NP§ vs.
+11.0 in 2019

Groceryshop
2021

+13%

like-for-like
customer spend vs
Groceryshop 2018

Hyve Group plc
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Chairman’s statement

Continued recovery,
supported by a
strengthened model

As expected, the year to 30 September 2021 has been
dominated by the effects of the pandemic and, until recently,
the gradual but progressive unwinding of restrictions on

the movement of people and the operation of businesses.
Hyve has taken steady and incremental steps on

its journey back to pre-pandemic levels. Having

completed 12 in-person events by the half year, /—‘

we successfully ran 41 in-person events by the

end of the financial year.
Fr
It has been pleasing o
see our in-person events
recover this year, with the
resulfs showing promise
for recovery once
international travel
restrictions are lifted.

Richard Lost
Chairman
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Revenuss for the full year were £55.2m (2020:
£99.4m) and adjusted net debt at the year
end was £79 9m (2020: £67.7m), an improved
position compared te earlier expectations.
This was due in part to strong cash collections
for upcoming events, rantinned eost cantrol

and cash management, and £65m of insurance

preceeds secured during the financial yeor.
The Group confinues to maintain its strang
liquidity position.

Market context

It hes been p'gesirg to see our n-person events
refurn th's year, with the results showing promise |
‘or recovery oace internaticra. travel restrictions

are fted

The angoing pace of the vacoine ro lout s
encouraging ard paves the way for our
markets, however, given the recert soike n
COVID-18 cases in some of our markets, the
Boora remains cautious and 1s considering a
rumber of scenar os when planning chead

Simultanecusly, the eveving needs and
creferences of cur costomers have offered
us an opportunity for growth, through the
cevelopmert of cur omnickarnel strategy

Hock forward to the Group delivering sigrifcor:

orogress against this ambition during the
year ahead

£55.2m

FY21 revenue

Firarcal statements

The Board

During the year, we successfuly completec a
Board cvaluaton process using a third-party
provider to meosdre e effectiveness ot our
governonce ard the acccuntabiity of our Boare
remibe s Yuucun nd fusdher detalzim the
CGoverrarce report We have alse made
changes to tne way we ncentivise and reward
the Execut ve Directors and semior managers
After the year end, shoreholeers approved
changes to the Remuneralicn Policy,
cslablshing a five-year Value Creatior Plan
The aim s to rewara those in the plan for
achieving substanhal growth for the business
and incraasing shareho der velue The o on
serves as o clear statement of cammitmert,
both from the Company and from the
ndivinuals concerred Further detoils are

set out in the Remuneration report,

Stephen Puckett who has served the Board

a5 o hor-Executve Director s'nce 2013 wil be
stepping down from the Boord ot the conclusion
of our AGM 'n Februery 2022 | shou'd like to
than« Stephen for lis excellent service to the
Compary cver the past n-ne yeors, dur ng which
he has chared tne Audit Comrittee and more
racently the Risk Committee, and partcularly

tar ke support throughcut the difacul cerfod

fol owing the cutbreax of the pardarmic.
Stephen also served as the emp oyee
representatve We ore in the orocess of

seeking fo appoint additicnal Nen-Executive
D'rectars to the Beard

Dur.ng tne year, we estakisned the
Envircnmental, Sacial and Governonce (ESG)
Comm Hee, with Sroron Bayloy as its Char
Further detall 15 available inthe ESG Comm ttee
report (see pages 82 and 83} As o companry, we
take ve'y serously our responub lities towards
tne environment, cambating ¢ imate chonge.
mproving sacial weltore ond governance

| ke establshment of the ESC Committee
cemonstrates tre Beord's compmutment te

thesessues

Dividends

We are ~ot plann ng to recommence dvicenac
nayments this yoar, but we are comrutted to
re atroduc g them wnen oppropnoto to dosa,
wihen ihe business returns to sustoiea cash

gerergtier ond proftan ity

Anrual Repert ond Accounts 2021 Hyve Group plo

| would like to thank everybody
at Hyve for their substantial
support and commitment during
the difficult circumstances
brought about by the pandemic.

Team performance

I would Iike to thank everybody at Hyve for ther
substantial support and commitrent during the
difhicult cire umstances brought aboul by the
pondernic “This inc udes respondirg so well to
the disruptors ard cral enges that were a
result of the vanous locxaowns and restrict ons,
acapling to workirg “rom home, and tne
positve responses in relaf on fo returning fo the
otrca We loak forword 1o cormmuing to renew
the ofrce working culture ond investng in the
wellbeing and developmaent of ali of Hyve

I wau g also | ke to thank those irvolven in the
glebol task‘oree 1o create COVID-19-sofe event
standards, which heiped pave the way for the
events we nave been aole to run this year

Customer and other support

Qur cusicmers, venue owne’s ard supphiers
hase oll su=ered to @ gr-eater or lesser axtent
as a resull of the pandemic Trer support ard
flexibinty trougholt s cernod has enchled
Hyve to cort nue to opercte and recpen events
as soor as restnictions aave allowea P would

I ke 1o thank them ‘or their confirued support
ano belef n Hyve and its portol o of events

Looking ahead

We expect recovery to confinue ¢s we return
to o more rormo foof ng However, we must
rema’n cauhicus that infernctoral travel
restrichiors, as well as new CCVID-"9 varianis,
will impact the pace of that recavery We wit
contnue fo respond to coa gu.aorce ard
priorihse heolth one safety Alongroc tne
recovery ot cur In-person events, we will
contnue fo develep cur digital procucts fo
ado addtoral, sca.ch o revenue cooortun ties

to our model

Richard Last
Chairman

13
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Chief Exacutive Officer’s statement

Our omnichannel
evolution is under way

Our focus since the cutbreak of COVID-19 has been to emerge
with a stronger customer propositior. and robust financial
platform. This has prepared us well to meet significant

pent-up demand and accelerate our omnichannel offering

—

as markets reopened.

€

When we compare the
spend of those customers
who attended events
both before and since the
pandemic, we are seeing
a like-for-like increase
across the vast majority
of our events,

Mark Shashoua

R E e I IR
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The successful reopening of in-person eventsin
all our major markets has led to a strong and
enceuraging performance across our key
indicators — particularly in the second haif -
where our shows performed well on a wide
range of important metrics, including like-for-
like customer spend, visitor density, net
promoter scores and forward bookings.

This tme a yecr ago, we warted to poutan ow
nusiness ‘or success as markets recover by
achiev rg three clear priorities bu'lding
custormer market share on our market-eading
shows, triclling factated rmeet’ ngs for roilout
in FY22, and accelerat'ng cur omnichannel
strategy through the launch ef rew online
rmeet-ups, following the acauisit or of Retall
Meetup, augmented by the ocquisition of

121 Group in November this year We have
delivered on ol three

Also, te further develop the positive impoct
of our orands on commur hes and tae
environment, we have launcned a new
envronmenta’, sceia’ aro governonce {ESG)
strategy that will be embedded ceross our

busress

tcobing afead. our rabust inanaial pesition,
strengtherec customer engagerent and
smnicnanne strategy mean we are we'l placea
to benat: from a continued recovary o7 ohys<ical
events Whilst there hos been an encouraging
rafurn in domeslic demand, uncertainties
remair grourd the tim'ng of fu recavery, the
speed of which s likely to be in“uenced by t-e
redction 1o new vanorts by governments aoross
our key maorkets We continue to moniter any
developments and adept our operatons
accord ngy, basea or extensive scenano
pranning and thorough processesin place
I'would "ke to thare oll my colicagues for thoir
support ana determination in what nas oser

o demanding pernoo for ou- pusiness,

Following the work done in FY20 to
create a stable financial platform
and secure the future of the business,
how is Hyve’s recovery progressing?
we nrter FY22 0 a <toong poshe, with almost
cll our everts naving resured, inc'uaing the
lcrg-awa ted recoemirg of everts nthe U

ara S dunng the tou th guarter o the year

IFe rocopt'on from aur custemers has peen
averwhelmirgly postve ard we are see g
ercourcging ronas beginring fo omonge o
some events ore now enter ng treir seconc

cycle sice he pondemic

Financiai statements

Wwhile th s 15 prom’sing, we continue to exerc se
couvher ond expect that internaticna trevel
resricnons will oftect cur events for the near
future We must alsc remain mindful that

iccol COVID-assoaated cisruptiors have

tre potential to impact ou- future events

Far example, due to the recert resntroduct ¢
of restrictions in S~ongha, we had to cance:
two events scheduled for August As we have
{or the lost 18 montas, we continus to close y
raoriter developments regarding new COVID-18

varicnts across the mar<ets we operate in

Have customer needs changed since
the COVID-19 pandemic?

Peop e consistently as< “How will COVID-19
charge your bus'ress model?” The reciity is that
COVID-"9 will only occelerate trenos that were
naopen ng anyway There was alrecdy a shift of
corporate markehng spend towards nvesting
salely ir the main event in the relevart sectar or
geogrophy.

we had already future-proofed the business
aganst this change througn our Transformation
and Growth (TAG) programme, which sow us
invest sigrifcartly ima aur events and sohdity
treir market- cading positer 10 additor, we
sod ary smaller, more regiancliy focused
events, sucn as those we previous’y owned 11
Central Asia We now rur o streaml’reo pertfoic
of 63 n-parser events, down from o hign of
269 10 May 2077, with revenue per event now
more rhan fyve ihmes righer than ir 2017

Annua! Report and Accounts 2027 Hyve Group ple

You mentioned encouraging trends —
what customer behaviours and
patterns are you seeing?

Firstly, the rumber of domestic exhioitors
atterding aur events s shavarg strong s gns of
recovery wth some events already achieving
more tnor 100% of the crumper of demest ©
exhibitors in FY'3 Wren we compore the spend
of thase customers who otteroec avents both
before and since the pandem c. we cre see ng
a tke-for-| ke increase accoss tre vast majority
of cur events In cadticr, we are seeing that
number increase ogain as we look ahead to
F¥22 events Th s clecry demaonstrates tre value
our custormers place on the umique marxet ng
opportunity oresented by morket-lecdirg
Ir-person events

we have also been able to oitract o sireable
visiter oose, despite the restrict’'ens in place,
which 15 resulting i1 increased visitor aensity
(the number of wisitors per exibifor), delivering
nigher return on mvestment for our exhibitors
Tnis 15 increasing custemer satisfacthicn, which
15 in turn preducing higner hPS scares and

forward bookings

15
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Chief Executive Officer’s statement

What steps have you taken to
develop your omnichannel strategy
throughout FY21 and what value is
this adding for customers?

The pancem ¢ expeaited o cnaage It customer
ehav ours ard oreferences ond drove on
increase i~ d gritel adaption To certnue to
pre-empt the demand of cur customers, we
have ccceercted cur omnichonne strategy
soth t~rough bulding up cur own n-house

d gt preduct team as we'l os throug-
acaustion

Ore of *he frst steps in that journey was "o
acguire Retaw Meatup, an anling networang
pratiorm, i~ December 2020 This bus'ness
praovides us with an exc.hing new propost on
and o b uepnint ‘or growt™ We ren two Meerup
ovents pof-ocgushion durng tre - narool
yeor, ootn of which exceeded the expectations
‘ormed at the time ¢f the acousiten, and sinre
tee ord of "he financial year successfully ran
Shontolk Foi tAestun

Inadaitier, s ree the year ere, we arnounced
tre acqu.siten of 121 Group 12" Group 1s o ser es
o mecting programmes laxing o:ace 10 2oth
im-perscn anc online formats, fert~e mini~g
investmert sector Tris coqushon aaas furthes
strength and dversty 1o our ommicnarne
preduct portfolio

An omricrarrel mode enabies us to provide
customers w.th a calendar of oppertunit esto
learr, netwak and trade, ootk on. re ond
17 zerson, trrougnout the et re yeor Inturn,
tmis furtrer cements our pasit on os c strategic

cortner ‘o Gur customer cammur:ties

* One of your FY21 priorities was to

begin the rollout of facilitated
meetings. How did you perform
against this priority and what is
next for the product?

Fooil fatec meet rgs arc a-labout ensur'ng the
rght cennechors between buyers org se lers,
Felpirg them identify the key seop e tney should
be moetirg, and provicing an imsp rirg spoce in
wh ch they can do that Thisis al erasled ay our
digital pla~“ore and the detai'ed protles we are
bulding. os well as the enormous amount of
personalisea support from our product teams
(see poges 8 and §)

Because our custormer cormmun ty teams
getto tne heart of industries, and mnectings
nove ¢ coubr e-opt-in process, we kKnow fnat
these meehings wi be very e evant for

both inanaduas with o n.gh probabiity of

atena’ble cutcome

Thsizatrec and testoca mede), proven oy
Shoptelk ano Grocerysnop, with Groceryshop
taciltating more f~an *,700 meetings of its
Septemper event

We triol ed faciiteted meet rgs under the
rame '‘Curoted Meetings' at Autumn Farr,

with huge success Custemers told us that they
fourd tenormously valuchle ond we cre now
working tointegrote o ful facitated meetings
programme inte Bett ana Soring kair 10 2022,
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¢ How has the disruption affected your
" people, and what changes are you
making to their development?

Some of cur learns had been working on their
events for up to "1 menths when the pandemic
mt, and so cancelling them was very aifficult |
am so grateful to ocur people for their resilence,
determination and the passion iney showed
towards our products ond customers, as we |
as each other

Dur ng tne course of the oanderue, ke o'l
businesses, we had o bigger responsiolity than
ever to support our people We did this through
scaiing up the wel being and mental heclth
rescurces we provide, ncluaing launching 5Spill,
ar orlire counse'ling service, for UK teams

We also intraduced mentel health st anders,
and a globa! programme of wellbeing web.rars
covering tanics suaa os stress, m'rd ulress,
nutr:it'on onao slees

we alsc launched Pearan, o listening tool wnere
erplovess can sfer ~en feodiock onowno”

1s ona ise't workng for them The olatfarm
highl ghts ways we conmprove aur work ng
ruture as we'l es cevelop=ent, reword ond
wel beng Date ¢ regulariy reviewed ot Boord,
Group, div sicnal ana tegm cvel with acticn
plens created fo cooress the ‘eedoack We are
committed te contiruodsly Mmooy ng worang
|te ot Hyve a~d making Hyve a grent place

fo wor<

Fingnciol statements

In addition to these social
improvements, what are you doing
to address wider ESG issues?

As the voice of many major industr es, we
recognise we hove a ungue cpportunty to
put sustainable development on the ogenda,
and we wont to use the nower of our events
to create olatforms for change Tratis why,
this year, we have defined on amuoitnou: ESG
strategy (see pages 3010 32)

Whether n diversity and inciusion, ethical
business or susicinability, we car use our
influence "o
industnies we work with, and 1o redefine ESG

oing postive change auass e

witnm aur owr industry, Of course, this means
we will also increase cur focus on the seaia’
and ervironmentaiimoacts of aur own evenrts
while partner 1g witn the wider industry to

tack e scme o its largest ssuns

L4

FUTURE
}_ENEQ(,Y
SERIES

MfoSTERIAL & Vip

MPOSIUM

¢ How do you see the outlook for
the business?

lam corfident aizoat Hyve s long-term outlooe,
thanks to the tieless efforts our teoms mace
throughout the last 18 months As we icok
anead, whie uncesta'nty about the eve ution of
the pandemic hos increased nrecent weeks,
we are excited tc contimue to support our
v'brant industry communities ard connect them
through our unmissoble in-persan events, cnlire
plotforms anc preductive fochitated meeting
programmes, while advocatng for sustainable
development beth irside our own business ard

tnroughout the noustnies we work in

Mark Shashoua
CEQ
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Business model

When people come together,
powerful things happen

What we offer S
While each of our products is highly toilored Nefwork oL

to the industries and geographies we work
in, the one thing they all have in common is
their purpose. Our customer communities
rely on us to meet three fundamental needs:
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~— Who our customers are — What we do S e e -
A Hyve customer could be Our omnichannel model revolves
anyone - a buyer, seller, around three core products.

group, individual, corporation,
government, school, influencer
or decision-maker, to name
just a few.

* Hyve events calalyse business communities
areund the world, providing a place to
meet, discuss, do business and get inspired.

" At any one of cur events, thousands of
connections happen,

-

We play o signifizart role across major
sectors, such as education technalogy,
ecommerce and energy, by hosting important
discussions which have the power to

advance industries.

Qur platforms are important marketing
apportunities for our tustomers, and we see
a clear trend towards allocation of marketing
budgets to avents which are, or have the
potential to be, market-teading.

In addition to exhibitors and visitors, we also
consider our sponsors, specikers and special
" gueststo be our custorners, as they too have
something to add to and gain from our

events, whether that be networking, marketing
" orinflugncing.

Unmissable events

We run B3 in-person events acress multiple
major industries and throughout the world.
From Glee, connecting the UK's gardening and
outdaor living sector, to MITT, bringing together
an international travel and tourism audience in
Moscow, our events are important dates in the
calendars of major industries, and are where
our customers come te get inspired, expand
their business contacts and do business,

Optimised facilitated
meetings programmes

Our faciliiated meetings programmes,
managed by our community development
teams, help our customers to curate their
own agendas ohead of our in-person events
This means they arrive with a clear plan of
who they will meet and when, leaving them
with more tme to learn and discover Read
more about the process, and the technology
which powers this solution, on pages 8 and 8.

Online networking

With increased demand from our customers to
stay connected year-round, enline networking
is an important part of our model, Our online
programmes, such as Shoplalk Meetup for
Wonmen, Learnit Live and 121 Mining Investment
Onling, support our in-cerson events by offering
additional opporiunities for cur communities

to connect, through multiple formats and at
multiple times per year.
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Business mode!

— How we make money

6%

(2020: 72%)

66%

The major ty of cur revenue 1s gererated from W Exhibilor fees

the faes that our exhitars pay for space at ane Salas of techrucal services 18%

of our exfigtiors We receive payment for an M Digial ond tech-enabled 8%
fafth Ik of rcost i ’ .

event chead of the bulk of our costs beirg spent, ¥ Sponsoship 7

mak’ng our wordng cop ta' cyele very strang
Delegate sales & other

o 34%

(2020: 28%

16% (2020 9%) comes from the sole of techrico
services fo exibitors, such os stara corstructon,
7° (2020 &%} comes ‘rem sel'ing sponscrship
coporiunthes - for excrmiple. stage orarang

or sugpcriing on owards srogramme 3

{2020 11%) comes *rem delegate sa es of our
conferences, end the rema nimg 85 (2020 27
cemes from aigtal ona tech-grabied ~evenue
streams suen cs o cre evert port cipotion and
fac ifatea meeting programmes
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—  Our key competitive advantages

We believe that Hyve is in a strong position to
rompete, given our ability to capitalise on severdl
sustainable, competitive advantages.

/ ‘o |
\.Fj e \ X/

- N /

Our established pasition Our data Our commitment to quality
With three decodes of exper'ence at the heart By getting to know our attendees, we We are obso uiely commtted to de vering

of major industries, we hove become experts in ore abls to buld detollea ciofiles of our quahity groducts that provide enormous va ue
understandirg the currert trends, chalenges visitors ona ther reasons for aitending our for our customers. Gur Transformchon and
and needs of cur customer communities events And thisis highy valuao e dato for Growth programme instilled o best practice
This means we run the leading event ir our customers culture across cur global bus ness, ard our
those industres portfolic now comprses anly the most b ghiy

regerded everts.

Our matchmaking product Our omnichannel approach
We are doveloping solut ans using o mixture Whereas pure aigital platform providers ore

of in-house ond toird-party technology to oble to offer part o tre expernerce, ard other
create the bast possible user expenence events companies can provide tne in-persen

for our customers, such as our factated experience, we are able to cater to our

meet ngs platform (see pages 8 and ), custemers ir mulhple woys, whick he ps us to

buiid a sirgle view of therr needs, ano posihans
us ot the heort of the r industries
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Business model

— How we’re evolving

As the physical and digital worlds merge, our omnichannel
approach will enable us to scale, as will a more agile approach
to work and increased focus on the bigger picture.

An agile approach to work

» Change isine new normol To erbroce this,

©we are pacphng @ mrore exible woy of
work'ng, ol'owing us te scole teams as

Steve Pinches
SVP Product

requirea ana respend to bath changing
environ-nents and customer dermaonds

-

inis appreach alsa al'aws our teams to be
more entrepreneurnial and take cccountap |ty
‘or decision-making

For exc-nple, tc support our amnickonne|
strategy, we have oult o digital team, whic~
aims to develop new exper ences. pi'ct tnem
as ear y as oossible a~d work 'n parctnersh’p
! with our custarmers te develop high-volue

) preducts that cur custormers reed

Accelerating omnichannel

& COMIDB A2 coceleroied cnenges 1 Cusfore:
berov our cnd we kave wored adcky fo

acant gur preaucts fo oetter rmget tre r mecas
THE COVID-*% RESPONSE

CHAMPIONKS AVWARDS * ~sacotzacftecrroogy-emcp od ‘oo tatea

ST I ER ja: ugr fcontvalic taour
FepErsRT BVESN wn © Gy en ng Teet o
feldalolys e-amie usto supc ot cur
Clstomers wutoetoucmzo e tveagtoat
freeor A ttmgny orodact ve prag
a o e thouttor ~esaic tran e

.

ect zur cuctomer cemm

ot et egaoLe
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Creaﬁng ’platforms for ® Aswel as addressing the imooct of our
] awn evenls o the environment ard our

progress | local communihies, we nave an ambiihion
* This year, we hove ciso acted on our "o grow all of our events ivte platforms

respansibilty to do more to protect the for progress’ wWe will drive forward : -

planet ana its people Our newly laurcaed . sustoinabie development nthe industries R wﬁ_‘/
- environmental, soc’a ond governance " we work with n, leveraging support from
strategy (see pages 30 to 32) high'\ghts our custorner communities to collechively
i how we plen fo moce o difference maoke positive changes

Our evolving model in action

Bett is one of our leading
global brands, and
exemplifies the suc

of our progressive,
omnichannel approach.

Bett UK - in-person event

Learnit conference — ® Bett Academy

in-persen event YEAR |
ROUND

Newly launched Ahead by * Leornit podcast
Bett - in-person event
aimed at higher education

At those in-person events, * Learnit Live - « Bett Brasil -
custorners can joir the hosted ; GiC
leaders pregramme, te benefit onling event for
from focused 15-minute, . wducation lsaders » Bett Asia -
thoughtfully matched meetings n-p

el al
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Our strategy

Facilitated meetings at
in-person events

Professional, double-opt-in
matchmaking programmes at
In-person events, curated by our
community develepment teams and
enabled by bespoke technology, to -
bring together ouyers and sellers ‘/
with mutual interests See our
infroduction to facistated meetings
on pages 8 and 9 for more

Bringing
omnichannel to life

OUr om nichannei STrGTegy ]S Once our omnichot el Motel s opo edioar

. evenf brend, nacahon to atterding the annua
G” ObOUf deVelOpmg new n-persor events, we ercble our custemer
WOYS to meet our Cusfomer-s' ceramunihies to stay connected throughout the

year with onl re maetings prograrimes, rourd

needs to frdde‘ nefwork tenles ond 1nspr ng content As well cs crechng
and learn in complex and maore touckpoints w th cur custermers, this alse

v [Vin SeCfOl" strengthens aur sos t on ot the Peart of our
evo 9 8. irdustr s wh le enab ing us tc fake a ecomg

In god tion te cdr core business of norcet- rc e 1 therr susto rob'e development arc

lecding In-person events. we support our hes our customers novigote ther comio ex

custarmers wth mutip e crocucts, tnroughout ecosystems Tnere ore two cey Grvers of our

the ertire yvear, tarough sotn orline ana cmn'chonne' strateg ; .
veen 9 Y Online meetings

-parsor ‘armats
programmes

Online rmaetirgs ard col aberat'aon
ovents that brirg entire industry
ecosystems fogetner incluairg
ana.ysts, experts a~d rvestors

These orogrammes are setting the
~ew stondord for ooline everts
Learn more by recding cur
Geroceryshoo Spring Meetun

cose study o~ noges € and 7
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The omnichannel model

. Fundamental customer needs

Omnichannel strategy

In-person events >

Custemer ROl and ROT materially improved market-leading content and

Introduce facilitated meetings to enable frade on site ‘ Continue providing access to
thought leadership

Ondine >
Year-round online meetings for entire industry ecosystems Deliver market-leading contert
online through webinars and
virtual cenferences
Fas Fal N S

Monetisation and engagement - Engagement
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Qur strategy

Strategic acquisitions

We have acquired two proven products into our portfolio
to support cur omnichannel evolution.

Retail Meetup 12 a cne-cf-a-kinc on'ine
expenence that brings a arge group within the
retol ndustry together for curated, aeub'e-oot-
n meetings and expert-lea peer d'scussions

i offers custemers the charce to have -hree

months worth of meetings 1n just three

holf-days Sirce the iraugural Retal Meetup
n Octeber 2020, more thar 5,000 porticioants
have cemp.eted over 50,000 meetings,

rmok ng this series retal’s crgest meetngs

programme ever

121 Group 1z 0 poouler and prosen pratformitrat

* cernects fhg ™ ieg rvestment mdustry frrcuge

G sereL 0f m-gersan anc onl e motworkng
eve~te |~ 702" anne tioc foted mcre mon

000 mestmGT Dery,

oo ~yestnes Inodotertoernerang D

oresence nfhe mom cg noustry oot mter o

Gelar SratCrorre

o noren tesforg
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Expanding our omnichannel portfolio

Omnichannel-

ready sector

Market-

leading event

Facilitated
meetings

Arnual Report ong Accounts 2021 Hyve Group ple

Online
meetings

Ecommerce
for retail

SHOPTALK

Ecommerce
for grocery

Not suitable
. AUTUMNFAIR :
Giftware SPRINGFAIR 6 Ig;r:grw
Education 2022 ° Triat 2022
Technology
el W
Commodities MINING 21 Q 2

27
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Qur strategy

Omnichannel-ready
events

In-person avents in
sectors already disrupted
by end bene®ting from
technology.

Fuelling future growth

We see a significant opportunity for our
products both within cur existing sectors
and new industries, driving clear growth
ambitions for Hyve. As value chains and
market dynamics become increasingly
complex, we see a greater need for
Hyve to support sector communities
and facilitate connections.

Qur geowth ambiters wl oe rea seg
terougn the successfu mpleme-tation
of cur amnickonre products ane

ccmt rueg preguct gevs cpment

te mecttog crang ~g reeas o

Cdr rustoTiars

i~ crder o cocs erate th s wheategy, ve

“ve oul NeT s hor onfene

L

Sz o o of orcaucts

Inte ms of ootert ¢! orqu sit.cns, we
Faverdentitea ez dino o
saitan by as d.gte adootaor whick
vaor o8 oy tector ond geogrophy We
Fave uraertcren e tharcugh rev’ew of
the rduser es tnat Fave areaoy ceen
crore Ttre orecess of be g oiructes

oy fecmnc gy Wew  or onfise thesc

qocur acau s ton

oS teg Mg e aren of

cous Omm cogargi-reno, everts arg

Gt cmueen orcoucts
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Omnichannel
products

Piatforms or technology

that support and accelerate ’
the developrment of our ’
existing brands inta

omnichanne! platforms

Annual Report and Accounts 2021 Hyve Group ple
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Environmental, social and governance strategy

Creating platforms for progress

As well as aspiring to become a champion for sustainable development
within our own industry, we recognise the unique opportunity Hyve has to
lead by example, and educate, empower and drive positive change
across the global industries we work with.

Developing the strategy

Creating o strategy thot s autnerha fo Hyve,
and thet focuses or the arecs we car make the
maost impact, was our pronty when cefning
our coproach te onvirenmental, socal ard
governance {E50) As suc~, we worked wits
specalst consultancy S mp y Sustoinable to
deve'op a long-termt view ¢~ sustairoble
development

Ine precess te aesign our strategy ncuded o
troraug™ rev ew of the pe itca, econom’c and
sociof inTuences cno ssues i each ol Ine
countries we coerate n We a'so gathered
stokeholder ins'ghts from colleagues, customers
snarenc cers end supprers to necr direct'y fre™m
our commurit.es o whot matters fc them ore
whnere 1ney oeiove Hyve com nove ihe most
was olse completed highhght ng cur current
stremgths
meater a-ty ossessment, taking ab of tne cbove

0 waakreoszes, ara ~rally a

~to cansideraton, keloea us to o npoirt thase

topics where owr potert clto make posit ve

chonge s tre grootest

Change starts within

We wnow inal our obuity 10 1nfucnce chonge will
be most nowerful when our glopal tea—s are
engogea it o shored goa' Taat's why this yeer,
we have made susta rable cevelecoment cne

of cur three interrcl Greun prigrities Ths hos
ensurea that every i~awvidual, 'n eacn o our
offices s cortidernag 28G ~ atrers when sethrg
theiriraividuc pricutes for tne yeor

Ivaadit o~ 175 yeor we bave oledgec to

=g contly [oMp L oW fvestaent i ol g
ara developrien' includirg sceafic framing
re oting to E5G matters

Toeansure that 258G s we'l gowernad, we have
implemerted a Board committee, chaired

vy Shoron Bayloy (see pages 82 ond 83 for
rmore mformaticn)

women- cwaed
iownship cooperatives
i Cape Town createn
delegate bags and
face masks for this
ysor's ADW

Strategy in action

We rave sef oucse wes o number of forgets
woick reflect our 255 empmons ano will guids
cur actonz and p'onting over the corn ' ng years

Tnese targets were deve opec n corsultotior
vl o glonelieams ang are beng
incorporated mte our event and tunchona
pmr\n-r\g processes o ergure algreert ond

a ¢ollective efforr

Our UK Retail tearn,
- in partnership with
the Retail Trust,
9 haosted o tea
B party for a retall
retirement hame
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A clear and inspiring strategy

Empowering

communities

We are experts in cennecting
pecple and formirg communitics
We will use those skiils to support
communit es both lecal to the
events we run, and to champicn

enterprise and 'nnovation

® Supporling enterpr se ard
trade

* Community relatiors

® Social mobility

aAnrual Repert ond Accounts 2021 Hyve Group plc

Yision

Creating platforms for progress

We airm ta reashne sustainaoility within our industry and use owr umgue influence to educets,

empower and drive positive change ocress the global industries we wark with.

Strategic pillars

Broadening
horizons

Addressing
impact

Objectives

Our busimess is ouilt or human
conrechons We wilinspire
peop e to be their full se'lves,

n g safe and irclusive
erv.rorment, while developing
tarent for the next generahicn

We must also address our own
carbon footprint. We wi | pusn
boundares in the everts
industry and aspire for
customers to recognise the
commitment of Hyve events

to sustainabinty.

Material ESG topics

Employee treining ond
deve opmeant

tqualty, diversity anc

Irg us on

® Fair ond decent work

* Susicinab e travel
® Sustomicb e supaly chain
# Reduc g carnon ermiss.ons

®* Feducng waste

Foundation

Safety, wellbeing, ethics and security

Inspiring
change

We recognise that we have o
un'que opperfunity cre a
responsibility to influence
change We wil. use our
olatferms to move sustanab e
development forward across
major industries

s Cloba education and traimirg
s tnyrormentel owareness

e Customer sustanchbilty

aWwareress

n
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Environmental, social and governance strategy

Just some of our ambitions

: . . Qur New Delh.
Empowering Broadening horizons tearr proudly

.. supportea
communities s Bulding our ungersteraing of World AIDS Day

- " lus or
® Civ'ng back to the loca’ ourrolan nclison

commun’t os we work with n ® Ensuring on-stage

© ropresentot oo

# Helpirg everyore, rrespectve
cf their backgroura, ocrieve
their poterticl

Our Pharmtech Tulor
proagramme, @ ils third
year, helgs sludents
develop therr caresr
inthe industoy

Addressing impact

® Mecsuring ord reducng
cur waste

® ffeasur'rg ard goaressing

Cur gm Es10Ng

Recyclak's
event posses
ar Ras=.Pncy

fhaskot~g BExecutive

Jingwer w<ed one

' her vo un'eenng

oays e ~elp aut o

ner lncal COVIZ-"9

vECI nonot tenlre

.. Lorma Verre from
Inspiring change Lea~ m E~orgy
end=g "be

® Creahng o colture of Inz us wity fAarars

ses: oo ot Binca
O wleak

FESOCL. Ty O

CTIGAG U LEQD &

8 ocrg t,ue eeents

G otiorms
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Non-financial information

We uze o rarge of inancia: and ~on-anan
metfries to measure our performance cotn
internally and w th our people (threugh

emoloyee listening) ard cxterna ly with ou

custamers (through NPS scores ord re aticnskip

maragrment), alongside metrics relevart
to our financial stre~gth ergagement and

impoct on socety ond the wider environment

Reporting requiremen?

Firanciel statemarts

oial we aim to comoly wirm the ~on-* nonaal
reporting requirements cortarmed in sections
4" ACA ond 414CR of the Comparies Act 2006
r The below table, ana in‘format-on t refers to,
15 ntenoed to he p stokenolders understane
our pesitior onkaey noc-finaeoal Tatters
Tne infarmaton reawred to be conta ned 1n

Policies and standards which govern our approach

Annual Repert and Accounts 202" Hyve Group ple

to tre Companies Act 2006 15 sef out 'n this
rnor-*rancal informanen staterers Cihor
relevant irfarmation about cur busness maode!,
KPls and our epproach to governande review
and risk mancgement are detalled elsewhere
1o tnis report

ke non-tiranciel reporting sicterrent pursuont

Where to find additional informaticn

Envirenmeniel matiers

“he Company addresses ervironmental mctters .
ol event level Dunng the inancral year tre
Board estaolished an Ervronmental, Sccicl

More ‘rformat on on our ESG strategy car be
found on poges 30 fo 32

® We have included informotion about greenbouse
and Governance (ESG) Committee to drow up, ,
E . . gas emissiors in cur Drectors’ report on poge 73
imp emert and monitorits E3G strategy.

Employees The Group's Cede of Conduct sets out what 15 ® We have includeo ¢ statermert dbout our
expected from every person werking for, and wnistleblowing arrangementsin our Corporate
wit=, our businesses anywhere in the world governonce repoert on page 68
Tne coce acls aw an umbrella for the fol awing

. . . . ® Informahcn about cur employecs can be founc in
policies Gifts end Hosprlality, wWhistieblowing, . . , .
. . . the ‘Cur Pesp'e ono values' sect'on or poges 34
Arti-Broery and Corruption, Anti-tModern .
_ i and 35, the secton *72 (1) stotement o1 poge 56
Slavery/“ umar Tratfcking, Conflict of Interest, . }
. andinthe Drectors' report on page 73
Sanctiors and Expenses
Human rights Human Rights Policy * Ourgpproach ta human nights s covered by
f ' lgounch
Modern Slavery Statement our‘Code of Carduct which was lounched
durirg FY20 Further .nformatior can be
Arci-Slavery and Human Tra*tckirg Policy ‘cund in cur Corporate Governance repcrt
a1 page 7° and cr our website
hyve group/Respons’biiity/Humar-R ghts
& We nave ncluded o statement abeout moaern
s‘avery In cur Corperate governance report
on page /1
® Cur Mcdern 5 avery Stetement con be found
orn ourwebsite byve groupr Responsionitys
Modern-Slavery-Statement

Social matters The Comaany addresses social ard community ® More ‘nformation on our ESG strategy can be
matters ot event lovel As stated above, during found on pages 30 fo 32
the fira-cial yeor the boord estapl sred an F25

) \ o Infocrmator onour soc-clresporsiblty car be
Committee to draw up, 'mplement and monrtor K
fourd o1 our webste hyve groun/Respensibolity/
ty ESG strategy
Soc:a-Responsibity

Anti-corruption and anti-bribery Art-Carruphon Poley ® We bove inc'ucec ¢ statemert aoout anfi-

G *ts and Enterfoinment Policy corrupt o policies r our Corncrate govarrarce
reaort or ooge 70
® Furtrer nformation cen be ‘ound on our website

nyve grous/Responan [y Ant -Corrupticr

Description of principal risks and
impact on business activity

See poges 26 tc 39 of th s report

Description of business model

See nages 1810 23 et tis repot

Non-financial KPls

See nages 54 and 55 of th's reaort

33
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Our people and values

Celebrating and empowering
amazing people

As a business, we make it our mission to celebrate and
empower amazing people and our internal approach to
people and culture is no different.

Qur constartly evoiving stretegy is all about
cffering o urigae expenence, which gives our
peoole both the support they noed, os well s
the treeaon to enable them to snow U to wark
as trerr authentic and best selves

Throughout tnis yoar, we have transtormed our
opproachk fc how we supeort our people, with
tne ambition of crecting o mere taiored ara
nclusive experierce for all Hyve co 'eagues

Our strategy never stonds stl We are
comritied to corhinuously mprovirg our
aporoach to peonie ono cu ture ana to
responding to the ctest as ghts we have
availghle to us, enabli~g us to prov as the
most suprorhive and rewording expenence
for our giohalteam communites

4

[

We have transformed
our approach to how
we support our people,
with tne amb'tion of
creang a more tailored
ard nclusive experience
foraltbyve colleagues

Celebrating individuality

Lstening s a vital element of our seop e
ctrctegy This year, we partrered with Peakon,
enapling us to gatrer insights from our peoole
ard hear what s warking well, ana where we
have space to improve Now, our leaders con
base trewr pecole plans gn regl-ime data rom
treir teans and focus on the thirgs thot matter

We ackrow cage that werk s never vone
with regaoros to relus on We are corstent y
™ok NG IMprovenents to our processes ong
partnerships to create o more welceme and
supportve place of wars We hove aready
begun toroll out avers ty traiming ocress the
Group ara are comm tted ta traiming "00°% ot
cclleagues by the ena of ~ext yea:

We are 0 5o deve oping cur 1Inclusivty calendar
o he p us ce.chrate 1nd vidua ity across our
business and ensure that we are recogas ng
a~d contimucusy re-educating curselve: aoout
differet culturcs ard causes

Encouraging ewnership

Our culture 15 evo'y NG, witn cecountan ity
becom-rg ever-more mpertant We believe trot
it < our resporsin by to ensure thot the rght
tonis, space ard susport are nplace to ol ow
cur seco & to fake cwnersmin whetre tral be
ctire cwor theremyromment crtro e g
cevelopiont Accourtoh ty L

ceatorof ooy o oo ture,

‘er ommpoweres in more dec = ons asd react

au c<y fo e fhmg situnt ooy s ve gat Liea te

croTge neccm ng the men tor o’

11,100+

comments have beer sharea
trrough Peakor

50+

More than 50 of our leaders
attended cur two-day
annual leadership team
conference

Communication

We hove cverhoulea our commiurcation
charnels this yeor, imp ementing new, more
engaging and interactve ways to share news
ara provicing cpporstunit es fo fhave d scuss os
Qur mertay CEO videos celensate success framn
around the Group We lauackes HyveTV, an
interncly produced news show to get our teams
closer to wnaot s nappening arcura the netwar<
We run regu'ar glebal virtuo QBA essions wath
sen arleaders Monthly G obol Gatrernngs oct
Gs C20 *ocus groups witn globa! col eagues

Recognition

Our rew y aunchec gabal recagr fion
croare™™e Hy Foee reweras "0 coleagacs
eocn auarter for v T CUT LOSMDSNY VO e
Voorress attera o cesscra cewc’ cnmient

sessic, fusteam-ou d g oact vty one

drrer e tn e sepeer toom

Hy Five’ i
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Geovernance

Spotlight on wellbeing

1me fopic of welbeing is dscusseu regulyr y
amorg cur ‘eadersh p tecm. We are committen
to mcking sure that our peaple krow H'ey are
cared obout and subporting their healtn

After an extremely demanding ycar. every Hyve
colleague was given a wellbeing day off to
spend relaxing, seeing friends and family,

or doing something they had missed during
lockdown. This was just one way of showng

our gratitude to our people for their nored ble
commitment to our business and customers,
and the resilience they showea throughout

the pandemic.

& parhcular focus wos put on mentol heglih,
with the taunch cof tAentcl Heolth First Ajders
and access o free enline theropy pravioed for
some of our teams. In additien, colleagues were
cohvely encouraged to jon a series of webinars
rrected especial y for our peope ontopes

inc ud'ng mingfulness, s.eep and nutrtion

Investing in You

we launched our Investing in You orogramme
- our improved appreach to learn ng ong
dev=looment. ofteana raring that i< lees
obout farchon ond e more benchoial i the
developmert of cur people

We created o Knowledge Hub on cur ntranet,
“dec with srowd <gurced framming and
aemcrstration videos created py our globai
teoms, on fop cs ranging from Goog & Aaaiyt cs
ta Photeshop, so taat peop e cenbuic ther
cwn besooke hoin'ng ey lobus Ore of ou

most popular tre.ring codrses was a sessicn

on mproving your onl ne presenting sk s,

now thot sc much of aur woerk 15 core 9’“roug‘1

vdoo corferercea

Outean: were a so meted to atte~d coreer
¢l rics and recowed gudance anther porrorei

deve oprment ard carear goal ular~nig

Finencal statements

Lewking shoce, we nave a plan in placs to rml
out mertal bea'th tra n'rg to oll managers, tc
help trem soot the signs when somecne neecs
help ard provide support for collecgues

6

We arrgnged six bespoke mental wellbeing
sessions during our Summer of Wellbeing
programme.

We kept tne focus o health taraughaout the year,
with the creation of cur Wellbe ng Hub an our
intranet and a series of imfiat.ves such os
celebrating World We''heing Weax During the
week our colleogues were invited to attend
Fealthy coox.ng demanstretions, yoga classes
ard minafuness sessions, as well as being g ven
access to support matericl Our tearn ir India
celebrated Hoppiness Week to g ve the teamn

a much-needed boost as they came out

of lockdown, and cur team in Moscow
collaboratec te produce ther best oractice
sude to menta wellbeng af waork

119

of ourleaders attended a Management
Training pregramme spanr ng eight mocules,
equipping them with treimpartant sk lis reeded
to be brilliant leaders

P —

Qur just-launched Leadership programme 1,
tnemed arcund ovoptive leadership and coping
with eternal change.

——————

Gorg forward, we aspire to move to o mode
tiat sees collecgues gven ar alowance of
trreg hours per mosth, wa oo they are
crcouraged to use fowards frie r own
cevelopment whether that be through
cocon rg, watching LD folks or attena’ng
courses We wartio put our oeoplein conbio
cf ther cwr arrectior ard growtk

Annual Rooort and Accounts 2027 Hyve Group ple

Jo Rabbett has joined
Hyve as Chief Talent
Oificer, with the gim ol
developing the talent
within the business
and making Hyve an
employer of choice.

+35

We scored an employee NPS of +35 against

the mental wellbeing driver .~ our lotest
Peckon survey, which puts us rine tep 10%

of companies using the teol

The pandemic ~elped us te better urderstane
the positive impact that remote werking car
nave on oetn the physical ard mental weilbeing
of our people We listened to the oreferences of
our colleagues or what work ng arrangemenrts
wauld wore for them and cre impiementing

s uhans waier str ke the r'ght balonce between
hame werking and crectira an office space that
encomposses our culture, while taking accaunt
of the locol nuances of the gesgranhies thot we
work within,

Employee voice

Peokon is oloying @ huge rele in ensuring that
the emp oyee vo'ce 1s represented ot Board
mechngs, with the results of every survey be ng
dscussed at 'ength Inadoihon, the full tecm
of Non-Execut ve D rectors ottended one of
our largest U< everts, Autumn Foir, tak ng the
opporiunity to speak with colleagues ond see
Ihen work fust hond

We are o s¢ takirg stecs to famil anse

co leagues w tn members of the Board trcugn
@1 mternol engagement campa’'gr re'ud ng
interviews on our intramet cnc aooeorances of

nternal everts

as



36

Hyve Group plc Avnucl Repart and Accounts 2021

£rincipel risks and uncertainties

How we’ve managed our key risks
in these uncertain times

The Group has well-established risk managerent processes
for identifying and monitoring risks and uncertainties

affecting the Group.

Tne orinc pel risks facing Hyve are revewesc
regu'arly by ooth the R'sk Committee and the
Board, who con® i tha* -hey have carriso
out a rooust assessment of the princpal ond
ermergng r sks ‘ocing the Group, includ'ng
those that couid tareater s business mede .
future perfarmance, sa vency and hquidty

I7 March 2020. the COVID-18 outareak
esco'oted nte a global pancemic leadng to
unprecede~tod scaetal, goverrmentol and
personcompaots ana restrctions [he expesure
to a7 extended pericd of time durng which o
commun can't a1Isease severgly Impocts on the
Croup's aollty te ergarise events represerts o

prrc’pal nisk for tne Group and censequenty
tme risk of a ponageric (a-d, as sucn, cn

ep aemic a.5c) was added 16 the st of prncipa
rsks ara urcertart s last year A though the
Group nas taxer cecs ve act ons over the last
12 rmortns anec run events in the maganty of
mearkets, the cngoing disruption arg potentia:
threat of carcellot ans ¢r bastponements on cur
ovents schedule shil remams a sigrificond nsk

“he risks describea be ow reoresent those
thet we censider have the greatest potential
to mpact on our anoty e meet our strategic
opjectves Standard coerctionol risks are nat
greze~ted 1~ tae st of pr ropa nisks one

uncerfainfies borow os they are canndared
pervasive nsks that are not Hyve-speahc and
would be risks for the majorty of listed groups.

Along with the principal nsks and uncerta nhies
set out be'ow, the Group considers arenge

of ether nis«s, inc uding cl mate charge and
sustairebil ty While not cens'aered a princpal
rizk, severe weatner evenis are recogmsed as o
factor ir the venue unavailob ity r sk descr bea
below Tne Grous cort'nues to monitor ways
irwhich we ear mit our impact en the
environment throughout our operot rg oo
Hyve's impact en the envirarment pr mar-ly
relates "o energy consumphion o' gur offices and
everts, business travel tc and from our events
anrd the use of non-susta reb e motena s at our
events, alof whienwo ore taking oreactive
steos te min mise

Change in rigk

rating from
Risk titla Potential impact Updates during the year Mitigatfion prior year
— @nic g lramie ather Verae condrocts al ow tor o aegres of
‘ eqrinquaks ormodamage g recautrefablaanieres o refye d et aate
s —ipter ar orlirens Svile~care rglace wensare that pleyee:
areabeto kremolely arals
1 Cestere el Lifies ik 3w = -
Pqndem'c’ ne iz e Al o - Gre and ken regular,
YD
natural e e COID-3 pars ongallalon msurange 'or
. atleg anour as ity e rar e o en's ang businese cond 1.
disaster or i v place Foar
TRy Cuicakl
H nErngs e Tose - J
terrorist b i e S azrem L F
. -
incident Coem e e

Political and
economic
instability

cE maclon
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Risk fitle
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Updotes during the year
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Mitigation

Change in rick
rating from
prior year

¥ . N
A/
Liquidity risk

sigrehzantly reda-ad trading cuer
a eslenaed ondundetesmimed
thoan mehalit e

Lol ame, combinen v
cfferlvaly mAanage experdrure o - 3sh
wderhng, ~uldimipnr s the o apees's
aoliy 1o cpecate within ond secure
addihiona’ cemim bed red b laaline

The COVIT 19 ponasna bas caused
aznedleant saoupnion s ur cvers

sehedue reducina coeroliongl o
flmwws aned in rerting ity s

Inthe crevious “nancisl year, we agr
the wower of cur guorlerly leverage
rarhir and mte ract ¢ cuer bane conerant
tests L to ona includ ng Morch 2022
and replaced them vl o sirgle

lamdily coveront

Subseguert o the year end, the roup
hae secu e d furthe Fwovers o iy
leverage and interest cover covenants L
to and incled ng March 2022 As before,
aangls heuichity covenant sl remenn in
place duriag bz period

At 20 Septembier cach ardundrawn
debt facihhies were L130 1m, prowching
the Group wit= sizn fcant hquidey geing
inla Y22

The Sroun hos cancel'oton nsdrance
prlcies to mihgale the iquicdiry sk of
eerapl e o cur evenl wohedale Dur mg
FYZ, tne Lompony teceiveu £62 0 (2023
£Z2Z 0m) nonsurance proceeds Since the
vear enr. ¢ rirrmaten of 20 adah aal
L3 8 has beenreceved, bringing total
confirmedipsura- te cloims ta £ 97 Fr
Fuelher swmns maoy be recoved duano P22
as the remamng o ore concladea

Thare stlexibilty o the Troup's coot

bare wriculd events nel take ploce Tusker
cosl cortro measures are avallabe to
management shou'd they ke required

te indreace Lgachty

At 30 Ceplembier 2021 'he Group haos

£212 hmocl long-term borrawing foolites
with o syndicate of lenders provicing
acuess fo agnifiozr hgadiy untl ma
1 December 2027

arify

N
-

Venue
unavailability

Damage to o L navalakiby of i
venoe tond lead 1o event canze lahion
impacting the Greap's irading pesihion
This could occur due 1o, amarg clher
things, sevare wonther everte, ratural
disnerer serronsm or disputes vath
verue Gwrers

Carce lation s ance for aur top 20
events wos renewed lalthoagh cover {or
communiobe d senses s ne onger
owm able!

The COVID-19 pandeic has continued
to hove a signt™-ant impact on venue
avalohilty asong b 2 Ainar ol year due
1o governmrent restrichons nalmarkets
unlarge guthenngs

In December 2020 1ne Campony
acquiren Relol Mectup ennbling d
to offer fugh-qualey evente in g
digtal formal

Dur Top 20 even's Ihreugh to the end of
farcial year ended 30 Sep’smiber 2021
were covered for communkable arenses
suchae COVID 9 Even' cancelahenfar
cur Tep 20 events i renewed annually
Trroughout the oandemc we have been
i centinaal chalcgue with venue cwners to
wecre wenes lor s rescheduled events

.\

-/
Repatriation
of profits
from
subsidiaries

“he Group operates nanuiber

of courenes w 'h complex leca
requiremignls surrouad ng ove:seas
paymente There s a ngk of casn being
“rapped roadks dignes, resuling
hiaeiddy preblems within the Group

This woulo also expese us o e nsk of
Jurisc hers matenaily increas ng the
wilnholding tos rate onihe paymert
of dividends

Duri- 3 the firarcig! ye arn the Group
aispesed of o Kozadhslan eoeralicres,
complehing ine ex 1 fram the Cendral
Asio market ond reducing the number
alterntor es lramowhie nt needs 1o
repatnale cash

Overzeas cnch balonces ore mon e e
snawenkly bosie by, Crown manogement
and casn transferred whenaver the
spparlurily arses

The Groap has wel-etlablshed poymer!
mezhamsme wrepainte caun drem ite
cabs ciories

Afronchise fee trarsler prarg nadelie n
cperaticn i all key T oarksts

7 )
-y

Breach of
anti-bribery
laws or
similar

Should an emoloyee or cther asscc oted
parly commit abnbery e oo
comdrayene other aralar lnss, the Greun
could poterhiolly be exposea fe crmanal
orfra aalsancl s repars =l
damnge, exclus on‘rom bddirg for
publc secter contracts inthe ElMand o
reduchior ir thare prooe

deenches alec conthiute o breach of
‘nsimhes agreements enl thng lender
all for early <€ prayrent o7 loane

Poicies covermig miatlers suca as
arf-corruphen-boberv modera cavery
whistleolowing g fts ond eqtertoinment
arad vonfle bs ul iters o 2l anzer v o
umbre'la ef the Code of Condict

Liu - athe frorvalyear b e polioizs
were reyiewen and refreshed o en-ure
Ty ez 1 fur purpoce
Fusthermore dondand Claases an
he-we areas were prepored 1o

sucpher and castanrer controcis

ana reslleal commenee o

lous of e res ond e repr
parl 2 il e At s neal be
i Seplerbe fardacanract o
e provismn e lerirmng courser
peoongn
reirey finoy

RS

Al

Maff are hetracled - adber ot e
Groap’s urombeguzas pol oes or

bus ness ethics ovalable cr the lroet
These coedr sutgects suchas onti-b
and arfrs ana enterto rmert Addihionally
nalvaua Busirers unils are regquired

1 res crd and stom approsal for
certor expermiue

Toe Sroap's Inicesa Suoe furetbor s
cutsoarc e to Pl who perfsrm pensae.
cheons of complance wils enerd o cpig
-t
bl b g einoes

igetl ore e general awnre wees nmarg
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Principal risks and uncertainties

Changeinrisk

roting from
Risk title Potential impoct Updoies during ihe year Mitigntion prior yeay
— Id an dividual reprosgnhng the The Sanc firine Paloy laarched in F Y20, Stat! are rs'ructea to adraere to e
Y Groupirode w hoesincied port oo ra enewid ond refrethiea dur ng e Grougounomibnguoos pohicy o EenchiT s
) waclos i acountr, 1o which sarcl ore yenr An operaling modal (ar warcl orne auanab e oo the rdranat This detenls ‘he
_’/ apply, and wocnnrraventicn 0f thess auerer was estahl sneoin FY21ana =ane ISne ¢ tes, arn wher and how iz

Breach of
sanctions

sanch oy, s coulo ease e Groa o
rieksinzluding ©ranisl fires, repatational
domage und areduchior ir share prze It
ceu'n patertioly be coms dered o oreadd,
af alac hhes ggreseent ont fang leedere
le call for eari, repay ment of luors

Ary extersicn ol internatinnal sanct ors
regimes col'd reduce the vo ume of
iress Ihe Gronp s able lo fransace

!
Breach of
health and
safety
regulations

Errendt of regu'nd or e o1 pabiy dune
Bald-up o1 ahi'e an everd s rLoeng
could lead to persoral Ay
fhas cosuld sesulia finarc all s e
la Fries and damoges, lost reven =
through custarer altnt aroara
repulo! enal damage frem negalive
press coverage ~here could alio ge
caetetr o sloff murods,

ol peranna

fi=)

1o Directars

Cur nek enpos re may be grealer b
such o breaon ines'sos o joint vertars cr
sabaichiars thos s rct whelly nared by us
rowe ma, not e able to esercre
cperancnal contal

all

-
Breach of
data

protection
regulations

"o resdin como v eith oo srofechen
legelanzr ce Id oot im 2 rzup ra
aarr e ol woye, moluding o g b mare
difc sl te gr s e std mont s rarkshing
dotaara a'se through porenna lngaren
ce 0l ng te ary dala breas boor mMegze of
perzeral doto

Loreack anc ag Com wadegaiis
contion cuet v TTer Y -
amole,ce nala cotla resclt roseab e
Feou s and Lo stw 3l damag ]
froriregot s press coserage

L]

T Sonch ons cnecks carngd ool
SN e procedure

Lrar ng e voar anard-alive wasn i aced
10 ENTUME 0u” gents are cortracted wia

tre Curarer Relobanshig Masagsment
VORMY yetern, which coptams auterahs

flags ‘o sar ned raorkels to eramyst
anAapprc ol procees
Curing tme yeac the Gooup alss dieacsed

of e busmess r Cenlrgl & thereh,
regucing lbe Greup ¢ e xposare o
counl-ies thal fend L trarle e
with coraim sarcs wed coun'ra

ot aewtchene enting and everis
celurrng on nodeplb asreserieny

ci the Hea't, Safel, and Secur ty [hSS
doatus of ‘he busaess wos unteriohen
Thin rvzlvea imterviens o 19 oll Regioaa'
Direclors Perifole D rectors and then
FEAT3 et 227131 Dperahons sia
members, the comrpieticn of
quethannoires by all Dperalians ea~-
ot odesn A o docureeriol onoand
profes moluting RES pocies

Az areaut ol the —ew e tre HES po'iaies
= Being updaled ard refrecher tra mir
courzes are beng ananged Plas ko
e N place ‘o manage oreos of
risk higrhabted oy the aggesement
Fecogres ng the i pac of COWD 1«
omthe fuiare ol 8 sents plans ong
procedare
e vali: and secare de ey of aenin 4
JE evert are required 1o acant tre AFD
ANl Becare Standasd Bvenls culside Ire
LK soerale inoicerdarce walh [zza lows
recl-chone ond oesr prachice guidslnes

Trie Data Protect onowerk ng Greup
e'oped o plan of
gl ves saampreve the Groan's dato
protectan. mlermatios secu ity or a
wlormol en gaverrasr e frarewsrs

Ao

Il goearnarge and
procarement Grocece for Toor Jalaara
Theg o Markst o was age 'aune e

Tme Groupswgaltenm hns werked o
caleraal
CGrroasei

nde ok ing areven
SetFrsetunly reLran e 0 Lerg e

woraut chechs

Irdwiduar businese units are regquiren
‘orecord and obta nepproval before
transac: with perssa: or enfines fram
saritonediountneg

Chue CRM sy stery i, ased tn actomeancally
123 ;anchienied marse's ‘or internal
approval ond we aleZ more use o an
e nd ok partal iz chece sanchors hae

Meg Ry e cs Tel@re on b yer
ard oo rasrers we uee ard we seek
ersure that such thrd partier odrere
Yy vt peoth and safsts pohoes,
whuere prachcal ana to cra’ requtal.ons

B reath Safety and Secunty Foucy it
Embedded acress 'ne busness, entuning
ervent-level Mojor 'nadent Maonagerrend
Plan ore pulin pa e scent by ever

Regicna
for heall~ and sole
tey A

anagemert * heln acsountotle

wasdarde nocher

Reard o mmedustely rtined < sy,
serizus Lreaches

ke Sroup mschorges s dalo profech
s thecugh the cperaner of the

LR G reperts waa blesnng Commtes
shckan ture reporre te the Risl Com milles

Sorentra Lgoeerrarce ard
process reqairet thel vuppliers ond
e cone dered o rfort ot secuny
aala o-ote g
are egred

cLuremen

wd

oo i o ecme sab

d.o0 nda

reloc o forLest cpdoa e
crartteanor noeat
fegree ot T

i S

whonar DP S wh b meels regalany

rooomphan e before cortials
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Chunge in risk
rating from

Mitigation prier year

7 N

IT cyber/
phishing
attack
resulting in
data loss

The inab Wy to protec cur IT systenis or
infractran lure aga nsla fargeted cyber on
paosbing atlark cou'd reduce cur abaety o
make sales damage cur cepulal onard
harm cuslemer relatiensbupe The ame
apphesilinternet ~esnchors are apolied
by the gavernments ol any ol the markel:
rrahich we operate

A corretete nss af carnedd vity wolld
pctential'y balt business operahcn,

Any aata lees coula expose the Greap. to
Tes, whils @ sytterms breab cuulo make
uy valerable 1o a rassomesare attack

A recsut nert programs has
Boormlomontod to sigereantly
strengtber the ~ leom

Durn o tne Poanaol year cyber insronce
was putin place for the Groups US
businesees The Group minthe process of
sonromga goba o ber nsuraace poony

A orogramme of defersve mansures
160 Qe tnorecduce the nick ol ooy ke
phisming attace

Inodadtien e the teme oulin place durang
thet anaalyearn rabgalion nclades
regalar syslemn penetraticn testing ocrees
the crgamaher, frewall -t profet
coripuler nelworks adeandced endpoint
provecacn for eran based hnks ond dota
backups for owr mer affices

The Grous implenects so.ulions provided
by large ond trustea prosiders such ae
Mocrosofl

7 3
@
Acquisition
integration

Idegralanieeges and a ‘milure 1o realice
planned aperahonal and sy nergisiic
bene’ 'saorearnskic shyon g the
exper led relurre o sur mves'merts

Dun g the financial ysar Hyve carninad
wath is inlegrotion of Shopmalk Cemmerce
L LC ard Graceryshopn LLC 0= per the
mtegrabicr plan, wh ch included the
apeoritment of o new General Manager
In December 2022, the Group acquired
Retar Meelup LLC o sapport Hy e’
digntal evolation ond delvery of *=
s~imchannel sirategy

The lecnnalagy urderpimnimg tnese
brands has been suceessiully ‘ransiioned
to g new lech auppher, ond we ove
eetablished our own leom 1or Mo reaimng
and develooirg the *echnology

“he Group hos formed the posihor of
Chief Transiti-noand INegratizn Officer,
sl ancthe Bxecubive Team, oind give due
fncus lo acguishon Integroticn

The Croup errenlays exponercesd
professicriale to arve the acguisd.on
process 2az parierr nancal, fax legal
ond cammerdeal aue d igence 1o nfarm
derared integration plans, which oim le
ansue that buwr eoues ars effeivaly
miegrated o the Crourand the plannes
Ey MRS Qre redlsea

AChiel Tror silies arnd Inlegronzn Officer
<« cr the Lxecutive Tearr 1o give aue
feeus fo integ-alicr work and arnfe: nal
Hyve team ericts to manlair and develop
acaured tech

Effective
control over
non-wholly
owned
entities

Doy te ooy rmonagemenl and - onlro of
nen-whelly-owned crht esis often nohe
haads of lecal rronagamert wheoh may
aizo be sharehclders The venture may
nat gt n a mareer fully conastent
itk Ky ee's pol cee

Aemal, /05 owned sunadiary T Ebseex
Exh bitons Company da wos d sposed of
ausrg the year

In Noverrber 2021, subsenuent to the year
end The Grons ol o on posea of 1e BO-
nlerest mABEC Eabub nens & Conferences
Pue Ltd

Wearcoroorate canliel inthe shareno de-
agresmenl o cauva eal goverang
documents and have 1 place a Grewo
aathority moir x

N

Pay and
performance
— for business
benefit

Foor perflormance manage vend, a lock
of algrmert from the business plan
thrzugh b naevidua! clyecines anc
asrooiatea reward metc s Ty LU
confusion and derrel watien Thes reay
learite large e nor beng met porertiol
revenue ioss and poor buaress resutt

Attec begr e of the t anc alyeorn an
o cvable coous plaa for b fina ol
yearerdng 20 Septen ber 2021 was
aslabhetwd as aretenlan meckansmr
tallavang the supcrant al restrucare of
the argamsohor

the finan wlyz 2r 2 meward
censaltanl was res nted e cappes e
worn beingunaertaret on tne Croup e
revard stroreny, wors onthe al-aleg
ander woy b parrcain batees tobe
realled ot FYL2

Glebal enoamark rdaimala was
hare hacad e the K and Rasna ‘o

st ke croces o e g ol
apnreprnle oward kel an oppte |

The annaal po eoetle o e
from arvar, o C
vt Aar

LT
G eber e abg et

The Grous bora &oobal Peslorm aroe
Maragemenl STrames otk ploace
tAoragers’ guioes to geformonce
rorogement, logeibe wilh fra nng
mnetlng EMART cb cohiver and how

e regalz ana relesar feeabinck
howe been prev ded
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Chief Finance and Operations Officer’s statement

Decisive action to reduce
costs, conserve cash
and boost liquidity

While FY20 will be remembered for the emergence and
initial impact of COVID-19, together with the decisive actions
we subsequently took to stabilise the business, the imp

act on the Group's finoncial results has clearly been more

pronounced this year,

LK

The reopening of events

in almost all of our markets
by the end of the financial
year, as well as increasing
customer spend and
forward boaokings, has

put us in a strong position
going into FY22.

John Gulliver
Chig! bracice ora Lpsighor « Ul cer
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Gaverngrce

COVID-19 impact on our event
schedule

Pre-pondem ¢ we were able to run 31 events in
the fret half of FY20, mcluding four of aur top 10
evenls [0 conlrust, i1 FY21 we were only ab'e fo
tan 12 in-porscn sverts it the first hal of the

year, nore of whicn feature in cur top 10 events

Mare pos-tively, as restr chions iftec in the
seceng half of FY2i across more of gur markets,
we were able to run o further 29 -n-person
events. Following successful everts in the UK and
the US inthe final month of the year, oceranons
have now resumed in the majorty of aur
markets Overall, we generated reverues of

£55 Zm from 43 events including two Retail
Meetup enline events (2020 £99 4m from

A3 events)

Encouraging trends

Fo lowing the recpening of events dunirg FY21,
a numoer of positive trends have emerged
which give os con“dence in the frgjectory of
the recovery as we lock abead

For examp e, while prelerged restrict.cns on
‘mterrat’onal ousiness travel have ‘mpacted
the size of cur events, revenues from
domest'c exhibtors nave recovered strorgly,
demonstratng pent-un germgnd where

exh bitors and visitars are physically able 1o
attend Furthermore, the recovery of domestic
reverues has beer stronger in markets that
reopened eqrl er, most promemently -0 China
where events have performed at pre-COVID
levels, but also in Russic where events 1o the
secord half of the year have cutperformed
those which teck olace intre firss ~al-

At many of our everts we hove also aoserved
o acrease 1n like-for- ke sperd by customers
whao were abe to cttenc both the pre-COVID-9
edton of ar avent ond the FY21 editior of the

sarre evert MosTuld, the Sroup's frstfog 10
event wnce the COVID-19 cutbreax, cchiieveo
ol ka-for-I'ke revenue 1ncrecywe of 15% from
customers who were ab e to cttend in both
FYi9 and +Y21 We are also see ng a1 roroase
"y sifor denwity, Meon ng the number of

v sitors per exmibitor s Figher post- panaem™’c
wnd trercfare deliver’'rg mo eosed value
te exlbtors

Financial statermenrts

Benefiting from event cancellation
insurance policies

Atnough our event scrieoule hos been oisrupted
by the panoerric, we rave benefied from

cvenl corcellatior rsurarce where insured
ovents are cance led o prohio ted as aresu t of
government restrichons Insurance proceeds,
alongs de the cost nanagement ivitiatves, have
been a vital elerrent in aur successful effors o
mingate the finanaal impact on our cusingss

During FY21, we recewed proceecs under our
‘nsurance policies of £65 0m (2020, £22 Om)
This helpec mitigate the impact of the event
canceliotions and led to the Groun del vening
a heodline profit before tax of £20 8m (2020
headine loss befcre tax of £°8 "'m} Headline
profit before fox is defired in the Glossary

Since the year end confrmohen of an addihonal
£10 6m bas been receven, bringing total
successful claims to £97 6m s nce the stort of

the panaemic Now tnat tota proceeds bave
exceeded £.85 0m, 50% of any furtqer proceeds
are passed on fo the Group's lenders as a
repaymert of the term loan facimty

Managing the portfolio

Ir Ao, we completed the sale of ITECALLP,
the cperating compony for 25 of the Group's
ran-care, regicnally focused events in
Korakhstan This completes our key strateg'c
aim to ex't the business in Certral Asia and
suppoerts cur ambition to focus anlarger,
internat onol events with nigher growth
potertial. Central Asia -s frected as o
discaontinued operatonin beththe current and
comparative oeriods throughout trese resuits

Since the year end. we also disposee of ABEC,
our B0 owned Irdion busiress, wh'cn removes
& ght Indiar events and supoorts further
stream ini~g of the Groun's porticic

Annual Report ard Accourts 2021 Hyve Group ple

£130.1m

ef hquidity gives us financial
security going into FY22

Strong balance sheet and liquidity

The Group continues to mainta:n #s strong
hauichty po-ition and mas signifhcant cash
hoaoroom Adjusted net debt at the period
end was £79 9m (2020 £67 7m} with casn and
urdrown dent facllit'es available to the Group

of £7301m. P ecse refer to nate 30 to the
conschdated accounts

As reonortec lost year, inresponse to the
pandemic, we obtained waivers for the leveroge
ratio and interest cover caverarts up to ard
ncluding March 2022, replac ng therm with o
minimuora lauidity test, whereby the Group must
ensure that tne aggregate of cash and undrawn
debt faciities 15 net less than £40m ot the end of
each menth, excent betweer Apri ord Octaber
2021 being not less trar £30m Subsequent fo
the year erdec 30 September 2021, the Group

has securea an extension of the covenart
walvers up to arc including March 2023

Outlock

FY21 ras beer o very positive steg on tne road
to 1ecovery and we er et FYZ22 with con®dence,
supported by forward bookings of £108m
There rerma’y the risk of further CCGVID-"9
assoc atea disruphions, particularly ir re ot on to
rew variants and cur ex~ib tors’ andity to atteno
our events due to irternct onal trave’ restrichions.
but the pos tive *crword bookings position gives
v us good visibil ty as we lock cheoo tc FY22

John Gulliver
Chief Finance and Operahions Gfhcer
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Chief Finance and Operations Officer’s statement

Overview

Revenue

Reverue far the yecr from cont nuirg operchiors
wes £565 2m (2020 £99 4m) The pardemic
impacted the number and scale of the Group's
events. with 41 {2020 43} in-perso~ events
taking place in the yoar. The vast major ty of the
Croun's revenues were recogn’sed in the secord
helf, fo lowirg the resumpt'or of events in the
raajer ty of its morkets, incluaing tae UK ana

he Usn the firol monts of *he year. following
the relaxi~g of COVID-19 restrict ons

Four of the Croup's top 'O events took place

in the second hal® ot the year MosBuila,
wWorldFood Mescow, Auturn Fair and
Groceryshep “he ovents were of g smalier scele
thon trerr pre-panaer ¢ eve s os a direct result
ot irternat cral travel restrict c-s that were

In place The remaining tog 10 events were
cancelled for tne yea- Shoptalk, Spring Farr,
Bett, CWIEME Berl n, Yugharo and Min ng
Indabo wi | rext foke place 'n Fr22

Faliewirg the acguisihicn of Retan Meetun n
Deceriber 2020 the Groug also rar s first two
Jsirtuos Meetue events which pecformed anead
of meragament's expectat cas

Loss before tax

The Group reportea a oss before tax from
continuirg cperot oy of £20 6 (2020

£3°5 G, o'ter ic'uding adjusting items of

£47 a7 {2020 £296 9m) A'thougn ‘'mpairment
caarges o £79 0m (2620 £263 4m) bove been
recognised im the year cue te the cont nuing
mMpect of the paraem ¢ or our U<-retal ovents,

his s sigraticorely iower thantro mpar e

crarges recogrisea nihe orevous year when
tre rpact of e LOWIN IR curtiees wos Ara
revlecied 10 cur forecost cperat - g profre
Headure orefr efs & a5 ar aliterrate
cerformarce Moasure uien by the Grouo to

Tieasure u-de

~gtan g perfermonoe

Adter excludirg odjust rng ers headhre proht
before tax from continuing aeperahons wos

£20 8m {2020 'oss o £18 'm) Insurance
proceeds of £65 Om (2020 £22 Om) have cee~
receved our ng the year 1~ relohier to claims
regaraing the cancellat o1 or pestpanerment of
o rumnber of events thot were schedu eg to teke
place nF Y20 and 7721, offeetling t-e loggas
incurred aue to the aisruption ta the Groun’s
overt schedue

Earnings per share

Basic ara d'luted earnings ner share (EPS)
from cont nuing operchicrs were (5 6o (2620
{'72 30)) Head! ne dluted EPS frem continuirg
ooerghion: was 750 7070 (12 7 o) re‘lechng the
return to headline prefitability Flecse refer 1o
rote 11 te the contolidates accounts

Financing and liquidity

Adjusted net deot at tne yeor enc has increased
to £79 89m {30 September 2025 £6/ /m). wh '
et aperotng tas wnflows of £77 2 (025
£50m) . including insurorce proceeds of

£66 0 (2020 £27 0r) offsz) the acous anof
Retar Meetun for tctcl corsiderat gn of £23 2,
the Groun's interest ana loase paymerts
contributed to the ~crease 1in odjusteo net cebt
during the yeor ket deot, ‘nclud ng the Croun's
ecse hab IMies, wes £96 6m (2020 £86 5m)

At 30 September 2023, £724 4m {2020 £321 7m}
oo totcl ova abe £212 81 (2020 £2500m)
was drows or tne Group's benk rg fac ity Ba-k
oans presentoo r the Statement of Financio
Pgst g~ are £1216m (£2118 &), net of 22 8m
{2020 £3 7m) cf copital sed nerrowing costs

“re Group's berking fac | ies compr se g
TED QM {2020 LISD2 O revey ng crec t oo iy
znc o termicos of £ 62 8m (2020 £7000m0

Dar ~g i=e yoarthe Group repoo 237 2 o0
tatermilocn oneir Decernper 2020 coreca

woth talenasrs vanious ome-oments to

tre ex st tg ogree™ment rolud o o mEA

As at 30 September 2021, there were “urther
seneculed reocyments of the term aan of

£0 8m due v Marcn 2022, £5 Crmn June 2022,
LB OmM ~ Septermoer 2022 and November 2022,
L22 Srrom Nevernber 2323 ond @ firal
repayment of £22 5m on the term rahon aate

As reported in the previous yeor, we had
cbtoimec wa vers ‘or the leveroge rahio erd
.rterest cover covenaonts up to ero rauding
Maren 2022 Up unt this date, o iguraity testis
17 place, whereby the Group must ersure that
tne aggregate of ary cash or undrewn faal ty ic
not less than £40m at the enc of eack menth,
excent between Apr | and October 2021 being
notless than £30m Subsequent to the yecr end,
the Croup hes extended the covenant waners
by *2 mortns up to ard rc uaing fAarch 2023,
wth o mamum liquidity evel of £40m reaured
afthe erd of eoch manth

A1 30 Sentember 2021, the Group nad cash and
urdrawr faciities of £1301m ans therefore
~ad headrocm of £i00 im 1n respect of the
wuid ty test

Headline reconciliation

Ir adahor fo the statutory results, headl ne
rasults are preserten, waich ore tng statutory
results after exc uding o ~umber of adjuet ng
iterns, os tne Board cors ders this to he the
most appropr ate way tc measure the Group’s
ceformance Iraddtonto oroviding a maore
compereble set of results yea—on-year th s s
aleo i [ re with s miar adpsted measures uzed
by our geer comperies ard tnerefare foc Ltotes
compaoriser across the ndustry

“ne ogjust ng ifers oresentes ore co”s stert
w th those qisclased inthe previcus year

Tre adjushng terms bave been presented
secarstely noroer fo reocrt woat the Boore
cors'gers fc pe tre ~ost opoross ate meosure
cfu~de-iying performarce of the Grous ora b
proe ae coat oral aformet or to users of the

a~aua' repoct
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Reconciliation of headline profit/{loss) before tax from continuing operations to stotutery loss before tax from
confinuing operations

2020

£m 2021 (re teilod )

Headline profii/ 20.8 HER)

(loss) before tax

from continuing

operations

Operating items

Lmorhsohon (27,8} (29.2) Definition

of acquired Amerhsation charge in resoect of mtangible assets acquired througn busiress combrations

infang ble Explanation

assets The charge hos decreosed in the period as o result of imparrment charges of £63 4m recognised in respect
o acquired infangib e assets in tre oricr year which reduced the ret boo<value of Intangible assels being
amortised
Why adjusted?
To present the profitabulity of the business s.ch that pe-formaonce ca~ be appraised consistently whe-her from
organic growth or through acquishon, ard irrespect ve of wnether or not acou red irtargibie assets have
subsequentty become fu'ly amortised

Impoirmeant (19.0) (263 4) Definition

of assets Writedown of assets fo forr va ue, where indicators of imparrment have existed or folicwing the comalet'on of tre
onNuo Impairment rev.ew
Explanation
Impairment charges of £19 Om have oeen recognised n respect of acaured intengible assets wit e the UK
cash-generating unit s o result of the continuing iImpact of COVID-12 on cur Uk-retail events, as we'l as the
allocotior of odditional certral costs follow ng rewisions to the cost allecatior metnodology
In the priar year, impairment cnarges toteling £263 5m were recogrises in rgspoct of goodwill (£195 5m),
acoured irtangible assets (£63 4m) and investrmerts \n our assaciates and joirt vertures (£4 5m) o5 o result
ot the COVID-19 authreak and i*s impoct on discount rates and torecast operoting profits
Why adjusted?
To exclude wrie-offs specific 1o arcurstances that arosze either inhe curren' year or based on fulure
performance expectaticrs | hese are often i~consistert in ong n and amaurt year-on-year and therefore
the business performence 1s mare comparable year-on-year without these chorges.

Pro®ton 0.2 - Definition

dizposa The proft or loss recogrisea followr g the dizposel of port aof *he business, represertea oy the aifference
botween the farr volue of proceeas received net of related seiling expenses ard the disposal of net assets
Explanation
Agoi~ ond sposal of £0 2m was recagn sed in respect ¢f the disposal of ITE Ebseek Exhibt ons, the cnerat ng
campany of the Fosterer event 11 Shangha
Why odjusied?
To ex ude tr e ron-rec.arnng proflAda-- rom o disczsal completea auning “he vear from whies notuture proft
crioss we l be recognised This nerecses the comparabil by of the results year-on-year

Lo T L D 1 Lase RS Tk gt asines
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Chief Finance and Operations Officer’s statement

£m

201

Transochon costs
oncompetea.
penaing or
aborted

acquisit ars

and cispozals

0.7)

33

Definition

Costs ineurred that ore crrectly attr butoble to acowsticrs or disposa s, whether completed. still being actively
pursucd or no lenger being considered

Explanation

Trorsactca costs o~ campleted cro pending acowsitiens ard aisnosals relate prncipally to costs 'reurrea

ar the ocgusition ot Retall Meetup co~ pleted in Degrmoer 2070 The moss agrificant o those cast= are
professignal ond consu tancy fees ircurrea in reloficn to the due dil gerce ond legel orcceaures necessary
‘or the comaolet on of the decl.

| the previous year, tne costs recognisea primar y re'ctea to the acquistion of the Snoptel< are Grocerysheo
events completed r December 2019

Why adjusted?

wWhile trarsact on costs are typical'y incurred eack year due o the acguis tive nature of the ndustry and

the Grouo's focus ¢ act vely mancging the exist ng pertfol’'o of events whi e making selective proauct-lea
acguisifions, b e costs incurred are no! co- sistent year-lo-year ~uctuahing significantly based onthe currber
and size of dea's Costsincurred i re ehign te an acousition, wh le aften commensurate tc the s7e of the
nusiness being voquired, are more closey conmected to the cors'derahion payments tre-i tne performonce
of the business 1n the oeriod Excluding the costs nereases comparabn Tty of performence cach year,

Infegratan costs

Definition
Costs incurred fo lowing the completion of an acqu siior te imtegrete the acaured pusiness witn r the
Hyve Group, raluding costs incurred that are necessory to cnoble the Groun to ~ealise synergy savings

post-acauisition

Explanation

In the prior year, iIntegrat.on costs of LO Sm were 1ncurrea in relahen to the Snootalk ano Grocerysnop evente,
primardy in respect of ‘hird-party consular cy and mlernal siaff cosls "o oversee the internel and exderal
cammuricat ¢ns relating o the acou red procucts, norhicularly regerd rg estab ishing o Hyve prosence e the
US, and to o ign tne acauree products with the stretegy of the Group

why adjusted?

Te exclude casts that are offen, for ¢ | mited period, either dus cated. bigner than orainer by would be incurred
arimroouced 1o goture cons stercy of operat ons, systemns, orachices, colture and reward 1o the extert thal
the:e cozssare "o expezted iz oo areflectior of the ongoing caste of me Groue and therefare ther inclusizr
could d stort comparab Ity witn future years' results

Restructuring costs

- TAG

oa

Definition

Casts incurred re otea to trarsterm ng and restructu- rg toe bus ress, primor ly torougn the Group's

TAG progromme

Explanation

Ir ke pror year tesrustun g cocte of 0 Bm were mzurrez i relohios to tr e hinal zatic of -re TAG programmie
nichudirg re aeveloprert of tne glonst ERP seftveare pizn-ed o be relled cot otross the Fnar ce furcion

orcr to oe rgsLsnenoea on a resut of fre COVID-"¢ cutoreas, ard the sucsequert cost-to, g measures

smple menten goress fre Group

why adjusted?
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Em 2021 2000

Tax onincome {0.5) {15) Definition

from aszociotes The tax charge ir respect ot the shore of prohts recogrised fram assoao e and joint ventures

ana joirt ventures Fxplanation
The tax charge i the period s direcily inked to the share ol profiss recognises, primarily from joint venlresin
treyear The decrease fo £0 5m (2020 £15m) reflects t~e smaller tize of Singstar's ChinaCoa® eventin FY20
Why adjusted?

Stolutory reporied profits from azscaates o-d joint ventures ore presened post-tax Inorder to present a
mneasure of proht befare tax for the Group that is purely pre-tax, the tax on asscoate ang joint venture prohts
iadded back Instead, ihs ncluded in the headline pest-'ax megsure of profit ana fhere’ore s aopled

o sistently wit~ 1he stotutory meosure of post-tax profit,

Financing items

Revaluaticr of 6.4 32 Definition
ligoihties on The revolughon of fulure earn- ot payments In respect of campletes acguismon: recogrised throug- profit o1 lass
completen Explanation

acauishiens A number of the Group's acquisiions comp eted 11 recent years have future earn-out commitments, e'thar

ard oisposals through deferred o contingent consideration payments o through equity option Fabilities fo ircrease our current
sharehold ngs. Similarly, a number of the Group's recent disposals have elernents of deferred considerat on
rece vable. These are neld on ba.once sheet of fair value and therefore change bosed on the lotest ‘oreign

exchonge rates, the proximity of the settlement date and the 'alest exoectaton of the settlement value

Revaluatien of assets ang ~obihihes on completed acquisitons and disposzals ncude tre gains fram the reva uaton
of our equity opt ons aver non-controdling interests in cur subsidiares (credt of 28 8m). in re’oton to the remairing
40% 1mterest in ABEC, the imputed irterest credt on the unwinding of the aiscount o the Group's deferred
cansideratior receivable v relat'an to the disposcls of ITE Exao LLC and s Azerooijan, Uzbekistar and
Kozakhstor event portfoucs (credit of £16™), a loss or the revaruation of the I'E Expo LLC deferred corsideratior
recevable (rharge of £3.71) a goir on the revaluotion of the Azerbaijan, Uzbckistan and Kazakhstan ceferred
cons'deraton recewvable (crecit of £0 5m), and o loss or the revaluahien of the deferred consideration payable
for Retar Meetup {charge of £14m)

Ine aquity oplion lab Ity neld in respect of ABEC was valued of £ml at 30 September 2021 fallow rg advice from
tha Group's lawyers that both the opticn exerc’ses ' Nevernber and Decermoer 2020 and any future exercise
would have been imvalid erd urerforceable

Why adjusted?

As with fransoctior costs, 17 arder to prezart resulte excludir g deal-relosed costs that fuctuate year-to-yesr
While the costs vary based on the latest expectations of future cons ceration payments, often | nked to
perlormance 1he catflows Incmisclves are reflechve of the cost of the g Lisihon g bor thar perionmenoe ot tne

business 1 the year Exc ud'ng the costs trerefore aids comporability of the Group's oerfsrmance year-on-year

Wrire-off of - (1.4} Definition
previousty Tre azceleroted non-cash amertisohon of crevicusly copialised Pnararng costs upon refinanang
cop o isea doeot Explanation

155UE COSTS ON O~ 17 December 2015 the Group corrcleten trere® nancing o de exrerngl oeb’ ta part-funs *he acqaisition of
reTnonang the Shootalk and Grocerysboo everts, amending ard restat.ng the previcus £770m fac My to o new £250m
focihly wall sifiecert ter e
Costs that an enhity incurs » conmechon wite tre porrewing of funds are capitaisea on the bolonce sheot ret
of the drowr-dow loan and releasec over the term cf the foc [y The remciming coferred costs relaning o

e previcu: folry wer reguined *z be crorged toine imcune cale s &0 nncd otely uponretrarar g
Why adjusted?

The charge of the ema r’rg defrriec costs relating to the prev ous fac ity to e rceme stetements creales

o duniicaton of costs as ey overlap wio the cocts for the rew deot fuc iy

Loss before tax (20.6) (328

from continuing

operations
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Consolidated income statement

Trading summary

Adotalea analyes ol volumes, revenuos a~d proiify ic presented bolow

Headline profit/

Square (loss} before tax

metres sold Revenue Average yield (restated)

‘000 Em L per SQM Lm

2020 Reported 364 105.1 289 (18.9)
Discont rued aoerations (203 (5.7} - D8

2020 Continuing operations 344 99.4 289 (18.1)
Blenria (29) 5 8) - (Z7]

Fring - - - Q3

COVID-"9 postporemerts and cance latons (212) 69 0) - 21

COVID-19 costs cr current perioc cance lat ans - - - 108

Non-recurrng - 05) - 13

2020 A-nual y recurr’ng 103 24.1 238 (20.5)
Acquisihions - 20 - as

Leuncnes - - - _

Fareign excronge - 513 - (©7)

- Like-for-ike growth (30) (8.0) - {13.2)

2021 T Annucl ¥ recurring 73 17.0 239 (33.8)
Imsurance proceeds - - - 430

. COVID-19 postoonements ano cancelict gns 138 382 - 13

2021 Total 211 552 262 20.8

Popretenils Ina £F o1 pe

ipericrr ance ef eoends o0l were g

D Repeeee b the et oo

i ke prs sl R AN A S AT Y

fokenrezendzle carrenl per oo pecformance of e el asrecospar e oo

Segmental results

poreoor catce led e e

EERSRIEN

Salvel Loy a2
[ERLESF

gl of COv D17

Revenue Headline profit/(iots} before tax

L 2021 202 2021 2570
Giobo! Cemmunities 17.7 56 5 (21.0) ("5 0}
A 41 171 (7.5) 64
Eastarn & Scutrern 2uraoe 6.1 a0 .9 (3m
Fuss o 27.3 218 58 (66}
Otrer nco™ie - - 65.1 226
Centra costs - - (12.3) "6 9}
creign excrarge gaol oard - - (0.3) g
hethroroe toh - - (8.1) (E°)
Total ' 552 5o 4 208 (&
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Refer to the Divisional bacing summmary on
poges 50 to 53 far commentory on the

performance of ecch opercting segrent

Otrerincome includes insurarce proceeds of
EBS 0 (2020, £22.0r), whi'ch were reccived in
reiation to cla.ms regaraing the cancellat o or
postponement of o numoer of events taat were
scheduled to take slace during the current and
proryear

Central costs nc vae all costs that are not
dllocated to the Group's operating segments
when heaaline prabs betore tax i= reported to
the Sxecutive "eam for the purposes of
a'locating resource and making strategic
decisions. These include the Group's corporate
overneads, waich ore the costs of runring the
Fead office in Landon and prir-anly comprise
staff costs, which imclude the Grouo's Executive
and Non-Executive Directors, deprec ation

of the Group’s certraliy held assels and
professioral fees. Central costs have decreased
in the year as a result of the cost-saving
measures nfroduced across the Group in
response to the pondemic

Net friance cost i clude the iInterest cos on

the Group's barrowings of £5.2m {2020 £6 4m),
wnich hos decreased n tne year, fallowirg
repayments of £372m on the Group’s term 'oan
and a lower drawn position 01 11s revciv ng
cregit facility Nei finance costs also include bork
charges of £24m (2020 £16m) ard the interest
cost on the Group's lease obtthes of £O 7m
(2020, £0 /)

Im order to min.mise our exposure to changes
inirterest rates, particulor'y en the Group's
exterral bark debl, tre Group holds interest rate
swap contracts to provide certairty cver the
furure interest cash llows The cbjochve s o
protec the Compary from tee cosh “ow imeast
coused by the varniable interest rote that opplies
to the Caompary's exterral bark debt The iower
o the cumulative gain oo oss on the hedging
mstrument and the cumulat ve charge in far
velue of the nedged itern ¢ recogrised thraugh
otter comprehersve income nasecarate

companert of aquity

F rancial statemnents

i Foreign exchange

As a result of the terntonies in which we operote,
we are exposed to changes in fareign exchange
rares ard signihcar movements particularly
the Rusuan r.ble, can have a significant impact
on cur results

Further detaill s provided on the impact of
translaticna! FX, which s included withir the
results of each amision and only odjusted for
when cons der ng like-for-like measures of
revenus or profit, ransact onal FX which <
presentea seperotely inthe income staterment
ond s aless of £0 3m n the year {2020, ga n
of £2.6) and the iImpact on reserves

recogr sed in the foreign currency translchon
reserve below

Translatienal FX

Each month our subsidiary company results
are translated intg sterling, from the furchonol
currencies of the subsidiary companies, on
consclidotion, using the prevoiling foreign
exchange rates for tne month. Charges in

foreign exchange rates resalnin flucraghons
of the level o profits repo-ted for the Grous
Tne impact of the changes in foreign exchonge

rates 1s included within bath the stoiutory and
adjusted reported resu'ts, within the relevant

lines in the conseclidated income statement

To aid comporability of tradirg resu'ts, when

i presenting | ke-for-'ike pe-formence we oojust
‘or the imaact of changes 1n foreign excha=ge

rates on translation

The Russion ruowe ara Turksn lira were woaker
compared wita the same pericd in the previcus
year, mearing the reporfed results were iower

I than in the comparative period by £11m *ar
reveaue, Due fo the reduced number ond sca e
of the events that ran in the year, the ‘impact of
these currency movements oid not foli through
ig readline prof before tox "he weokering
of the Horg Kong dalicr ond the US dol'ar, in
we e carrencics sigrificant tosts were ircurred
meant tha* headhne proh e fore fsxowos
£2 2m bigher thon in the comporative oernoo

o5 o result of currency movemerts

Transactional FX

As well gs translat onal foreiga exchange
rovements ar’s ng on comschdat an, the Group
resulls ane moocted by e nanges in fore gn
exchonge rates withn cur subsid ary comaoany
results Waere monetary transactions ore

errernd o dincr e curengie Tt o the

Annual Report and Accounts 2021 Hyve Group ple

‘uncheral currercy of the ont'ty, this g'ves rise to
revaluation gairs and losses fo'lowing changes
in excharge rates between the transact on
aate, mortn eno and the sett ement date

Each reva uchion of the monetary assets and
l'an Lhes neld on Ibe valu e sheet results in
gains eno iosses, wh'en are reported within

the consoldated income statement witnin

the Foreign exchange gain on operating
cctivities’ ine

The strergthening of the Russian ruble relative
to the euro nos contributed to o loss of £O 3m
(2020 goinof L2 8m) recogrised In the year,
which has arsen on the revaluation of foreign
currency monetary aszets ana liamites beld n
our subsidicry companies in Russio

Foreign currency translotion reserve

Finally, our results are impocted by the
translahion of the sunsidiary compeany bolance
sheets eqgcn month on consolidahicn inte sterling
& change i foreign exchange rates gives rise fo
o maoverert which s recognised witnin reserves
In the ‘areign currency translahion reserve.

T 513 on trarslation of the company ba‘ance
sheets of our subsid.ary companies, which are
reperted in their funchienal currencies before
being transletea into sterling on consclioaticr,
at tre prevailing perod end rates

The fare.gn currgrcy translotion reserve
increased py £ 3m, largely due to the
weoken rg of the US doller against sterling
between the beginninrg ara the end of the
hrancialyear Tee to the considerable goadwill
ond I~tang ole assets held in the US the value of
the net assets w th1 the conso idoted statement
of fir w-cial cosihon hasincreased

Venue arrangements

The Grous has long-term arrangements with te
pr ncica venues 7 its mon markets setting cut
Hyve's rights over future venue use ond pricirg

The arrargemenrts can take the form o’ o
precoyment of 'uture verue ‘ees (cdvance
paymeant), o a loan wh ok can be repaid in cosn
o o ser cguiesd future var ue tees (veriue fuar)
Ceneraily, the arrangaments br ng nigats ove:
‘uture verue use and advortogoous prditg
arrangerents tarcugn long-term agrec merts
venue cdvances cod prepayments ore included
i the coreshoolod waten ent o' fras ool

powt o~ under non-current and curre~t cssets
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Chief Finance and Operations Officer’s statement

Acquisitions and disposals

O- 21 December 2820, the Croup acqu rea
0% of tre smare capita’ of Retail Meetup for
nitial corsideration of £18 bm ana deferred
cont ngent canrmgeration witn a forr value ot
acquisiton of £3.47.

The deferrea contingent consderatior relatec
to en earn-cut paymet based ¢ the EBH DA of
the twe Retall Meetup events wh oo toox place
i kY21 Tre aeferred contingent considerabion
was coleulated baseo o1 management's
expectabons of EBITDA at acquistion The
aeferred contingent consderatian was
sussequently settlea in August 2027 tar £4 7m
based oo he i alised LBIT OA af the two cvionts,
resulting 1 or aaait-ona’ £ 37 of cons gerohion
oeing payable compared witn management's
expectohons at tne hme of acquisiticn The
reva'uatio~ of £1 3m was recognised threugh
profi-or loss

As o key part ot its steateqgy, Hyve s focused o
runa ng morket- eaaing events and conhirues to
actwely marageits oortfol'o to align with this
strategy IrApr | 2021, the Greus dispesed of

its Kazakhstan event portfol o, comp et'ng the
Group's plornea ext of 'ts busness 'n Central
Aza The Group expects to recaive censigeratior
cf £4 Bm Wher discounted, the tar va ue of the
corsiderahor receivable wes £3 1m of aisposal.
L oss on disposol of £3 6m was recogn sed 1n
respact of the gisposa ard = ncludea inthe locs
from oiscortnued cpercticrs

Duri~g the yeer, the Group alsc ¢'sposed of

its 70" ho d ng '~ I E Enseak Exh'bihicns, the
opergling company of ts Fasteners event in
Skanghan for upfro~t cons'ceraton of £.0 5m
& gai~ an cisoesal of £0 2 was recogrised in
respect of the disposa

Consolidated statement of financial position

At 30 September 2021, ar equ ty ophon waos
neia over aaditionol shares in ABEC, o 60°%
cwnea subsidiary The aabity was velued of
Srlfollowing the CGroup's lowyers' advice thot
nott the opt on exeraises r Novenber and
Decemper 2020 and any future exe-cise are
‘rvald and unenforcechie On 12 Novembar
2021, supsequent tc the yeor end, the Group
ccmpieted the cisposal of s 60% shareholding
. ABEC The Group hos received upfront

cors deration ot £7 09~ respect of tne asoesa

S nce the year eng, or 18 hovember 2021, the
Group comp eted the acquisit on of 100 of
tne share capta' of 121 Group (H<) Limited
and 127 Partrers Limited (121 Greup) for .rt al
cons deratien ct appreximatery £21m and
deferred contingent cons deraticr expectad
to be octween £2im a~d £29'1 basec ontne
hne~wcl cerfcimance of V21 Gioup over o
three-yeor period

Tne Group s consohdated ctatement of hra-cicl pesition at 32U Septemeer 20211 summariscdin the -acle below

30 September 3T RErier

2027

£m

Goodwn ard otver intangiole azsets 274.4

irterests nossociates and jort ventures 371

Ot-er non-current assets 30.3

Tota) nen-current ossets 341.8
Trede deotors 20.3 14 3
Cas~ 41.7 50.3
Jther current assets 171 208
Total current assets 791 BS.4
Deferrea .ncomic (72.3) 6 3
Bankiogn {(121.6) 18 2)
Otrerlab | ties (70.4) ("CC &)
Total liahilities . . (264.3) (2801}
Srare copdolaro smgre prem u 186.8 186 &
(e TRl oLl R Y- (52.2) G,
e rserven 2.5 “Z
tan-corteo g rterest (NCL i 19.5 g
Totalequity - ) T T 1566 770
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Total non-current assets

Impoirment enarges of £18 Om (2020 £258 9m)
nave peen recogn sed in respect of gooownl
and intangible assets Tne cnarge in the current
year relates o intarg ble assats within the UK
coshi-generoting unit ([CGU) and nus been
recogn sed as a recult of the continuing impact
of COVID-18 on our UK-retaill events, lorgely
offsetiitg 1he guodwill ana intangible oeaes of
£22 0m recogrised ir respect of tre acquisitior
of Reta’l Meetup 11 December 2020 The annual
amortisatior charge on intfangible ossets was
£29.0m (2020 £316m)

Total current assets

Tre increase in trade debtors 10 the penod
reflerts the increase 1in contractaolly agreed
‘arward bookings This cantrasts with
September 2020 when the rollover process on
cancelled events hod not bear haalised and
ary uncorfirmed bookings were removed from
trade debtors

Cosh bolances oecreasec to £41.7m (2020
£50 3" Wrile net aperaling cas~ inflows of
£272m (2020° £5.0m), nciuding nsurance
proceeds of £65 0m (2020 £22 Om), ofteet
the acquishion of Retar Meetup for totol
corsideration of £23 2m, the Greup's interest
onro 'ecse poyments coused the cash balance
to foll during the year

Other current assets have decined follow ng
the settlemenrt of VAT receivable which hod
accumu'ated i the previous year following the

cancellat’on of a number of the Group's events

Financicl statemenrts

Total liabilities

The nerease rdeferred imcome nthe

period reflacts toercrease 1 contractually
ogreed forwora bockings This cantrasts with

30 Septerber 2020 wher tne rollover process
oncanceled ey ls buu nol been it alised
cnd any Lreonfrmed bookings were remiovea
from aeterred income

The bark loar palance of £1216m (2020

£18 0m) nas nereased with drawaowns of
the faciity actioned to ephimise hquidity in the
eatly slages of the financial year exceedirg
repayments maae on the faci'ity sirce

Al 30 Seatember 2020, o 1goilty of £23 6m
[included in ‘other labities’) had been
recegnised in respect of cash advarces receved
on cancellea events from customers who nad
not yet agreed to rolt over their contracts to the
fo low g ecition "ne roll over process for these
events wos completed in tne year and therefore
the bookitgs have erther been con®rered or
refurds processed The refund hiebty at

30 September 2021's £7.4m.

Arnual Report ond Accounts 2021 Hyve Group plc

Total equity

The foreior currency translation reserve
imcreased by £1 3m, largeiy aue to the
woeaoxening of the US doliar against sterling
between the beginn ng and tre eng o' tne

fnancal year Dog o e conzde able gaodwll
and intangible assets held 1m the US, the value cf
the net assets with n the consalidoted statement

of t rarcial positior has incrcased

Ihe movemert in other reserves s attrioutable

to the loss for the peroa

The non-controling interest (NCI) ba ance
aacreased i1 the year due to dividends pa d
to the Group's non-contra 'ng rterests of

£0 7m, losses attributable fo the Group's
non-controting interests of Z0 8m cno tne
cisposdi of the L0 9m non-cortroling interest

re‘ating to Fosteners fa lowing the dispesol of
the busimess dur ng the year
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Divisional trading summary

Our global network

Global Communities

The Global Communities division inciudes
Africa Oil Week, Breakbulk, Mining Indaba,
Bett, CWIEME and the Shoptalk and
Groceryshop portfolios, as well as the
Group’s virtual Meetup events following the
acquisition of Retail Meetup in December
2020. The division alsc includes our UK
Retail portfolio, which comprises Spring
and Autumn Fair, Glee, and aur UK fashion
portfolio including Pure, Scoop and Moda.

Revenues were lower than the comparahve
peadod a5 o result of tne torcellot o of o
aumieer of eveats due to COVID-19, Including
Bett, Spring Farr 14 ning Indaba end Africe
Oil'wees The -~ padi on headline crofits was
mitigatea by the cost management nihatives
mtroguced v response 1o the COVIR-19
pandermic ond os @ result of the restructuring
of tre dw s-on fo merge the tweo oreviousiy
sesorate UK ond Globa Bronds aivis ans

In-he frnal quarrer of *he year events were
able te resume 1n tne UK and US This wos
posstble for the firss i~ ¢ aince Februcry
2020 tranks te tae re ax'ng of COVID-"9
restictons In the UK thising uded Adtume
Fairand Glee, arg in the US the Grouo -an
s first Grocervehop eves since acaulntg
the Shostalc and Groceryshep busness in
December 2018 As expected, tre everts
were ot a =mol'er scole tia~ irerr gre-
patcermic eve's as o drect resut of the
ntcnat oral fravel resinichicrs tagt -ema n
©pole Encouragitg v ol events cecevod
extreme v posit ve ‘eadnack from ther
ST o T rvies At ke o red fro
tre ment-up cemore te fraca, noba ol

arooso

While e larger Europedan editions of the
Breakbu-k and CWIEME portfolios were
conceled for tne year and will next take ptace
i~ FY22. the pertfolics ran one smaller regional
evert each, inthe US and China respectively,
ond berefitea from strong attendance from
comashc exhibitors

I~ 1he year, the Group ren ity first virtual Meelup
events, Groceryshop Spring Meetup ond
Shoptalk Meetup for Women, following the
acquisition of Retail Meetup in Decernber 2020,
Both events outperformed expectations.

INFY22, a number of the divisions’ fargest events
are expected 1o take place for the first ime since
fre pondemic bagan to offect our akili*y te run
events in March 2020, inciuding Shoptalk, which
welbrur for the frst irme under Hyve's ownership,
Bett, Spring Fair, Mining Indaba, Africa O Week,
CWIEME Berlin and Breakbulk Europe

Reveriue 2021

£17.7m

2020: £L56.5m
chtnge G9%

Headline profit bafore tax 2021

£(21.0)m

2020: £(18.0)m
change 39%
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Russia

Revenues on Russian events were 25% higher
than the comparative period. The division was
able to run close to its full schedule of events,
with the exception of YugAgro, the international
agriculture exhibitian, which was scheduled to
take place ik the first quarter of FY21 but was
cancelled as a result of regicnal restrictions in
Krasnodar. YugAgre tock place post year end

in November 2021.

Financ al stotements

MasBuilo, the division's largest event, took place
- Apria~d delivered a strong performance
with impressive exbubitor ond v s tor atferdance
in the context of the event tokirg olace only eigrt
weeks after restrictiens were [ifted in Russia

The evert welcomed 720 exnibitors and more
than 66.500 visitors over 4 cays, comoared with
1,200 exlnodeors and 77,300 vis tors 'n 2079 The
chsence of international exhioitors and visitors
rearttrgs e ove s il perfoomca g hoontly
beicw pre-paraem.cleves, but 't achieved

o lke-‘or-ike revenuc increase of 18% from
custome~s who were aole to attend - not-

FY19 and + Y21

This trerd was replocted ot the other 12 Ruusian
evenrts thal teok place r the yeor, nc ucing
weordbood tAcscow arg MITT, witn ronust

Aea e perarars s s emal cHireieag
the aaverse mpact of cortinu rg aterrat coai
fravel restachons

Annual Report and Accounts 2021 Hyve Group plc

Revenue Headline (loss)/profit
2021 before tax 2021
£27.3m £5.8m
2020: £21.8m 2020: £(6.8)m

thange 25 chamae B6
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Divisional trading summary

.
Asia

The Asia division comprises our businesses
in India and China as well as joint venture
partnerships in both China and Indonesia.
Revenues for the Asia division were down
76% on the comparative period and profits

were down 217% due fo the impuact of
COVID-19.

As Ching felt the impact of COVID-19 much
eavlier than the rest of the world and
government measures were relaxed of an
earlier stage, the Group's domestic events in
the regicn have been able to recover from
the pandemic more strongly than other
ragions and largely performed inline

with pre-pandemic levels during FY21.
Regreticbly, the recent reinfroduction of
restrictions in Shanghai resulted in two of the
region’s largest events that were scheduled
1o run in August having fo be cancelled

A significant confributor o the division's

profits is he ChinaCoat event operatea by

our 50% owned joint venture partner, Sinostar.
The event took place in Decemnber but was
significantly below its pre-gandemic scole and
contributed £1.9m (2020: £6 3m) to headline
profit before fax,

One of our evants 1n India was able to run in
February prior to the country returning to

lockdown, but all cther Indion events scheduled

to take ploce in the period were cancelled.
It was also the negative biennial year for
the Paperex event which took place in the
comparative period

Revenue 2021

£4.1m

2020: £121m
charge -76%

Headline profit before tax 2011

£(7.5)m

2020: £6.4m
change. -217%

Eastern and Southern Europe

The Eastern ond Southern Europe division
comprises of our event portfolios in Turkey and
Ukraine. Revenues for the division were up 51%
on the comparative period due to the division
being able to run close to its full schedule of
events in the year.

Revenue Headline {loss)/profit
2027 before tax 2021
£6.Im  £(1.9m

2020: £4.0m 2020: £(3.1)m
I s

werldFood istorbul ook ploce 1~ Novermber oo

was the Groue's fust eventin "utxey since “he
panderic Afurtnor tiree ovents teok pioce i~
“arkey otbe hnacaigl e akiraugh alle ents
were smal er than the ore-pondemic ed 1ens
duetcinter~at org exb.bters end vistors oring
uncaete ettenc "his noucen o seccrd eo fon
of Wor oFaca Istercut A Sestermber wrich

oty shovedts Fratedis or
orstrot ~g trot cur geents

ing the orger trot morats

s llerg re npectstooe Sace o toe

thurtrer g oo tre ol ey

cLrogt-e yenr rod an
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Discontinued operations — Central Asia

The Central Asia division previously comprised
our events in Kazakhstan, Azerbaijan and

Lizbekistan.

Revenue
202

£0.0m

20:20: £5.Tm
rhangr 107

our Azerboijon and Uzbek.stan event portfclios
In August 2020, compleling Hyve's exit fram the

Headline loss
before tax 2021

£(0.7)m

2020: £{0.8)m

cunge 13

The sa e of the Kezoxhston bus ness was
comp'etea in Aot 2027, following the disposal of

No Kozakhstan everts were chle to toke place
inthe per od prior to the disposo! os 0 resut of
Covin-1e

regron In the comparatve pened the d vision
delivered revenues of £5 7m and o head ine loss
before tox of £0 8m

Reconciliation of headline loss before tax from discontinued operations to statutory (loss)/
profit before tax from discontinued opatiens

Em 2021 2020

Headline loss {0.7) {0 8)

before tax from

discantinued

aperations

Operating items

(Loss)/profit (3.6) (2 3) Definition

on d sposal of The prafit or loss recogrsed following the disposel of ¢ ciscorhnued operaticn,

discontinued represented by the aifference betvieon tre farr value of procesds roccived net of

operation related se'lng expenses ana tne cisposed of ret assets
Explanation
Tre loss or d'sposa i the year relotes o the disposal of Kazakhstan Wne-
discounted, the farr velue of the consioeration rece'vop e was £3 'm at disposa’,
and a loss on dispose| of £3 6m was recognisec
In the previous year the Group disposed of its event portfolics in Azerba jon and
Uzbckistan and o profi- an sisposol of £2 3m wosrecogriced
Why adjusted?
To excluae the non-—recurg profi7loss fom a cisposal ef o descontinued
operatan, froT which no furure pro®t o loss vall be recogrised Thiz increqses
the compareol'ty of the rosults yeor-on-year

Loss before tax (4.3) 1R

from discontinued
Operations
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Key performance indicators

Measuring our
performance

The Directors and management team use o
number of key performance indicators (KPls)
to measure and track the performance of the
Group and make informed business decisions.

I' & KPIswentified are inked 1ot € Greup s stategic priosties ard ore
consistert win those presented in last year's annual recort Date 1s not
ava- cble to report serfoermance cgainst all KPls across all comparative
years, as some of these meatrcs nave orly been mondered since tne

ro lout of new systerns dur ng the comparative perioos

As i dhe predious year, COVID-Ty has boo 9 signircart imizact on the

bus ness ord our resortec KR [he aoy-to-doy mancgement focus

5 nee COVID-18 has criorfised cost control, rescnedul ng postponed are
cancelled events ond rolling custormer bookings fo tne next event edihions,
howewver, the KPis reported oelow reman o useful measure of asscess rg
trgrnoac) COVID-19 hos aod o the business during the yeor

1

. Drive sustainable
revenue growth

Revenue (Em}

2020 99 4
209 2009
2008 1512
2017 130.9

& cortinne:

Rasenue duchine © the o rrent yoar ref oot i
mipoch ot COVID-19 on the business The Crowp was abtla
ntsinthe yenr ind uding fw s Rels
crpareaw.th 43 1 FY20 Taose ecen

o run 4 [EP RN

tha®

ilial ever
ware uble
< st compared wi pre pardes ¢ levg ©

take place were st atagigrihoanty redused

Forward bookings (Em}

2020 €6
2009 52
2018 147
2m7 98

Tocward Oook ngs AGve INCIeRSEN v eor-O Vel

Croup eapes 3 ranalal stheau
Tru reperted lewel o boch
cuccwnn o -he Creup's ellovers ef cuylon

raming everde mizh were nancel ecn f

]

Retention rate (%)

77
2018 81

2007 Unavailobie
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Focus on profitability to
increase shareholder
value

Headline profit/(loss) before tax (Em)

207 - 20.8
2020 nen
29 454
2008 283
2017 251

The headlne prefit bofare tar inthe year reflests iz
nsurgnce crocen e reccived of (5L Om offset by e
impact of further event cancellanior s asa sesult of
oW D13

Headline diluted earnings per share (EPS) (p)

207 ] 76
2020 az7)
2018 242
2018 202
2007 206

Headhne d luted earmings per snore baz irgraased @ the
v after o reture t2 hendlre profitacilty supported by
the: msurance proceeds recevea of LES Oy

Headline return on capital employed’ (ROCE %)

pisril _ 1.5
2020 30
e 13
2018 74
7017 181

Heoalre ROCE ho norensed 17 the veor Qiter aren oo
hendine pro ftablity sy
recs ved ol £67 Om,

ped by tbe 1 oar s precserty

Link te principal risks and uncertainties

@ Ponden ©onaturald inster orterree o
waelaet poge

o P Lol ara eeoramig dabit, Snge 36
o Broee betard Ledcy o o
o Erecch of e lons, poge 36

S ar mage ¥

@ 2o oo eoraton page g

perrae +H

E R R I R R PR

t.nancia statements

+ Create a leading

portfolio of must-attend
events

Visitar density (Visitors per m‘}
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» Manage cash flows
to ensure the long-term
viability of the Group

Adjusted net debt Headline EBITDA

2020 11 2020 -201x
019 15 2019 16x
208 13 2018 20x
2017 Unavailoble 2017 13x

Wisdur senety o5 encrcases durmg 1o s prae reflesne gt
penl-up demand frar vaitors for foce-o-face svanls

Customer satisfaction? (Exhibitor NFS)

Tre posine odisled net oebt ro headhne EBIT0E rabe
reflects tha Croup s reurm e probtobibty Adjusted net
deb* has ircreased in the year fromddf B2/t £79 9moard

ndemic level: whie

headhae LEITDS 1= stil belew pra-

the pusngss recevers fram the pandomic

. o

2020 3 Cash conversion (%,
2019 -8 zon [ 86
2018 “ 2020 -228
2017 Unavailable 203 94
208 m

Casto~er sobsfocion hasimproved o the events thal were

207 134

run cunng the vear Dataie currently

Cobo' Communde: Rusaa, Tarkey and Ukroine events

Link 1o principal risks and uncertainties

° Venue Lravorasiey, poage 17

@ t-eaciol mearhord safely teg slulone,

poge 'H

e Brooch of dalo prolection rogu ahions,
poge 3¢

o 1 cyherpe shegasack real g e dada lans,

pge 3@

' A LN e egratLn puge

o Eftcctne conraloer nos abelly Canca

ere, oage G

alable only for our

poulive o 1sh car verzizon the year reflects bre

G
pre panderme evels as tne performonce of the eveats
wibiz e o abl, to take place ir the yeor was siz=heantl,
wer o' custemer cshrecsipts

o sreturr fo profitability, Cashcorveraor s shll balow

suppatben by the ¢
recened nihe preosous veanin resgect of carssllen v s

Link to principal risks and uncertainties

@ ot

|

ol e ®

TR S | MR P

55



Hyve Group ple Arnua’ Report ang Accounts 2020

Section 1772(1) statement

Connecting the Board to important

stakeholders

N
Employees \E})
NS

N GCCOT’dOnCE Wﬁh Brovision 5 » Hyveisa people business and the contribution

of the 2018 UK Corporate
Governance Code, we set
ouf below how the Group
engages with its key
stakeholders and how the
Board considers the matters
set out in section 172(1) of
the Companies Act 2008

in its discussions and in its
decision-making process.

of our employees is vital to the success of the
Group. We constantly aim to reiterate this in our
internal communication,

Durimg *he fronnial veo:, a number ot rmatives
were aunched to support and encouroge the
reinvestment 'n our people ond o furtner
cevelop our culture “hese imhat ves acluded

o rew employee engogemant survey foo’,
Peakon, wnicn ensures that we are corstantly
reviewing how our emoloyees feel. The
feedback ond data ¢ reviowed ot Gioup,
divisionol and fea™ evel ana 15 a tocl that we
useto e ect os well as gu oe tre discussian or

future people nitchves

Otaer mihat ves icluged new commuricat-on
caomnels such os HywveTW as we | as investment
nwel be rg tocls We laurcned So'l'ir fne UK,
wh chis o technolagy platferm that encb es
acsy and quick access to mental bearth suppert
fer any circurmtance We have beer procctve in
righlightrg the imcortarce of afl the d florent
areos of weibeing dur'ng o Summer of We'loeing
imthiative, whech 'ouncned in e U< & US, b ocing
asnot 'ght o1 me~tol heolth, pryecal welloe ag
andihe ourch of o rewNolurteenng Pa oy

Gur Lecrring 2 Uevelooment agenda was

750 0 ton prionty oo the Peca e agerda We
‘surcreo o g oba’ manogement deve opment
orograrmme, wh ek o lowed ol eroloyecs

vihe munagec ore or mere d vidua ¢ the
oponctu- fyto mcre and ceve g ther s s oy
amnrager TR progrommerar o ofour
regorsond st oo 18 potc port: Moo ono

Tren o ser oo of wordemcres o

RPN T o2

[ ag au S JTags)
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Ce~ference Therewern trenfudtrer ~tot s
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The Group has had longstanding relationships
with the majority of its suppliers whao, for the
most part, are venue owners and event services
providers. In line with our Code of Conduct,

we endeavour to treat our suppliers fairly at

all times,

We snare event nformation witn our suppiers
via pre eve* ~eetinge o d briefings to encble
ther to plo- accardinoly fioth partics hench-
tron our sucsers’ fomhionty with our events

it s paramount that our supnhers comply wth
arti-brinery ord cerruphon 'egislat'on ard
modern slevey 'egislation across the terr tories
that we cpercte in Qur suppl er cortracts
include clouses covering these greas cne are
cnecked o3 part of qur interaa audt process

Az restretiors hove ecsed o, r some cases,
tempeorany bardenea n our operotirg
terrtorics, we have cortinuec to ergage with
venue owners ord other suppl ers or aregu ar
bass Juning e Proncial year we have
reregot cted the torms of contracts with some
ot our key supalere fo t-e mutua bereftof
beth partes, the Boara wos keot up tc oote
witn thess regobation: and had Anal aprrova
over the cnanges " ne Boord s wept irformed
of the status of re’'ctons~ips w th ey supolers
Through cur rvalvemert with rot cral ang
internotioral event industry bod es, suck as the
Assocint o~ of Evert Organ zers - the UK, the
Sac ety of [ndeoende~t 50w Oga~zer:
tre US, ang UFL tre Glotol Asseoct e of t-e
“xr o ten legustry we mave oot rues e toxe
D ead ngroe "t rgstoroares for e co'e

refurs tn c-persen oLonts
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+ We engage with cur exhibitors, visitors,
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vendors, buyers, sponsors and delegates
threugh our sales, operations, customer

success, marketing and centent teams via all
channels including website, email, social media,
exhibitor portals, FAQ bots, calls and in-person

meetings.

Following or event, customer surveys are
undertaker with exhibitars ard visitars. Survey
resu ts, includ ng NPS scores, are shared
internally ana reviewed. We also centact visitors
wno were due to attend everts but aid not
ottend Some of our everts have steering groups
or advisory panels which enabie cur major
custarmers to share feedbock with the Group

Az the effects of the panderuc have cor tinued
to be felt during the fnancial year, we have

centinued to «eep ir close contoct witn our

custemers to reassure tnem of the work we are

doing to suppert the safe return o in-person

everts to help trem reignite the'r bus nesses
Durng the year, an ir-depth assessment of tne
health and safety status of tne busiress wos
conducted, the results of waicn were presented
to the Risk Committee alang with details of ;
the steps baing taken to ensure the safe and
secure delvery of events for our customers

We beleave that our commitment to our

customer commurities nas helped us to grow

our customer market share, and custemer

support nas been demonstrated by their
continued rclling over of depos ts to future

everts We krow ‘rom our communicaticn with
customers that there s huge pent-up demaora

for cur market-lecding r-persan events Cur
cmn'channe strategy wich sunperts In-persan
everts with onlre aotvily contmues to cve ve as
we explore rew woys to support our custormics
commun tes More aetals on cur emnichenne
strotegy can be found on pages B to 17

Financial statemerts

N
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¢ The Group is committed fo engeing

ehgagement with shareholders and has an
established cycle of communication based
an the Group's financial reporting calendar.
The Executive Directors have dialogue with
institutional shareholders and general
presentations are given to analysts and
investors covering the annual and interim
results.

The Beard receves instituticral and onalysts’
feedbacx fol owing both the interim and ennual
results rogdshows Large shoreholders are also
contacted regarding remuneratian matters

{by the Chair of the Remuneration Cormmuttge)
and major transactions Queries from retail
shoreho'ders are usuolly arswered by the
Company Secretory or the Company's
Registrar ana, if necessary, escalated to tne
Executive Directars

Ir Jurme 2027, a aumber of shareholders were
invited to comuolete o survey aiving ther v ews
on the areas that they perceived to be the most
iImpartant for Hyve and its events when creat'ng
a'ong-term ESG strategy Over September
ara October 2027, on extensive shareholder
consutation was conducted with regard to the
infroduction of ¢ Value Creotion Plan ohd o
rew Rermunetatiorn Pe'icy, both of which were
opproved by sharehalders at the General
tdeeting held on 25 October 2021, As the
pendemic has conbnued, tne Group has
cortinued to ssue trading updates on o regular
basis to ensure thot its sharehciders (arc other
key staceholoers) ore kept abreost of matters
such as the rmaoact of COVID-19 onifs events
schedule (includirg poutpenements and
cancellotons), its cost reducton pregramme
aro cash flow poahier e crogre-« of
msuroree clorns ana ts strategy going forward

Anrugl Reaort and Accounts 2021 Hyve Graup ple
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" environment N

; The Group is committed o using events as
opportunities to lead the drive for sustainable
development in their industries, and make
a positive impact on the world around us.
The ereation of a new ESG strategy will drive
our ambition to educate, empower and drive
positive change on a global scale.

Aformal ESG Commitlee hos, in conjunchion
with Simply Sustairable, a sustainability ard
ESG consultorey, been developing the Group's
ESG strategt framework, with the a m of using
our influencs to put sustaincble development
cn tae agendo of some of the war d's majar
industries Asthe lead:ing events r their
sectors, we recognise thaot our events have a
responsibilily to effec «rar ge We enoeavou
tc empower communihies, advance soc al
mobity, gucrantee representation, and nspire
industries, all while better uncerstarding and
address ng our own carbon feotprint. More
detals or our ESG strategy can ne founa cn
pages 30t 32

The case studies overleaf :
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Section 172(1) statement

Acquisition of Retail Meetup

As reporfed elsewhere n What are the likely consequences of the
, decision to acquire Retail Meetup in the
this annual report, the Group long term?

completed the acquisition  The acquis on  seen as e Sotme Wy o
of Retail Mee‘rup LLC in Hywve to start to execute the virtua' e ement of
December 2020 ts omaichanne strategy with other potent'al

cplions being aignifican-ly less attrachve or
The sirategic rationale tor *h < sgnifcont rot vioble
acquisition wos presented to the Board and ¢ “he lechnalogy nos scope to reh out multp'e

Ing tne decis ro n- ve
during on process tne Nor-Execut wirfual events in the ecommerce spoce

Drectorsraized detorled and chaleng ng ancluding wn different geograph ss)
guestions to ensure that tne acqu s'tior was an

appracriate it for the Group arnd thot il was m * “he acauisificn represents gooa va ue for
the pestirterests of the Greup and ity <oy Hyve with limited aowns’de r e<
stareboeersinthe long ferm Tak ng each part * The scowsihon contr butes jowards the
af section W72(3} rtura. the matters consiaerea
by the toard in additon 1o the benehis of the

acqusiton for tne sharenoiaers of the Campany,

fong term aevelopment d versificatior and
sustainabilty of the Group

were as fo lows

How are the interests of the Company's
employees affected by the acquisition of
Retail Meetup?

f-e ocquisition offe s employees career
deve'opmert by widening the Group's
aftering anc creating new ang excng
opportunities i1 the d.gitalisatior of events

How does the acquisition help to foster the
Company’s business relationships with
suppliers, customers and others?

*

The acquisitian erab es the Groun fo serve
customer neecs digitally

“ne teckralogy complements Snapta k,
Groteryinop 01d Shopiok Europe m-persom
events, vatn potertial to ennance their

nropos tion for custarners

Past-gcousiion tha techrology krow.edge
and sysfems ownersh p and dota nave
peen trarsferred to the Group s outsourced
tecknc'egy partner for which Hyve s a

key accourt

There s a long-term acvantege to using tre
same technc.cgy part-er to marage anc
del ver noth the tecnna ogy ‘or ‘acitated
meetings and the Reta | Meetup tecnnology

The Company's acbt foc hies ggreement
requires 'enaer consent tor the acauisthon
cnd therefore o consuliction pracecs vath
tre banks was uraertoken
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What is the impact of the acquisition on the
community and the environment?

® Asatechnological preduct for use at virtual
events, the acausition of Retall Meetup from

a community and an envirorment perspective

was 1ot a sigrihzantissue for consideration

How does the acquisition impact the desirability

of the Company maintaining a reputation for
high standards of business conduct?

® Retoi Meetup, as oart of an integrotea
. omrichannel structure, enables high-quality

digitsation and virtuahsahon of everts

How does the acquisition meet the Board's
need to act fairly as between members of the
Company?

* The acqu siton strengthens the Group's
pertfol o, and thereby s leng-ferm
crofrebily ara sudlomachty whch
reeette all of e koy ctokchaolders

® The structure of the acauis hien hos o

manageab'e cash mpoct ono Mutea sk

Fingnc.al statements
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Disposal of Kazakhstan events portfolio

As announced r e Aprl 2021 trad rg updote,
outing ke Anancial vest the Group disposed of
{TECA LLP the onerating company for 25 of the
Group's non-core. regianally focusad events in
Larakhstan. Taking each part of sechon 172(1)
in turn, the matters considerad by the Boord,

1n odditon to the bene” ts of the disposal for the
shareheolders of the Compuany, were as ‘alows

What are the likely consequences of the
decision to dispose of ITECALLP in the
long term?

#® [he disposal compietes tne Group's strategy
" to exit Central Asig, follow'ng the dispesel
of the Azerbajen ard Uzbokiston event
portfoiios in FY20

The dispasal supperts the Group's ambition

to focus on larger, aternotona events wih
h gher growth potential

The timetabie for the payment of the
consideration stre*ches over a five- to
seven-year perioa The amount of the
consideraten and timing of payrents
vanes by reference to the performance

of the Kaza<hsicn business

:9 Nor-core gssets require o dsproperhionate

" time investment from the leadersnip team
te morage nline with Hyve stardords,
comparatively with the returns receved

& The exit from Central As.a reduces Hyve's
risk exposure while further genercting furce

i

for reinvestmenrt

The disposal reduces regiona’ averhieads,
irfrestructure ond stranded costs

How ate the interests of the Company’s
amployees affected by the disposal?

* The disposal enables the eadership team

" te focus more or growtn ond buunees
coue opmont, cron'es empioyees fo focus
ma e ot morkel-leccing events oro
orowts, anc reduces cemand on HQ

support resotirces
¢ [he deocsal resultes in the transier of
sporoxmotey 90 emo oyees to the rew

cwrer of fhe busmess

How does the disposcl help to foster the
Company’s business relationships with
suppliers, customers and others?

The ousiress wos sold to 1CA (V) Ltd, a
comoary owned and operated by a farmer
consultant ta Hyve in tne region, whao s well
known to lccol suppliers and customers

As aresult of tne d'sposa some supop iers
w ll nave beer imoaciec by the cancel ctior

of contracts

¢ The business hod not been identiied as

su table ‘o the Compory's omaichonns
offering o custorers

What is the impoct of the disposal on the

community and the environment?

The sale of the business was "ot expacted
foatedt TECA LLF s local comimrus ity or
the env rerment An alternative oofion of
closing down the bus.ness coud have boo
an adverse effec on he local community

How does the disposal impact the desirobility
of the Company maintaining o reputation for
high standords of business conduct?

The sale reduces the riz< g ofile of the
business, reduces the impact cr Company
resgurces ond supports the Compony’'s aim to

concentrate erly on market-ieccing events

How does the disposal meet the Board’s
need to act fairly as between members of
the Company?

The disossal of tre business forms port
of the Company's portioiic management
straleqy woick s considered fo be n tae
best .ong-term nlerests cf the businoss
and its stakehciders
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Going concern and viability statement

Going concern

As oart of thelr assessment of the
approptiateress of adoptrg the going corcern
bas s wher aorepar.ng the annua report and
fnancal statements the Tracto: nave
consideren tre currert strength of the Group's
Vawd ty, recent trecing perfcimarce wreiceiers
and the potent ol iImpect of forecast scerar s
an the Groum s inancial pesitior cver *he nexd
12 montrs

A4 30 September 2027, e Group boo available
Fauidhty of £330 "1 {2020 £ 78 6m) arc adjusted
net debt of £79 8m (2020 £67 /m} "ne Grouon's
avaricoie igu aity hos decreased dur ng the
yecr as a rosult of £37 2m of term loan
cepaynents ard tne 023 2m ocowsition of Reta |
tAcetup in Decembar 2020 Insurance proceeds
of £65 0m (2020, £22 Om) ‘or event concellatcns
were receivec during the year, more than
offsetiing *he operchng tosh o.ilows as a tesalt
of the continued evert oistupton in fne firs' ~al’
o the “nancial yeat

tn December 2020, simultaneous y with tae
Retor fAeetup coguis oo, the Crous amendeos
ts banking facilities, upaating the terr loar
repoyment schedu e OF thg £62 8m torm loa~
orown ot 30 Sectember 2021, £0 Em s now
due ‘cr repayment in Parca 2022, £5 Omon
June 2022, £6 O n each of Sectember 2022
ana Noveraoer 2022 and £22 5m 1~ ecen o
November 2023 arc Decermnbaor 2023 |~ resoect
of any further 1nsuraace srocecas received
rom carcellohon msuraroe clovme for FY20
and FY21 everts, 50% cf the proceeds receves
wil beused as anecr y repayment of the
upceTing term locn repay ments

Biter year ero, o "5 hovenbe 2027, the Groun
agreed ¢ TZ-mentt extension to the wawer of
the firancia! coverarss wate iy ler dere The
Group’s cucrter y leverage ratic covenart of rot
more then 3x, gro ~terscr covar roho ef net £33
oo A h(}ue DEeET WA el LD "G ara el d "'f:‘

P

Maorch Z023 ora e G540 M U

fouaty corenant

anz Tferast rover

farsto micre

Mottt ner ol

As markets nave recpened in recent months, fne
Groun hos beer able to resume runming events
across olmost el of s maorkets Trese hove

y e ded a number of pasitive trends that are
showirg signs of maroving ‘urther goirg .o
Fy22. in¢luding strorg domestic parhicipation,

h gher customer sperd, increasec visitor
aersity, improved NPS scores ana strong
‘orwora bockings for next year's events

Tne acauisitar cf Retar Meetup in December
2020 ord 21 Grous in November 2021 nove
accaerotes fne Group's ommichannel strategy,
provaing cdahora orl ne canability to deover
events and serve key irdustry secters virtuclly
Tus nas g ven the Group a proven reverue
strea i ihal oads resiience -n the event of any
further a.sruphion to the Group’s 1n-serser event
scheaule

The Group has mcde 'ed o mumber of scerar os,
bosed on diferert assumchors. regarding e
durotion anc extent 1o which COVID-19 mignt
rmpact ine business. For eack of our markets
wi ho.e sersitises he revenue cioh aro cas”
Aewmpoct of red.cea rading achvity We
have consideres the cxtent te wh cn COVID-18
cort nues toimoact cac~ ot our markets in aur
assessment of the outlcok For the purposes

of consider ng tne Grouo = going corcern
assessmert, we have focused o two scenar 05

e A Base Cose. ond
» ADeownsios Cose

The Bose Case, wh ch represents the Diregctors’
currert best estimate assumes o returr to o ful
events calendar ir FY22 Trs takes ~to cocount
that tne majcr ty of cur markets nave «ur
everts nost-oonceruc ene there are e evenis
scnettalec to rar i the Fret balf of tre fingnoia
year ning faw marsets yel to refure e
ockrow eage that there 1 the possib ity of
«rupt o~ Gue to ~ew vor oots, bat ot B 5 stage

‘oo ey wobave o mted mpoact oo cur event

me gve s

Lsal-TelVES coth demastc adg,

sanite-ra 'y tigrcat ore otterooooe o oLe
BEe OfsUMEes tC e G oo Gi DTe-porneE
e, ~FY22. ¢

P FY24 1

crocover o te pres cus

e tae Bose Cie sceror o

cucty = exoscteo iz remia

IO~ terng rout the T2

Tne Dowrs ae Cose nas been mocelied for the
ourposes ot ensurng the L quidity coverant 1s
not reached aureg the penoo of assessment,
oven if the sseed of the recover v slows "ne
Dowr side Cate nisumes a sigrif cant slowdow:
1nthe recovery ot internchonal trove  fo just a
taro of pre-porcermic levels It olso focters in
considerable d.sruption ta the evert schedule
u~ti after March 2022, assuming reimposed
restrict 095 ‘mpact aur events in the UK, US and
mairland Europe This scencro also assumes
further gisruphor 1o the event schedule in ol
Ch'noare Scuth Africa. os o result of the recant
reinfroduct'on of restrict ors anc the siower
poce of recovery resoactively In response fo th's
scercr o playirg out, further cost scvings heve
bee~ assumed, inclucing a celay fo cianned
investnenfs reduced discretiorary bonus
paymants ono variaole event savings as o result
of the lower interraticral revenues and event
cancel ahios Liauid'ty s expecied 16 remair in
excess of £/07 tvroughout the "2-montk perad
‘rom the date o the Annuc: Report

Botk scenarios therefore have matenia
necdroom over ona apove [ne Z40m minimurn
Iquidity covenant n ploace far t1e aurat o of
the gong correra ossessment Wnile beyond
tre percd of assessment the remtrocuchor of
covenants from Jure 2023 wos 0 sc conuiderea
The Groun s expected to meet both coverants
wher they resume under the Base Case
scenario, but could breach the leverage rohe
urder the Dewns.de Case r the oucrter end ng
Jure 2023 witnout odd booe mihigohng ochons
neing taken

Fina ly, o reverse sfress test cose 708 peen
aeve'coed todeter~ine a scencr o urger whc
tne Group's intmum s asdity covencnt maght
pe precchen A scenarno wnere there s o returs
to a stuchor peyand the ~eignt of the pande mic
wold oe requ red tc sreack the roveront

Trissgeror o

aur g the por oo of oscescent

i
H

Qe ot griicant o e

Creous cver o ser oo nftre nextten rroning

vet=roe.e~ts oo e to tave pace for the rect of

CE e arodt gyl

ST TR EXIERTIST U EVET

Kuss o orallarag ~e wnor ors CssumMes




O Strategic report

Governance

Even under th's extreme scenano the Group stil
has avelleble lquidity of ot least £30v witae
the period of assessment but will breach the
minimum liguicity covencnt between October
and December 2022

Further, the Group can -mplement o numoer of
mitigating actions f requ red, includ rg nut net
mited to

a The pursut of furtner qsurance proceeds
The Group has a number of outstanding
claims that 't continues to pursue, os we'l as
noditional cover taken out nrespect of the
UK Covernment's Live Events Reirsurance
Scheme.

& Deferrol of term loan repayments The Grouo
kas repayments due ir calendar year 2022
totallng £17 8m, out hes a supportive lerder
group, which has agreed to the deferral of
schedueo repoyments of the term "acn in the
recent post in response fo the outbreck of
COVID-19

Disposa of events or partfelios of everts In

the last 24 marths the Group hos successfully
cisposed of the Group's ABEC, Kazakhstan,
Azerbayjan, Uzbekistan and Fasteners
businesses The Group bas a aumiber of

des rable assets tnot are currently not oeing
considerea for disposal tor strateg ¢ reasons
but could oe sold to provide additonol
hguidity f absalutely nocessary

Cost sovngs. The Groun hos implemerted o
material cost sovings programme in response
to the COVID-19 outpreax previcusly and

can achvote further measures If necessary.

Further ‘nvestments in FY22 can be deferred
or remaoved 1o helo ense hquidity, Last yecor
the Group praoved that it could oct quickly to
‘mplement cost savirgs, even trose related
‘o stoffroductions as eqioenced by the two

waves of redundancies

o Equity raise The Group's investors have
arevicusly supoorted injeching add tiona
capta into the busness Th s was most
apporent in a downs de scerano n respect
of the May 2020 ngats issue wheh roised
£126 6m

Financ a! statemenrts

Based on the current and projected levels of
I'quidly, under a ronge of model'ed scenarwos,
the Directors believe that the Grouo s wel
placed "o manage ils - nanuol ooligatior s and
cther business r's<s satis‘actornly. The Directors
have been able to torm o recsonable
expactation that the Group nas adegquate
resources to continde in cperotion for at least
12 menths from the sigrirg date of these
firarcial state~ers The Dnectors therefare
consider it appropricte te ocont the going
cancern basis of accounting in preparing the
Aqmual keport fingnzigl so'cments

Viability statement

Ir accordance with the UX Corporate
Governarce Code, the Directors have
considered the ong-term viobility ¢® the Group
to determine whether it can continue to operate
ana meet its labilties, faking into cecaunt its
currert posiion and principal nsks In assessing
viobility, the Board cons-dered o number of
factors, including the Group’s business model
{see pages 18 to 23}, strateqy (see pages 24 to
29), risk appetite (see pages 36 1o 39) and

pr ncipal rsks and uncertaintics (see pages 36
to 39) Ir light of recent events partculor
ottenton nas been poid to the risks, and
ossociated impact, of o glebol parderic, as
we | as the knock-on moact of r sks reloted

tc economic stabi ity iguidity and venue
ovailab Lty

The Board s required to assess the Greup's
viaoil ty over a period greater thor 12 morths,
Afve-year nenod hos neen chosen on -he bows
that it reflects on appropnate baldrce between
certainty over assumptions and a lerger-term
view for investors and other stokenoclders

[his hos been increased by one year fram the
perioa used in the previous year's assessment,
tc become consistert with the newly 1ssued
‘ong-term marogemert incertve plans os we'l
as tne forecast perod upon waieh the Boord
a-neana the Sroup's hnancoa’ outlook

“he Group's long-term projections bove been
rev ewod aga nstits packing covenonts, whick
relude a monttly £40m m enum iquiciby
coverart up to ana rolusing Morcn 2023
pefore reverhing to cuortery leverage

and rterest cover ret'en frem June 2023

Aqnua Report and Accounts 2021 Hyve Group ple

The quarter'y tests thatl resume from June
2023 are

* Leverage ratio - Adjusted net debt must be
less than three hmes adjusted EBITDA across
the last 12 months

Interest caver rato - Adjusted EBITDA across
the last 12 months must be greater than four
tmes he conselidatea rel finance charges
over the some perod

Gven trne impact resulting from the COVID-19
pardemic, we have considered the Croup'’s
lerg-term viobiity on the ossumpt on that there
15 ¢ gradua: return of internationol trave with
revenues only returning to pre-pandemic leve's
In=Y24
posihon presented in the Budget and Five-Year

The Lirectors comsideres “he Nironual

Plan, which was recently opproved by the Board
when assessing viability. This incluces the rollout
cf the Group's emnichannel strategy, which
proviaes addtional resiience through revenue
streams tnat would not be odversely impacted
by any in-persen event disrupt'on The Directors
also cansiderea the strength of the ir-person
event portfol.o, in particular the Group's
rmarket-leading everts, wh ch have proven

n tne past ot they are more resistant to
downturns than second and thurd her events,
Finally, consideration was also given to the
geograpnical aversity af the pertfal

which prowides protection ogainst locetion-
specifc 1ss.es

“ne principel ros< that poses the greatest threat
ta the Croup's long-tarm viabrmty s 1m respect
of a new giobal pandemic, cr a resurgence of
COVID-19 Corsequently, the Directors have
considered a rumber of poss ble paraemic
scanarios, rangng from lim-ted disruption {i.c
‘nternat cral trovel restr ctons are in place but
events are ahee to run), to greater cisruptior
that is isolotea to certain geographice 'acotors
(e localsed lockdowns impact tne abi'ity te
run events n rertam countriesy ana finally toa
reverse stress test scenario where everts cannat
take place corass the Group's busieut eve -t
months ‘ar g aenod of 10 months (e the penod
of greatestimpact ano a lorger penod w thout
any everts taking p'ace tran the 1mpact
COVID-18 ot ally nao on the busines: ), excop!
for Russ o orc Ukraime wihere everts are
genemmed ooesar e ire foalguodter ef tr

T aonial yeo
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Geing concern and viability statement

Bosed or the voricus scenarlos censidered, tne
Group s excectes to hove materian avol oble
iquidity tnroughsar the five-year pericd Only
under the reverse stress test scenario, out ined
‘nfurther detai! nthe goirg concern section,
woud the mirimum iiguidity covenant test be
breacked Under a downside scerarig the
leverage rahe caverant could oe breacned .n
the first ouarter a’tes v rerurnzn june 2023
The Group has mere thon 18 mentas inwh cn
to take mitigating actior to gvoid a breacn
Under the reverse stress test scenario both
covenants wou'c be breached wher they
resume n June 2023 Given that the reverse
stross test sce~ario is beyord the impact that
COVID-"8 haa on the Group's evert schedue,
alongside the recent amendmants to s bank
debt covenant packages secured as ¢ resuit of
disrupt'on during tre panoemic, the Directors
are ca-hdent ot “he Croup remens vicble
during the period of gssessment

The motunty date for the Group's current deot
‘et es s December 2023 ard theroiore

talls witkin the “ve-year pericd ot viability
assessment Tre 1<elihcod of tre Group's ab ity
o refnance ile debt faciities has ‘herefore been
co~sdered as part ot the Directors” vability
asscssrnent Bosed o~ recent discuss ons the
Groug nas held witn members of its lending
synd.cote ond debt cavisers, the Group has
concdence in it aoily to refirarce itz debt
toouit es, even during nenods where thare s
nressure o0 leveroge 'eve s unoer o downs'de
scerand Tns confdence s wresgihened by
there baing meare than two yeors unti tne
current fac I hes exo re end the optimism
crourg the cort nuea recovery of te susiness
curing that per od

S'nce the cutbreck of COVID-"9. marcgemenrt

hat takes significant octio- to ctrengher re
Croup's Lauidity pos ton and protect ite
|:-rwg—‘ev'1‘ ArEnIg Pro-pects |t ese T eas el
~¢ ude roiz ag £726 Bntiarcugn o rghtsissue o
oy eeD dehienng wiormiicond Loy sav gt
croreneqotat rg cur oo rg coreronts cuer
tre oeroo unrt Jume 2023 Trese measures Nove

crotectgo the ous'ness

0

[ V=S _-'toop o L

mitte Group s oo iy to w inacr G Zor ~ued
: fegre s

I L S L RN e

[
coyn resneres 1oe Cooup mns seen g mer

o sosihve trends dur ng FY21 that are or'y
nereqs ng going nto FY22, rcluding strorg
domest ¢ carticipation, higher customer
spend, 'noreased v sitar dersity, improvee NPS
scores and strong forwara nookings for next
year's everts

“he Group's avalable hguidity mears thot, even
under downside scencrios, the business wou.o
continua to have signifcant liquiaity headroom
onits exist’'ng foclities Inal ossessmerts,

there s on opten to extend the poterticl
mtigatons avaldab's, such as further reduct an
ir expendiure, deferring term loan repoyments,
reis ng odditonal copita: via the equity markets,
or tne dsposal of ossets, if required The Aud’t
Committee rev ews the qutput of the v abil'ty
assess~e~ inadvarice of final evaluction

oy the Board Havirg reviewed the current
per‘ormance, farecasts, oebt servicing
reauirerments, total fac Iihes and risks, the

Board has a reasonable expactation that the
Group has garquate resources fo cont nue in
operatcT, o meet ity | obilifies asthey ‘ol cue,
and te retain su=oent available case ocros: all
five years of b ¢ gsscesmend period The Board
therefcre has a recscrabie expectat or thot the
Groue wil' remein commerciel'y viaole aver the
five-yea percd of assessment

Autrarisen ‘or issue by tne Board of Directors

Jered Cranney
Comupony Secretary
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Governance at d glance

The Board considers that the Grous has heenin comp crce with a i the
princip-es one relevenf arovisions of the Code trroughout the year erded
30 September 2027 ond to the date of t1is report Deter s of how the
orincples have been oprled ore as fo lows

Board leadership and company purpose

Principles

A. A successtul commpany 15 led by on erective and ertrepreneunal
board, whose role 15 to promote the lo~g-term susta'rab e success ot
tre company, generating value for shorehe cers ara contribut ng fo
wider society

® [irectors' biogropes o1 pages 66 and 67
® Our strategy or poges 24 to 29
® DBusiress mode! on peges 810 23

B. The beara shoua establisn tne comoany’s purpcse, va-ues ara strateqy,
and sat's®y itse'f thatf these and s culture are aligned A ldirectors must
act with infegr ty, lead by examoie and promcte tne desred culture

e Ourstrategy on poges 24 to 29
& Durpecp € ano values or pages 34 ore 35

C. The board shou o ensure trat the necessary resources are in ploce for
the company to meet its objectives and meosure ner'crmonce aga rst
them The ooaro should alsc establ s& o framewark of prudent ana
aHfective comtrols wh ok enable risk o e as-e<sed ord managed

& Key performonce ngicafors on nages 54 ana bb
e Princioa’ risks and uncerfamhes o1 pages 36 to 39
e Audt Committes reporten nages /5 to 78

& Rizk Cemmitiee repett ©n nage 79

b In order for the cempony to meet itz respons'n It es tc snorebolders
ard stekehelders, the boe'd sheuld ersure efective erzogemen' wh
and encourage part.cpat or from, these parties

® Sechicn 72 stotemenf o pages 56 to 59

E. The boara shou ¢ ensure tnat warkfarce po icies a~e oroctices are
consste~twith the compeny's values and support s iong-term
sustanaole success e woreforce should ne ac e to roise ary matters

of rongern
® Sect o 172 stotement Cose stuoies aon pages 56 *o &8

® Corprrote Covermarce - Our commtmert te te~picnce o acgs /0

org Westebicenng orrongements o oage 70

Division of responsibilities

Principles

F. Trechair leads *he hoarz and s resporsible for 1s overall e=achivenoss
i arrecting the company Trey should demonstrate anjective judgement
througnout their terure and promote a culture of cpenness cnd deoate
I~ addticn, the cha'r foalitates constructve board re.at ons and the
effectize contribution of all ro~-executive directors, ond ensures that
directers roca’ve accurate, imely ane € ear nformation

* Cerporate governance report on poges 68 t¢ 71

- Tne board shoud include an anoroprofe combinat'on of executive
and ron-executive (and, in part cu ar, Ndependent nan-executive)
directors, such that no ane indiv duar or sma | greup of individuals
dominotes the board's cecisior-making “nere snould be a clear division
of resporsib hes between the leadersn o of the boa-d arc the executive

eadership of the company's busness
® Corporate goveraance report on pages 68 to 71

H. Nor-execulive grectors should hove sut cient e 1o meel then bieard
responsibiities They shoula provae construchive chal enge, strategic
guida-ce o specdialist adviie o d bold ra~agemert fo accous!

& Corporcte governance report o poges 88 to 70
® Nominaton Committee report on poges 80 and 81

I. "ne beara, supportea by the company secretary, shou d ensure tnaf
nas the pe ic es, processes, wormotion, tme and resources |t needs in
oroer 1o funchor etfecwely ard efqcently

& Ccrporate governance report on nages 68 to 71

Composition, succession and evaluation

Frinciples

J- Appointmentsic tre boars shoulc pe susject to a “armal, ngorous
and transparent procedure, ana an eecive s_ccession plan sbould be
maintained ‘or bocrd cng serior marcagement Botn apportmerts and
succession olans should be nased or merit ond object ve cnite<'a ard,
wothin this context, should promote diversity of gercer, socia ard ethme
bockgrounds, cogritive ars persana strengths

& Nommaten Comrmittee report on pages 80 and 8

K. "~e pzard a~d its comm tees should Fave o comb neticr of sk s,
experence cnd k~ow eage Consicerchor shou o ne gve- feo the ergte

of service cfibe sooro os g wrc e oad memaoersn o regu ary refreshec
s [recters ocgraphes o noges 66 and 67

e Corocrote govercance reps-t oo oages B8 te 7

& lLomirg'chConm e rencton ooges 2 cro &7

ToLOr TG L

& Coroorte go.e ~arcerecort or page: B81c




Strategic report O Governance Fiaancial statemerts

Audit, risk and internal contrel

Principles

M. The board sheouta estan”sh ferma' and transparent poicies ana
procedures to ensure the Independenies a-d effectivercss o Infernal end
oxterral oudi furctiors ond catisfy teelt op the integnity of fnancial and
narrabive statemerts

s Audt Committen report on pages 75 o 78

N. The noard should present a fair, belanced and unaerstandahle
assessment of the comoany's postion and prospects.

» Strategic reoort on peges 1to 62

® Aucit Committee repert on pages 75 to 78

® [ rectors’ resporsbil ty stetement on poge 106
& [irancal stotemerts on pages 107 to 173

0. The board shou'd establ.sh procedures to manage risk, aversee the
interncl control framework, and aeterm ne the nature ard extent of
the principal ¥iscs the campony 1z wiling to take n order fo achieve ifs
leng-term strategic objechves

o Audt Commttee repcrt on pages 75 to 78
® Risk Commiftee report on page /9

® Principa risks and uncertaimties on poges 36 fo 39

Remuneration

Principles

P. Rermunerafion policies and oractices shoua be oeugned fo

support strategy ond promote long-term sustainable success
Executiva remuneration shou d oe aligned toc company purpose ona
vaiues and be clearly Inced to the successful delivery of the company’s
long-term strategy

& Qur strategy on pages 24 to 29
e Directors’ remuneratior reoort on pages 86 to 105

Q. Aformal and transparent procedure for developing pol'cy on executive
remurercticn and determ ming airector and senicr maragement
remunerction snould be establ shea No director shou ¢ oe rvolves in
decioing iner own remurerghon outcame.

® Directors’ remunerohonreport on pages &6 to 105

R. Directors should exercise rdepenaent judgement ond aiscretion
wher author'sing remunerahon outtcomes, tokng account of camnpary
and ind vicuo pecfarmorce, and widaer crcurmistances

® Diectors’ remunerat on report on pages 86 10705

Anrucl Repart ond Accourts 2021 Hyve Group ple

Board
composition

B Choirman 1
Executive Director 2
B Non-Executive Director 3

Gender split ~

Board of
Directors

W Male

Female

5 (83 3%)
1016.7%)

Sldalg oot 30 Soerember 2021

Non-Executive
Directer tenure

M 0-3 years 1
3-6 years 1
W 6-9 years
*® 9+ years 0
Gender split —

all empleyees

W Mole 297 (38.5%)

Female 475 (61 5%)

Gender split —
Hyve
leadership team

| Male

Female

27 (58 7%)
19 (47 3%)
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Board of Directors

An experienced team to take us forward

Richard Last
Non-Executive Chairman

Richard joinee Hyve Group o c as Charman
and Non-Executive Director in February 2018
He s o member of the Company's newly formed
ESG Committee Rickard s olso tne Crorman
of Comma Commun cat ors ple, which nas o
rarket cap tehsahon of over 21 7hbn, revenuas of
aver £400m ard proviges cloud, vo'ce and aafe
communicat ans s¢ ubans to UK ena kuropeon
businesses, cna the Charmen of Trnba' Grous
plc,an atermat ora tochnoogy solubicns
orovicer far the ~igher ard further ecuccticn
secror oo arily ir the U< and Asia Pacihc
reqons, whicn s hsted on AIM and hes o market
rapitalisat o~ o over 2220 Renard s asoa
Nan-zxecutve D rector cf Corerc hetwo
Securty ple, a small Al sted compary

spec cils ng . cyber securty solut'ons In
Septemper 2021 R'cnare joneds the ooare of
Greerstone+ Lo, a pr vote comoany nrov ang
software oo so ut ors waich sapocrd

susto ~ab fy strateg es

kororoowe safe oo of tre Insttute of

Crartercd Accoustact, ~ Ergang ote Wa

307 exnor enced oo e At crer 370 peors

[o3

CUD CCompory SoIrd exner erce

Fcrare ¢ e et the use

R R T R A SRt t,a 0
peoidon b, He <o wery o conte oot ree
QILTICT G O g ecpmert of pour g o enturn

P oET

ct, moroontoten

Mark Shashoua
Chief Executive Officer

FAark was apeontes as {Caef bxecalive Diboer
in Seotember 2016 Maork was prev cusy the
CEO of 12 Events Groun, tre avent arm of
Ascential pe, where ke soent ~ve years leading
the inter~at onalsahon cnd diversiicatcn of
the business

Park was ore of tre founaing mencers of Hyve
Group ple, then ca ed ITE Group, 111991 where
ke was a senvor Director ane Boara member “or
eghtyears He s alsa a premne~t figure in the
irterncticnar events ~dustry anc s ¢ member
ofthe Board of UFL, tre Glona A

tne bvents Irdustry

‘chon of

Mark s focus s on evoiv g the busines: ord
working towaras cch eving ts amoitict He
soends cons cerable t me alorgside regionc
eacers anc event teams, d scussrg the strotegy
cfeach morket-leading show ond o'ar- ng fer

sL:ta noble grow'h

Mar< s poss orafe coout “eoresertirg the
ST uhon of customiens pency curs it averts
caustry ord noreenrg cordtect oranpge e e

as ve’ g o ue to srorenslasrs

John Gulliver
Chief Finance and Operations Cfficer

Jora was appoirten as the Company’s COO N
Cctober 2217 With effec- from 1 Cctober 2020
Jonn tock up tre newly formed combined role
¢f CFC and COO He oversaw the rol out o
best practice as port of the Trarsformation

ard Growth (TAG) crogromme jonn a so nes
responsibility ‘or imp ementing ana ma nta ing
cur best pract ce ooerchng model acress cur

globainetwors of exribt ors,

Psior to jormimg. John neld senior rranc.ol
positcns 'n the media sector, including [afer m
CFO ot Emaon.  co R'ght Group anc also

D sicnel CFG of Ascent o' ard CFO of 21 Events
Group from Jure 2072 to Ju~e 20°7, where ~e
workeo clengs de Mer Snashous, CEG Pror to
taet, John was Finarce Director at Precise fAca ¢
frem 2008 to 2070

Jobr v potegrourd i rarce o g vperatic: ol
tra~s‘ormicticn, as wei as - s exser enceir e
events sector, underoims b s passisn ‘or oring ng
coout pozitive chege ara o srupt o w tnin ine

agdstry Joraenny wareng o g crange-led

eryroneaest god coee b pass

ome ReTIe o grigee et tha
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Stephen Puckett
Non-Executive Senior
Independent Director

Stepmen was oppeinted a Non-Execulive Director
of the Group in July 2013 and 1s o member of

the Audit Committee, having been the Chair

urti January 2020 He was appointed Charr of
the Group's Risk Committes in January 2020

He bos been the Group’s Non-Executive Se-ior
Indeneraert Divector since Jonuary 2018,

From darcr 2015 to October 2020, Stephen was
Chairmaon of Hydroger Group p ¢, having joired
the board 1n 2012 He s a Chartered Accountant
whe orings a wecalth of financiol ana accounting
experience amassed tarough his waork with isted
compaonies In 2012, Stepnen retired fromi the
board of Page Group plc (formerly Michoe! Page
International plc) after more tran 11 years as
Group Finarce Director, curing wh'ch time

ha oversow a perod of sigrificant overseas

exopansion ond growth

Stepher s a strong advocate for ensuring that
tre views of g wide range of stakehalders,
part cularly employees are conscered by the
Boord ard that it s mportant to hove o cu'ture

where everyone enjcys comirg irta work

After nearly nine years ot service, Steoner w |
se stepp rg cown from the Boaro ot the 2022
Annua Genera Meet no and va rot be stanaing

forre-electon

Firancicl statemerts

Sharon Baylay
Non-Executive Director

Sharon was oppointed a Non-Execut ve Director
of the Group in April 2014 Sharon has been Chair
of the Remureration Comm'ttee since Octaber
207 aneis Chair of the Company’s newly
formed Ervironmenrta, Soaal and Governance
Committee She was recently oppointea Char of
Restore plc, having previcusly been the Senor
Indenendent Director, and she clso chairs the
boards of the prvately-ownea companies
Urique X, Drivewor<s Lid and Foundat'on SP Lid.
Saaronrecenty jomed the board of WA G
payment solut'ens ple, where she 1s o'sa Chair

of the Remurerchion Committee

Sharor jored lod Boker ple os a Non-Execufive
Directar in June 2018 and was aching Choir from
December 2019 untl she stooped down from
the Bocrd in July 2020 From 2009 to 2377, Sharor
was Maorketing Directer ard o Ma™ Boord
Director of the BBC, resporsible for ¢!l aspects
of marketing, commu~ cohons ond auvaerces,
She was also on the Board of BBC Worldw de,
Freesat and Dhig:tol UK Pror to the BBC, Sharor
neld a rumber of ser or coles ot Microso't
Corperat on over a pencd of 15 yea' s, inc udng
Cerera Monager of the UK Onlice ana

Advert sing Gus ness

Sharcnis an Advanced Cooch & fMeater,

arored tea by the Chartereo Institute of Perwonnel
ara Deveicomenl, crrd o Member of Wemen

A Adverts rg and Coramue cat ors, London
Shoraa o ngs extens ve cigita” oxoeence to

tre Boarg -~ add tontosecen! corparato

QOVErnoree expolience
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Nicholas Backhouse
Non-Executive Director

Nicholas was apponted a Nor-Executive
Director of the Group on * May 2079 and Cha'r of
the Audit Committee in Jaruary 2020, He s also
a member of the Remuneration Committee and
the Risk Commpttee

Nicholas has exiens've experience at board level
and is currently the Serior Independent Director
of both Hollywood Bow Group pe and Loungers
p'c and the Cnarman of the (igghng Squid
restauront groun He s o Trustee of Ch chester
Harbour Trust He has clsc held poastons as
Senior Independent Director of Guardion Media
Group ple and Non-Executve D rector of
Marston's PLC, Al3media Limited, Eator Gate
Gam'ng Uimited and Chickaster Festival Treatre

Nicho'as wos previously the Deputy Chie’
Executive Off car of the Dowid Lloyd Lessure
Group, Group Finonce Director of Notonal Car
Paiks ard Chief financiel Ofhcer of boh ke
Lourel Puo Company ong Freeserve PLC He s a
fellow ot the [asttute of Caarteren Accountants
Ergand end Wa es and hos o MA 1n econormics
from Camornidge Univers ty

N cha as ~oss'gn heant expenerce with
companies underge ~g noerching model ond

cu tural chonge

67
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Corporate governance report

UK Corporate Governance Code compliance

“he Group is cormm Hea to high staneards of corporate governance cnd
supports the prine ples laid down nthe UK Corporate Gevernarce Codoe
itsuea by the Firancial Renorting Counci! (FRC) 1 July 2018 (the Code)
This stotement, lagether wth the Comm ttee reparts, the Strotegic
Report, the Directors’ report and the sect.on 172(1) Statement, aescrbes
how the principies of the Code are applied and reparts on tre Company's
compliorce wth tme Code’s orovisions

The Board

Thraughout the fira-cial year, the Hoard of Directors {the Board, had s'x
members, comprisirg tre Nor-Executive Chairman, the Crief zxecutive
Of~cer, t~e Cnief Finance and Operations O cer and trree inoependent
Nan-Executive Directors John Gulliver was apperted os the Chief F narce
ond Cperations S5 cer on 1 Sctober 2220

All of the Directars bring strong judgemert to the Board s ce ioerations
Dunng tee yeor, the Boord hos been of sufficien size a-d diver sity that
tre ba ance of skils anc experierce was consicered to be appropriate
‘ortho requrements of the business

The hon-Execut've Directors, ncluding the Chairman are ¢ independent
of monogement ana free from any business ar other relationsk.p, rclucing
those relat caships a~o crcumstances referrec to nprov s an 1C of the
Code that could mater'a: y 'mpo'r the exercise of independe~tard
objective jusgemert “1e Graup consderea that Richera Last was
‘ndevendert an bus appontment os Crairman

Board Committees

Ihere are o qumber of stand ng Comm ttees of the Boerd to whreh varicus
matters are de.egatec Trey ol have forrmal Terms of Reference aporoves
by tne Board, wrich cre avarab e on the Group's wens te (yve group}
The Comrmitter reports are set out o~ poges /5 te 86

Role and responsikilities of the Board

“~e Boord hos gvera | respersibiity to sharekclders ‘o the nroper
ira-age~ e citrz Gegup 1 miet eighs imes our ng *he Anor cal year
Regular Board update cails were ¢ so ~e d dunirg the year

Attendance oy Directors ot the ‘crmal Boare mmeetings nela our ng tne
ararvalyvest - em oot below

B o

Richara Last (Cra ~man;

fackolos Booknouss &8
Sroror Bay 58
Jormzu ner 38
Stes~en Puckett bl
RAgre 300t LD 58

ace ot Cormn tree mzet

Comimittes renc

e Boord has o formal scheaule of matters reserved to it for decisen-
max ng, 'relud ng responsitn 4y ‘or the overol mancgement and
pertarmarce of the Greun Tois incluces development a~d approval of
its wirategy, long-term cbject ves ano commercial nihatves; approva’

of anruar aad internim results, ar~ua budgets, mater ¢l ccqu sitons

and disposdls, meotera agreements ond mojor conta commitments,
aooroval of treasury policies and ossessment of 15 going concerr posticn
Boara discussions are neld in an oper and collaporative atnosorere w ih
su“ cient hme allowec ‘or debate and challenge

Beard meeting agendas are agreeo 'n advence by the Choirmen,

the CEQ arc the Company Secretary Board members receive
zcporoprate documentshion in aovance of each Boord meefing, whieh
normelly includes a formal ogerdao, ¢ detalled report er current trocing
and ful popers or metters where the Board wil be requrred to mao<e o
decis'on or give aporoval A4 update from the Cha r of coch Booro
Cammittee 's provided ot Board meehrgs os apprepricte Boord papers
are delivered tnrough an electronic pletéorm. improving the effic ency of
its cemmun coliors ano reducing paper usage

There 1s an established pracecure for the prepaoratior and review, of lecst
annually, oy the Board of meawm-term plans and the arnual budget
Maonggement accaunts are arculatea to the Boacd or o monthly basiz
and ousines: serformance and ony sigrificant varances to budget or
reforecast are formel y rev ewed at scheculea Bocre meetings

During the year, tre Cra rman met wit~ the Nor-2xecutive D reciors
withcut the txecutive Directors present Tne har-kxcaut ve Directors also
metw theut the Charmar or bxecutive Drrectors present at a meeting
crared by tre Semor incapendent Directer

Board activities during the financial year

I~ add tion tc the regular reperts from the CEO, the Chief F nance ond
Ouersions Officer the Chief Talert D% cer arg t-e General Courcel

pius tre Comm tlee updates aro updotes or presertatiors rom other
sen or members of the leadership team on relevant motters, the main

1sars discs-ced and/or zopeaved during the hraraal yeos incluzen
& Anrua puoget ang forecost
e Acguaiton 0 Retal Meetue L {including finanicing)

e Firancal resuts ‘or the year erdec 30 Septemper 2020 a~a tne helf
year e~deq 31 Marcn 2027,

® Cortnuecimcagr o COYVID-i% ard response

e Foreegighteioron srorgo’tte boairess,

s Droriosupcoie

e T

cerrersnn:

® CSUILACE L TOT Unger € s
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e Environmental, sociol ano governance stratogy;

e cCxterral Board evoluatcon;

e Booro compasbon,

a Diractors’ duties under sect on 172 of the Compames Act 2006,
e Policy reviews ara aporovols,

s Matters reserved for the Board,

» Moder~ Sjavery Statement, cnd

a Risk appetite

The Directors

The biegraphical details of the Boord members are set cuf on poges 66
ana 67

All of the Directors have occunind, or cccupy, senior posit aas 1t UK
ana/or internoticraliisted compenies and bave substart al exoerience
in business. At a | Fmes ot least ba'f the Boord, excluding the Crairman,
has comprised indepencdent Non-Executive Directors

The Non-Exgcutive Directors were all cppeirted for anintial three-year
ferm, As set out n provision 18 of the Code, the Non-Executive Directors
(In common wath the Executive Directors) wil be supject to re-election
each year by shareholders at the Company's Annual General Mecting,
proviging the Board continues to be satisfier trat they remar
irdependent After nearly mine years of service, Stenhen Puckett will he
stepping dewr from the Board ot the 2022 Annua General Meeting ond
will not be standirg for re-electicn The remainic g five Zireciors will otter
theselves for re-elechion The Board beleves that the Sve Directors
contirue to be effective in toeir roles and believes tha” the Group ara

its sharehoicers should sunport ther re-elect on at the Annua General
Meeting scheduled for 3 February 2022

The Non-Executive D rectors do net perticipate .0 any of the Groun's
penson schemes orin any of the Group’s bonus, shore cphon or other
‘neentve schemes

The Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Tred~erant rales of the Zhairman ard Chief Executive Gfficer are
acknowledges Aresponsioility statement for eacn of those roles nas
oeenagrees and cacpled by the Boord.

Fer the Chawrman, that statement includes, arma g otte motters,
ensucing that the members of the Boord rece’ve accurate, tirmely cne
clear 1farmation, e sarng o safhasrt hime 1~ allowed for discussion
of complex ssucs and encouragirg actve engagement by oll membiers

of the Baord

Sor ke Cruet Executive Uimcer. trat statermentniclude: an g other

mstier.

‘he vevelapa erd of the shrotegic Lpoatng oloss thetieflec: fae
corporate oojectives and proor Yies estoblisaed by the Boord, monoging
tne day-to-aay echvit g5 o the Group end provicing leadersn o to

marageTent anc other enployees
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Senior Independent Non-Executive Director

Throughout he hranaal year, Stephen Puckett fulflles the role of

Semc- Independent Non-Exccutive Director Tre Serar Independent

Non-Executive Director's responsib’ it es include oct'ng as an intermed'ary

tor the other Directors ara ‘or skareholders, ana belng o sounairg ooard
for the Crairman "ne Senior Independent Director alsc held the role of
e~ ployee voice on the Board auring the finoncial year

Board effectiveness review

An externat independent evaluat'en of tne Board ard its Commitiens was
conducted over the period Aoril 202110 Jure 2027 by Kieron Maynihan,
Tnanaging pertner of Board Excellence, a compony wih no connechion to
Hywve cr any of its Directors. The partic part group for the evo uohon was
extended beyond the Boord to incluoe senior mencgemert and externg’
odvisers. “he comprehensive evaluation consistea of the comp'et-on of

a guestiornare followed by a confidential interview witn the Boord Char,
each Non-kxecutive Boord Drector, tne CEQ, the Compary Secretary,
ecch Executive Team member and key external advisers Mc Moynihan
unaerfock a deta’led review of the Boora gnd Committee materials for
the 12 months prior to tne evaluatien plus otner key documents such

as Committee "erms of Reference ard the Company's Rsk Register

He observed a Boord meeting and o number of Committee meetings.
Mr Moyninona then provided a draft evoluation report setting out fus
findings ana ks recommendations whick wos discussed and gccepted by
the Board In November 2021, the Board urcertock a detailed review of

the Board evolushan findings ana developed an action plon to implemern

Ifs recommendatiors as part of its strong commitment to drive sustairea
irmprovemrent :nits Boara effectiveness ard performance

These recormmendat 018 INncluceo

8 The recruiment of cdoitional non-executive d rectors with a focus on
grecter board ¢ versity,

» A mere formaisec inouchon precess for mew ooard directors

& Areview of the process for reviewing Group wide aolicies and other
cnt ol policies; and

» The expansion af the Group's E5C po 1cies, business cocphior
ana reporfing.

work on all of these areas s already urderwoy and we will reoart on
progress in next year's Anrual Report buither snformation on the
mplementat on of our ESG strategy con be found on pages 30 to 32

In Mr fAoyrian’s evalusthior, he o~ mended the cali ¢ efferveran
ond performonce of tre Hyve Boord team, the strong ‘aundohon bun 1

by the Board Crarr, tne strarg suppart ‘rom the Compeny Secretary and
the cormmitment of ol Boora members to continuously ‘mprove as nort of
the rext stage of evo uhior of the Hyve Boord tecm, He notea the stramg
lovels of cveraight, cna lerge ora debate volenced witn strang supoort
‘o the Ul ava the Frecwve loorn Grves the difficul cnour stances
preserted by the panoemic, he fe't thot the Board and the Executive
Tean ~aa demo~strates a strong resliience ond o ceep w ll ngress

and copacity 1o go the extro mi o to exce’ for shorehelders, amployoos

aro other stgseno oors
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Corporate governance report

Support and advice

Tre Board nas access to the acvice arg services o tre Company
Secretary, whao is rezponsible for ensurng thet ol Boaro orccedures
rave been compl ec with The Boare ras approved o nrocedure for al
Directors to toke irdepercent ega ard frhascal pro‘essiora’ advice ot
the Cempary's expense. If required to support the perfarmance of their
autes as Directers of the Group Mo such odvice was sought oy ary
Director auring the yecr

Training and development

Aninduchion programme s arrangeg ‘or row'y aope nted Directors,
wrich includes presentetons ontre busingsy, current strategy and
shoreholder expectabors Guidance s asa g ven or the auhes,
resporsbiities ard abnit'es ot a arector of a listec comipany and <ey

Beard po'icies and proceoures Business famniarisghon involves Drectors

v aiting exubitions ir morkets nowhich the Groun operates to gana
groater understandirg of tre Graup's act vihes and o meet sen or
managers througheut the pus ness

Evary Directer s encourcged G controue mis or har owr professional
develcpment through ottendarce at semners and oriefings

Conflicts of interest

“ne Company's arteles of assoriation, nl e wth the Compane: Act
2006, cliow tre Boord te author se potentia con?icts of aterest thet may
arise and ‘mpcse mits or cond ticns, s appropr.ate The Group hos
estob shed aprocoaure wrereby oy decis on of the Booro to outhor se
o confic ef mteresnis only effeciive sl il s agree d withou' e cor letee
Chrector(s) voting or without the r vetes beirg countea In maok ng such o
decision, as clways tre Directors Must act 1 a way they corsider 1 gocd
faitn vall pe most ikely to nromate tae success of the Group

“re Compeany nas a Conflicts ot inte ost Folicy which s

s ou for all
ermployees acress the Group the act ¢os that are exnected from them

i~ the e.en that a porential corfl e o interes anse:s

Shareholder relations

Detal s of smarerorder ergagement can pe ‘ound in the section 7217}
stgrernent cr noges 56 to 58 Atracirg uncote wil oo releases ontre
day of the Anrucl Genere Meet na which s scheoou oo *o fake p ace on
3 February 2022 Prev ous frad no upccotes end otrer onnourcements

Qroooerst re soLes Can e found o the Groun s wenste at brve groun

Strategic report and principal risks and uncertainties
Tne Strategic report set out or nages 1to 62 detans the fnancial
sorformance of the Grouo The key nisks and uncertairt es tre Group
dentifes ard menitors are laid cut or oages 36 fo 39

Our commitment to compliance

Hyve s comm ttea fo puilding ard manta ring o cu ture of comp iance
ond effect ;e governence The Groop's Cade of Conauct clearly set outs
whol s expected from every persor workirg for, and with, cur pusimesses,
arywnere inthe world The Code of Conduct, ke most of cur oolic es,

15 prov ded in several larguages on the Compary's 'ntrarct

Underpinaing the Code of Canductis o streng g abal peicy fremewerk

covering ereas such as ant -brisery o~d corrupt on, g ‘s anc enterfairment,

whistleblow ng ama moderr s avery Ine fromewors< wos prencred in ine
witn infernatieal best practice ond the recommendotons of regulators,
internationa arg goverrmert bod es suck as the UK Mimstry of Jushce

Whistleblowing arrangements

The Grous adopted o new Whistleb'owing Policy ir FY20 The Policy was
revicwen during the hrarasl year to er<are that it remaic s fitfor purpesr
Since 2019, te Grous hes prav aec o fu ly ‘ndepencent wrist eblowing
service The appointment of an ndeperdert partner to merege afu y
confidential wh stleblowing serv.ce ollows far onyone wo works witn
Hyve to reise therr cancerns, cnorymous y * necessory, n their loce
language - recogrising the g abel reack of cur business and ts operatons
The Poicy sets out tre charre s ava lao e 10 any persor who works win
Hyve to ra se concerns about man-compronce wth our poicies ana llega’
or unet~ical behavour r our bus ness or supply chars

Anti-corruption policies

Hyve takes o rero-tfoierance postion 'nre atio™ to corrupt 6o, wherever
ane i wastever ‘arm that moy be encountered The Pocy opo esto ol
ird vidua' ema ayzes, ogerts, spersors. rtermed ares consultants ard

any otrer peco e or hodies assoc-oted w i~ Hyve or cny of aur subsidiar o

and emp oyees ano it sets cut fne rrespors bl es 2 terms of charity
doenatiors ara sponsorshios, focnitating payments, gifts and hasp ta ty
Toe preventen, detect.en and reacrt ng of ornbery ard corrupticr s the
resporsn ity of al of cur employees Awcrenese o thie Fo oy s assessen
a- part cf the nte rol cucit process

Cur G4y ang Intetoment Poloy recuices pus ngss ur tsfomo nfo ~ o
St and noso oty reg ster wrich recores ~format oo suce 03 fre memie oF

trerece warciime g ftor moigp ta ty ana tre eshmated va we o tnc
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Human rights

We are cammitted to treating all our employees world-w de vtk digrity
and respert We recogrise “hat we opcrate in mary diterent miorkats wath
diverse cultures a~d we respect those differer.ces while being corrmitted
tr snpperhing and uoholding the prov’zion of bosic humon rgats ond
elimirat ng ciscrim.ratory prechices We respect the dignity of a
Indwiaunls and seek fo erable a | of our empioyees to perform ard
deliver treir best work by gcceping ono valung different talents

exper erces and backgrourds

Hyve's Humon Rights Poucy emphasises our commitment to oasic hbuman
rights in the way we do business We suppert our emp ayees ncreating
and maintaining a werk culture whick prokibits forced lopour and
ensures the hurnen rights of all emoloyeas This Pol'cy also provides for
mainta’ring an envirenment that fosters open ona direct communicohon
between managers of d e~ ployees os the most e~ective woy 1o work
together for the resolution of differences, ana respects emcloyees nghts
ta participote 'nco lective bargaining v a umians should they sa choose

Employees are expectes to rencrt ary behaviour that viclates this Policy

Medern slavery

Hyve recognises that buman rights viclations, .ncluding forced labour
and tafficking, can occur inall sectors and courtries As a responsicle
busingss, we cre ccmmitted to playing our part to help eliminate such

violotions

Our Mogern Siavery Statement detarls the steps we take to help
prevent ony ircidence of modern s avery, both mour own nusiness
and in our supply chamns [tis avalioble ot the following address
hyve group/Responsivility/Modern-Slavery-Statement.

Tre Group bas an anti-Slavery ana Humen Trathcking Pol oy in olace
“he Policy gives workers, cortractors and other business partners

gu dance ¢n Modern Slavery erd clearly states the measures in ploce
to tacxle Modern Slavery 1n1ts bus ness and supply cha'ns, Hyve also
undertook an assessment of 1s currert r sks in this areo bosed upon
the indirgs of the Global Slavery Index report

Annual Repert and Accounts 2021 Hyve Group ple
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Directors’ report

The Directors move pleasurc in submitt'ng their repert and the auaited
fAnancial statemenrts *or the year ended 30 Seolember 2021

Principal activities and review of the business

Tre or naina’ activities of the Group comprise the orga~saton of physical
a~d anling trade exh’bit'ons and conferences

The main subsimary and associate underta<ings weick affect the profits
ar net assets of the Group ir the year are !'sted 17 note S to the financial
stoterments of the Company and note 18 to the financia’ statements of
the Group

Detai's of tne Group's performonce dur ng the yeor ard expected future
developmenrts are containedin the Chief Executive Officer ¢ statement on
cages 14 12717 the Cef Finence ar d Gperahons Gfacer s statement an
pcges 40 to 49 arg tre Divis onal trad.ng summaries on peges 50 to 53
Detar's of tre Group's Risk Cemmttee report are on page 79 ard the
principal ris<s ond uncertaint’'es cre or pages 36 tc 39

Financials risk management

Deails of the Group's fnanaiol risk managemeant = giver 1Innote
conso idated accounts.

Results and dividends

Tne qudited accounts for the yeor endea 30 September 202° are set out
on pages 1'6to 173 The Group loss ‘or the year, after taxaton, was £20 0m
(2020, oss of £302 7m)

As stated in the inter' m resu ts announceme~t, which was issued on "8 Moy
2021, the suspension of d vidends (announced in May 2020} rema.ns in
pace onc wl he keptunaer rev ew

Capital structure

Details of the Comoary’s issued snare cop tal ano micvements curing fne
year are shown r note 25 fo the firanc.al statements of the Company

the Compony ~as ore ¢ ass of oraimary shares whicn carry ne rghtto
hxec income Each snars carr es the rightto are vole ot gereral meeatings
of the Company.

There are rc spechcrestrict ors or the size of o ho aing or or the transfer
of shores, wh cn cre both gevernec by the genera arov sons of the
arficles of ossociat o~ ard oreva ' rg leg s atien “he G recters are net
cware o’ any agreements petween ho ders cf tre Comocny's shares that
may resud rrestact ons ontee trensfer of secur tes or o voting - oot

hc person nos oy speca rghts of cortre over tre Comcary s shoe
ceota' cadalsaares cre fu yoac

Deta s of emip'ayes snare schomes cra set cut ~ ~ots i8 10 the “nanac ¢

stotemerts of the Croun ~re Trustee of the Hyve Group Emiployees Sncre

Trugt s nctpermtted 1o vote cnany wrvested shares be o the Trpet

E3TUEL v

ros Pan
Treresrear o e o sgreermarte ot cpke eftel gler wote i gte
usor acncrge cfconta ofthe Compory sack g fommers o conbracts,

saoxfoe fyogreemonts pronedty Ingse SorQrge™ME T grn evig oyee

share oans Nore of these are considered te be signficant 'nterms of therr
nkey impact or the bus'ress of the Groun as a whe e burthermore, tre
Directers are net aware of ary agreements between the Compary and

its Tirecars or errployees that pravide compensatior ‘or loss of office or
emoloyment that occurs because of o takecver bid

Articles of association

The Compary's articles of assec at on maoy oe omended by a special
resolubic~ ot o generol meet-ng of the shareholders

The Directors
The Directors who served tnroughout the year were as fo lows

txecutive Directors
& tark Shashoue

# John Gulliver

Non-Executve Qirectors
# Richard Lest - Choirman

® Stepher Puckett
* M cnolas Backhouse
® Shoron Bovioy

The cicgrasnica! deta s of the Board of Directors {os at the dote of sigr ng
t~1s repo-t) are set out o1 pages 66 anc 67

Ir accorgance wtnits ort'cles of associator ard " comoha~ce wit~ the
Companies Act, tae Compary has grortea a quo ify ng third-party
incemnity tc each Direcror Cirectors and o“hcers'irsuronce cover s alio
orovided by the Company, 'nl'ne with normal market proct ce, for the
cenefit of Directcrs .nrespect of ¢ cims aris ng 11 tae performance of
their dutes

Company Directors’ shareholdings
“he ihrectars who held ofhce =+ 30 Seplamber 2027 had tne frllowing
irferests (incuding family interests} 10 the creirary shares of the Cempary

Numkber of Hamber of

shares os at
30 September

e of Dre 2021

Executive Directors

"Aare Shashoua 637,594 609,277
Jon Gu - ver 59,735 [
Ancrew Beacn - 52000
—P;I;—r;.—rExecuﬁve Directors T -
Rickard Last 195,000 95000
lvenn ac Barenause 16,250 TG 2570
Zrarcn Ba 9,205 G ik
Stecher Puceart 8,937 2.927
Tee Directors G oMo Syees oo potentho ceretcanes. T ove oo ot -

= oyees Share Trust o

G

30 Secremer 2027 TreHy e Grouo Tvin oees Snare Ut e 0 77

org rory srares of 30
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In e w th the Company's Remunerahion Pelicy, a third of the value
receivec urder the Greuo’s Borus Plan by the Executive Directary s
deferred into shores, ne'd in the Hyve Group Emuoloyees Share Trust
No banus was para dunng the financal yeor

Company’s shareholders

At 29 hovember 2021, the Company haa bee~ nohifiea under Rule 5 of the
Financa Conduct Author'ty's Disclasure ane Trarsparency Rules of tre
follewing intecests i~ 1fs ordinary shares

Mumber of Fescentage

fwarme of halder shores held
Strategic Va ue Partners 47,380,421 16 25%
RWC Partrners 31,367,270 10 765
Jupiter Asset Manogerment 20,500,235 7035
He. kon Investments 13,266,642 5 00%
Aperforth Partrers 14,316,807 497
Armiral Gestion 13,705,662 4 70%
wellingtor Moragement 12,650,660 4 34%
BlackRock 10,924,861 3.74%
Bestinver Asset Monagement 10,256,870 3.52%

T This helding relales v a CfD Ralding anty

Authority to purchase the Company’s shares

At the Annual General Meetirg on 21 jenuary 2021, sharehclders
authorised the Company te make ere or more market purchases of

up to 26,512,817 of the Compeny's oreinary shares to be helo i treasury
at o price between 10 Op (exc.usive of expenses) ara 106% cf tne average
clasing middle market price of a share ‘or the “ve ousiness days
immediately preceding the date an which the shore s purchased

No purchases were made durirg the year ond the Directors progose to
renew this autnority ot the 2022 Annual General Meeting.

Charitakle and political donations

The Group muade £27,309 of charitoble donotions (20207 £10.400) curirg
the yeor No politicai dorat ons were made (2020 r 3

Employees

“he Group's people strategy i1 to attract, develop and retain professional,
motivated ond tolented emp oyees ond crable them o achieve br lant
results, The Greup cascades the key pricnit es ond busiress chjoctives
trroughout the organisatior, ersuring that employees understano ~ow
tner personal contbuticn supperts the Greup's success The Grous links
ncentives to de woning on objectives, oad the Remunerohior Pol oy s
designed to re rforce this cpproech The Group pleces great mportance
on tne development of its necp'e ta support the pusness 'n meet rg s
arjectves Thegeflected e ount e Poiformior ce Forage o
Framewark a~d the resulting learr nig and develcomert it atives

It stne Groun's po oy to consider fuly apphcot ons for emproyment from

a~yore qua ifea to apply, regaroless of their status, d sobiity, age gerder,

qger dooda b cation, sexuol ornerration of behot Toreflact this nchey,

Of Lt Jre i for career g csunnardoeveloon g are offerea on

mestand regoraless of the factors noted onove 1 the evert of o nemper
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of stoft becarring disaples, every effort woulo ke made to ensure their
contnued empioyment and progression in the Group ond +15 Group poicy
that tra ming, career development and promotion of disabled employees
match tnat of other employees as far as possible

FMore informat on on cur employees car be found nthe 'Our poop & ano
va ues’ section on pages 34 and 35 ana n the section “72(7] stotement on
pages b6 1o £9Y

Supplier payment policy

The Campanys pa’icy, which s aiso applied to the Group, 15 to agree
payment terms with supp 1ers wher enter ng nto each franscction to
ensure tat suppliers are made oweore of the terrms of payment ard
obrde by the terms of payment. Hyve Group olc has ro frade cred'tors
Trade cred tors of the Group (consolicated) at 30 September 2027 were
equvalent to 10 coys (2020: 18 days) ourchases, based on the average
do'ly amount invoicea by suppliers during the year

Greenhouse gas emissions

"he Group recegnises taat our gloogl sperotions have an ervironmental
mpact ond we are committed ta monitering and reducing our greerhouse
gas (GHO) emissons year-on-yeor We are clso awaore of our reporting
oblgators uncer the Companies (Directors' Repert) and Lmited Lability
Portnerships (Energy and Carbon Reporfl Regulehons 2018 As suce, thig
year we have contnued to publ'sh our energy ond carben reparting to
meet these rew reauirements and increase the transparency w th which
we communicate obout our environmental impoct to our stakeholders

Ir the oerioa coverea by the report, the Group has undertacer the
fal owing em'ssions and enargy reduct an imhatives

& Irrplorentation of end-of-day crocedure - altt wugn cetlain o'fices ars
managed by the londlord, ond hence employees do not have control
over the electricity consumption, emp oyees are nformed to ensure that
sauprment s tunes off at the erd of the working day.

& Move to orline operctions - while emo ayees are working from home,
work actvities have moved anline fc reduce the need for travel

Ths year we nave colculoted our ervironmenta  mpact coross the
reauired scope 1, 2 and 3 emission sources GQur emissons are presented
on botha ecation ard market basis. Or alocaton bas:s, our emissiors
are 1,0591C0 e, which 1z ar average ‘mpact of "191CO e per ful -time
couvalent (FTE} and ar increase of 34% from 2019 to 2020 Our moarket
bes’s emissions are 1104 1C0O e, whica 's arincrease of 0 4% ‘rom 2015 to
7020 We have colcu atea em'ssion smiens.ty mefrics or a por k' E bas’s,
whch we will menitor to track performence nour subsenucnt

ery ronmental disclosures

The met~odology used 1o calculate the GHG em™esions 1 r occerdance
wit tme requremants of the ‘cllawing stancords

® \Wor o Heosousces Inst tute Greerhouse Gas Protocol [revised vers o

& Defro's E-vrormenta Reperhing Guidelines Inducing Streamil red
Erergy anc Carnon Report ng reau ermerts (March 20190, and
& Uk ofice ereaons nove oo caltalateo corg sl DV RA GO T T RA

2020 & 12A 2019 ssug of tre conversen factor reponitery
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Directors’ report

Followirg an operatioral corrrol approach “o sefirsg our orga- saliong
boundary, our calculated GHG emissians ‘rom ous ness actwt es ‘a'lwith n
the reporting perioc of Moy 2020 tc Apn 2021 and use the regorting
per'oa of May 20°9 te Apr:l 2020 for comparisen

Energy and corbon disclosures for reperting year'

Doetwal e oas ane HOC &

CQ_emissons per FTE, botr globally a~d1n the UK, hove increased
inthe yeor as a result of a reducticn in the Croup’s avercge heaacaunt
wrnich hes not resulted in @ corresoording reductior 'n the Group's
CO_ermss ans

UK emssions 1CC @)

Ernzsions scurce 2019-20520 2020-2021 WOTIaNCE £ING LU 2020-2021 var an. e
Seope Natural gas 42 / +E9% 0 0 0%

Company and leasec cors 195 g0 -54% 0 0 0°.

Refrigerant 2/ 33 +22% 4 31 +675%
Total scope 1 264 194 -27% 4 31 +675%
Scope 2 Eectricity 707 778 +10% 146 27 -13%
Total scope 2 B 707 778 +10% 146 127 -13%
Scape 3 E'ectric’ty tfransmiss.on and distribut'on 77 86 + 2% 12 i -8%
Total scope 3 77 88 +12% 12 1 -8%
Total (market based) 1,100 1,104 0.4% 216 215 -0.5%
Total {location based) 1,048 1,059 +1% 162 170 +5%
Total energy usage (kWh)? 2,650,610 2,537,455 -4% 572,560 546,585 -5%
Narmaliser IO eper FTE 0.80 119 +34% 043 067 +57%
1 Thiswekspardoly bocea ce b e cowry-sp2afic Co emiss an -acers asveloped by e Interonicna Erergy Agenuy = OFE DAIEA 2008 nul e resu™ing acrk Fas bees prepared by

{1y sa Crovp ple 33 doss nat recessanby reflact *ha vigws of the Irternaianal Trargy Agency

J Energ, repochag rotudes B from soope 1 scope 2 and scope S emplog e cars an',

~required o, the 3L regu oiicn!

3 201%-20:0 erestio- - restated toinclude tne moact of -he Grour s New rore of -3 f-Fowng ihe ac aasmee of Shops sk n Decemear 2085

Annual General Meeting

The notice cervering tne Annual General Meact ng te be neld ot 09 00ar
o~ 3 Fehruary 2027 s conto nec in o crrcular sent to shoreholders ¢t the

same t'me os tris report

Auditor

BGO LLP was appo nted os the Group's new aua tor at tre Company's
Anrua Genero Meeting held on 23 Jonuary 2020 The Committee bel eves
trat BDO LLP has a stramag team wath the sk s a~d exper'ence to prov de
ngour and charlenge 1~ the cudit A reso uhion to reapooimt BOO LLP os

tre Company's oudtor arc to autronse the Drectors to cetermine the
aud for s remur-erchon wi | be crooosed at t~e Cempany s An~ua General
Mesting n kebruary 2022

Post-balance sheet events

Sunseguerttc tre yearerc tre Group bos securea o "Z-montn exters o
tots evercge crai~terect cover coveront wavers, Lo to oad nclud rg
tAagree 2024 A ™ cimam i aaid ty test whereby tre Groan muast ersure

1

thot the oguregate of cas~ oro unerav - coot foc il cs < qat less fhar

f40m ot tre cre ef eccs merts w berop

oo trrouge to tre oro o
the voo ver ogr oC

Grouo como etee the o spoae of B2

Qe "2 hevermoer 2027 0H

sharehcld ng » ABRC sx-~bit oow &t Cenferences Put o trecoerat ng

comotry for s partioic of exs ot e v imm e nciuning tee AUz

construct o everts Tre Grgun bas rece sed ushart ooy cesnt on

L1060 nrespectottre cenoen

Grocunc

7T Portrerey

[ sSten |72 Groun,

pidcsl =

‘or mta come oerghon O annrox Mo “ecctmatcaton

x|

I~ order to ‘und the .rital cons deration for the acquisiton, on "8
Neovermber 2021 the Group comp etea a placement with imstitutional
investars of 13,818,698 ~ew oramary shores to ra.se gross procesds of
£14 8m, ir adoit.on to o direct supscriptior of 12,694.102 new crd nary
shares oy nvestment funds managed by Strotegic Voive Partrners, LLC
(SVPGlobaoly te ra se gross proceeds of £14 3m

Fair, balanced and understandable staterent

cach of tre Directors carsicers that the annual resort toke~ as e w-c o
15 *oir, be anceg and unaerstancoble erd provdes the informatien
necessary for shareholdess te assess the Compary's parformonce,
business moocel ana strategy

Directors’ statement as to disclosure of informaticn
to auditors

cac~ D recter of tne Compony at the aote wher tr s repcrt was aaproved

contirmg

# Scforce ne’she s aware, there < e re evart cucit informat an (o
aef~ed oy the Domaomias Act 20065 o woick tre Company's cua tars
arC Ut CwWare oo

e e she noctosen o the steos thet ressne cuartrc nose foker oc

o Drrectos te mace b rge™ nerge

cnore s 0y e esoot Cud

Aot e arato esteo sF rthattee Comnaey s cud tore are

tamt -

at e

roe oot Femgt oo SEcttre Corpon e

Aot 2006

5Q 0T TOOOINCCrLe W LELT

Jehn Gulliver
Chief Finarce and Cperahors G cer

TR Derember 2l
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Audit Committee report

Commilter members feeting allerdarce
Nicholas Backhouse, Chair 6/6
Sharon Bay'ay 6/6
Stepnen Puckott B8/6

The Audit Comrmttee (the Commttee) was n plece throughout the
thrancial year andis chared by Nicholzs Bas<house The Board consicers
that Nicholos Fas the appropriate ficgrriol expertise, as requirea by
Provisicr 24 of the UK Corporate Covernonce Code (the Cooe), os he s

o (- arfered Accourtant has held executive roles in Ainancial positicns

in ather cemponies and hos chaired cther listec companies’ Audit
Committees All mempers of the Committee aore independert Non-
Executwe Directors and they ore considerec to nrovide ¢ wide range of
internstioral, finanaal and commeroal expertise recessary 1o fulhl t-e
Comm'ttee’'s duties. Maembers of the Committee are appaimted by the
Boare, on the recommendation of the Nomimation Come ttee in
consu'tatian with the Choirrman of the Audit Committee, for an inhal perncd
of three years, which can then be followed by on addiicral two further
three-year per ods All Committee members o'ayed an active roleir all
Committee meelings held throughout tne Yoo,

All members of the Board hove an open invitat ar to attend Conrmittee
mectings Representaotives of BDO, tae external cuditer, attend ecch
meenrg alang will che T irance and Uperabor s Cfce the Group
Fingncs Direclor and *he Campany Secrerary. onless there s a conflict of
nterest Otrer relevont people fraom the business are a so mweted to aleno
certair meetings ar sarts of meet hgs to provide a deeper level of Insiget
fe certan key ssues and cevelopmerts. “he Charman of the Committes
repcrts 1o the Board, as part of o senarate agenda iter, on the activ by of
the Committen cno motters of cotirulor rerevarce to the Booro o the
corauct o b rwortk

Annual Repad ara Accounts 2021 Hyve Group ple

The Chairmar of the Committee has also hele meetings witn the Chairmaon
of the Board, Ire Chiel Lxecurive Qfficen, the Chicl Finaace ard Uperationr-
““theer and other members of management and the pror ce team durirg
the yeor to gentity matters which reaurre mean'ngful discuss’an at
Corrattes meetings He a so meets the exterral oudit partner pr vately

to d scuss ary matters they wish to raise or concerns they have

Terms of Reference

Tae Aud't Committes's “erms of Reference are ava'lab e on the Grouo's
webs te (Pyve group) ar can be obta.neo from tne Company Secretary
The “erms of Reference are reviewed annua ly a~d presented te the Boaro

for approva

Effectiveness of the Committee

An externa! evaluation of the Committee wos underta<en cunirg the
inancial yeor by Qeran Meyniban of oord bxcellence M Moyrinan fel
‘hai fhe Cormifee was worki g very well ornd was effectively discnerging
e key rosponsibiliies He nated thet the Chair was ~ighly eftertive and
praisea his commitment to o strong consistent ievel of ngorous challenge,
debote and cversight He observea that tnere was a strong working
relationshic metweaen the Committee ano both the Hyve hnance team
ard the externol cuditor The Non-Exgcutive Directors ontne Commattee
exhibited a comprehenzive level of Independent oversght and
indepencence of mind His overall assessment of baw the Comm ttee nad
deatwith the COVID-19 challenges interms of cssessment of alternative
performance measures, gisclosures, regu atory requrrements, going
concern and viaoiity statement was that the hoad 1ng of these complex
areas was exempary fore deta’ls abeut the evaluaton ofthe Beard end
the Committees can be founc or poge 62

The role and responsibilities of the Committee

The Beard Committee mects at least taree tmes a year ana as and when
requirea The Commitice 1s responsibie for monitarning the infegr ty of the
~rancial stotements of the Company and any formal onrource~ e g
relating 1o the Jampar y < inoncial performance, and for proviaing

e“ec ive corporale governance over the aporepriateress of the Groug's
it-ee and thi-
cncures effective and sutficier t coverage of Anarcal reporng nisks witkir

fnancial repoarting The Cor mittee works with t-e Ritk Comm

the Group's risk manoge-mert processes.

Due to travel restrictiors, the indwvidual members o the Commuttee ~ave
ceen urable 1o visr tne Grouc's oftces ara ever "~ "o ke exterd thg ey
wou G n tormal crcumstarces, but have cotrued to bo o meetngs witn
Tronie manageniert end soror members of the fimance teo 1o follow

ponary matte s pertaruca o the Soun” overseas ofices wertifed oy
o'ther external or interral cuaits
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Audit Committee report

Activities during the financial year
Six meetings were held during tne year, witn the failow rg areas of focus

Meeting Key areas of focus

B Qctober 2020 Key Jucgemerts ana an carly view of <ey oud t
matters nadvarce o' the year e~ guart

CoOMMEncing

18 Nevermber 2020 Frogres: of the year-eno cusr ard the findings
up to the aate of the meet'ng

25 Nevember 2020 The review of the Group's fu'l vecr resu'ts for
tre yoor ended 30 September 2020, orior to the
Boara’s approve end en update on the progress
of the year-eno gudit ara tindings "o dote

30 Nevember 2020 Tre externcl audi’or's inol year-enc repor:

Titay 2027 The rev ew of the Group's 1nfer m results for the
oeriod ended 31 March 2021 end the externan
cuditor's Interm review report

3 June 2021 The external quditar's scope and plan for the
auart of the year endea 30 September 2021

Four Comrmittee meetirgs were he.d subsaquent to the nenod end cra

focused on

Maeting Key areqs of focus

19 Ccetober 2027 Tre final exterral ausit plan for the year endeo
30 September 2021 and on ear y view of key
Judgements a~d audit metters ir advarce of the
year end cudit commencirg

& Movermnber 2021 The review of the RC's Aud t Quolity Reviow on
the exterta audit of the Group for toe yoor erced
3C Septemnber 2023 ard how tne externa’ aud tor
clarned to cadress the findings '~ the audr:
approoch far the year erged 30 Sentember 2021

24 hovember 2021 Frogies: of fne yeor-2ro ouni and the Frgings
up to the dote of the meeting

1 December 2021 The review of fne Group's ful vear results for
the yeor ended 30 September 2021 or or to tne
Boara's cpprovo' ond cn update on the progress
of the ygar-2~a guait ana firdirgs "o gote end the
external auaitor's fnal yeoar-end 1opot

During tre yeor ora subsecuc-tie tme per od ena pr ortc the cpprova o
the ful year results for the yecor eroec 30 Sentemcer 2021, - ceatorto

the araas hgblgoted cneve, the Committee ‘cousad an tra ‘e o ng

* Ater~alce cerformicnce meoiur

crsunItg ot conresr ole oo droe

betwen~ireoomrrrre g e

dotutery ond cojustag resu ty

* o preczental oo cfagust ~g temie

* Acoo st oraccount g orescect ST toe Rete ' Moetup acan st o

& Lecouttrotbeotvent o 0 anCiT L Co D STEC

® T oo ot ee, e o

& The efectiveress o' the Groap's irtainol corbiols and risk monage~ one,

¢ [nterral audit, inc uzing a raview at the scape, imetable ond reparts
iwsued aur g the year,

# The progiess mage by management i aaoreszing N-dingsz frem the

nterrcl and externcl auditors as o result of their respect ve cuat work,

* The 'etter recaved frem the F rarc a. Report ng Counailin respect of the
Grour's Arnual Report and Accounts for the yeor erdean 30 Seotember
2029, irclud ng management’s responses to tn s letter; and

Ar gsseasment of the oppropriateress of the going concern andg leng-
term viaks Ity stotements

i ossesng the appropriateness of the fir ar cial staterrents, the
Cemmitter concertrated on the xey matters summonsea below Trose
were d scusscd witn the exterral auditor, BDC, throughout the year and
at the Committer meetngs as we'l as during the year e~d audit

Impairment of goodwill, intangible assets and investments
"n g invelves meosuring the carrying value of goodwil intangio'e ossets
and 1nvestments agairst the vae 17 use of eacn of the cash-generating
urits (CGUs) ond imvestments There cre o aumber of Juagements ano
catmates to cors.aer 10 the va'ue 'nuse calculatiors, or napa ly regerd ng
tre forecost casn flows t-e discoont rares Lzed ana te long-re m grow's

rates opelicd orctast cosh -oves ere bosed wnothe Yoord-approved

budget and three-year plar Discour- -ates are selected torefect tro sk

Audit Committee respansibitities include:

Rewiewing the integr -y of Fe Group ¢ "nanisl statements
and recorhng to ard cdvisng the Board an whetrer the
Camm ftee belioves the Arrual Repert ano Accounts, token ay
a wnole, s far, bolenced and uraerstaracble ond arov ces
the irformat on necessary for sharebo aers fo assess the
Groap’s performonce, pusmess rmode and strategy

fAcntar~g conplance wis relevart stotutery oo st rg

requ remients,

* Roecortrgtetre Booro 0 tne cporsor clerest of tro
acccurtrg 5o cescordoractces

o Overrceagthereghorsm oot treex'ernc custer, oo, s g

‘s Bonte on fhe ctor ttment of ioe extero s Suo for

Lo tiione one ous ferigna gsioss jaloRuat_]

e ala s
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adjusted cost of copital ‘or -6 respective terntorie: Growth rotes reflect
raanagement’s view of the ong-term forecast rates of growth using
third-paorty sources such as the Infernational Monetary Furd's Wor d
Economic Outlook reports Impairment charges of F19m were recognised
curing tre year nrespect of acquired intang ble assefs within the UK CGLU,
chiefly a: o result of changes to forecast trading due 1o t-e conhnuing
impact of COVID-19 an aur U<-refa | events, as wel as the cllocaton

of codihona centra: costs following rev.sions to the cost alocation
metnodelogy The Commitiee agreed on the imoa rments recogn sed

Acquisition accounting

Folowing the acguizihior of Retoii Meetup in the year, trere s o level of
judgement involved .nidentitying and valuing the assets acquired in the
business combnatcn, The Committec assesses the processes used in the
iderrificomion and valuation of acg ared asset: and habilines including -he
reasonableness of any assumntiors used The Committee olso assesses
the purchase price allocation of corsiderat'on and the allocation between
goodwill and identhed intangible assets. The Committee reviewed
manogement's papers, the acquisit an account.ng calculat.ons and
underly'ng estimates ano assumphons for the Retall Meetuo acquisiticn
The Cemmittee agreed that the assets ana Yab’lities were recognised of
tneir fair value at acquistion,

Alternative performance measures

Consideration bas beer g ven tc wnether there is an aopropriate ba'arce
between the prominence given fo statutary resu ts and alternative
performance measures i the annua. report Separately oisclosed items
of income and expenciture have been presented as adjusting itemns to
aliow a set of heodl ne results ta be presented in addit'an to statutary
results Toe Financial Report rg Courc:| (FRC) themat'c reviews and

the Europeen Secunties and Marxets Authorty (ESMA) Guidelines on
Aternative Performarce Meosures have been used when rorsidering
the appropricteress of the adsting items, the alternat ve performance
measures preserted and the disclosures in the annual report The
Committes s satisfed that the disclosures imcluded i~ the arnual repaort
are forond belonced

Going concern and viability

The Committee hos reviewed the Group's assessment of going concern
cver o period greater than 12 rmontas In assess.ng the Groun's go'ng
corcern statur o= well asits viabilry over o fve-yeor period, the

atogarn the

Cormmatlor has coradereo the Zreup's Yroecal poaiaes o

Group's Fve Year Plan {tne Budget for the year end.ng 30 September 2022
plhis tores gess o the -u soauent fo s Anancicl yearsh recently approved
by the Boarg In the context of the currert cha lenging envircnment as o
result o COVID-19, a nurmber of alternative scenaros have alsc been
cens dered, includ rg the modelling of aoditional dewnside sens tv tes
Trece were paced onhe potecha’ fnancaliroee of furber evert
cancstlat o oven the cormng mortrs ond the soaoir o Nk gsecciored
wth the COVID-19 panacm ¢ on the trading envirgamert, rcuding the
rmpoct of nterrahicral trovel restochiens The Committee bos conc uded
thet tne astumptons corsdered are anpropr ate whor assess ngine
Group’s gaing corcern wletus ardlorger-term viabin by~ he Commitien
has oiss roviewed the Grouo's reve se stress test noa further cow= s ac

Annual Report and Accounts 2027 Hyve Grouwp ple

scerar o fnadditan, the Committee nas reviewed this with management
ard s sohsficd that this iz appropriate in supporing the Group s o goira
corcern The Comrittes received regulor updates on the steos taker

by maragement priar 1o the going concern assessment being made,
ricluding the extensior of irancial covenart wawvers from the Group s
lending panks up to and including March 2023

Internal control and risk management

The Interral Auait function s outsourced to Pr cewaterrouseCocoers
(PwC), wno provide indesendert assurance througn olonned audit

act vities ¢n o rotetional basis, assessing whether the confrals ir place are
adequately des gned ard implemented and mak rg recommendat ons
for improvement

The Committee annually approves the scnedule and scooe af upcamirg

imternal audit reviews over a twe-year pericd, ensuring that tne planned

wark covers the Group's key risk areas, prrmary markets ard certain key

firancial controls Dunng t-e year, Pw perfor-ed inlemcl audis reviews
at ‘e Group's afices in London, Shanghan New York and Moscow

The reports, irding: and recommendations are presented for -he
Commettee’s review at the meetings belo throughout the yeor The
Committee reviews the reports ond considers progress agoinst the
recommendatiors. The Group operates acrcss a numoer of ferrilories
a' d the role of infernol auait and the follow-up process on the indings
‘ninternal reports are important parts of the Group's overall control

environment

The etfechveness of the internal cantrol proces: 15 assessed througnout the
year through aiscussions with F ead o ce, Jocal marogement teame ond
ofhers involved In tne process

Ihe Gro.p maintaine an inter~al controls matnx, dertfying all frcnaal,
aperat onal ard comp'iance controls in o ace across the Group The matr x
was updatedn tre yeat to ensu-e that all key cor srols identifies that ware
eihier 1n the scope of Pw(C’s imlerral oudrt reviews or were sufficiently
reviewed oy Group maragement

The fndings of internal audit ond Group management reviews were
preserted to the Committee who found the current interna controls
pracess to be operating effectively

The Group's r sk management process s covered in deta’lin the report
af the R'sk Comm’ttee on nage 79.

Letter from the Financial Reporting Council

During the year, the Group receven ¢ lotter rem tne FRC regord ng o
review corriea out nrespect of the Group's Annua! Repert ard Accourts
for the year erdea 30 Septemnber 2020 The letter raised o number of

q et e do help the TRO O derstans - ow be Croan nod catishad 10
relevart report ng reaurrements e principol creas where the FRC

requested turtaer miormcotior were nrosoect of

®» Assets a~d obilties recogn sed os aresut o’ tre acgu st on o’ Sheptale

in Deceraer 2020, cna

& e recoveranlty of irtercomne ay cecevenles and mvestmente

TEUDS QIariEs
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Fanagement's respenses to the FRC were reviewca ano approved by

the Committee Sumsequent to @ scuss 005 vath the FRC and the Group's
external auditor, the right o use asset recogn’sed or acau s hor of
Shoptalk has beer restated. resu hing in a resteterment of the orior pericd
campatatve res.lts az disclosedin note 110 tne nnancol statements

The Camrmittee i= satishad that this nas been correctly adare swed ard
resolved A lotner matters raised by the FRC were resolved without further
action be ng reaurrea of management.

External audit

The effectiveness of tne 2020 exterral cudit process. in BEJ's ~rstyear as
externa auditer, wos formally assessed by tne Committee at the peginang
of 2021 Fecdbac< was sought from vaer cus perticipants 10 the process
(Auait Comntttee members Execaive Directars raembers of ine fincnce
fearm and management of subsidiary anits) "he effect veness of tre a.ait
partrer, the cudit team. their approcch to audits, ircluding pianring

and execut an, cammuricat-cn, support ane value were ossessed and
discussed Overall *he effectivenies: o' tre exter-al cud't procsss was

assessea to be performing os expected

Dur.ng t-e year, tre Auait Lerimiftee olso cor siderec “he indingy cf

the FRC's Avat Quality Review on BDO's aud f of the Group for the year
craed 30 September 2020, wrich wos publ shea on 24 Septemper 2021
|7 particular, the Aud t Committee reviewec BDO's proposed aoproacn
te adaressing the asints ~gisec ond how this hac been recrporated oo
the ouot ooproack for the yecr ended 30 Septemper 2021

Tre efecheness of the exiernal audsit process i~ depe-dert on
approcaale audit tisk ider bhication ar 1o ¢ «lat et the adi- cyele

A detar co auait plan s recgivea from the guditor, wh cn setfs out the
sy tisns identmed Tar tne fingncial year ended A0 feplember 2047

the key audit marters izenthicd by 200 were as sel out on poge 00

BOO provided the Committec wath its views o tnese issues at the
Tomputtec meet g held 6 ceragern e inan: 1al craremente Inaddihor
- otovides “he Comrittee with deta.ls of sny iwerinf ed musstaterrernts
grecter tna~ £24 038 and ony other adjustme-ts thot were qua itative y
aignifico=t wh ot anagereat had not correc'ed on the couis -hat t-e

mMsstatements were ~of, 0w aually or naggregate, maoterai

Prvate meeh~gs were beld vatn BDO throughout tre year to prov ce
addit cna oppertunity fer open d clogue ond feeobock from the

Comm ttee ¢re tre aud tor without monagement boing presert Mattars
gies jeceq wers the precoredress ond efiasroy of raragemsrt vt
~ea.d" *he copoe
rest chon or wcone nod cesn plored o

o Hracc ol ~onocemend zar

1ecpect o

traem oy

certimanies o

marcgemert and now thoy "0a exec sed nrofesuicral ucgement

Lusrgreyear TeTne Trrsot 0T crargen e Hicup

T828 0032022

apforoustacd ouot-re oteaweny ces

Non-audit services

"o scfeguarc the objectivity ana irdeperdence of tre externa auditer
from becom ng comaromsed, the Committee bas a forma policy
goverring the engagemenrt of the exterrai cud tor to nrovide nor-aucit
sesvces Mo material cnonges have beer made 1o th s policy dur rg the
yoar Non-audit fees an any project regerdless of size, wih the excepton
of ossurarce serv ces nrespect of the half-yecr review, are suormittea far
epprovel by the Comm.ttee Charrman, who must report to tre Corm ttee
¢~ the use ¢ this delegeted authanity at the next Committes meeting

Cur policy ersures that tne Comm ttee chellenges tne cecison to use

tre exernal o.dit “rm wrere surrable practicel ord reasonably criced
aernatives cxist Inaaaition, the Comim ttee cansicers the avera'l level

of ron-oud t fees and wou d not expect these fees te be ir aggregate
greater than the cudt fee During tae year, the alernal cugitor nertormed
ron-aud tservices tota ling £81.000 (2020 £439,000), which represerts
13% (2020 66%) of the cuait ‘ee The services proviaed r the year ircludea
£69,000 n respect of the mterm review and £12,000 in respect o advice
regardirg the letter the Grouo recewvea from the FRC regard ng s A~nual
Report and Accounts for the yeor endeq 30 Sectember 2020 The Audt
Committee approvec tne cppo ntrmant of BDO on the bas s thot they
were best placed to provide the services a-d there was =0 corfict of
interest with “hen rele as external audior Refer to note 4 to the Traroial
steterments of the Group tor furtaer irformot on

G behalf of the Audit Coram ttes

Nichelas Backhouse
Chairman of the Audit Cormmittee

1€ December 2021
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Risk Committee report

Committee members Meerng olendance

Stepben Puckett, Chair 474
Nick Backhouse™ 3/3
Sharan Boylay 474

¢ Nick Backhouse was appeimted as a member of the Commiltes or 20 Mearch 2521

Membership

T-e Risk Commiree (the Committee) was in ploce throughout the finaraal
year and ‘s chaired by the Senor Independent Directer, Stephen Fuckett
All of the members of the Committee who served during the year were
‘ndepencent Non-Executive D rectors All Nen-Executive Direclors are

nv ted to attend Committee meehings

Attenconce at the Co~mittes meetings during the fimoncocl year 1§ se
out apove

The Cnief [ xecutive Othee: tne Chict Tinence ang Operotiors CHacoer the
Genera’ Coursel aro the Company Secretary alended o | of the Commitiee
meeting: held during the Fnenaial yeer The Choirman af the Boord
attended three of the Commiee meetings hela auring e financal year

Terms of Reference

Tre Comruttee’s Terms of Reference cre avai chle o the Group's
websile (hyve group) or can be cbtarmed from the Company Secrefary
The Terms of Reference ore reviewes arnual’y and presented to the
Board for anproval.

The role and responsibilities of the Committee

“he Committee meets ¢ m rmum et fwice a yeor ond as reaurec, during
the fira~cialyear the Lo riee mel on“our cocasion: The Board 9
ulbmotely respenub.e for tre Croup's nisk monogement framewsork

“ae Committen oversees, reperts ond makes recommendatbors to tae

Boare nrespect of nnenoel oo on-fronaoly < fored oy b e Groop

Tae purpose of the Committee i to gortify, assess, mon ter ond marage
nisks foced by e Group over tmew th tie rtention of exposing thrects
to be mit goted and cpnartuimties to be exs ated The Committoae werks
closa'y wth tmg Audt Committes, wroch remoims resnensio © for fsks

an s i Arare oirepert ag Althree members of the Comattee are

o s0 menbe s of tre Audt Comrm ee
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The Committee’s work 5 primaor ly driven by the assessment of its pr ncinal rnisks
and uncerta nbes ond its emerging risks These risks and uncertainties are tae
output of a senies of nisk reg sters, which are develooeo across the Group, and
then accurailoted and reviewed by tne Comrattes 1ne Committee reviews these
assessments and ma<es adjustments to the overa: nisk p an as aoproprate

As stoted in last year's ornucl report, the Cha rman of the Committee

ard the Chief Binance and Opeighors Gihcer unoer'cok areview of

tne workings of the Committee with the aim of fecus'ng the Committee’s ime:
on strategic ond Board-love! risks rather than on operctional risks already
adequately covered elsowhere in the business Cven the angoirg pandem’e,
twaos agreed that the Commttee should 14 particular focus on thase risxs that
were more sigmi“cant as a result of COVIO-19 “he results of the review were
discussed ot the fiust Comaattee meeting of 1re fnaraolvear ond chaonges to
tre scope of the Committes were agreed. The Risk Req ster was suosiontally
rewor<ed to cover kay rizk areas. with each area having a rurmnber of specific
wlenhified nsks, nsk rotings and ~ihgating actions The Camrutiee agreed ta
focus on three to four of the key risk areas at eack meetng, thereby enabling
the Committee to undertoke in-depth reviews of these rsk oreas Stondard
cpearatioral risks were to be reviewed by the Committee on on anruol casis

Assessment of the Group’s risk profile

Detal's of the principa risks and uncerto nt es are set outin the Strategic report
Wrerever poss ble, oohon plans are in place fo orovde future miigator cgenst these
key risks As these are implemented, tney will be reported on In future regorts

Effectiveness of the Committee

An external evaluation of the Caommiries was underfoke- auncg the fnaral
year by Kieran Moynihan of Board Exceilerce The externcl evoluator was of
the view that the changes mads to the workirgs of the Commuttee had
sigrficantly strengthened its focus ord etfechiveness He commerded the
srong leadership of the Comimittec ona the g dizant degree ef importarce
that the Committee ara the Board places on nsk management

O behat of the Risk Committee
Stephen Puckeit
Chair of the Risk Committee

16 Decernber 2021

Risk Committee activities during the financial year

“he ranissuer o scusted ar d/o approve o cunng the financial
yeor unde review included-
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Nomination Committee report

Lurmrrillee members Mesng arterdance

Richard Last, Chair 6/6
N.cholas Backhouse 6/6
Sharon Boylay 6/8
Stepher Puccett £/6

Membership

The Nomimation Comm tHee (the Committee) was in place througrout the
francial year acd s chaired oy the “harman o tre Gioap All of tee
members of the Comm flee wnao served durning the year were indepencent
han-Execuhve Directars

Atwandance al ¢ Commit-ee meehngs a0 ng tee inanaal yeor s sef cut
o the le’t

The Chie® Execasive Officar and other incividaals nternal ond externol}
oy also be invired 1o attena meenngs unless tey have a co tucl o1
irderest During t-e yeor, tre Chief Executive Officer ard the Chief Talent
Ofhrer ct*ennea somn of the Carmittee ~ectings, sitter pachally o iully
Ihe Company Secretary attended each Committes meet ng roraer to
tace fre minutes

Terms of Reference

Tre Comm ttee's Terms of Reference are avaroble on the Group's
webs te (hyve group) e con be abtened ‘rom the Company Secretary
The Terms of Reference are revewes annua ly and presented to the
Board for cporovel

The role and responsibilities of the Committee

The Committee meets ¢ m nimum ef tw ce a year and cs recwred, durng
tre hinandiol year the Commilice e en sixotcasiens  he Commitee nas
delegated resporsilty from the Board for copoi~tments to the Beard
ane fgr succase gn planoorg for Directors and other san or executives

4z part of s duhes, the Commitiee

e Regularly rev ews the structure, size ane compositon (ncludrg the
sk |'s, krowledge, exper ence ord dvers ty) requred of tre Booro anc
magkes recommendatians to tne Board with regard to ary cranges

e “akes rto cecount waen cons denng successien ploan ng. tre
cha'lenges onc aopaportun tes facmng tie Graup ano what skils ard
expertise are there‘ore required or the Board in the future

e lgeathes ond normimarer for he aporovel of *he Booro, condidares *o
H!' Boord vocarcres as and wihe they onse,

e Yeops under revievs e caderstio reeds of fae Greuo, ond |
® Agrecsthe evo'ual o= process for the Board anc ts comim tees

Aopo ritments to t-e Bocra foitaw g for~icl ngerous ana trarsporet

RrCCayy, Wt o ryo ves tre Commauttce ctery sving coro cotes pronosed
Iy efnrer exiting Board memeers or oy externo segrcn corsu ety

Caret lrenudoraton 1 Senr TR0 e RO T es T et e e

ove chetcacwote totre o oratrat srz oc oce ot s = wrowlsage,

exper erleona o vessty o tre Boara s e ther raatenes orineG sen

Etomteoro eddorna o
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Nomination Committee activities during the financial year

Annual Report ond Accounts 2021 Hyve Group ple

The maimisses discussed ano/or approved sunng the fina~cial year under renew 1ncluded

® Tre balance of shills o wd espeiience un | le Board,
& Appointments to rales which report directly to the CEO,

® T-edenfification of skills required far - & gppointment af *re next
Mon-Executve Director(s),

® The appontment of the Blockwood Group to support Non-
Executive Dircctor recruitment (the Biackwood Group ooes not
have any cther conmect.ons with tne Company or w th any of the
indwidual Directors),

® The requirements of the Hompton-Alexander roview cnd the
Parker review,

® The Company's succassian plans for the Compary’s Boord, its
Executive Team ond other senior roles across the Graup, plus
immedcte stand-ins,

Tre CoTmittes recogrises the benefits of having a oiverse Board ora sees
imerensing divers'ty at Board level as an important element in maintaining
¢ compettive advontage Atruly aiverse Boara in s broadest sense will
include and moke good use of differences in the skills, regronal and
industry experence, background, race, gender and otner quaiities of
Directors These afierences will be considered ir determining the

sphimum compoesitior of the Board ana when passinle should be

balanced appropriotely. All Board appointmerts are made on ment,

in the context of the skills and experience thot the Boerd, as o whole,
reguires to be effective.

Hyve 15 o muliinational company with many different culture: working
together to achieve 1s goals Our Code of Conduct incorsarctes aur
opprogch to dversity ard inclusion and profibits discririnotion agarst
athers besed or their gendear and gende idart cason, sexaal orisrtation,
age, d sabiity, relig-er, nationality, marnitel status, colour ar creed o any
other cnaractenstic that s protected by law Gur aisciplire and grievance
procedure s intended to en‘orce oppropricte standords of behoviour. The
Code of Canduct s evaileble to employees on the Comoany’s intranct

Infermation on gender belarce of these r semicr menagement a~d their
direct reparts con oe found or page 65

& Emiployee ta ent maragemert and succession o:onnng,

& 1he aoppointment of Board Excellence to undertake an evaluation
of the Board and the Committees (Board Excellence aoes not
rave any other connechions w th the Company or wth any of the
ind viduol Drectors),

# The estabishmenrt of an ESG Committee,
& The Committee’s Terms of Reference,

® Tre Commit-ee’s Schedule of Mo-ters fo1 the next ingncial vear,
and

# The Designated Non-Executive Diector engagement p an

Effectiveness of the Committee

An external evoluat on of tne Committes wos undertaken during the
hnancial year oy Kieran Moynihan of Board Excellence Mr Mayrihan fel-
that the Comrmttes was well led by the Boara Char a~d was a0 effective
cormmtee. However, ne clso felt thet its overall furchioning noo beer
significarty imcacted by the COVID-19 pange~ic which hod curaled
the Committee’s ability 1o progress fully areas such o5 boord comoositians
diversity p onning, More details about the eva’uat'on of the Board and the
Cammtees can be found or page 69

On beho'f of the haminahion Committee

Richard Last
Chair of the Nomination Committee

16 Decermnner 2027
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Environmaental, Social and Governance (ESG) Committee report

Carrim ffes memibears fieel g areance

Sharon Baylay, Chair 2/2
Nk Grifhithe 2/2
John Gull'ver 242
Richard Last 242
Jo Robbett 242
Mark Shosroua 2/2

Formation

(i fhe recommerdatior of the Nominciicn Commiiiee, t~e Boora
estab' shed an ESG Committee 1n January 2027 Sraran Boylay was
appointed as Chair of the Comm ttee

Atiengance at b e Commitee mcehirgs auning "re Francial year is sef
out an fae left

Membership

temoership ot the Committee comprises tre Charrmar of the Board,
the Cnar of tre Remurerat.on Cemmittee, the CEQ, the Chief Financicl
and Operations Officer, the Thig Tale s Tfheer ard the Group
Communications and £5G Director Under tne Commtfees "erms of
Retereace, membership must comprise at 'east two meepenaert
Diractors This requircment was met durirg tne trarcial yeor

Oteer ind v duais (imterral ane external} may a'sa be rnwited ta atterd
meetings, Lnless they ha se o conflict of interes™ During tt e yeor,
representatives ‘rom Smply Sustainable a sustainabr ty ora ESG
consultoncy, attended ore of the Cormm ttee meet ngs 1ne Compony
Secretory ottenaed each Comm ttee meehng r oroer to take the minutes

ESG Committee activities during the financial year

The mair iszues discussed ana-or approsed aunng tre ananciol
year under revicw nc Ldea

s Membership of the Committee,
e [he Committee's Terms of Reference,

» “hecolout of ¢ survey to employees ard th ra parhes to
garrar views or the prcr tes “or tre Group's lang-term
=806 strotegy,

e e gpoontment of Simply Sustorrable to support tre
develooment ora imp'ermentat on of the E5G strategy
{5 moly Sustairan © goes ~ot heve any other correctiors
with the Campony or wth any of the moividua Birectors),

s ~oonto strategy orooosa s orepared oy S Moy Sustornan e
and the development of trase gropasa s, aad

e Meestoo et cfwor g Grouns comprisng volunteers

frgmy coroas the Dusress to works—op tre stratecy orapeso ©

araoropace fee strgtegy fromcwcrs oo to deselon




Strategic report O Governance Financial statements

Terms of Reference

Tne Committee's Terms of Reference are avanable on the Grouo's
websife (hyve group) or cor pe oofained from fhe Company Secrefary.
The Terms of Refererce are reviewed anrually and preserted to the
Boord for aoproval.

The role and responsibilities of the Committee

The Commuttee meets o mimmum of twice ¢ year ans as requred,
durirg the hnaraal year the Committoo et or hwo occasons
Aaditional preporatary meetings were beld with $'mply Sustainable
w.th some memoers of the Committee in attendance The Committec
hos delegared resporsibility f-om the Board to define the Copany's
strategy relating to ESG moters, As part of its duties the Committee

& Cversees the developrment of and maokes recommendaotions to the
Boara regarding the Group’s £5G strategy,

o Oversees the establishrent of ESG pelicies and codes of groctice and
har effective i plementation ana -oratars and reviews their ongoing
relevance, effectiveness, ana ‘urther develepment;

® Sets appropriate stroteg ¢ goa s, as we | as shorter term KPls and
associated targets reloted 1o ESG molters ond oversees the ongo ng
measurement and reporting of performance against those KP1s and
targets, and

e Makes recommerdations to the Boaro in relat on ta the reauired
resouraing and fundng of ESG-re ated activity and, on peha * of
tne Board, cversees the deployment and control of any resources
and funds

As an orgamser of market-leading events, we recogrise that we have
aresponsibil ty to take o more proact ve opproach to susta'nability ard
te leqd by example We believe it 1s cur ebligahicn to pring together
vowerful crangemakers os well as fo raise cwareness, lead the cebate
and facilitate solutcns Hyve oims to defver a strong, forward-looking
ESG epprocch in the gvents sector with o sirategy that encompasses all
regor s to connect the dfferent activites heppenirg across the pusiness
Detalls ofthe Company’s ESG strateqgy can be found on poges 30 te 32
Detar's of aur greenhouse gas emigsion: can be ‘ouna on page 73

Annual Reocrt and Acceunts 2021 Hyve Group plc

The Committes 1z awore of the Company's obligation to incdude ¢ imate-
related disclosures consistent with tae [CFD recommendaticrs i ts next
Ari-aal Report which will caver the hrancicl year endirg 30 September
2022, Sirmpiy Sustoinable wil continue to provide support to tre Compary
to ensure that it meets this obligatar

Effectiveness of the Committee

The Commitiee wos not incluaed in the external Board and Committes
evaluation as it was not deemed aporoprata given the Committee was
cstablisred duirg the hinanual yeor

Or pethatof the ESG Committes

Sharon Bayloy
Chair of the ESG Carnmittee

16 December 2021
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Remuneration Committee report

Cormritloe e mbers Peebng artesdance

Sharc~ Baylay, Chair 11/1

N'cholas Backhouse 1Al

Dear Shareholder

lam g cased to present the Rermunerot-on Committee’s recort for the year
to 30 September 2021

What is in this report?

“he resortircludes details of ne payments made te our Execuhive ard
No~-Exacutive D rectors *or the yoar e~dec 30 September 2021 It alse
rctuces o copy of the new Directors’ Remwncraticn Policy (the Pol oy,
recenty aoproved oy sharehc ders, and ~farmatior cr how this Policy
will be triplemen-ea auring t-e Tno-cal yeor ending 306 Septerbon 2022

Tris A~rua Staterment aod the Annual Report on Remurerat on (set out on
pages 86 to 105} wll ve subject to or acv sory vote at this year's AGIA to be
held on 3 Fesruary 2022 The D rectors’ Remmuneraticn Policy was recently
approved at our 2027 Gene-al Meeti~g (G and « trerefore rof subject te
a sharehelder vote this year, o copy o' the Po cy sincluded on poges 96
tc 105

Business context

“hs year has confinued 1o ze an extracrainory ard challerging yeor ‘or

al gz beamoact of the CUVID-Ty porocn e has condinued fo sigrit oz

crpect et orly Hyve Butcomrpomes arcura thewe id oo this -

s trancolces it s yagr erned A0 S pterrnar 2071

Tratsarc tre Groun met mMcved w tr pace oo ouroowe o a Mctters

t~e outset of fre nander ¢, reiuo ng tre rescnecu g

‘our oty ca

g ommerg ng treras ore LT

ecton Ve crece ghteg to

werts GoCas e Gone © tre el

~sa' cat o-

et gire er tof Cavra Aeg v to e ooipe ot foroen

o Theoran tom of Retg - Lizefus 0 Decemioer ZLED ~as resut

e Crcup bhe SGNE DOt gt emege o tb e nance o a o

SUCTOOC D

Hoving stohi sea e ba ance sheet ano accelerotea the omaicrannel
avolution, the facus s now o= returmirg the bus ness to growth ana drving
back value rthe Group s couty.

Revenue for the full year was £55 2m, witn odjusted rot debt being 279 9
for the yecr ended 30 Septernber 20ZC whict 1s a sgruficant y imcroved
postion compored with exoectations set at ihe start of the year

Remuneration performance and reward outcomes for 2021

The CE0 d a not receve o base salery Increase 1 the year enced 30
Septemper 202° ane as disc'osed r last year's report, tre base sarary

of the Chie” hinarce anc Oceratans O -cer (CFCOY was set at £235,000
en hus gpportment to tne Board o~ " October 2020

Last yeor we se! gnnual benus targefs and weightings al gned to our key
areas of inarzial focus ana with a grecter empheas o aur strateg ¢
seionties in repositicning the business for the future ond teking the rignt
achons duning tre panderue The financial targets we set wers exceeden
and management also performed except onclly well against the strategc
objectves set. porticulary nthe key oreas of the tispoasal of ror-core ossets
and the success®u rolout of faciitated meetings “he overa'l cutcome wos
97% of max mum for Executive Drectors Tne Comm ttee corsiderac this
cporoprate na year when managermert bad exceeded expectations »
their celivery of firanaicl ard strategic ochions

Long-ferm mcentve awards granted in Meren 2009 were coted or o
three-yecr performance ner od ending 30 Septemper 2021 w th tnree
oquc y weightes performance measures bosea on adjusted (~eodi~e)
earngs per share (EPS) growth, return o capital emp oyed (ROCE]

and relative totc shererorder ceturn (T5R) nerfermorce Desaite the
axcellert orogress or deliver rg ageirst our amoitious stretegy pricr to the
pa~dernc. s ant apateo, the advent o' the pordemic meant thot nc e of
the EPS, ROCE anc TSR performance thresnolds were achioved, resultng

in ro awards veshng

Development of the new Policy and shareholder consultation

tuch of the latter part of the year s neen spent undertocrg ar extensive
consu tat an w th our shareralders in respect of tre new v cporeved
D rectors’ Remunarction Pelicy o ~d new ¥alue Crechcn Ple~ (WCP)

The Policy was due for rerewal at cur 20222 AGM “he Cemm tee wos keer
totoke ¢ fresn approcch to eng-term remunerohen cnd desigr a
frgmews <ot wad Filg i the context of Byve s mew erorucharael
strategy. v.b cb focuses 6 ba dog capan ty, eriooing our morket-

ieazr gote 1 g- shengl cnngearbrargsard s coe oz uirtaalever -

we warteo to coopt o omoe structure ¢ gred wits the creaghos o .o g-
fer— sharerc 06 vaiue ara oh e tc reta - one Mot vote sur se recarces
eagersr ofecm et at me ot corsooron'e crargs for Hyve

we res gusen trerange of romevioras ir nare ©tee UV onaret ooc affor
mCcm roosacrt oo geter regteota Vo ue Cronten Pan yc e e e
post ettt el b owas Tor seusrc cEQIGTE
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Strateqic rencrt O Governance bmane ol statemerts

® |t allows a ‘scus on making the qght aecsicns for long-term volue
creation, witnout tne constra nis of Lrxing reward to meaium-term cosh
“ow and EBITDA targets

Giver e strong obgnment of the VOP to the gelivery of Hywe's strategy for

ire rextthree to live years, I' & Curmmilles wus kegn o accelerare this
liretacle i~ order to be able to grant awards of the stort of the rew fingncial
yoar We therefere determired fo hold o General Meeting in October 2021,
o enable us to grant awaras (subject to shareholder aporoval of the Policy

ana Plen) price to Hyve entering any closed periods following year ena

The Committee was aware that value creatior p ans are much less commen
ir tne rarket tnan performonce shares and as such aetermined to urderteake
a much more deta, ed sharena der consultation pricr to the GM We sougnt
tre views of our largest sharehalde s (covering 60% of our shareholder nase)
during two rounds of cor=ultahar The first round of consultotion was to

out me the princp es of tne VCP as an overall structure, wrich we were
pleased was supnorted by the shareholaers we spoke with, wne unoersicod
the rat orale for the plon desigr in the context of Hyve's ambitious growth
strategy In those conversaticns, we fested our ecr'y tninking or the <ey
design parametars for the YOP such as the hurdle rate ond size of the YCP
pocl We lstened tc shaneholders views and ~odified “he designito reflect
the r feedoack. Sharehalders we cansu ted with were also supportive of the
accelerated timetable ona recogrised that this approach waould suoport the
mohwatinn of maragemen! from the beairning of the financial year

We then wrote to shareralders ogon gdv.sing them of the propesed cesign,
incluging t-e modifications to the paremeters fo reflect ‘eedback fiom inihicl
corversatons Shorehclders we consulted waith we comed the changes we
mtreduced af-er our “rst cound o consultatior with many corfiiming their
‘rtantion to suoport the proposals ot the GM

We were pleased trat a significand majority of our sharebolder s (¢ 240 were
supportve of aur overall approaes and voted in fovour of the proposols at
the GM heid on 25 October 2021, However, we also recognise that gven

our a verse sharebalder base, togetner vath the aoture of the proposals,

a g fecant number of shareholders did not “eel sbile to suppor o
anproach to remuneration We wit be engaging wath ancrerolderswho d d
not support our appreach intre comning months, to furtter uncerstand ther
concerns and the'r perspective on cur overall aporoacn to remuneratior

Tre Boore and the Commuttee nelieve tis importent to ciign the interests
of executive Directors ond the serier leadorship team with those of
sharehaolders, and te retain cnd mativate our b ghly regerded Executve
Team trrough te next paase of the Comaony s recovery and growth
The Committee considers that tne VCP ard news Pol cy ore alignea witn
these object ves and | would ke o sircerely thorc oll shoreholaers wha
ergaged " the sharehclcer consuitot or process

Implementation of our newly approved Policy for 2022

Salary

Both tre CEO and the CFOCO will receve o 0ose sa ary ncreose of 3% whicn
wilt be eHfecve noe Voo e w021 Thisao e hra v th iraease ‘o the woder
U« werkforce

Annual bonus

“he arnual cones foe 2022 w il cont rue to operate based on e oomcirat oo

ot chellerging firar ciol targets ar drsilered & 1c ke tives This yecr

worbave - 0eg ed e weightrg o Anort slpo'e

na cial

LOts el o patho be e normcl ot -C O waghte gs o
cadh e oo’ betore ax

peltstonie fings ol targo wall e nosed
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and operating cash flow There will oluo be o financiol focus within *ne
strateq c measures The measures are set cut on page 86

Value Creation Plan

Follewirg the approval of tne Policy end VCP of the G, awards were
gramted to the Cxecutive Derectors and other ehigible partcipants on
26 Geteboer 2021

swards are subject to o 'oase hurdle’ of 13% per annurm growth (CAGR) »
market copitalisation and an 'upper burs & of 15% per annun growth (CAGR]
in market copitalsation, resulting 1in a VCP pool of 0% and 20% respechively
Portormance ismeasuod ovit a ve-year ponod with early pettorr ance
test ng carried out at yeors three ard four with the potential for some vesting
(0% of the award) ot these points More detail 1s on page 99

“he Comm ttee consdered tessertio to motvate management ana aid
retention that some of the award coud be earned from the plan at years
taree ond four However, ir prachce, given the orgoing uncertoirty of fre
recovery trajectory, the path to growth anc va ue creat’on is cerfred arourd
a “ve-yaar hme horizor Inour specifc busine-s circumstances where the
recovery could hapoen infer, given angoirg urcertanty ane marset foctors,
it fe't reascneble to allow a pre-test fecture In the desigr During shareholder
consubtahon, the sigrificant vajonty of shareholders unders cod and were
supportve of this feature

Tae Company shares ssueo on vest ngwill be subject to o fwo-year
past-veshirg boiding per od and other best practce ‘eatures apply, os set
cutor page 86

Effectiveness of the Committee

An external evaluation of the Comm ttee was unacrtacen during the
financiai year oy Kiciar Moyni-an of Boa-d Excellence PAr Moyihor -eh
thal the Commitiee was working very well and was effectively ciscrargirg
its key responsibilihes He pra'sed the Charr for her strorg .eacership and
commitmen to inding o~ acpropnote ba'arce between rewarding/
incentvising employees aporoorote y onad meet ng shareholdars’
expectations interms of fargefs and rewards He abserved a strong
working relahonship coveloping between the Carnmittes Chair and the
newly oppointes Chuefl Talent Officer ond noted a comprerensive fevel of
indeperdert cversight and inceperaence of mine beng exhiaited by the
NEDs an the Cemmittee, supported by the external remupnerat.on consuliant
Maore details cbout the evaiuation of tne Board ard tre Committees can be
found on nage 69

AGM

As noted opove we corsulled with o vgrafzant nurrer of our sharebalder-
croour new Po cy ord | woula ke o thook ol share~cloers who ergagad

A e corsuitahon process We will oe engegrg ‘urther duning the coming
montas witn those snarcholders wae oid nat ‘ee able to supoert us. We are
committed tc mairto » ng on orge.ag o ologue with shoreko'ders an

tne ssue of executive remunerahor are we welcome ory fecdbac you

may tave

| ope e recrie your suppG e apooy ~g toos repart of the 8GR or
3 beargary 2022

Sharon Baylay
Chair of Remuneraton Committee

16 Cocemibor 2077
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Directors’ Remuneration report

Implementation of Remuneration Policy for the year ending 30 September 2022

Tre tob.e beiow sets cut haw the Rermuneration Pol.cy wil be cpplec “or tho year ending 30 September 2022

Element Application for the year ending 30 September 2022

Salary Both the CEQ a~d the CFOO will rece ve ar nerecse to the - oose pay of 3% frem 1 Cctober 2021, 17 lire wath cther
employees: of the Group
Mark Shashcua - 06760
Jehn Gulliver - £.303,850

Benefits Benefiss for FYZzwaill e lre sl [he Remaneralion Pelicy

Pension

Penucr conirbut-oms of 0% of so ary "or boeth Execut ve D rectors, i vne wiih the w aer workforce

Annudl bonus

For FY22, the annue bonus opportunties w il be 150% and 20% of salary ‘or Mark Shashouo ana John Gu liver,
respectively

The weigriting or firanciof per‘ormance rarges hos increased "his year from £5% "o 80% in a path "¢ more normaf
pre- COVID weightings on fingnaal perfonmance Finanaal ra:ges will be based on headline prof 1 before taxara
apecrating cosh flow “here will al<o be a finarcial focus witkur the strategic measures

Tue fironcial measures will be as t2llowe

rMeaiL-e weghdirg
Heach e profi velcre tax 35%
Cperating cash flow 5%,
Reh~a~ci~g strategy 207
Tre shrategic measures wi'l ce os fallows
seighlng weighl ag

FAeanure CED CRCO
Reti~a~cng the business and managirg our dsb- cosition - 0%
Partfolio maragement and disposels o, -
E3G strategy reilout 5% -
Strateg-¢c people object ves ' o 5% -
R'sk manogement - 5%
Strategic cperationa. objechives o - 5%

The targets are cors'dered commercal y sers t ve and wi! therefore be disciosed “etrospectively

VCP

In L.re with the now.y anproved Remu~erctor Pol ey, tre Company moae awaras under the Value Crection P on (VCP)
on 26 October 2021, oy way of ¢r acgu’s hon of shares 11 Hyve Hold ngs Limited Tne CE0 end CFGO made an uptrent
nvestment 'nanew oess of ‘'grewta shares’ issuea by Hyve Ho ainrgs Limited {which 5 0 100% subsinicry of tne Compary)
wrich, o vashog, wil celiver the YCOF va ue 1 Hyve Group p ¢ snares

Awards: cre subject f

& A'bose burdle of 10% ger annum growth (CAGR) in market captal sation, vath a VOP nool 07 10% acove th 1 eve, arc

& A-upper hura e of 150 per annur growt~ (CAGR) n market cantal sot o1, wita a ¥OP pool of 20% obove th s level
Tne (R0 ond CFOO nave bee~ ol ocater 35% arg 19% of tre poai resoechvely

The ¥CF Fo= o wve-yeor perfor ance peved vatt ear y peformance teshing carried aut o years Pree and fowr wit the
poterticifor sgmn sest ng of trese nomts

s 0O ot tie cware v be tested ond may vest ofter mmree year

* 5o aftie cware w Do testen aooa oG tar furtrer vest ng after four yeors ane

sionchat vt sl ar e

o e aws dwillte fesrzae

obwse o rsd g oer oo e oneras v, oo relecsec

bt e GY
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Financial statements

Strategic report O Governance

Directors’ Remuneration report

Annual Report on Remuneration

In | me with the Large and Medium-s zed Compenies and Groups
(Accounts ond Repaoris) F’egulohor‘s 2008 (os emended in 2013), the

to lowing ports of the Avnug’ Report or Directors’ Remuneration are
auditea the «i-gles total figure of remureration ‘or aach Director, incuding
annuai borus ana Performance Share Plan (PSP oulcoties for e
financial year e~ded 30 Septermber 2021; scherme interests awarded
during the yecr, pensicn entitlerments; oayments to post Directers ond
payments for loss of affice, and Directors’ shoreholdings ans share
interests. &ll ather parts of the Directors' Remuneratior Report

are unqaudited

The Remureration Committee wos chared by Sharan Baoyloy whe, along
w th Nichclas Backhouse, served throughout the year Members of the
Committee are appointed by the Board, on the recommendaticr of

the Neminahon Committee n corsultatior w.th the Chairman of the
Reruneraton Committee, ‘or an inital period of tvree years, wivch

cor tnen be ‘ollowed by or addihiong two further three-year periods.

All of the mempers of the Committee who servec during the year were
indepencent Non-Executive Directors

where there is no conflict of interes:, the doard Chairman, Chief Executive |
Officer, Chief Financial Officer, the Chiet Talent Officer and the Compary
Secretary may be invited to ottend the Commuttee's meetings fo ass'st
the Corrmittee v making 1~‘ormed decisions To maxmise effecliveness.
meetings of the Comm tee generally taxe olace just prier ta a Company
Bocrd meeting The Charman of the Committee reparis fo the Boord,
as port of o separate agerda 1em, on the activity of the Committee and
matters cf particular reievance ta the Board in the canouct of tts work.
Mo indwidualis presert when their own remunerction is being distussec
The Charman of the Committee olso meets sepaorate y with the Board
Chairar, Chief Executive Cfhcer, the Chief Firancicl Officer “he
Chairman of the Auait Cormmittee the Crief Talent Officer ard the
Committeg’s externa’ advisers

Advisers

Delaitte were apponted by the Comrittee in 2020 as Committes
Remunerahon Advisers follow rg o competitive terder process

Nuring the 2021 ~nancial voear, Delotte <o for maotenal asustance to
the Committee were 376,725, with the fees charged or a time spent and
moteriols prov dea basis. Deloitte did <ot provde cny other services to
Hywve dur- g the inonaal yeor

Delo'tte are s gnotones to the Remureration Corsultants’ Group Cooe

of Corduct and any odvice provided 1s governed oy that Cede Advisers
affend Commtten meetng, as approprate, gno orovide advice on
remuaerabor pol oy, best pract ce and market updates The Comm ttee
ovuluotes the supoort orow dea oy its odvisers anrual y and 's comfo table
that the incradua advisers ceta led aid rot ~ave Gy connectiors w th tho

Group orind v oucl Direclors tagt may mpair el icoeperdence

Ar~ual Report and Accounts 2021 Hyve Group ple

Terms of Reference

The Remnuneratioa Committees Terms of Relerence aore avallasle on the
Group’s website (hyve group) or can be obtarred ‘rom the Company
Secretary Tre lerms of Reference are reviewed ennually and presentea

te the Board for anprovol

The role and responsibilities of the Committee

Trne Rermurnerction Comrmittee meets o least three t mes a year ana on
other ceeasiers, as required The Committee hos delegated responsibility
from the Boaord te set the Remuneration Pol oy for all Executive Directors
anc tve Compary Crairman “he objective of such policy shali oe ta
ensure that memoers of the executive mancgement of fhe Comoany

are provioed with cppropriate incertives to encourage erhanced
performance and are, 1n a fair and responsible marner, rewarded for
therr inovidual contributions ta the success of the Company The Company
Cnairman and the Executive Directors are respensble for sett ng the
remuneration of the hor-Executive Directors

Committee responsibilities include

e Determining and ogree ng with tne Board the po icy for the
remuneration of the Executive Directers and memoers of the executive
manogement (Inc uaing pensions),

#® Reviewing the ongo'rg aporcprioteness and reievance o the
Remuneration Pal'cy,

® Approving the des'gn of, and determ ring tergets for, cry performance-
reloted pay scremas goerotes by tne Comoany and appraving the total
avrual poyments made under the schemes;

* Querseeing any maojor charges in employee barefts struciures
througnout the Group,

® Measunrg subseauent performance as o pre use fo determining tne
Executive Directors’ and cxecutve monagement total remureration on
behalf of the Board,

® Determining tee structure ard quantum of short-ter i remiurerct on,
ard

* Granting owaras unaer long-term ince~t ve plans cnd ophons uader the
various Hyve Croun share scremes
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Directors’ Remuneration report

Activities during the financial year
The mainissyes disc ussed and/or opproved duning e financial year

under rev ew noluged

& Approvas o tne orior year Drecters” Remureretor report, rev ew of
starebolder commerts and AGM voting an the reoart,

Annual review of the Company Charman's ana Executive D rectors’
salanies ot tee arrongemerts ara berefi-s,

* Roview of the Executive Directers’ and executive monogemert
serformaonce against the targets set under the 2021 Aarua: Bonus
Scheme ara approvel of the correspond ng payments,

» Eeview of the parsanal o ectives of t-e Chief Exacutive O et
oroposed by tne Company Charrmar, ano of the Chief Finance and
Cperatons Officer as croposed by the Chief Executive O cer,

Des gn, sharehelder ecnsultation and aporove of the new Value
Creatior Plan {YCP), recently approved by snarehalders,

Rev ew ond opproval o the Company's new Direciers Remurerat’on
Pol'cy, recent'y aaprovec by sharebolders,

Aporove! of the vesting evel for PSP owards veshing an oerformorce to
3D Seprember 2021;

Ceonsideratior of snareho der views as port of substant al censultat on
onthe remurerchon aoproach for FY21/22:

trgoging witn the Humen Resources function ¢ successior plarirg
orc organisat on restructur ng, and

Rewmew of the perfornonce forgets to be oppiec *or the awards o be
rmaae under the PSP te members of the senor ieadership team

Single figure of remuneration for Directors for the year ended 30 September 2020 (audited information)

The table below sots out a single “gure o he “clal reruncranon recowved by cach vt (20 the yeon cnced 30 Sectermbor 702100 d the proor year

The Remurerction Pol cy operated as ntenaed - tne vear

1. Base salary/ 4.Long-ferm Tetal Total fixed Tatal variable
fees’ 2. Benefits® 3.Annual bonus! incentives* 5. Pension remuneration remuneration remuneration
20 201 i _2011 H 2021 Plre 201 m m‘z? TT
LOO0 £ooe  LLLO £B00  POCD LODD  LOUT £000 LoOD LI00 EQDD [Rs e LOOD  Loow
Executive Directors
tAark Snocsnoun 492 464 1 1 716 - - - 49 47 1,258 512 542 51z 716 -
johr Guiwer 9% - 1 - 343 - - - 30 - €69 - 326 - 343 -
Former Executive Directors
Ararew Beacn - 227 - 1 - - - - - 25 - 307 - ey - -
Non-Executive Directors
R chara Last 179 168 - - - - - - - - 179 168 179 168 - -
S~aron Boylay &7 57 - - - - - - - - &7 57 67 57 - -
b cholas Backbouse a1 &b - - - - - - - - 61 55 61 55 - -
Stenher Puccett &1 57 - - - - - - - - &1 5/ &1 57 - -
1 Ser page 0100 furthes derpils of Hon Fracutive Sire 120 fees
z Tasatls c=nsteaans] Ae prieote medical v - Lranc s TSkt eee
PoAreualesrn prapanleturcerform e sz crer b e ree art T ana s Teonle e set oL s = shperinrm e 2
Core dtent air fne fer w Exedubag Ibe e re lkonar piaement for FY2 10 2he
sl Stensd e e t srer Thear i, = rrart s SRC P ebgres Lop enreoub et cinen, and clargreocsaer

Toe oy Bent o

< There wan 0n e g ot 'ong-terr e ol e avaras inrelab o oo

ERREERERY PRV TR F Ay e zmes and Tperas e T e

appcoah

Executive Directors’ base salaries (oudited information)

e (sOaodroirece ve anase sa oy ~crease '~ the year encea 3

oo sst ot DX, oo e sepsoictmertte fa Boora o - Ootones 2220

wooreswr ok pepoa o

erutve Directors’

Pension and other benefits (cudited information)

woire Group Mace DA G

cogreowti-roie .o

comtr sut ooz ooy ettty o

r

e carrenl Tre late Tiree

Seotemmner 2027

Ortcber 2027 are sef cut o o

Serembee b

(e peneds s ki g

yeor s repcrt the gote saory oftre CFOT




Strotegic report O Governance Fingncia' statermerts

Annual bonus {audited information)

Fromework and outcomes for the financial year ended 30 September 2021

Far e 2021 hnancial yeaor, the Txecutive TDirecrors parinpated in the Executive Bosws Plac. desigred <z reirfores

Anntal Report ard Accounts 2021 Hyve Group ple

delivery of castainable prott growth,

ret ceot maragement, insurarce receiots, cost savings and the acnicvement of strateq ¢ objectives The we'ghiings for tne annual bonus were changed
frr vke 2071 finaraial yoar to batter refedt Hyve's pricnt es in the year with 85% hosed on finanaaf targets and 45% on strotegic torgete linked 1o our key
objectives of bota repositon ng tne business tor the future end taking the right cetions during the pondem ¢ The max mum anual bonus opportun ty

was 160% of sa ary fer Mark Shosnoua and 120% for John Guliiver

Tre financial targets set at the start of the yeor are set out below

Theezhold Targel Miaximarm Achueved
Measure We ghting Eml [zm) £mi (Em) Uutcome
Headhne profit before tox 15% =150 50 7.0 208 15%
Adjusted ret debt ‘5% 135.0 1250 5.0 799 15%
Insurance proceads 0% 300 400 50.0 850 108
Cost reductions 5% 68 78 9.0 134 15%
Tetal 55% 55%
The strategic targets ard outcames for botn the CEO ard CFOOC cre set out be'aw:
Measure Weighting Objective Cutcome Achievement
Portfalia 15% Preparation of non-cere assets for sale and Successfully completed disposa of Kazakhstan 15%
mancgement portfcho maragement, in parteular the events portfclio r Aot 202
disposcl of Kozakhstan and other Boord ana Successfully completed disposa of Woodex
shareha der apnroved transachons subseauent to the year erd
Target sare of Kazokhstan events portfclic,
Stretch. sale of Kozakhstan events portfo o
ard one sther identifiec non-core asset
Omricharnel 15% Successful relicut of faciitatee meet-ngs Autumir Fair hosted meet'ng successfully 5%
rolicut larget ho'd Autumnp Fair faciitated meet.ngs, executed, deivering 334 meetrgs between
Streteh. nold Auturmn Fair and have developeo 44 buyers gnd 60 brands board attended
p'ans for Bett 2022 and cne ctner Plans successfui y put in place (teors recruitec
ond embedded cne proaucts launchee) for
fecilitated meet rgs for Bett and Spring Fa'r
B curing 2022 s
Executive team 15% Successful restructure of the Senior Leadarsho Restructurng camplete with al semior roles s
tearn (including SYP Digital Product and successfully 1n ploce by end of FY2I
Group Head of Tech and Doto apocintmenrts)
and Finonce Teams
Total 45% 42%
Executive Director overall bonus outcomes & Strateg c achievements — The executive ieadership team delivered

Based an the azove, the formulaic outcome for both tne CEQ and

CFOO was 87% as a percentage of moximum. The Commtten corefully
corsdered the porus cutcomes for this challengrg yoas of rocovery,

led strangly by botn Executive Directors The following “octors were taken

Inte account

® Financial performarce exceeded e Boare's exsectat ans ot the start
e year Tacingl ded key “nasnial areas Lader marsge ol -
control « rmigxinis ng cost sovings ena rsurance proceeds and coeturn
o enolee prootrability e ackalle ging penod

e The Comm ttee considerea the workiorce one wicer staccho aer
corcext Thie yeor ayve did naf benetit o the Taroncvinas ok
Reterto Scherie, wih voluntary repoyent of mories receven

and rentracuced borusos acrese the wicer W'Q"k:()' ce.

exceptionai y agoinst the strategy set at the beginming of this pivetal
year |1 particu ar, management moved wit~ pace to dieoase of roa-
core assets (Kazakhstan ornd Woodex] end to mitigate losses ard cosh
flow req.remeris » respect af I ewe gssets Toaltored meeings was
anotrer areo of stora-out’ performance The Autumn Fa r was the
tirat in-pe-zon evert follow: g the cutbreac o CIVIN-1G and saw te
succeszful roliout of “ac toted meet 1gs Imp ementat on plens are
squarely on frack for ‘urther rolout i~ 2622
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"me Committee hod corsulled witn key snareo'aers duning 2020 about
tne structure of the anrual borus for the 2021 f- arcalyear o d the
Importarce of ersunng that it wos motwvat'ena ano aigreo w s the
key evers wrere rmanagement colio maximise va uc for srereholaers
Tre Comm ttee considered trat monagement had cutperformed

aga nst expectations, ono were comtortable t~at e banus outcorie
was aopropr afe

Mgr< £-ae oug arg ohn Golliver's inal conuts payments far ing year
ernoea 30 Seotember 2021 were £/15.860 and £343,38C respectively
Asset out nthe aporoveo Palicy, Executive Directors will not be recuired
ta defer a proportion of their annual bonys payment “er FY21 nthe usual
ma~ner but wi!l insteca be able to use iz oot of the barus fo fundther
nvestmert nthe VCP shares

Long-term incentive {(audited information)

Mark Shashoua and Jonn Gulliver were sacip ents of tno PSP awards n
March 2018 wr'ch had o perfarmance pernied eroing or 30 Septeriber
2027 Awords were subject to hoodare earnings per share, 'SR ard POCE
psrformarcea targots

Percentage af

Hegoline diwieo EPS o 7 2p achieved for the hnaniicl year e ded

30 Senfemnber 202° wos below the threskold lorget of 7 8p reaured for
any no't o~ of tae EPS e.ement of the award to vest With regaras to the
relat ve TSR ard ROCE € aments, Hyve Group’s 15K over the per‘armanca
perioc wos beww the meoian of the comparater group ano ROCE wos
be ow the threc~ald target, mear ng trot ne porticn of tne award vested
Awards 1e oll oorficisorts wi'l therefore apse in “ul

Scheme interests awarded during the year (audited
information)

Under the PSP, Mark Shaoskoua ard John Guliiver receivec owards of 100%
of salary ard 80% ot calory respectively dunng the inancial yeor ended
30 September 2027

Asset cut rlast year's renart, the vesting of the awards will be ussassed
agaoins- obsol.te share price/TSR "argets, given te sigrihcant cnallenges
w th setting thres-year EPS growtn, ROCE or relative TSR targets af the
time The targots and corresperding vestng eve's are sef cut intneton e
below. In ada't cr.an urderp n test pasec on pregress n developnent

of the Group’s aigital sttategy as well as financial ~esiience will apply

To mitigate eganst the potential for windfal gans, tre value af vesting

wil be caopen such that part'c’ponts cannot recewe cny value from share
price growth aoove ¢ £2 50 srare or ce

Share price award vesting  Strategic and financial underpin condition

790 100% vesting of awaras will be subjec "o *he Committee being satsfad that cver the parformance pencd

L7140 80% ® here has heer measurgble progress r Hyve's digital ond omoicrannel stratagy

125 0% s Strategic achens have oecn taxen te see< 1o maximise the preservat o1 o va ue within tae Groug

o 20 ® Shore puce per‘ormerce s wrdercinced by “he Group's “nanciol reshience inclucing cash flow o~ d asposted re” aebt

Tre Commuittee aiso retai~s discretion 1o adjust the farmu-e-baseo vesting outcome havicg hac regard te weder overa | Cormpeny per‘ormance

To the extent t~et tre awares vest, they wil be subject to o two-year helding peried Vested awards wi o be subject to clewsock for the oter o ore year

fol cw ng the cate of vest'ng or completon of the next audit of tre Greup ¢ accounts -~ the evert of o “rouc or meter’al m sstaterient of resu'ts neing

wenhifed in relater to the years -~ whic tne =5F s sgrred

Detals of awarcs gramted on 4 Decemper 2020 are set cut necw

Shares over Threshold

which awards vesting
Executive Director Baosis of award Face value' granted? (% of award) Performance period Performance measure
Mok Shasheue 0% of £492,000 461,668 20% " October 2020 to eshore proe/TSR with
DGS0 SC ATy 30 September 2023, 1nc usie ‘armance Uncerpn
Jehn Gu' ver {736,000 221,450 20 i October 2020 12 ore pree: TSR w th
3 Seoterrbeor 2023, ~cus ve oorformonce underpin

T - [ b [ BT RN I e A ERL




Strategic report O Governance Financ’al staternents

Chairman and Non-Executive Director fees {not subject
to audit)

Fees ‘ar the Crormon ond otner Noa-Executive Drectars are

sof tak.ng
i~ta cons deratian the resocnsibilities of the rales ano therr porticipatio-
in the various Comrmittees of the Company hon-Executive Dorectors are
noi cligible o parncpats nannuol bones, LTH and retrement beretil
crrangemenis.

The approprateness of fees s reviewed on on anug! nasis bees ncve not

imcreasea - the yaar

Ihe fees for Non-executive Directers for the year endea 30 September
2021 are as foliows,

Role FY21 fee
Chairman £178,500
Non-Execut.ve Directars Base Fee £50,725
Senior independent Directer add tiona! ‘ee £7500
Committee Cha'r agditional fee £10,000

Payments for loss of office (audited information)

Trere have been ro cayments for loss of office in the year

Relative importance of spend on pay {not subject to audit)

The graph below shows the Group's total employee pay anc distribuhions
to shareholders for the fronciot yea = ended 30 September 2070 and
30 Septembar 2027, and the percentage change

Lizom
~44.4%

E100m

£80m

£60m -7.2%

£a0m

Li0m

Fam Total employee pay Dividand

2020 W zom
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Chief Executive Officer pay ratie {not subject te audit)

The able below compores the Chief Lxecutive Cfficers single figure of
tata! remuneratan for the year to the ecuiva’ent remuneratior of the
upper guarhle, med an and lower quartiie UK employees.

25th percentile  Median pay  75th pereeniile

Year Method poy ratio ratio pay ratio
201 Option C 341 251 17:1
2020 Cption C 171 14.1 71

To oid year-or-year comparsan, the Grouen has cnosen to use Option ©
as tris oplion enabied the use of recdily avollable dato that wos current
to Hyve's year end The three representative indiviouals chosen were
selected based on theis gross pay 1n September 2021

The salary and tatol remuneraton receved during 2021 oy the emeloyees
used 1n the above anawysis are set out below.

25th percentile Medien pay 75th percentile

pay ratio ratio pay ratio
Salary 2021 £32,000 £45,000 £64,095
Total remuneraotion 2021 £37,952 £50,847 £75,485
Salary 2020 £29130 £29,94 £64,600
Total remuneration 2020 £30,441 £36,294 £70,748

Heles o the caloulofinn
1 she CEC e gle foure of ramuneranie shawn on page 5 was weed 1 he calculatior

2 ihe figuresfor bottthe SLO and 1« employes of 10 2510 percerihe ncbude o001 wol
banus poymenic in respect of the year endsa 20 September 2021

[

“he total rtemureral on for the thres iraauals shown asove was caculalea on the

sare bovie, s for the ox oo ot boncthre tar practizzl purpe Teoswnet
cone derad fo malenally Mmoo the resclts
4 As getared earien inthe report, ne long-termincentrnes vestea Trend widucls

ide~tfied ot t-e med.on and 7uth parcentle reccieod solos commisainnm t-2 vear
and tusisincluded in the ca culahen

“wornoube tiat heandiviauals ider tifie 3 of he theee quorile, are etresertal ve L0 2
UK workf roo the tetal pay and kensfil< for o amoll number of cmplagoee 0z
arzund esch goartile were 2lse conaderad to contemthers were no ancmatis
The ndvisazldonihes vere Soemed appr priote’, recresenfatec

Cur average werkforce rerurcration Yasincreasea thiz year reflecting,
in comrparson with 2020, ikas anrual bonese: have been pard to our ctaff
The wpwards trend in the CZ0 pay rovio ref ects the very ssgnifcant
decrease in Executive Director poy in 2020 arisirg as a result of salary
cuts ond ne imcentive payouts far Executive D recters Thes hod a maore
significant impact or fhe poy of Exective Thectors, reflecting by s
appraoch of increasing the portion of the package trat s at risk for more
sericr individuols

On this basig, the pay ratio demonstrates consistency with tne pay,
reward and progression pol ¢ es for the Comnany’s UL empleyees

toker os a whaolo.

9N
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Performance graph (not subject to audit)

The chort oe’ow compares the value of £100 mvesteo n Hyve Group plc shares, ind'uding remvested d vicenas, or 30 September 2017 comporac with
the squivakent invessrrontin the FTSE 260 Irdex and T 7SE small Cap Irdex over the last 10 hnancalyears “he FTST 7t ane 7152 Small Cop Iraes rove
keen chosen os the Tompory has been o consttuent of ootk ingices duning the cencd sirce 3008 The table below shows the single higure ‘or 10e CcO
over the same period

Total shareholder return

Saurce Datastream {Thomsan Revtars)

= Hyve Group PLC == FTSE 200 FTSE Small Cap
(Bl
£350
1,200
]
£200
£150
£1e0
|
£C 30/0a/0n 30/0973017 /0877013 W09/ 4014 0/08/7015 10705/ 1018 30/00/3017 0:0G/3018 200677019 0097070 30/0%/ 7071
Fraancir vaar enchea 30 5entemrker e SOl L 225 Sk 2007 ZU1E 2040 2021
Russell Tayior "/Mark Shasncua # J 3 " i T # # # # #
CEQ single ~gure of remureration (£000) 1,658 1,951 1,050 567 618 1,035 1191 823 52 1,258
Annual bords awarcea % of Moxmum oppartunity 80% 94% 658% 167 27 7995, 878% 417% 0% 97%
£ omount (£000] 332 402 298 72 122 539 680 298 ) 7
PSP vesting % of maximum opportun ty W00% 100% 70% 0% xe 0% 0% o3 [} 0%
£ amount (£000) 774 1,080 277 0 c o 0 Q O jul

Change in Directors’ remuneration and for employees as a whole over FY2021 (not subject o audit)

The CEC arc other Divectars nave sary re agreemerts with Hyyve Group nle, the parent company 1he oarent cempany hes ne other empoyees

The 1aile below shows the cronge 1 172 Dnectors” ornuel casr, oefred os salery. taxab ¢ benefts and arrual ber oy coriporea wiT the averoge
employee tor 2025 to 2027

Year-on-year change in pay for Directors compared with the global average emplayee

Executive Directors Non-Executive

Mark Shashaua John Gulliver Richard Last Stephen Pucket Sharon Baylay Nicholas Backhouse Average empleyee

207 Jub 28 /2 D20

Pt 2021 2020 T00% 2021 IS 2019 2021 2022 2019 2021 000 (0% 2021 220 109

3 82 7% om0 % 8% o I 1% 4% -1 18
_ N _ L - - R - - - -13% 30. .8t
- - - - - - - - - - 100% -85, 52
.oz froes A A . b ache R L 10 ' - ol - [




Strateg ¢ report O Governance Firancial statements

Payments to past directors

As deta led ir ast year's report, Andrew Beoch ceasea to ve on
Executive Director o the Company on 30 September 2020 No further
paymerts for lovs of office were made beyond t-ose disclosed nt-e
20720 Arcuc| Report,

Ir ling w'th t1e ru es of the re evant plons ard the Company's
Remureration Poicy, the Committee exerc.sed its diseretion to a low
Anarew Beach's unvested PSP share awards over 98 063 and 9,725 shares
granted in 2019 ond 2020 respectively to vest at tne erd of thelr resnective
performance periods subject to applicable performance conditiors

being satished, and subject to hme pro rote "o reflect Andrew Beach's
octual serv ce auring the oppliceble performance period Andrew Beach
also reta.rs 31,686 ana 8,225 outstanding shares awarded tnrough the
Deferred Bonus Share Plar in respect of the yaars erded 30 September
2018 and 30 September 2019 12,963 shares awarded through the Deferred
Bonus Share Plan i respect o tne year ended 30 September 2017 vesteo
during the year ended 30 September 2021

Dilution limits {(not subject to audit)

The Group nas at all imes comphed with the dilution imits set outin the
rues of its smare plars (principaily a 'mit of "0% in 10 years), including the
newly approved YCP The Compoany s current'y we'l within trese d lution

| mits Shares to sotisfy awards grarted urder the PSP which are rarmal'y
purchased in the market do not count toweros the diluton limits

Annual Report and Accounts 2021 Hyve Group ple

Directors’ shareholding guidelines and share scheme
interests (audited infermation)

Durng the year, the Executive Directors were required to retain shares
of a value equol to 254 of the gair made after tox, on the vesting of
awaras under the Plans, until they nave suilt up therr mirimum
shareholding of ot least 200% of camual pose salary Under the rew
Policy, or leaving employment, Executive Directors wll be expected fo
maintan the lower of 130% of their mirimum sharehold ng requirerent
or the r actuol sharehelding at the time of deperture for "2 months fram

ther termination date

The tab e be ow shows the Directors’ interests in shares owneo outright
end/cr vested, and the extent to which tre Groun's sharehclaing
gudel nes are met. Mark Shasheua, Johm Gu | ver and Richard Last
parhie pated in the recent placing exercise or 18 Novermber 2021,
resulting in their sharehold hgs increcsing to 670,825, 205,63 and
62,848 respectively

Murrter Namber Number Murnbier

of Lrueslea of snares of shares al shares Sharehold ng

shares sutyert  neld anaer the held as at boloas o guideling

to Sorformance  Deferred Bonus 30 September 20 September foe = ot
cordifions Share Plon 2021° 2020 salary fees;  Luidelre mel
Maork Shaskoua 1167,682 85,215 637,594 609,277 200% Yes /5%
Jenr Gul'iver 390,23 - 59,735 52,000 2000 Ngt 125
Ricmard Last - - 195,000 195,000 r/a ria
Nichelas Backhouse - - 16,250 16,250 r/a n/o
Shoron Bay ay - - 9,205 9,205 n/a nio
Stephen Puckett - - 8,937 8,937 n/a n/o

PER award: are grantad ac norrinal cosl oplions

2017 vected during the year

2 Currer: sharehelding e udes net chares cvrea sunght aad. or vested and shares held by fam ily nrerect- Or 28 May 20 the Cormipar v urderiool o share canscl dahon under wah
sharehaloers rece veo canealidnied ordinary shares =1 1he rahe of one cansolaated erdimary shiere 1 subedtul on for ecery 10 exishing ordn ary sheres Lock Orectarfock apintul bis o
her nghte avarable urder the nghts mope wdech completed on 72 Jure 2020

4 Rlarg Snatheuanatmescted 2w f s arroustinche Compary priecto b e porder T impaci o the o are proce o d e sare coresl 2 alion ong late trabdeir 2 und sx-ceas-
tne chareboding gudelre al shal m e Cansequently 1nine Committen < epimon beas core dered *s carinud 1o I*e sboirehold ag guimeline:

Deterrard Rarys share oworar n respecd oF e yeare ended 30 Seprember 2018 and 219 for Mark Shashoun 28,218 shares nie pedd of the awnrd {37 -be year ended 30 Septemper

Jora G hiver wone ey appoied le ke Board on 1 Ocraber 2020 ond as arercolis ne m Hed Inbu ld e his sharencle ng reep. rermert Seec anee

a3
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Directors’ Remuneration report

Directors’ interests in Performance Share Plans (audited information)

Details of cutstand’'ng PSP awards are as foliows. The performarce targels are summorised below the tobea.

[EER Share
pree at prics cn
Crarted Opror Freromed Exercise dote of Doz
aurng durng o 30 Sep Dare of granl Erercicable Exercmobe  exervine
Dractor Schame 1O 200 tne year he year Lzt 2021 grar: H! rrem te £204
Mark Shashoua
2014 Employees’
Perfarmarce Share P an 73,049 - oo - (73,049} - - D4/12/20°7 £6 24 04/°2/2020 0a12/2027 -
2014 Employees’
Performance Share P an 624,812 - o001 - - - 824,912 14/03/20°9 £.382 14/03/2022 14/03/2029 -

2014 Employees’
Ferformarnce Snare P an 81302 - oo - - - 81,102 23/01, 2920 L6 Q7 23/01/2023 23/01/2030
2014 Emoloyees’

Performance Snare P an - 461,668 310 - - - 461,668 04/12/2020 £7 24 0471272023 04/2/2030

“ota’ 779,063 461,668 - (73.049) - 1,167,682

John Gulliver

2014 Employees’

Performance Snare P an "34,824 - Qo1 - - - 134,824 14/03/2079 £382 147032022 1470342029 -
2014 Emiployees’

Performance Snare P an 33957 - 001 - - - 33,857 2370172020 F6 Q7 23,01/2023 23/072030 -
2014 Employees’

Performance Share P an ~ 221,450 310 - - 221,459 04s12,2020 £7.24 04,12/2023 04/12/2030 -
Total 168,78" 271,450 _ B o ~ 390,231

Tre pesicrrance ccrd 1ons oppl, gt the avard granteo on 2 Jezemaer LLEL are ostaled on poge 90

i Thepere rane cora o anpharg te the avards granled 1np o yess ore el oot e Directon Zemruneation Seperl for 1l e reopective year
3 Tre nee coracs fur The asard araried on 2 Decer ber 2018 were lestert il b venr era A sl not 3m page 20 ancue the Presseld serfermurce larget were ol et
b Hros owara mosed e

For a lthe cwards, both the rumber of snores iIncluded r toe aocve tables end the share prce at grant rave seen adjustec ‘ol owing the share
consoncat an ond 2020 r ghis issue using tne standord "ERP cdjustment to ma nta r the va ue of the award, on a trecret cal asis, tarcugh the 2020
rig-tsissue Tre awords granted i 2017 had previcus y bee~ adjusted 11 a simi ar manner for the 2018 rights 1ssue “he TERP formu o s as approvec
by HMRC cne appled to bot~ executive and al-emoloyee share awcrds

Service contracts (not subject to audit)

17 ime wih Provis'e= '8 o the 2018 UK Corporate Governance Core, ol Drecters ore subjeatto re-clect om annualy at the Compony's AGM
“he Che rmar nas ¢ s x-montn rehice penca and the Hor-Execut've Directers have o ene-maorth notce per ad Eack Ne=-zxecutve D rector s
engagea o he oss of a letter of gpooirtment wrich are availsble to view ot tre Grouc s registeies crhce and of the AGM

Tre etract. 2 daes oo their letters of gpzoi-tmart ore o “ollows

Lot et e et e
Richare Last 12 February 2078 6 ricethe
Stephe~ Pugzett 6 Moy 2002 S mgath
Shore Boyiay 24 Marca 2004 T gtk
KN ecrcas BEoocrbouse “ Aoy 2079 Fmonth

POVe T XES v 0T J T Sve QLT e B U

it o e ovoiotle

co-tracte oo o e geont cot e naerod oo a- foiows

fAare Sra= oL

e
3
o

Jers Gu e




Strateg.c rencrt O Gevernance F-nancia statements Annual Report ana Accounts 2021 Hyve Group plc

Statement of shareholder voting ot the AGM (not subject to audit)

“ne following tab e shows the vohng ocutcome of Ine latest Directars’ Remuneration Pelicy ond Anaual Repait on Remurerat on resclut:ons presented to

shorenolders

ynlen o Votes agannl  vales walhbye
sesoulizr Yovas [or S Vobes against el [absyientign:
Annual Remunerction Report {2021 AGR) 154,382,709 93 5% 10,740,825 8 5% 1,918,050
Directors’ Remuneration Policy (2021 GM) 156,407,562 79.2% 51,565,240 2487 37,382

T-e Rermuneration Policy wos presented tg sharehslders following o significant level of srareholaer cngagemenr, with ¢ 60% ot oul shareholder basc
Gur ng snareholaer consultat cnwith our largest sharchalders there was strong support for the overa I rahonaie anc approcch However, the Committes
a'so recogniseo “hat, given our diverse shareholder base, together with the noture of the proposals, @ sigen~cant numiber of shareholders oid rot feel
anle to support our aopreact to remunerglion Tne Commiliee wilibe engaging with sharehaolders who were unsuppartive to further understond ther
concerns and perspective, As the Gencra Meeting was belo in Octaner, this process of engagement s st i in orogress, and details of the outesme of tnis
will be disc’oseo in next year's Directors’ Remunerahon report.

UK Corporate Governance Code: Provision 40 (not subject to audit)

The Commuttee cons aers thot the curreprt Remuneration Policy and its imslementation dur ng tre year anpropriately addresses the foawing princip’es,
as set out in the UK Corporate Governonce Code

Principle How the Comrmittee has addressed this

Clority I line witn sur commitmert fo ronsparency ard cngagement with shorenoloers on executive rernureration, the
Remuneraton Committee Chair hos engaged extens vely with our shorehoiders throughout the year, perticularly with regare
tc the VCP. Detar's are provided on noge 99.

Simplicity In determining the remuneration fromewcrk, the Comm Hee was mind‘u of aveidicrg complexity and ensuring that
arrangements are eosy 1o understand for stakeho ders Our remuneration arrargements ore simple in noture anc well

understood py part'ciparts and shareholders

The new VCP encourages a simple focus or long-term shareholder value creation,
g B

Risk “he Commttee be'ieves that the structure of remuneration arrargements coes not encourage mapproprate nsk toking

The remurerahor framework Nos a number of feotures which a'ign remunerat.an cutcomes with risk, including the deerrcl
of bonus intg shares, the boldirg period on PSP and VCP awards, ond personal sharehelding requ rements Tnese features
ensurc thot Executive Directors are neenhvised to aeliver the Group’s strateg ¢ ambihiors within the Group's risk oppefite

Molus a-d tlawback provisrons apply 1o t~e a7 nuel bonus and VOP as well as any in-fignt PS= awaros

Predictability The Remunzrat on Policy contarms illustrations of thresho.d, torget and maximum oppartumity under the anrual bonus ard
VCP Actual auteomes are dependent an performance achieved ageinst predetermined targets

For the 2021 PSP, the velue af vesting wi | be cappea sucn that perticipants caanot receive any share price growth cbove o
L2 50 shaore grice

For the new VCP, tne starting po'rt at wrich the market cop hurdle begrs to ca cu'ate value creahon s set at £1 30 which s
¢ £0.22 above tne actusl share price on the dote of awata 11 oddition, there 1s o cap on the number of shares that can be
deivered under the VCP

Prapartionality Tme Remunerat on Palicy 15 desigred such that Execut-ve Directors are nat rewaraed for poar perfoermence Performance
condtions attached to the onnual berus a~d VCP recurre a minimum level of pertormonce 1o be eck'eved before ony oayout

s aohicved

Tre Committen kas discretan to adjust both annual bonus ara YCP oulcemes when they ore not consicered to anpropriately

reflect the - derlying perlormance ¢f tne indivioual o the Gro s

Tae Cemmittee = mundful of a@lignment wih tne workforce wass makirg geois ons about executive poy, and peniodicaly
recewves "epolty on the emaloyees’ v ews on the Company’s remunerat o slructure

Alignment with culture Tme perfermance mecsures that are used for tre annucl bonus are ¢ osely ol gred w th the Compony’s purpose, values
and strategy Far 20272, the acqoeal bonus framowes has sese o gned with the shert-term strateqie goaie of the Company
Tne VCP focyses oart cipants or Hyve's embitious growth strateqy a~d long-torm va ue creat on for sharehe ders

95
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Rermuneration Policy

The 2021 D rectors Remunerchion Policy (the Polcy) wes approves cf
the 20 Oictober 20 Tieneral Moctic g and took ¢ 7o from thal date
“re Remunerat an Pol'cy appues to payments made afer traf date

The letters from the Chairman and Croir of the Remunerot-on Commtiee
in the Gotoker 2021 Netice of General meetirg, set out the rehonale ard
decisior makirg procass for the praposa of the new Pel'cy funaamentally
cont nues our ex st Ng nolicy princptes, whico are to ensure thot the
comoensataon offered 15 competit ve, a1gns Executwve Directars’ nferests
with those of the sharebglders, cna gttracts, retains and maotivates
Executive Directors witn the oolity and excenence to del ver the Group's

strategy and grow the business The link between pay ore perfermonce
unger the new Pc iy is irterdec to ne simple o~d eosy to urderstanc

The key crenges under the Policy re ate fo te irtroduchior of tre Volue
Creaf on Plan (VCPI

The VOP 1S simpie in coreepl. asit allaws nanagemert to share na
portion o the value created for v arerolders above o wpec—es ~Lide
growth rate Follawirg tme gra~t of VCP awarcs it is ntendeo that no
furtner awaras wili be made fo the current zxeeutive Directors urder
the Performance Share Plar structire cur ng the Iife of this Pe oy

The other key change is thot the Poucy has been amended to ntrecuce o
pos-empiloyment shergholding policy o reflect the 2012 L< Cerpora’e
Coverno-ce Code

Element Purpose and link to strategy Qperation

Process for developing the Policy

The Poiicy was deve aped over the course of 2021 Ir | ne with tre

cemm tment made 17 st year's Directors’ Remunerat on Report, the
Compattee gove extensive consideration fo the approorate 'ong-frerm
incentive framewore to cover the next three-year pened, pocng o
particuar focus on allgnment w.i~ tie new strategy and Hyve's bola
ambihions fer growth ana value crestion for our shareholaers Ths
included a detalied veview of o'ternat’ve designs seer 'n the mar<at oro
cons.aeration of how each of these would olign with Hyve's pusiness and
strategic object ves. Input was receivec from tre Choirman, management
ard tne independent adv sers te the Cocmm Hee, while ensuring taat
corfiicts of intzrest were suazly mimgarcd As tighlighted aunng tre
Poiry review, the Charr of the Remunerat on Comm ttee engoegeo in
extensive consultat cn witn our largest sagreho'ders, anc changes were
made to the proposals at mutiple ponts aurng tne desigr precesscs o
drect response to srarennlcer feedaack

Directors’ Remuneration Policy table

The fo' owirg tacle summarises the key features of each element of the
Peicy, their puroose ane 'Ink tc strategy

Fulgetals o’ the goclcahon of the Po wy for FY22 are disclosec on
page 86

s tabe alse apples te ary other ndvicue who 1z requ-cd fo te treotec
as an Execut v Director under the cpplecble regu abons

Qpportunity Performance metrics

Base salary Sef af comnettve ‘evels  Typically rev.ewed arrualy

n the markets nowhicn with changes rormoly
the Group operates. efecuve from " Cotaner
te attractara rata'n of eacn year
execut ves capable Salanes wili be set by the

of oe venirg e Committee, considerirg

Groun strateg
av & Scoproftrero'sanctre

riar<ets inown on the
Group operates,
e Performa~ce cno
exper ence of the romwviduo .
s Poy evosaoforgan sohiors
ofoum or e re cna
cerpexty cno
s Poyordooretons

carsere ~ o Grous

There is no avera' mas mum Net applicable, thougn

coportun ty ar increase ‘ndiv dua' cerformance
Salar es moy be 1ncreasec eacn wi | be cons'dered wher

. \ v 5 | 3
year (11 percentage o salary terms} review ng bese sa'ary levels
i line wath ncrecses gronted to the

w der workforce

Increases beyand those gronted to

tre wicer werkforce (I percentage

of so ory terms) may be awaorgec in
certa ~ crcumstances, olud g but ~ot
rtee fo where there s @ change i
reszena iy cxnenence or a significart
neregse nine sco e of the role anodor

sze.vo ue Gr oMo exty of the Goup

ol s et - e e Ll Tl

settrg sacry of o rew Rreat c gsccast

ICREEES

et cve rio ynroic

~oemectonr es gt o'orhecn tOreG

T auDTequent ieRelaial ol ilalite Rt

tet-o o

oG sunjeci to the

G QUG L DETRS TN CE
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O Governance

Purpose and link te strategy

Financial statemerts

Operation

Annuol Report and Acccunts 2027 Hyve Group plc

Opportunity Performance metrics

Renefils

Des'gned to ne
competitive in the
rarket in waich the
individual is employed
ana ta support the
welbeing of employees

Berefts include hfe msurance,
private medical insurence and

inceme pretectior insurarce

Wnere oppropriate, other
benefits may ne offercd,
including, but not 'mited

to, allowances for car,
accommodation, relocatior,
other expatriate bens™ts
(includirg tax therean) and
participotion in all-ermp'oyee
share schemes (Ir accordance
with 'm ts set by HMRC and/

cr the parameters of any other

cpplicable legislation).
Berefts vary by role and
indvidual circumstance
and elig bility 1s reviewed
periodicolly.

There 1s no prescrined maximuam Neot apol'ceble
The value of benefits may vary

from year to year deperd ng ¢n

the cost te the Lampany *from

third-party providers

Retrement
benefts

To provide cos=-effective
retirement benefits as
part of o competitive
package, to aid attractior
and retenhicn of hign-
calibre executives

Participotion in defined
contribuhon pan or cash

inheu

The current level of Group cortrbution Not applicoble
15 10% of base sa ary, whicn s in ine

with the UK workforce rate

I he moximum percentage moy not
exceed the workforce rate The Comm™ ttee
has d scretion to consider the retevont
workforce rate, ‘ncluding consideration

of the relevant global jurnisdiction.
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Elament Purpose and link fo strategy ~ Operation Opportunity Parformance mefrics

Annual Designea to reinforce Aworos ore bosed on Maximum potential opporturity of Borus wi'l be predominantly
performance  indiv.dua’ performance  performance measured over up to 150% pase squary bosec cna range of

honus and ncentivise year- the financal yeat fnoadial targels {Tor

on-year deivery of
sustsinable financial
perfermarce ond
stratege cojechives.

For the current kxecutve Directors,
Execufives o<e normaily moximum bonus cppoertun fy
requ red to defer ore-thre levels are

ot ony banus pa'd into shares * 150, of salory (CEO); ard

for three years, with the 3 R
& 20°% of soary (CRFOO)

balence saig in cos Deferrea
stares typrcally vest subject
to conbinued employment

Under the VCP structure
management w |l make o
signincant uot-ontinvest—ert
ir the growth snares For FY22
only, part c.paats wll be cble
to fund th s investment from
the elerment of the FY21 bonus
wh €1 s narmally deferred inte
Hyve ple shares,

D wvidend equivelent paymerts
maoy be maae on deterred
s~ares attne time of vesting
aro mey assume the
reinvestmant of dividerds

Payments maae urder the
cn~ual nenus are subject to
recovery cnd withheldirg
prov sicrs Further aetailis
provided rthe rotes be'ow

examoie, revenus growth,
casn conversior and

proh) For ¢ mincnity of

the bonus. targets may
remate to tne Group's oiner
operational and strategic
nriortes (which may rolude
‘novidual targets)

The Comm ttee sets the
weightings of the respective
meteics o~ on annual basis

Perfarmance 1s measureo
over the financial year

For inanciol targets, and
where practicable strategic
targets, bonus storts to
accrue orce the threskod
target is met, rs’rg or a
groduatea scele to "00%
for out-perfermance

"he payment for threshoid
performarce may ne
adp.sted to reflect -he
reture of the torget set

Tre Committes has

d scretior to adjust formu aic
outcemaes, “ it belisves

it be-ter reflects averall
Company o ine vidua
performancea [cither
faarcial or ~on-financel
.~ the yoar Wnile this caon
be beth upwares ard
cewrwaras [ nc'uding to
zorp), tre oomus may nat
oxceed tne mox mum levels
aefciea ntro Polcytoo e




Strotegic report O Governance

Element Purpose and link to strategy

Finarcia' statermnents

Operation

Annua: Reoort and Accounts 2021 Hyve Group ple

Opportunity

Performance metrics

Value Creation “o citract, reta nand

Plan -neerhv se Execuhive
Cirectors Thisisa
new plen designed o
a1gn the nterests of
Executive Directors
ara shareholders,

by incent.vising the
delvery of substant al
ana sustaimed
sharekolder return
cver the long term.

Grant ¢” one-off awards
to cover o five-year
perfarmance penod

Trne award gives Executive
Directors the opportunty
to share 'n the total volue
created ‘or snarehelders
above a two-tier hurale
measured at yeors three,
tour and hve

The hurdle evels are:

& ‘0% growth per onnum:
"0% VEP pool, and

& 5% growth per annum:
20% VCP poal.

Executive Directors may

choose to rocave the'r

share awards by acaurring

subsichary growth shores at

the hime thot they are irvited

to join the vCP

50% of cumulatve VCP vaiue
wilivest in year three and year
four {less anything paid ir yeor
three), witn 100% of cumulat ve
VCP value vesting folawing
yeor five (less onything pand

in years taree and fou-),

Any VCP value will be
deliverec in Company shares
trat will be subject fo o
two-year holding perod

If the: mimmum growth burdle
of 10% per annum nos ~of
beer achieved ir yeors three
ar four, 7o value wll be poid
ot thatt me, but value may be
delivered inyecr five provides
the nurdle bas peen met

o dividends or div.derd
couvalents w 'l be paia prior
to vest ng, but copustments
mMay be mader tne ovent of
a spec ol avidend or wmrar

capitol reture

The maxirnum number of Company
shares that may be de wverea uraer
tne VCP s subject tc a lim tof 7% of
tne ssuea shore cap tal on the daote
of the Pan’s cdophon

For the Executve Directors, the
fellowing maximum VCP value

| reuts appsy

e C:0 35% of the VCP pool: ard

® Other current Execut ve Directors,
19% of VCP peol

bor the Executive Dhirectors, the

maximum number of shares which

may vest under the VCP s as *ollows

e CEQ. 6,495,638 shores, gand

e Other current Executive Directors:
3,526,203 snares

In the event of o new Executive

Director hirg, the level of YCP value

tat may be delivered wi | be

considered atf that time butwil in

ro event exceed the max mum limet

in respect of the C=O

it s mot inteaded that oy further long-

term incentive owards outside of the

VCP wll be moce 1o ex’sting Executive

Directors urder tmis Pol cy.

Miaimum growth hurale
of 10%. per annum. Uoper
growth hurdle of 157,

per annum

"ne starting share price
for the beginmirg of tne
VP performaonce oeriod
wil be the higher of the
tnree-manth average
up te 30 September 202°
ard £ 30

The share srnce used an
each vesting date .n years
‘Free, tour and five will
normally be basea ona
three-montt average to
the end of the relevant
anancial year

The Remuneraton
Commttes may reduce

the level of va'ue

delivered under the VCP

i* 1t determines tnot the
formulaic vesting level would
mat re” ec- the underlyirg
frnancial or non-fnancial
performance of the
Cempany or the port'c’ pant
or such other factors os it
may consider appropriote,

29
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Element

Purpose and link to strategy

Operation

Opportunity

Performance metrics

Perfarmance
Share Plan

To emsure tmaf the
Execut ve Direcicrs’
i~terests are a'igned
with those of
shareholders through
praviaing shere-basea
awaras inked to

susta ned improvemenrts
inlong-term targeted
oerformance metrics

Fo lowing s~arehclder
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Notes to the Remuneration Policy table

Performance measure selection and oppreach to target setting
Performance targets ore set ot such a tevel as te be stretch'rg and ocrievaole, with regora to Ine particu.ar strateg c prior hes and econcmic
env ranmenrt

The fol owing sets out the perfarmaonce mensures ‘or ennual bonus ana Value Creotion Plan ewards in TY22, 08 we! us [he business performance ana
the behav'ours that they drive

Component Performance measure Link to strategy
Annhual bonus Amixdre of imancigl and strategre meosures doternuned Set - line with the (roup’s KBls ond key financial and
each year oy fne Committee strategic criorities for the Company The use of inancal

metrics (which could incluge revenuc, pro-tability ard‘or cash}
ensures executives are focused or maintarn ng the onge ng
ti-gncial health of the rusiness Strateqic ocjectives may

be ncludeo where approprate fo ensure de ivery of key
business milestones,

Value Creatien Plan Market capitalisahon growth Provides aigrment with shorenolders or the och.evement
of the Group’s long-term growth ambition Monogement
will orly succees in significently i-creasing the shore price if
strong financial performance a-d key strategic miles ones
are celivered.

The Committee may vary or rebalance the weighting of the performance Serious reputchionc! damoge,
metrics for future incertive awards to ensure that they rema’n aligned
witn the Company's strategic objectives 1ne Committee may also adjust

the targets for awards ar the calculation of perfarmance measures ond ® Matericl corporate folure, or

® Ser.cus misconduct ar matenal error o= the part of the participart;

vestirg outcomes far events not foreseen at tne hime the targets were set . S .
9 g & Any ofher crcumstences which the Directors, in the'r discretion consider

(e g molerial M&A activity) to enzure thet they re~ain o fair reflection of , L |
9 ) neuTe ¥ to be similar in the r nature or effect to those e’ ot acove

performance over the re’evant period When maxing sucn juagerents,
the Committee may consider all such factors ceemed relevant In respect af cl other reentive plans, malus one ¢ ewback moy be nvoked

by the Committee 1n the event of a froud or material misstatement of
Clawback, malus and discretion

Clowback 5 the recovery of payments made unoer the onnual borus
or vested deferred bonus, PSP and VCP awards. the Committee may
decide fo epp y ctowback far up to one year frem the payment of bonus ' Discretion car oe exercsed by the Commitiee. in lire with the 2005 UK
Corporate Governance Code, to adjustincentive outcomes fo ensure

resuits being denthed in relation to the year ir which - e bonus or

incent ve was earred

awards (or the comp'et'on of the next audit of Croup accounts, if ater),

and up to two years from the vesting of PSP awards, For the VCP awares, . thal they rema reflective of urdorlying finanual and nen-finandial
ciawback may apply up to the end of the helding per od for each trarcne performarce of participants or the Group or where the formula cutcome
of tne oward .15 not aopropriate in tne context of arcumstances that were unexpected or

, unforeseen wnen the targets were sef,
Clowback moy apoly te al or part of o partcpant's payment or award

and may be invoked, among other mea~s, oy reduc g outstonaing Subject to shoreholder approvai of the VCR, tne Cormittee wi | have the
owards or requning e returr of the net varue of vested owords to ab’lity to reauce the leve' of value del'vereo under the VCP in the event
the Graup that bus ness performonce 1s not deemed to be @ igned to the outcome of

the VCP, The Committee may use its d-scret on fo recuce tae VOP vesting

Malus 15 the adjustment of urpaid crnugl borus, uvestea deferrea oonus , ,
. ) level i I cons cers “hat trig doet not reflect the underlying troncial o

owards, unvested PSP awards or unvested VCF snores The Committes .
. : non-frencial peformance of *he Grolp o e parliiipart ouer e
may apply malus to recuce an award o determure thot twil' ~ot vest or
performonce pencd, if the vesting leve 12 noporopr ote © tne context of

that twili orly vest in port o .
crreumstances thot were unexpocted or unfereseen ot tre gront date,

In resoect of the VOB, malus and clowback may be nvcked by the or there exists any other reason woy or agjustment i acoorepnote
Comm ttee Ir tae event of the folowing arcumstonces

& A mateoal mosstatement of resulis;
® Zrrer passessing the VOF Poc a~d/or tra Ferformcnce Coraiion,

o Moterolfalwe of sk vanagerr en frzun or matesal iraroal

irreguanity,
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Detailed provisions

&l shore awards ore sulbyect to tre ferms of tre relevant o on ruies, gno.
wheve relevas=t, articles of Artic es et Associahon, urces wick the award
has been granted The Committee may adjust or omerd awards only

in accordance with the provisions of the relevant plar rules cr Articies
Trusncludes as using awards ta reflect ore-oft corporate svents suce
as o change in the Company's cap'ta structure ([eg anghtsissue ora
demerger} Inaccordance wi the plan ru gs, awarg may be sattleo in
cash rather than sraras, wnere 1ne Comm ttec considers th s apprepriate
[e @ exchange confro impact on qverseas part ciponis)

The Remuneration Comrttes reserves tne night to make any
remunerahon payrmente ondsor pay~ents for loss of o*fice (incluaing
exercising ony discrehons avalable to it in conrect on vath such payments)
notwithstonaing that taey are not in line with fre Pol ¢y set cuf apove,
where the terms of the payment were agreec either (1) oefare the 2008
AGIM (the date the Compary's previaus sharsholder-approvee Directars’
Remunaratan Policy came into efect), (i) a.ring the ferm of, and was
consstent with, ony previous pa'cy, or (1) of a time wnen the relevant
indrvicual was not a Director of the Compeny end, in the oo nion of the
Remurerabcr Committee, the ooyment wos not ir consideration for the
i~dividucl becoming a Director of the Company For these purposes
‘paymerts’ ncludes the Remunerction Committee sat'sty ng awards cf
vanah'e remune-oticn and, 1m re ahon fo an aword over shares, the terms
of the poymert are 'agreed’ af the t'me the award is granted

ire Committee mey noke M ner amendments to tre Remuneraticn

Po icy to aid its operabor ar imolementabien w thaut seek ng sharerolder
approve s (e g. for requlatory, excnonge certrol tax or admun strotive
ourpozes o to toke cocount of ackange rlegislot on)

Remuneration Policy for new Executive Directors

Differences in Remuneration Policy operated for other employees
The aporoach to annual so'ary rev’ews s consiste~t across the Group
Allemn oyees are cugible to participate in or arnual bonus scheme or
a commission-basea incer ive package COpportunimies ano specthe
performance conoifons vary oy arganisational level with'n tre Grouo,
wilth busiress cres pecitc ond personal met ics i~ corparated where
cpproovicie

Mermbes of senor monagement ano ofner kay employees are el'gible far
considerat on of awaras urder either the YCP or the PSF to further support
aligrment with sharenolder interests

Executive Director sharehalding guidelines

The impeartance of aligning tne imterests of Exeeut ve Directers and
sharerc aersis hugely important and, as sucn, kxecutive Drrectors are
expected to buld a sigmhcant share olding in tre Group aver tme
Executive Directors are normaily requ red fo retain shares of o value
equadl fo at east 257, of any gain made after tax or tie vesting of awards
urder the pigns, until they nave bull up o m mirmum sharenoloirg of o
value egu valent to at least 200% of annual base sawary

On leaving emooyment, Executive Directors wil oe expectec to mai~tam
at least 100% of their min'mum sharenolding require nent, for 12 mantns
fror therr termincticn date [f the lecver has rot yet met ther snarehc cing
requirement on departure, they wi | be reaured o retar the shares they
do own up to these | mts Th's requiremert car be waived rcertan
excepticra perscral circumstances (e ¢ ceath, d sabiity, il health)

These post-ermplayment sharehciding guide mes will can'y to ary
shares de.veres through the vesting of share awards mode ofter th s
Rera.neanon Policy comresintg effect

Wren opoontirg o new Kxecutive Divector, including ny way f interacl premot on, the Company moy make use of al the cxsting compeorents of

remuneration cs ‘o lows

Cempanent Approach

Base solary

Determined in ling w it the statec Policy ora consicering therr prev ous salery Intol sararies may be
set be ow market and cons cerchior g ven to prase any -ncrgases over hwo or f-ree years supject to
devclcp~erti- therole hbove ma et salanes imoy alse be offered if the expenence ann czlinre of
the conaidate 18 consinerea to just Ty such ar cpproach be ng taken by t~e Committee.

Benefits and retirements benefits

Ir | e v tn tne stated Pocy

Fer some canddates, t~is moy 1ncluge relocat on costs, “appcone

Annual bonus

r e with the rated Rohzy with *he releva roximm prorata to reflest e propathos of -ne

YED® Zerveo
Teiored borus targets may cpply M ire year of asoointmient tc o new Sxecut ve Drecter (e g “tre
soocromer-roskolote wewarcs the e dofo - nanciol year,

Long-lerm share awards

VWaere ro v oua soaric oate o toe VOB part cpotor v pe ~ Mo w b e stated Pol oy subject o

sutosc enerormoriecrteng 0 ~e with thg Rules arg treconnc o e oftre Por

inercent gma crcemistorces tre Commitier Moy € ecttc not groct an ~feccy e VIF o rey
erecul ve oope ~tig ut nsteco granter awarc unror tre PSFurc o micnr w27 230 o ro ary

cotert iy fr toe it under tre pre s sus Poooy e

cu s ~ol oe cxnzctes te o2 crortea cenras uncer sot e VP oo PEP our mgtoe

VR Id )

1~ s Po o,
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Firarcwol statemerts

When determiming appropricle levels of remunerohcn for o new Executive
Director the Committee wi | tawe into considerat urr all refevant foctors
(ncluding auentum, nature of remunerction and tre jurisdictio~ from
wnicn the candidate was recryited) te ensure that arroangements are n
the best nterests of both the Group and its sharehoiders

‘ne Commuttee may corsider appropnate 1o grant an aweard under

a structure not nc'uces nthe Polcy, to 'buy out’ remunerat an
arrangements forfeited o~ jaiming the Company Existing o aas ('nciuding
the PSP) may be used 'r respoct of buy-out awards an recruitment

The Comm ttee moy olso exerc.se the discret.on ovaillable under Listing
Rule 9 4 2R where necessary

Any such buy-ouf would be provioed for considering the foerm {cash o-
shares), tming ane performance cordtions of the rermuneration being
farfeited, with vesting on o comparable bosis to the likely vesting of the
previous employer's award Any 'buy cut’ oward wou d be exc.udea from
tne maximum value of Incentives referred to above. In cases of aopointing
a new Executwve Director by woy of internal prometior, the Group will
honour any contractua' commitmerts made pror fo therr promation as
Executive Director Any incentive owards granted nrespect of the pricr
role would be allowed 1o vest according to their original terms

In cases of appointing o rew fugn-Executive Director, the approach wiil
e consistent with the Policy

Relocation and expatriate packages

There may be cecasior when hiring a rew Executive Director that a
reloccticr pockage s awarded, where the irdiviaual or the iIndividual's
rmmediate family relocate either on o termporary o permanert bos's
1o fulfil their role in the bestir-erests of the Grous ana its sharehiolders
In such instances, tre Committes reta’rs the rignt to compensate for
reasanable and cppropriate relocolion expenses

Arnual Repart ana Accourts 2021 Hyve Group ple

Service contracts and letters of appointment

In lire with the Prov sior 18 of the 2018 UK Corporate Governance Cooe,
all Directors are sugject to re-elect.or onnuaily ot the Company's

AGHM The Cha'rman nas o nohce pernoa of up to six morths ana

the Non-Executive Direciers have a cha-merts rotice periad kachk
MNon-Executive Drector 1s ergeged bosed on a letter of opocintmeart,
which are avalable o view at the Group's registered office and ot

the AGHM

Execusive Dinecror service contrac*s bava 0 “xed term ard hove o
notice peried of up to 12 mertas, The current CEO has a nohice period
ot 12 months, ang the current CFOO has o not'ce period of six months
(in respect of notice from either the Executive Director or the Group)
The Executive Drrector service contractks ore ovailable to view ot the
Croup's registerad office and at the AGR

Exit payment policy

Tae Committee’s poucy 1s to seek ol mt severance poyments on
termination to pre-esteblished contractual arrangements and the rules
oftne relevant reentve plans 11 do'ng se, the Committee's objective is
to ave'd rewarding poor performnaonce Furthermare, the Committee will
take account of e Executive Directer's duty to mitigote their oss

Termination payr-er s are mited to coese salary, benehits and pensicn
during the notice periad ard the Compary moy elect to out Executve
D rectors on gargening leave ouring ther nohees period and/ar make
a payment in lied of notice ana co~*ractual benefits If an Executive
Director's contract 1s terminated, they may be el'gible for o pro-rata
banus over the period to the date of cessation of emaloyment, subject
to performance

An Executive Directar’s service cortract may be terminatec with
immediate effect for cerrain events suck as gross miscorduct No payment
or campensafion beyond sUMs 0ccrueo up to tne date of termimation waiil
be mode 1f such on event cocurs
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Diractors’ Remuneration report

in adaition fo the contractual prov.sions regarding payment gn terminet on set cut acove, the Group’s -ncert ve p ans, and share schemes conton

provisicns for terminot on of employment, wh cn cre summarnses 0 the tabie pelow

Component

Bad leaver

Good leaver

Change of control

Annual bonus

No ennual benus poyoble

Eligible for an award to the extert that
petformiance conaio: s have veen salisf-ed and
pro rata fer the properio- of the fnarcial year
served (or such lower pericd as tne Commiltes
aetermi~es), witn Committee d screticr tc trect
otherwise Perticipants mey be required to defer
a partior of any bonus info shares .0 ne with
the normal policy.

Eligible tor on awaerg to the extent that
performarce corditions have been
sansfed up *o the chonge of cortrol
and are rato ‘or the propert on of the
“rancial year served, wit~ Committee
d scretion to treat otherwise

Deferred Bonus Plan

Culstending awards
cre ‘orfeted

Outstanding awaras wll normally vest on the
or'g'nal vesting date or such other earlier dote
as the Cemm ttee may determine

Outstanding awaras well normally vest

mful

PSP

Outstarding awards
are forfeitea

Outstanding awards will narmelly centirue end be
tested ‘or performance cver the ‘u'! peniod, and
recuced pro ratc for tme based or the propaertion
of 1ne oerod served, with Caom~uttee ciscratior

to treat otherwize in respect o t me pro-rofing
Awarcs may vest ecrly in certam circumstarces
{e.g death, or ot tne Commuttee’s aiscretion)

Any appliceble nolding nenod wou-d ~ormaol y
corf.nue to aoc y.

Cutstanaing owords wil normally vest
ond be tested for performance ovar
the perod to chonge of contral, ord
reduces pre rata for t me based or the
oroporhon of the penad served, with
Committee discretion to treat otherwise

Value Creation Plan

Compulscry purcnase

of VCP snores by the
Compony Where owards
lapse the parhic pont wi |
be requirea to sel trer
growth shares af cost

Gaed leaver status may rorma y oy be awordea
to part ¢ pents frem the second ane varsary of
grar® Ifaparticipar: leaves witkin sne first two
years for any reason al awares would rorma iy
lapse (except i~ exceat one compossiorote
creumstarees)

The narticpart's VCP Shares w | cont rue to vest
i e ardinary course, subject to the schisfacticn
cf the Performarce Conaihion anec ¢ reducher to
refect the gencd elopsed o "¢ dae of leauirg
os a proporhon of tre vesting period, uniess

the Remunerat'on Committee cctermines that
they shoule vest o~ cessaticn, subject to the
Per‘armeonce Corahion (1n whicn case they wil oe
subject to hme pro--atng u~iess tre Comm ttee
determ nes otherwise)

A~y app coble kold ng penod would normaly
contimun tc cpply

Awards witl vest eary Tre extent fo
which ary urvested awaros will vest wil
be determ nea at the discretior of the
Comm Hee, consideritg tho re evan
VvCP volue ana ary adjustments they
ccns der appropr ate Aternative’y,
cweras may be cxchargea far
ecuvalent awaros of shares rthe

ocqu ritg company

An mowaua vou o cermoly be cors asrec a good ecver ftheysave

fororegsons of deatr
oot et tre ooy

cone aered oy e Co

et czoo ity redaroo oy ooesscton o7

o btE UC Y TUT 18 B0 CyeU Cr 8RGOy

Srany otho rennon fre T ton gotrorey e

ega o .got ooy

mece che pa oot Gre taa

ofaamogEt for Drene o

{am™mars

e
i ttee to ne ret rement

G omonnrect o

External appointments

Tre Brarasuooorts Dxocat se D rectors g

ang ot Drectorsiega ordeor orafeenaa aay ce’

tme v or cooreve of *re Ecord

ACuaE out are not mitea e aay rg any focs for outp acemient owesfarce

[ SILIF-¥ R olgl

20 Wit e g wonor ot offce ooen playrr et
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Tre charts below shaw how the rermanaratior of the Eiecuive [Divecton s vanes in three differert performarice scenanios

CEQ

Maximum ot
£4,095k

15% growth 354
£2,082k

10% growth O
£911k

Minimum
£542k

£0m £1.0m £2.0m £30m £4.0m £50m

Fixed poy

. Annyol bonus

®vcp

Assumptions underlying each element of pay are provided 11 the tabies below,

Component - Fixed Bosis

£1.0m £2.0m £30m

Base pay

Current salary (as disclosea in the 2020 Directors’ Remunerat o report)

Pension

Contribution rate applied to current salary

Other henefits

Estimated at ¢ valse of £1,000, in ling with 2020 single figure

Component — Varioble Minimum

Scenario - 10% growth

Scenorie ~ 15% growth Maximum

Annual bonus No bonus poyable Target bonus

0% ot moximum

PMaximurm PAcixirnum

Long-term share awards o VCP vesting

10% share price growth per
annum No VCP vesting

15% share price growth ner ¢ 34% s~are price growtn per

arnum arnurn Tas brood'y equates
to tne return which results

in the number of shares
ocelivered by the VCP be ng

capped

As tre VCP1s a block award covenng the three-year term of the Poilcy ratrer tnan an
annual awarg, potential pay-outs wave been ennual sec over o three-year penod

I~ ane with the disclesure regulohiors, the VCP shares vesting os a result
of the VCP poc! caiculohor have beer va uec usrg the share price ot
grantof £1.30, 1 e excludirg the impact of share price growth o- those
shares |f the srare price grow'h we-e 50% over the five-yeor peniod,

tne VCP volue wouls be £0 and the annuaiised total remureraton
pockage woulo be £1,280,000 for tre CEQ ard £678,500 for the CFOO
For addtonal reference, mode irg of Indrcative pay-outs was set gut in
tre Remuneraticn Committee Chair s leftes im tre Cetooer 2027 hotice of
Cenerg tAcching

Consideration of employment conditions elsewhere in the Group and
employee views

Wrhen rey ciwing and setti~g remurercher evels for Exccutive D rectars,
tre Commttes considers tne poy and emosloyment cond hons of ol
ermpioyees of the Group The Graup-w de nay rev ew budget s ore

of the woy factars when ceview ng tae sonaries of Executive Onectors

Adhough the Group bas not carned out a formal consultaticn regarding
the Policy, t does comaly with local regulations ard prochces regarding
erployee consudtarion more broadly “he O hiof Talert G5 cer perindicolly
feeds back employees' views on the Group's remunerchion structure

Consideration of shareholder views

It 15 tre Committee's pol cy ta consult with major shareholders oricr to
ony engrges to s Exocutve Director remu~ercton structure During the
suramier ard autumn of 2027, tre Caommittes carsutea extaraivaiy wit
major sharenolders ono engogea wilr tre prosy vod es o the design of
t~a VOP, this being the key change presosed for the new Remuncraton
Folicy to operete from the 2021 Gereral FMoet ng " his process wos
constroctive cna arovided vaiuable modt ang as o rosut, several crarges
were made to the Value Creation Plon desigr
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Directors’ responsibilities statement

The Directars are responsibie for sreparing tre anruc: report ana the
financal statements noccardance wir aophcable law cra regulahons

Compoany low reguires the Directors te arepare Fnonag! statemerts for
sac firencia’ yeor Uraer t~at low the D recters are required to prepore
tme Graup financiar statemegnts in accordance with Internationa’ Finaraa!
Reoorting Standards (IFRSs) as adontea by the European Urior ance
Artic'e 4 of the |AS Regulat or and hove elected 1o prepare the parert
campany 7 nanca’ sfatements in accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting

Standards and appticab e taw), including FRS 102 The Frmancal Reoarting

Starcaord applicable nthe UK and Repubhic of frelane Under company
low the Directors must rot opprove the accounts uness trey are sotsfied
tho' t ey g'-e ¢ 1rue ana fair view of “he s'are of a%airs of the Comrcary
and of the profit or oss of the Compaony for trat pe‘ioa

In preparing the parert company iranc ol statemants, the Directers are
requires o

® Seloct sutan e accounting pelc es ond taen app.y them cons stently,

® ihcke judgements and accaunting estimates that ore reasonable
aro prudent;

» Stote whetrer cpploabie UK Accourting Standords nave heen ‘ol awed
subject to any materal deoartures disc csec and explat-ed r t1e
financinl statements, ond

® Frepare the Ainarc al statements on the going concerr Bosi5 unless it ig

ircppraprate to presume that the Company wil. cont'rue 1n busitess

In oreparing tre Croup Anancio stotements, Internotions' Accourh~g
Sta~dard Trequires that Directors

e Properysclect and apply cceounting oolicies,

e Presentirformat on, incluong accou~hng pe 1cies, 1n a maner
that provides reisva-t re ianle, camparab'e ond u-derstancable
inormation,

e Proyae codit oral disclosures wren corpl ance with the soee ¢
reauire~ e IFESs ave im e hoiert 1o enable desers *o nderstord
tre imooct of aart cular frarsoctions, otrer events ang cord 1 ors or

the entty's G-arc.el oos ton and financ o perfermnarce, ond

tAake on asscssment of the Compary’s ool *y to cont nue as
¢ goIng COCern

The L rectors are respcnsin e "or <ceming adequote aoocu~t rg recaras

trgrars =t enr e s war d ewlan e e 7 ermnar y s trarcar ir - and

Compary cnoerco e toem i ensure that tre f morc ol stater

vetrtne Comoaries Act 2306 " ney are S rpin

tve ouset: of tre Inmoaoy oro hemce for far ~g regscmon e sle
creve~f.on ang gofectcn of froud ona ctrer regaans el

The Dot e ‘orthe ~a ieroree

bHC R 1% Stegrteiter

;
cornorgte 0og frorc o Yormcton srucenor its lommnny 5o

itegsator «tre Jlagvr wog o prenorst o Gou g sse ot o

Frorcgl:

caydror e aga

o wireascran e coouraoy ot oy e the faoacia pesten o' t-e
ot '—C“WD;‘,'
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Responsibility statement

We confrm that ta the aest of our krow cdge

#® T fronco stolernerts, prepares in accoraonce with the re'evont
finarc aireperting framework, give atrue a~d for v ew of tre ossets
nab hes, finanacl sosthon and orofit or loss of the Company and the
unaertacrgs included r the consolidation taken os a wrole,

® Tne Stroteg e report inc'udes o fair feview of the development and
performarce cf the busiress ana the positian of the Compary ard the
undertak ngs nciuded in the consolidation taker as o whole, together
with o cescription of tre pr ncipal risc ane uncertoimt s trat they face,
ard

® The anruc: rencrt ard firancai statemerts, token os o whole, are fair,
palanced and uiderstandable ano prov-de the Informatior necessory
for sharchalders 1o assess the Compary’s performance, bus ness moge!
and strotegy

This respors olity statement was approvea by the Beord of D rectors er
6 Decemper 2021 ana 5 signed o~ its behalf py

John Gulliver
Chief Finance and Operations Ofhcer

16 December 2021
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Independent auditor’s report

Opinicn on the financial statements

I our opinion:

e “he financal statemants give o hue and far view of the stote
o the Group’s ard of the Parent Corpany’s affarrs as ot
30 Septemper 2021 a~c of the Group's loss for the year
tmen ended;

* ‘ne Grove fraraal statements have been propetly preparea
n occerdarce with international accounting standards in
canformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006,

# Tre Group fnarcial statements nave been properly preparec
i1 accorcance with mternotional inancial reporting stondards
acopted pursucnt to Regulatior (EC) Ne 16806/2002 asif
apo les in the Europeon Un'en.

e The Pargnt Compeny hmoncial statements have been propely
prepared n accordonce with Un'ted Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice; and

» The firancial starements have heen prepared 1” accorcance
wth the requirements ¢ the Companes Act 2006, and, as
regords the Group hinancial stclemerts, Article 4 of the
IAS Regulaton

we have audred tne finanzial statemeants of Byve Group plo
(the 'Parent Company ) and ts subsidiaries {fre 'Group’) for the
year endea 30 September 2021 wh ¢~ comprise Corsclioateo
Income State ment, Consclidated Statement of Comarehensive
Income, Corsolidated State ment of Changes in kau ty,
Conscl:doted Stotement of Firong al Pesit en, Consoldoted
Cash F ow Staternent, notes to the Co~solidatea Accounts,

The Company Stetement of Firancial Pesit an, Tre Cempany
Stotement o Changes in tauty a~a nctes to the Compeny
Accounts inaraal statermente rclumng a suTmary of sigorcant
accourt'ng poicies

I+ e fno~cial reparting fra~ewotk tna® nas been applies in
the prepsratca o the Group fingnosl statements s applcarcie
law end rternctona account rg stondards ir corform ty

wth the requirements of the Companres Act 2006 and
rterrstoral —raragl repocticg standar s agootea oo suant
to Regu et cn (EC) he 16806/2002 as it cpm ez 1~ the Eurcnecn
Lo'gr 2nd or regords e Porert Company “nanciol stare s,
as aoolec maccoraance w it the provscrs of the Compan es
Lct 2006 Tredarar izl resorirg frarework hatbos ceen
appliedir Feorecorenan of e ko pt Tortnary fronc ol
stoterments = oppl can'e aw orc Uaiteo < rgocm Accourt ng
Ste~daras, imc ua ng Franc o Reoctt ng Sterdars "C2 Tre
Fi~crco! Report rg Sta~cora ~ e l-tea Lmgae~i one
Repus ¢ of lrelona (LU~ tes K ngdem Geroroi y Accopten
adccount ~g Pract ce

Basis for opinion

we conducteo our audd r eccordance wits internchonal Stordards on
Audting (U< (1SAs (UK)) and opolicac e law (ur responsibilibes u~der
those standards are further cescriced in the Auditer's respors bil hes for
tre audit af the financial <sta~erments section of our repor: We belisve
t=at the quat evidence we have ostamnegs ¢ sufhcient and appropriate
to provide a basis for cur comien, Our audit opinion 15 consistent with
the additiona repcrt to the gudit committee

Independence

Followirg the reconmerdation of the Audit Comm ftee, we were
appoirted by the Directors with our appaintment approved by the
shizreholders or 23 Januory 2520 to oudd e finaraal staterre-ts for
tre year ending 30 September 2020 and subseauvert fi-arcal periods

1 re periad of total uninterrupted engagement includ ng retenders ond
reappointments s two years, cover ng the years erded 30 Seatemper
2020 ena 33 September 2021, We remain ingepencert of the Groun and
the Porent Company ‘naccordance witn the etv'cal requiremerts that are
relevact o our gudit of the finare ol stetements in the UK, including the
FRC's Etvical Standard as cppled to isted public interest entities, ard we
have fo filled our other ethuccl responsicilibies in accorcance with these
requ remerts The ron-cuait sery ces pron bited oy that standord were
not proviaes to the Group or the Parent Company

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing *~e financial statemerts, we have concluded that the Director s’
use of the go rg concerr basis of aecounting in the preparction of tre
firarcal staterments s approcaate

We hove h'ghighted go'rg concern as a key cucit matter s a resut of
the estimates ara judgements required by maragemer? nther gorg
concern assessment and the effec on cur audid s'rategy The level of
Judoemen: a-d eshmaton uncertointy nas been sigrificany Increased
by the COVID-19 pandemic

As dsclosec in rote 2 andim tne going cencern and vicb ity statement
orcages 6010 82 1 the 2021 Anar aal year, the cperanons of the Group
co~inued 2 be sigmiticantly imoacted by TOVID -9, as aresult o' varyirg
locairestrictons or business events ana i~ternaticno travel corstramnts,
This ~@: caused significart distuption and economic uncertamty glabally
crdboshao zromcacter the SioLpsfooie expected cosm Tows, witha
censeouent ol impoct cn the going concers assessment

I~ oot on, os deser bea r note 20, the Group 1o con coverant
teg . remer's e odegre ton corechon wik s francirg

Wi sttee Crectors’ assessmert rorelotion to ga ~g corcern aid not
ide~hfy ooy ater asuncertairt e5 i th g resoedt wa neverthe ess
corsideies cOImg Lo CErT D e o SIg0 CanT NEv GNG A rey GO Matle
Cur evo uctor cfthe D rectors cisersrment o' tre Group ano the Pore-t
Lompoey sobiity to et rucdo cdast *-o go ng conen ~ nas s of
; cdn b motters Thoso worone
~grogerrectecaen Tow
y weere oeferm nEQ ON0 CPRICYen.

sraaoprovea sudgets ana

loakions

PR o 24 Pllgte]
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In nssessing management's review of tho going concern assumphon Overview
within the finanicial statements we hove ander taken the following ' Coverage
cudit proceduros Homker of
Lo oo nents
» Obtamed from maragement their atest gssessments that subport :
. = Frularepe audit work 9
the Boord's conclusions with respect to the going concern pasis of o
Ris« focused wrocedures 3

creporction of the firancgl stotements,
Analytical procedures performed ot groun

» Comudered the reasonab ity of tre 12-month pericd over which level 47 18%
maragerment have considered ond assessed the going corcern Total 59 100
azsumption in 'ght of all avalable nfermation abeut the future,
of which we cre aware as o resut of the aueit, Key oudit matters

Fipal 200

= Corroborated the extensian of wavers obtoimed suoseauent to the year T - - "
i . KAM * = Na'uction of irtangiole assets incluea-
end to underlying executec lega’ agreements,

ing goodwll Y Y
# Engaged our Business Restructuring experts to ana yse monagemert's . KAM 2 - Acqu'sit on of Shaptal« Commerce
base case forocast ena downside scenorios, ard suosequently . LLC ("Snoptalk”) and Greceryshop LLC
chalienged the odequacy ond eppropriotencss of the underlying v ("Groceryshop') N Y
gssamptions, including the mpact or projecred revenue, profitabdity ©KAM 3 - Disctosure of cajushing items and

ano cask flow of an extended period of restrictions v the trade the presentctior of aternatve perfarmance

exkubitions and conferences sector; moecs.resin the | nandat statemerts N Y

KAM 4 - Going Concern Y Y

e Engaged our Bus'nass Restructuring experts to review management’s

‘reverse stress test’ ana ys's outining the condihons management
. L X . KAM 215 no longer conudered to be o key audit maotter pecause althougn
bel'eve would be required far the Greup to breach covenants oullined o A k
S . - there 1= a~ acguis nenin the 2077 “rancial year it s not of the scale a- d
within 1the going concern anc vability statemert an pages 60 to 62 and

i i : > |
reviewed the likelinoad of such condifions arising, complexity of the 2020 acquisihor and therefore it has been concludes

fo be not so signifbicant as in the crevicus pericd

e« Rohustly challengea maoragement on gssumoticors uscd within forecasts ) .
. ) KAM 3 s no langer a key oudit matter as there s loss uagement rvalved
through use of exterra’ data sources ond cerroborative evidenca - -
. Inan in the previous year
where possiple;
- = : . - Materialit
e Reviewed the i poct of COVIT-19 on he “ulure forecast cash “ows, Y

Group financiol statements as a whole
£ 2m {2020° £15m) based on "% {2020 1%) of a three-year average
of reverue

reviewing mavemeants in both projected revenues and costs to be
‘neurred in relat'on to future events, and

s Reviewed “Liure forecast cash flows and reverues ogoimst post yeor €7 o
performance ard trading cnaolys s

bascd on o work wo hove periormea, we have ot idenhiied any
materal urcertantics relating to events or cond-tans that, ind vicually !
o oollectively, may cast mgaiicant dount on the Group ard the Poront ‘
Company’s atility 1o contrue as ¢ going cencern for o perac of of least

17 ~ orihs from when fne tnoncigl staternerts are auhonsea for ssue

In relot on to tne Parert Coempory's ceporting on now it has app ed the
UK Corporate Governance Code, we have noth ng matena to ood or
orow ottenior to in sefation 1o the Diracare craserant in tha hra- cal
statements that tae Drectors cons aer it asprasnate to aaopt the gorg

concern casis of cccountng

Qur resoons ol hies ond the rescors bil tes of rhe Directors w th respect

te gorg concern are doser bed e iae relevant sect ons of thes repad
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Independent auditer’s report

An overview of the scope of our audit

Qur Groun auo twes scoped oy abtaneg ar urderstand.og of the Group
ana its enwirormert, ‘rclud ng tae Group s systen of interpa’ contrc, ard
assessing the rsks of matericl misstarerentin the fineraal siasements
we o'so gddressed the rsk of monagement overrnide of nlerna: controls,
irc ud'ng assess ng waetner there was evidence of bias by the Directors
that may have reoresertea a risk of material -n sstatement

Of the Group's 59 reporting components, only those situated in {he

UK, kosaa and China weare (o sideed "o oe swgrm’ Lart co™ poner s
Trese, together with ¢ “urtner six comporents were subject to “ul scape
audht= for Group purpsers Specified risk-facuscd audir crocedares weore
carried out on a further three compone~ts Tne UK comopenenis were
cud fed oy the Grous oudit tearm ana the components 1 Russ.a and
Ching were performed by BDO Ruswia and BDO Hong <o~g respectively

The comporents w thin the scone of our work accounted “cr the
percentcges llustrated velow

Huarber of Croun

Lomoonen’s v 2lide
Ful' scope auait work completed oy BDO UK [ 26%
Ful: scopeé audit work completed by BDO
merwork et ar firmes - Russic and
Hoag Korg 3 447
R's<focusen proceaures cormp e1eci?y
BOO UK E) 12°%
Anc'ytea' procedures performea at B
greup leve! 47 18"

Componeg™t materalty rangea ‘rem £0 31m te L0 A7 (2020 £0 36m te
SO £4am) having regord to thae ~ix of size ano nsk orofile of each of the
componert ocross the Grouo

Our involvement with component auditors

Far the waork periormed by companent gudidors, we determ nea the eve
afirvolvemert reeded in order to be sole to concluze whether suffic ent
approoaate cuait ey cence nas nee~ cbianed os ¢ basis for curcp rion
onteg Group iranael statements o o wnole

“nn work 01 the overscos components was drected, supervised anrd
reviewed by the Group audit team This ‘re uded, but was net mutea to,
the issuance ¢f Group cuoit nstruchions, nolaing pencd ¢ meetings,
inciuding torma’ a~d documertaed plann ng and close meetings remctely
review rg comporent work completed and aiscuss ons with component
audit teams and local moragement

Key audit matters

Key auait matters are tnose matters thot, » our professionan jJuogement,
were of mos ugrificonce nour audit of *re financial staterments of 1he
currert penod o-d include the ~ 03" sig-ificant assessed risks of motenal
russtator en fve ether o net dac te froud) thal we ideatiica. i=cludi- g
ase which hod the grea'esi e*fect on the overall auadit strotegy, tre
allocaton of resourcesin ~he audit ana sirecting the e=orts of tre
engagemenrt feam 'hese matters were addressea ntne context of our
audi’ of the fira~.cal »tatere~'s oz a whele orair forrmng o.r opiric-
thereon, and we do 1ot provioe o seoarate op e~ or taese matters

i codtonio ine matter referced fo n the ‘Coc.us oms renchng 1o going
corcern section we idettimec e fallowirg as o key audit rmigiter
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Key audit matter

On March 13, 2028, 1he World Health
Crganization declared a giokal
pandernic in relahion o COVID-19 This
has impacted both global health and
the economic welfare ccross *he globe,
with restnicians on movernent of goods
and people pul in place in @ number

of countries, ond overall frading
slowing across the glebe in a nuinber
of industrics As aresdlt of this the
Group recogrised impairment charges
tstalling £:% 0mointhe current insnoizl
year and impairment charges totalling
£195 5mn respect of goodwll, £63 4m

inrelahion o acquired iIntangible assets,
and £4 5mmn retation o Interes'sin
assoviates and joint venturas in the
previows hnanciol year

In view of the impact of the ongoirg
COVID-19 pandemic an the Group's
business there s o nsk, whether due fo
fraud or error, that "he apphcanon of
nappropricte assurmptions supports
assets that shouald otherwise be
impaired or further impoired
tancgemant are required to test
annually for impaitment, ar more

frequerily f *here are indications
*hat gosodwill might be impared
ronagement tests i pairmendt
Tiough deterrminanion of the value
inuze of each cash generating urt
dent fied (CZU) Maragerertbas
dotermined tha* its goodwill and
intangible gssets are allocated to
1G cash generating units

To determine the volue in use of each
CGU, managerrent prepares a detalled
impairr-ent model using o nurber of
Judgemental assumptions (as described
in note "z to the inoncial statements)

How the scope of our
oudit addressed the
key audit matter

As part of awdit workings compleed,
we hove challernged Management's
value in use determined for each CGL
within the model prepared, including
the assuriprions underpinning the
rmodel

Our workan relation "o the model and

its @ssumptions was as follows.

+ Considering the appropriateness and
completeness of the number of CGUs
idernfied by moaragemert and he
associated allocation of assets of the
Group to each of these CGU as per
the accounting policy:

» Testing of -he arthmetic occuracy of
the rrodel used by Management,

o Agroeng tho underlyma tash flow
projechons far each CGU to Board
approved budger and three
year plan,

Challenged management on

their assessmen® of the impac: of
COVID-19 on the future forecast
cazh flows, az well as reviswirg
movements in both revenies
anticipa‘ed and costs to ke mcurred
in relation 1o future events as
indicated by monagement;

.

e Reviewed the likelhood and timing of
events forecas” by manogerment *o
take place in the short terrm, agreeing
to available third porty and other
avallable informahaon as opplicable,

o Reviewing the reasonability of central
cosls thot are allocated ta the CGU,

e Fngaging our valuahon specialists
to independently assess appropriate
discount rates,

s Agreeing assarrptions used within
*he eshimetion of discount rates
ncluding, country specific risk
pramums inflatior retes risk tres
rotes against independen:
market data,

s Reviewing future forecast cosh flows
and revenues againsT post year
end performance such os booking
statistics,

s Anzlysed the sensitivity of the
model 1o changes in assumphions as
outlined within note 12 in relation "o
forecast cash fows “e ana cencluded
the senstivities to be accurately
calculated and appropnate, and

s Review and conzideration of whether
the dis¢losures in the Annuol Report
and Accounts were appropriate

Key observations

Brsed on the procedures performed,
we concluded that the ossumptions
used within the impairmens model
prepared by management are
reascnable and noted no instances of
matenal misstaternents in the year

We noted thot disclosures made by
management within notes 12 ond

14 o7 the financiol stater-ents are
appropriote and the sensitivities and
assumptions outlined adequarely
describe the essimotion uncertamnty and
are consistent with the model prepared

m
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Independent auditor’s report

Going Concern

Key audit matter

As disclosed in note 2 and “he going
concern and viability staterrent on
pags: B0 o £2 nthe 20721 froradi
year, the operanons of the Group
cenbroed o e sigeficerdy iy pacies
by COVID 19, as a result of varying
local restricrions on basiness events
and internaronal travel constraints
This fias caused sigrificant disrupt.on

and economic uncertainty globally
and has had an impact on the Group s
fulwe expaced cush Tows, witn a
consequent impact on the going
COMZerm OsyeLsrr et

In addition, s descrnibed in note 20, the
Group has loan covenant requirements
‘o adhere fo in cannechon with ivs
finenaicg

Whils® the dires tors' assessrment m
relamion o going concern dicf no-
dentity any matenal uncertainties in
this respect we nevertheless considered
going tentern to ke o egr ficard nsk
and o key audit motter

Hew the scope of our
audit addressed the
key oudit matter

We analysed and evaluated
monagerment s zash low farecasts
and *he process by which they were
determined and approved, agreeing
the forecasts with the latest Board
acproved budge s and cormiming ths
matheratical accurocy of underlying
coloulohions

In gssessing manogement’s review

of the going concern assumption

wath nths fnanciel statements, we

have underiolen the following aadr

procedures

o Cbiomed from managerment ther
lartest assessments that suppart
he Board's concluzions waih
respe: i 1o the going concern
bass of preparaion of the
finamizl state~ e-rs,

Considered the reascnableness
of the 12-manth pericd over which
management have considered
and assessed rhe going concern
assumptionin ligh' of all avanilable
information aboul the future. of
which we ore aware as a result of
the audit,

Corraborated the extension of
wavers obtaned subsequen’ "o the
year end fo underlying executed
legal agreemenrs

Engaged cur Business Restracturing
experts to analyse managemen='s
base case forecas and downside
scenarnine. and subsequently
challenged the adequacy and
apprognateness of the underlying
ascareptions, inluding the impac on
projected revenus, profitobifity and
cosh fiow o gn extenaea period of
resriciione in *he ‘rode exhibitions
and conferen: es sector,

e sevewed future ‘orezast ta

s Erngaged aur Business Restructuring
experts to review manager-an''s
reverse stress rest’ analysis oathnung
the condiions managerren: beheve
would be required for the Group to
breach covenants oatined within
“he going concern and viob ity
starement on pages 5010 672 ond
reviewed *he iikelihood of such
conditiohs arising,

s Robustly challenged managemen-
on assumptions used within
forecass "hrough use of externol
dora scurces and corroborative
evidence where possible,

» Roviewed the irpact of COVID 9
cn the duture fzrecast cash Nows,
reviewing rmoverrenis in beh
projer 'ed revenues and cosis to be
incurred m relayon to future evens,
and

st flowe

and revendes agains® post year end

perforr-ance and troding analys:s

Key observations

Crar conclusion inrespect of going
cancerniz included within the
'Conclusions relating to gorg concorn’
section of this report on page 108

Our application of materiality

We acply the concept of mater ol ty oot in plarricrg ond perfarmimg

G aud or an evalusticg the effoct of visstate~e~+s We cor -ider

mater atty fo be tve megn fede by wh cn misstatererts, relua ng

I croerte

musstate ~ets excee

Derformeanre ™

colld of ecce re el oic de
[Tl o LI e U
auce toc 2aconropriote vicse

matesady wee use @

cr by 1o oetormy e fre gxt

sreaf rgasor anle users

~e tnar gl stote

2 the ororeh tpteatan

=recter oty eve

reeded

AR

Importently. ~isstetements below thase evels wii~of aecessarly oe
Y

c.oluoted gz i atenal gz we ales "ove acco .t *he natlice of identihed

Tiusstetererts, and the port cu gr € ~cumstarces of the roccurre

whe eval.onrg sher effertar ste “ror ol e'ster a-15 08 a whicle

Bosen or cur professenal wage™ment, we oetorm rea motar ol for tae

frore ol eserens

-
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Parent company financial statements

zon 020 202 2020
£Em Lm Lm Lm
Materiality £12m £15m £0 47 £C 54

Basis for determining
materiality

1% of three-year average of revenue

60 of Group performance materiality

Ratienagle for the Liivor e ssgiafoant lose

Oiventhe s gndcan loss

Calculared as a percentage Calculated as a percentage

benchmark applied before tax and decrease in before tox and decrense in of Group mgrenality for nf Group matenaley for
revenue for the curren® year revenue for the year due Group reporting purposes Group teporting purposes
due tz the effacts of COVID—3.  tothe effects of COVIES, given the assessmaent of given the assessment of
we based our materiality we bused our mafenality aggregalionrisk aggregation risk
calculanon on athree-year calculation on a*hree-year
average of revenue average of revenue

Performance £0 &m £ED9m £0 3 £03r

materiality

65% of group matenality
The 5% increase from the
prioryear s toreflect the
2nd year involvement of the
audit *eam and additonal
understanding of the Group:
and ils cperations

Basis for determining
performance
moteriality

605 of group malerniality level

657 of the parent company
materialiy level The 5%
ncrease from the prior year
s 1o reflect the ind year
involvernent of the audd
‘eom and additional
understanding of the
Cormpony and 15 opetahans

60% of the pareni company
malenahy level

Inse*ting *he level of performance rmateriality we considered a number of factors ncluding the expected total value of known and
Bkely rrisstaternents based on pos experience and other factors

Component materiality

We sef motenality for ench compenent of the Group bosed or a
percentoge of between 40% ono 60% of Group performance materia’ ty
dependent on the size and cur assessment of the nsk of motenal
misstotermert of that componert Comporent matenality ranged from

L0 31Imto £0 4/m Inthe audit of each compenent, we further appliee
perfornarce motenality evels of 5% of the compaonent moteniality to our
test ng to enzure that the nisk of errors exceedirg component mater clity
was apprepriate'y mihgated

Reporting threshold

We agreed with the Audit Committee thot we woula report te them
ah ‘rdividaal sugit differences in oacess of (124 DOD (OX LoT000)
We alsc agreed 1o recor: dierences below 1715 threshols “hat.in o
view, Worranted reporting on qualitative grounes

Cther information

Ime Derectors are respons ble for the other 'nformot on The other
informatian comorises the information included n the Annual Report
anal Accourts ather than the financ.al stacements and our gudrer's recar®
therean Cur opinien or the finondial statements does not cover the other
informahion and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated 1ir aur
report, we do not express any torm of essurance conclusicr thereen

Our responsibility is to read the other irfarmat on and, in doing so,
ronzder whether tne other Information 1s mcteriolly incorsistent with the
finarcial statements or cur knowledae octaimed in she coarce of the a..dif
or ctherw’se oppears fo be material y misstated I we oently suce
matericl inconsistencies o apparent matencl misstaternents, we are
requ red to cetermine whetber this gives rise to a meterial mizstetement
inhe fingaciol stotements trorisel. g1 If based or *he work we have
performed, we conclude that there s @ matena misstatermentofth s
otver in‘ormchion, we are reguired fo report trat foct

We have noth rgtc renortin th sregara

13
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Independent auditor’s report

Corporate governance statement

The Listirg Ru'ng require us to review the Directors stotement nrelation
ta going cancers, longer-term viability ana the port of tre Corperate
Governarce Stotement re'ating te the Parent Compaeny's compl ance
with the provisions o7 the U< Carpo-ate Governo-ce Code specihes for
our review

Based on the work undertcken as part of cur aud t, we have concluned
that each of the “c lowing e'ements of the Corporate Gavernance
Staterment s materally corsisent wits the fi-arcal statermerts ar our
krowledge obtaired aur ng the audit

Guoing concern and longer=term viability

e Tng Directors’ statement wath regards to t~e appropnateness of
adopting the gomng corcera basis of accounting ora ary materal
uncertamtigsidentihed, and

= The Direciors’ exploraoten as to therr assessment of the Group's
prospects, tne peroa th's assessme-t covers and why the nerioa 3
appropriate an pages 80 ta 872

Other Code provisions
» Directors’ stotement or ‘air, balanced and understondab e reporiing
on page 74;

s Boardscorfumation thatd bas carned cut arobus assessment of the
ermergng and princioa Nsks on page 79,

Tre secton of e anrua' report that descr bes the rev ew of

effectiveness o risk managemert a~d iricinal contral systems on
poge 73, and

» Thosection describing the work of tne Auot Comnmn tiee or pages /5
to 78

Other Companies Act 2006 reporting

Bosed onthe responsio | ties descrnibea below and cur work performad
cunng the course of the cudit, we are recu red by the Compon es Act
2006 ano 1545 (U 1o report on certorm op mions anad rmatfers as
descrined nelow

Strategic report and Directors’ report
In our cpirien, Dosed cn the wors undertake~ rthe course of the aud't

e The imcrmot or gwven nitne Strategic resort a~a toe Drectors report
for refrarcslyeor for wiich the fnanaal stotemer s ars prepared
& cons ster sk e Prgngial stgterents o

s ire Strateg croport asotre Dractore report noye neen orepored -~

accorocace w th anp.can e eqo reouremonis

I grted the crowledee are understond ~g of tre Groue era Porert

CMDOrY G LT mertontc oo 1tte oo citre cuat

e Serare ol e peo

Drrectorn renart

Direciors’ remuneration
I~ curco oo me cart of the U-ectors Remuncrat arrecart to ce aun &a

etz et At 006

o .o accrdance vt

b nenn or

to finarcial reporting precesses and about share copital s uc.res, givern
compiorcewitr rules 72 5 and 77 6 10 the Disclosure Guidance cnd
Transparency Rules sourcebook made by the Finencial Corauct Autnarty
e FOA Rules) 1s conmisint witt re inonaah voter onts and has baen
prepored n oceordance with eopiicabre legal reaure nents

Inlght of tne knowleoge and understanding of the Group and the Parent
Company and its envirormenrt cbtained in the course of the oudit, we nave
not identited matenal misstaterrents 1 *his in* oot e

Ir ouf co'mien, based on the work underta<en 1n the course of the cua't
informatior about the Parent Campary’s coroerate governance coce ard
proctices ard about its aaminstretive, manogement anc supervisory
bodies and the r committees complies with rules 72 2 72 3and 72 7 0
the FCA Rules

we have nothing to repart ar sing from our responsiolity to report
a corporate governrance statement 1as not been prepored by the
Perent Cempany

Maiters onwhich we are required to report by exception

We hove nothing to report in respect of the fol'cw'ng metters nre'ste-
to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us to recort to vou 1, n

Qur opimice

+ Adeguote accountmg recoros have not been kept oy the Parent
Comnpany, or returns adequate ‘or cur qud t bave nct been rece ved
‘rom oraeches not vis ted oy g, or

Ing Pare” Co~ pany financ gl statements and the part o° the Zirectors
remuneraton report to be oucited are not - agreemert w tn the

account ng recerds ana returns, or

Certain msclezures o Directors’ temuneration soecifed by low are not
made, or

We Fave not rece veo a the 'nformator ond explonations we reguire

tor our audit

Responsibilities of Directors

As expiaimea more fu'ly in the Directors' respe~s kb afies stotemend, tne
Duaciors are respo-sible far me preparaticr o the francal staterrerts
and tu comg sabished thathey gve a b ardlar viewe - dfor sLe
terng contre. as tre Directors determime s necessary te enable the
nreporgon 2P Ansacio! craterrerts that ore fren fiom mgtenal

r sstateent whether gus to froua orarrar

- prepanng tte franael soteents ne Diredis s areespor bl for
azweasrg the Grouns aretre Parent Comzany soc by is cc-truecs o
a

Citg CGRrert G sC 06 g, ¢s anracehis mett

“toer ofed o going conoer

3 us g the go g corcern nass of occoant tg us ese tae Do rector:
=) g =l

~ato audate e Group ar toe Pare~t Comipary or to cear
Soerat Cra ¢ TOve T0 TEQi ctora ve buttc oo o
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements

cmect voi or

o slee

oroondito csur oot
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gucrantee that an oudit corducted 17 cccordonce with 1945 (U wil
always cefect a matena! misstatemenrt when it exists, Misstatements
car arse rom froun or errer ard are considered matericl f indwicual'y
orinthe oggregale, ey could reasorably be cxoecd o ntiucnce

the ecorio™ic dec s10ns of users taken an the basis of thesz Anancal
staternents

Extent to which the audit was capable of detecting irregularities,
including fraud

Ireegulanties, inciuding froue, are instarces of nor-complance with laws
and reguichions, We design pracedures 'n ine w th our responsibilitics,
autlred avove, to detect naterial misstetements n respect of
rrregularities, including fraud The extent to which our precedures are
capable of catect ng irregulanties, including frauc 's ceta’led beiow:

® We gaimred an urderstanomg of tre legai and regulctory frameowork
aop icoke to the Group and the industry or wh'ch It operates through
diseussions with management, the Group’s legal counse and the Aucit
CTommittee and our knowlecge of tne industry We focused on significant
laws cnd regu'at’on that could give rise to malerial misstatement ntae
“rgncial statements including, but no- imited to, the Comparies Act
2008, the UK Lishing Rules, IFRSs as ndopted pursuant to Regulation (EC)
No 1606/2002 as 1t onpl'es in the Europeon Unon, Corporate ond VAT
legslation, Emp oyment Taxes. Health and Safety and the Bribery
Act 2010

e We considered compliance with these lows and regu aticrs througn
discussiors with management, in-house legal counsel and reviewing
minutes of meetings between the Boord of Directars and the
Audit Comrmittee

e Tpeahc corsideration wor mode to wnether tee ergogement ream
cellectively hod tne appropriate competence and copobilties to
isentify or recognise non-cemiphance with laws ard reguiations
Alltearn members were briefed to ensure they were aware of any
relevant regulations in relation to their work ong fraud risks

® We 0SeIsea Ne susCeptibiliy of t-e G oup ¢ fimarc ol staterrents to
mater al misstatement, includ rg now frauo may occur. In oddress ng
the risk of fraud Incluging morogement cvernde of certrols and
improper revenue recognitior, we fested the approorigteness of jourrcl
ertries made throughout the year by opplying speafiz critena

s We performed a detared review o the Group's yeor enc adjusting
Journai entries and fournas throughout the year, investgated oy thot
cppecred urusucl s fo ire nature or gmount, ossessed whetner the
wdgements made In accourting eshmates were 1nd’cative of o pofertia
cios ens tes'ed the ape ication of c.t-of o- d rever we recognitior

e woader thed creos ot v ot rmanagemert biaswcluding ressr o
recogriticn ond t1e cisclosures mada i respect of adjusting toms

anc a ternative perfa mMance meEQsuUres

o We gsorequested each comaonent audt team communicate
any instarces of noo-compicree witn laws and regulot ers that
cold gve o e arratenol misttate s o o7 the oo Prar oal
statements e evant

We Cesensed Mie suscepr Bibty o Tis oo gl s Loos on Slenial

rrassiaret ent 1 uan@ reuo ord corsidered areas oi e rransicl

stotemnerts subject to elevated ooterticl froua rosxs

Anrucl| Report and Accounts 2021 Hyve Group ple

Audt procedures perforried by the Group engagerment team and/ar
companent auditars included:

® Dscussions with moragement and the Group's legal counse, inclucing
consigerat or of xnown or suspected nstarces of ror-compl arce with
laws ana regulatons ord fraud;

e Evoiuat ng and, where appropriate cha lenging assumptions and
Jjuagements mode by management in cetermining signifcant
accourting estimates, in parhicular in relation to mpairment of
gocdwi land irtang:bre ossets, acqusition mocount rg, anc the
going concern assumphien,

e Agreemert o”the “rnoncidl statement disclos res to underlying
supperhng documenteton,

e Revew of minutes of Boord meet ngs throughout the year of those
crarged with gevernance to identify any instances of ner-comp iance
v th laws and regu atons,

» Revew of tox compliance and inve' vement of our tax specialists
to ossess reasonableress of the income tax charge disc.osed and
associated balance sheet amounts and review tex disclosures m ight
of the reporting reauirements, anc

e ldentifyirg and test ng unusuol journa entags, in particular journal
entries posted with urusucl aceount combinations,

Qur audit procedures were desigred to respond te r s<s of motenal
missgtement in the fAnancial state ens, recogrising thot the risk of not
deteching o materna misstatement due to fraud 15 higher than the nsk of
not cetecting ane resulting from error, as fraud may nvoive deiberate
corcealmert by, for exampie, forgery, misrepresentat’ans or farougn
collus en There are immerent imijtat.ons in the audit procedures performed
and the further removed ron-compiance with laws and regulations s
from the events ond “rarsachions refected in the firanzial sig-ements.

the less 'keiy we are to become gware of it

& turtrer description of our responsion t esi1s ava lable er tne Firancial
Reporting Coural's website at wwew re org.uk/ouditarsresponsibihes
“his aescriphon forms oort of our cudtor’s report

Use of our report

This report s mece sc ely to the Parent Camuoary’s members, os a body,

i accordonce with Chopter 3 ot Port "6 of the Cempan es Act 2006

Our audit work hos been undertaken sc that we nught state to tae Parert
Company s members those matters we cre required to state to ther .nan
auditer's report and “or ne other purpose To tre fullest extent permidtec
by law, we do net accent or assume resconsia lity to anyone cthertoan the
Parert Company and the Parent Campary's members as a ocay, ‘ot our

auart work, for tr s repart, gt for tre can ons we nave formeo

Andrew VYiner (Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and en behalf of BOO LLP, Statutary Auditor
London, United Kingdom

16 Decenher 2021

BDC LLP sa mted lab ity nartnerstva registered i brglene are Woles
[with regutered rumoer GC305127;
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Consolidated income statement
For the yeor ended 30 September 2021

Year ended 30 Seplember 2021

T ended 30 seotentber 2L (resated

Adjusting ifems

Headline (note 5) Statutery Headlre
Feerle CO0D Eono £030 £o0c

Revenue 3 55,201 - 55,201 99,365 99,365
Cast of sales (50,882) - (50,882) {95 £59) - {95,509)
Imoairment ass inrespect of trade recewop es 23 592 - 592 (2,897} - (2.881)
Gross profit 4,91 - 4,911 915 - 915
QOther operat ng incame 4 66,101 - 66,101 22,578 - 22,578
Acinetrotive expenses (43,838) (47,291) (91,129) (41,96/) (297 202) (339,69
Foreign excnonge (loss)/gain on operating act vitics (306) - (306) 2,642 - 2,642
Share of resuts 0ol assac otes ord jo nt ventures 18 2,000 {455) 1,545 5,748 {1,536] 4,212
Operating profit/{loss) 28,868 (47,746) (18,878) {10,084) (298,738) (308,822}
Iryestment revenue 3] 163 10,401 10,564 61" 4,804 5,47
Firance costs (8,241) (4,037) {12,278) (8,663) (2,957) M,620)
Profit/(loss) before tax 20,790 {41,382} (20,592) (18,138) (296,831) (315.027)
Tax {charge)/creait g (1,465) 6,475 5,010 {3,433} 14,457 1,024
Profit/(lass) from continuing eperations 19,325 (34,907 {15,582) {21,569} (282.434) (304,003}
Loss from discontinued operations 17 (834) (3,604) (4,438) (999 2,263 1,264
Profit/{loss) 18,491 (38,511) (20,020} (22,568) (280,17} (302,739}
Attrbutoble fo

Owners of the Company 19,323 (38,511} (19,188) (23,496) (2807710 (303.667)

hon-controll'ng interests (832) - (832) 928 - 928

18,491 (38,511} (20,020) (22,568) (280,171) 302,739)

Earnings per share (p)
Gasic i 7.3 - (7.3 33 - 1716,
Dilutec 1 7.3 - (7.3) ("3 3) - (1718])
Earnings per share from continuing cperations (p)
Besic 76 - (5.6) (127} - (172 %
Diluted 7.6 - (5.6) 127) - (/2 3
1 Pesai. fortbe sear ernind 3 Septemner 2 sefated for the pre s pena e disclateenn Aste vard tne Featmer of he Cential A5 2 nus e aarenrt e

coerobasa g bzt acte 17 Allcanceduacs arr e 10 rgagh oot these reeulls refer o e char gens declosed eoncte Tanarele 1)

Tng resu ts stated cbove re ote to continu ng cct vihies of the Group "he accomoanying notes ™ to 32 ‘arm cn ntegra port of the Consol acted
finarecial statemreats
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

For the year ended 30 September 2021

Anrucl Report ond Accounts 2021 Hyve Group plc

020

2021 Trestalech

Nezles LOGO £400

Loss for the yecr atiributan'e o shareholaers (20,020) {302,739)
Cash ow hedges

Maovomont in farowalie of rash fiow hedges 649 {763)

-ait vatue of cash “ow hedge: relzased o the InLome 'ater et 224 LY

Currency trarslat'on movement o1 net nvestmnient nsubsoiory undertokirgs (3,227} (5,582)

Total ather comnprehensive loss {2,354) (6,293)

(22,374)  (309,032)

Tax relating to components of comprehensive loss 9 {130} -

Total comprehensive loss for the year (22,504) (3092,032)

Attrbutable to

Cwners of the Company (21,672) {309,960)

Nor-cantroll ng interests (832) 928

(22,504) (30%,032)

Allite s recogrisedin comprerenaveancome may be reclosafied subsagoently ta theincer o statemoeont

The grcompanyrr g noles - 32 form anairtegral partof “he Consolidated Inanaal statements
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Consolidated statement of changes of equity
For the yeor ended 30 Sepiember 2021

Stk wnpatn weltired Eoun, Traasianoe N
Share  premaim Rlerger teden plor 507 carmng,  ophan reser e Hedge Tetg cortroil”
crecoartt  ieserse resci.e Jresloted) recerve crecialel reeree
LOC0 £C00 LOOD £ooc 000 LOS0 £900 £03
Balance os at 1October 2020 {restoted) 26,53 6Q.27" 2,748 457 (3175) 33,426 [13,255) (L0,90°) (958) 155124 21,922 177046
Net loss fer the year - - - - 19,188) - - - (1988) (832) (20,020
Currency trans.ahion movement on ret
investment 'n subsidiory undertakings - - - - - - - (3,227} - {3,227) - (3,227)
Maovement in farr value of cash
“iow hedges - - - - - - - - 649 649 - a9
Far valye ot cash flow hedges reieased
to the ircome statemert - - - - - - - - 224 224 - 224
Tax relof'ng to components of
comprehensive Ircome - - - - - ('30) - - - (730 - (120}
Total comprehensive income for the )
year - - - - - (19.318) - (3,227) 873 (21672) (832) (22,504)
D vidends poid lo minanty inferests - - - - - - - ~ - - (671) {671)
Exerc se of share cphons - - - - G2 (92) - - - - - -
Snare-based payments (note 28) - B - - - 71s - - - 75 - sy
Tax creditea to equity (rote 9) - - - - - 101 - - - 101 - sl
0 sposal of subsidiary {(note 17) - - - - - 870 - 1,928 - 2,758 (8/0) 1.928
Expiry of equity optior (note 23) - - - - - (13,255} 13,255 - - - - -
Bulance as at 30 September 2021 26,513 160,271 2,746 457 (3,083) 2,447 - (52,200) (B85) 137,066 19,549 156,615
The atcamparying netes 170 22 fairr arndegral part of The Comsolidales - nancal sta'emerts
Lapa cau by
reqr mptoe et e n Tromslangn bece Teeai
fod Tehelve earn gy re e reser.d rEser s Tita oty
o L0 RNGT 2005 LO00 000 LILD L0060 o0
Balance as at 1 Oclober 2019 7416 279,756 457 (2,787) 69,675 (13,255) (45,133} (247) 298,628 321,431
Net loss tor the year (restoted) - - - - - (303.867) - - - (303,667} G28 (302,733
Currency translat on movement
on ~et investmertir subsidary
urcerioungy restoted) - - - - - - - [5,582) - (5,582 -~ 15,587,
Movement in for value of cas»
“ow nedges - - - - - - - - (763} (7633 - (763}
“air valae of casn tow hedge. releqzed
to the imecome stotement - - - - - - - - 52 52 - 52
Total comprehensive income for the ’ ’
year (restated) - - - - - (303,667) - (5,582) (711)(209,960) 928 (309,032)
D wiaends [ote i) - - - - - {13,0°2) - - - 13,012 - (2079
Dwiderds padite mrarty interests - - — - _ _ _ _ - ang; 1808
Exercee of crare oot ars - - - (388} - - - - 1388, E 3aa
Snare-batea poyments (rote Z8; - - - - =153 - - 556 - 5ok
l2sus of erorees - shore o'arement 5GE ei= IR e - - - - - - - R0.00G - 5o 008
Gres - subiorphor i 283 - - - - - - - 1.425 - 1,429
£nares - ghteissue 8,355 9BER: - - - - - - 15987 - TUET
Copto reduct on P AL - - - /9813 - - - -
Tox ooobes fo ecuty - - - - - [} - - - £ - ©”
weseso ofsunscary - - - - - - [G6) - {18E; - I
Balance as ot 30 September 2020 N - - T 7 ) o —
(restated) 26,513 160,271 2,746 457 (3,175) 33,426 (13,255) (50,901) (958) 155,124 21,922 177,046
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Consolidated statement of financial position

30 September 2021

Annuat Revort and Accounts 202 Hyve Group plc

S

2021 {ra <haled
Hores E£00C LLTO
Non-current assets
Goodwit 12 73,702 63,678
Other ntang ble assels " 200,660 240 672
Property, oant ond equipment A= 17,237 2115
lvterests Ir zssociates and jo'nt vertures 18 37,126 37,444
|nvestments 13 - 1,540
Deferred ransideration receivable » Y year 19 7,357 6,865
Deferred tax asset 24 5,707 460
341,789 377,674
Current assels
Trode and other recevasles 9 35,569 33,731
Tax prepayment 1,818 1,374
Cash and cash equivalents ] 41,733 50,330
79,120 5,435
Total assets 420,909 457,109
Current liabilities
Benk lean and overdrafts 20 {1,751) ("7,500)
Trade ard other payables 21 (42,665) (58,354}
Deferred income 21 {72,277) (61,276}
Corporation tax (1,259} (1,360}
Cerwvative Fnancial instrumenrts 23 - [9,393)
Prov'sions 22 - (170

Non-current liabilities

Bank loar and overdre®ts
Previsions

Lease liabil ties

Deferced tox homhhies
Dernvative inancial instrurents

T(27,952) (148,053

20 (109,849} {100,485

22 (1,400) {1,547
27 {13,375) (15,332
24 (11,633} ('3,773)
23 (85) (873

Total liabitities

(136,342) {132,010)
(264,294)  (280,063)

Net assets 156,615 177,046
Equity

Share copitol 25 26,513 26,813
Sngre prem um accaunt 160,271 160,271
Merger reserve 2,746 2,746
Capitel redemptf.on reserve 457 457
Emo oyee Share Ownership rust (ESOT) reserve (3,083) (3,77%)
Retarmed earrings 2,477 33,426
Eauity option reserve 23 - {13,255)
[rorsiat on reseryve (52,200) (50,901)
Hedge reserve (85) (958,
Equity attributable to equity holders of {he parent 137,066 . 155,124
hor-controciing rterests s} 19,549 21,922
Total equity 156,615 177.046

The goeomperyr g rotes 110 3y fnon o irteg ol part o the Conschdate d rnancicl statemerts

The trorc gl stoter ey of My Lroop ule regierca com pory tonike 015, 725
o 16 December 2027 "ney worp gned on e rbeso £y

Mark Shashoua
Thief Exertiie CHoe

wile anuioved by 10 boaro o ovedtos ond outhern-edior s

e

o Cperglions T oey

1e
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Consolidated cash flow statement
Far the year ended 30 Seplernber 2021

2021
el s £000 LO0T
Operating activities
Operating loss from cantinuing operations {18,878) (308,822)
Operating (loss)/profit from discontinued operations (4,351) 1,480
Operating loss (23,229) (307.342)
Adjustments:
Deprecichan and amortisatic~ 34,734 36,//7
Impairment of goodwill, irtargib.e assets arg nvestments e associctes and Vs 12 19,028 263,424
Share-bosed poyments 28 761 579
Dacranse in provzions (442) (119)
Loss/{prorth on cisposal of plar, oroperty and eauipment ard co~ p.ter software 146 [€)]
Lows/(pror i en oisposal of subsidiary holdings 3,415 [2.263)
Fa'r value of cash flow Feages reccgnised in theinconie stater g - 224 52
stare o0 proh-from as:sodiates ard juirt ventures (1,545) [4,223)
Operating cash flows before mavements in working capital 33,092 3713,
(Increase)/decrease in rece’vables (7,208) 3253
Prepayments to venues - (7.630)
Utlisction of venue prepayments 72 /26
Increosef{decrease) noefarrad Income 11,959 (28,823
(Decreasel/increase in payoh as (9,367) ‘4,813
Operating cash flows after movements in working capital 28,458 3,226
Diviaends received from associates and jo nt ventures 1,958 4,528
Cash generated from operations 10,416 7754
Tax poic (3,266} 2,773
Net cash from operafi:g activities 27,150 B 5,041
Investing activities
Interest received & 163 =N
Acqguisitc~ of investrments - (7.040)
Acausiten of bus nesses - casn po o ~et of cash acauren 3 {23,000) (97,757
Furchose of plart, orooerty and ecuipment enc comouter scftware 975 (1943
Disposa’ of p art, croperty and ecu pment and comouter sctiware 73 -
Dispeso of subs aiaries ara investments — cash rece ved net of cosh cisposeo 1419 (3,480) {650)
Net cash utilised on investing activities (27.219) 0100,779)
Financing activities
Equity dvidends oond - (72,995
Dvderas paoto nor-contre I ng ~lerests {671) (1,808
I"terest pc g o~ ook crarges 7 (6,556} /380,
Fa-cpa .ease poyrents 27 (4,015) 13,940,
Proceeos srom tre ssue of scme canfo oro exarcss o¥veare cot ooy - e lad
Fecsre ot g e ssue o st Gre cop fa -
caustoen cfshares ‘or £SO -
draveasan af borroa ngs 69,604
Renoymet o porrawi=g3 B (87,249)
Net (outflow)/inflow from financing activities (8,887)
foet faccrease’ acramse o~ coth o O™ coLwo'ents (8,956)
Cash and eash equivalents at beginning of year 50,330
ciforeigr et or gl 359
Cash and cosh equivaients at end of year 41,733 )

- T w1 LR KA N I

soaow gl < Tirthostzetro el gltet g
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Notes to the consolidated accounts
For the year ended 30 September 2021

1General information

Hyve Group plc s a public company imited by sihares incorporatea in the
Urited Kingaom under the Comparies Act and 1s registered in Englond
a~dwales T-e address of the registeren office 1s give on page 75

The nature of the Group's operahiens and its prrcipal ochviies are set
cut in the Strateg c review or pages ' to 62 and in note 3

Thece fina~.cal stotemen s are preserted ir Brilish counds sterling.

All armourts, unicss otherw’se stated, bave been rounded to the nearest
thousand Foreign operations are inciuded in accordance with the
aceounting polic.es set aut below

Amendments o IFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the current year
Impact of accounting standards to be applied in future periods

Taere ore a number of standards and irterpretations which nove been
1ssued by the Inter-atonal Accounting Sranoards: Board that ore effective
for periods beginn’ng subseguent to 30 September 2021 thet the Group has
dec:dea nol to cdopt early. The Group does not belicve these standards
a~dinterpretations will have @ ma-enal impact or the fnaraal steternents
once adopled

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

The standard 15 being omended for oer'ods baginrung fram 1 January
2027 in response to the phasing out of certain benchmark irterest rates
The amerdments cover how to account for cnanges in eentractual cash
lews or hedging relationships far fnardial instruments affected by the
replocermert of benchmork interest rates During the pecad, the Group
has not designatec any risk compenents of alternative benchmark rates
inany hedge relotonships The Grows does nat ~old ary atret finarcial
nstruments exposed to clternatve berchmark catos, except ity term laan
ano revolving creait facilties and correspond ng interest rate swaps,
wich reference GBP LIBOR <ates The facility will transiticn tc the re evant
alernative reference rate at the point of the cessatior of the iImoacted
LIBOR rate. The Graup aces not expect that any traastdion adjustments wil
be reauired

Prior period errors

During the year ended 30 Sentember 2021, the F nancial Report'ng Council
[FRC) submitted o request for further informat'on on the Group's Annual
Report and Accounts for the year ended 30 September 2020, The review
conducted by the FRC was basec so'e'y on the Group's published Annual
Report ano Accounts and does not provide any assuronce thot the Annua
Recort and Accounts are correctin all moteria aspects

In Hyve Greup ole's Anrual Report and Accourts for the yeor endea

30 September 2020 the Group disc ozeo the omaurts recogrised inrespect
of the iderti=anls ascete acquirea a~d lieblihe- assumed upor compietion
of the acouisition of Shaptalk Commerce LLC and Greceryshop LLC
Decemoer 2019

At grqaertionr the Caounac<red alease far tae argar eo busines- othoe

in New York

A lease hability of £4 9m wos recogisen, mecsured of tre prosent va'ue of
trerema ing lease poymerts us ~g the roremental borrowirg rate at the

acaurstion dote

Arrual Report ard Accourts 2021 Hyve Group ple 121

Arnght-of-use asset of £1 6m wos alse recogn sed, measured at the samne
oraount as the leae hakility, agjusted ‘o reflect what we conadered 1o be
the unfavourable terrrs of the lease at acawsilior Scechcally, the nght-
c-use asse” was odjustea o or ly reflect t-e office space required oy the
acquired nusiress, based on the number of employee: and the estimated
space required per employee

Fol owing ciscuss'ons wth the FRC and the Group's external audidors, we
acknowleage that *~ 18 adjustment refectes circamstances speafcro the
acqured bus ress, ratner thar those of o market participant As such the
adjustment was not in compliance with paragroph 288 of IFRS 3 Bus ness
Combinations Tre night-ct-use assef shouid instead have been mecsured
at the same ameunt as the lease ''ab -ty ana not adjustea for the preperton
o the office space aeemed surplus to requirements at gcgoisimon

Correcting the error ot acquistion has resu ted in anircrease in the cost
of the right-of-use asset of £3.4m, o decrease ndeferred tax assets
recagnised of £0 7m ond therefore a decrease in the cost of gooawill
ar'sing or acquisitior of £2 /m

We have aiso restoted the comparative emounts to taxe account of the

conseguential impact of the changes at acquisit-an on the ceprec ation

charge recognised ir respect of right-of-use assets and the 'mpairment
of goodw ll

An additioral errer idenhted on “he some lecse has also been cor-ected
The adjustrnent is ta el munate an accruci for a rent-free hab ity whicn

was incorrecily cnarged in the orior year in adolhan to 1ts relus orn tre
calculation of the lease labilly n accordonce wite IFRS 16 The release of
this auplicate hability reduces trade and other poyables in the boiance sheet
a~d removes tne charge from the income statement Tre total amount of

trus omendment was £0 1m,

The Group's fnx credit for the year erded 30 September 2020 has been
restated as the deferred tox asset of £0 7 prev.ous y recogn.sed at
acquisiticn was subscauently released to the incame statemert at

30 Septenber 2020,

We have also restated ‘or the impact of the refransict on of the revised
castz of the USD denominated right-cf-use gsset and goodwill balances,
recognised in the Group’s foreign currency translahon reserve

As the errcr occurred at the acquis t on date, there 1s no impect on the
operi©g staterent of firawial posrior ona therefore the opering sratermernt
o fnanciai nositon ~as rot been restated or oresented nthess aconants

The foilowirg tonle summar ses the impact o the rostatements oo the

f naraal stateme by of the Grous Tre net 'moact or the Groug's loss o
the firnancial year cnged 21 Septemiber A0 s E& O 00 Tre retimpact 6n
tre Croup's net assets 15 £703,000 1ne wisac) of the prior percd eror on
zoth nos.c and diutes ecrmings per snare 1= presertean note 11

]
Conscolidated income statement {Lc[w’.l'.:
Cepreciotior of right-of-use asset {324)
I'npa remert af goodw |l (AD8;
Sror-terr leoses - offices ey
Adrinistrobive oxoe-ses o (R3O}
‘axcredt AT

Cecroase ir crofit for "he - nangial yeor &1
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Notes to the consolidated accounts

1 General information continued

Consolidated statement of financial position

Geodwll

Property, plart ond eguipment Khe)
‘rade anc other payables 00
Chorge in net assets <00
Retained earnirgs a8
Trenslatic~ reserve 19
Cnange to total equity ] 100

The Greun's resu ts {or the year ended 30 September 2020 hove o so been
restated for the treatment of the Certral Asia bus ~ess as o discontinued
operat’on See ncte 17 for further detalls

2 Basis of accounting

Hyve Group o.c ('the Compaony}is a UK istee compary and, tegetner
wthits subsid ary operations, s herecfter referred to as 'the Group
Trese 4rgroal statermients ~ave beer prepared im accordanco with
inter~gtional cccourtrg stardards in conformity with the requiraments
of the Compar es Act 2006 ard in accoraance w th interngtional
financial reco:ti-g starocards adopreo puts.a * o <egulator (ZC)

The preparaticn of ingraal storerments under ITRS requires tre

Direcrors ‘o rrake judge~en s estmates and gssurphons tro” atfect t-e
apol caten of police, ara the reported amounts of ossote ad ligb ties,
a~g inceme ond expenses These eéshimates and aescoated assumpt ons
are bosed on post exoernence arc other factors considered apolcan e at
t~e time anc are used Yo make judgerments acout the carrying vao ve of
assels ang liob I tes that connot pe readly determinea frorm other scu-ces
Actual results moy di-er fram thess e otes

Tnese estimates ond underly ng cssumplions are rev ewes ¢n an onge ng
bass Changes o estirotes and assumprians o e eflected in he fir arcial
statermentz in tne peniod r which they are moae

I'he statemenrts are presested 17 oounds sterlng ond heve bee~ preoared
under {FRS using the hustar coi cost bas.s, except for tne reveluchicn of
corvtam fingnaal inshas o s wolth gre cccogrised ar e value ar the

end of ecch report ng per od Historican cost s generclly ogsec or the

ta reolue of tre cors derat o grven in exchangs for ocsets The oane po
accounting poic €3 coostes are cons.stent witn tne pror year

Going concern

Tre trancisl 2o rerc b0 nete prrnared or g qaeg cosoe s haa

vomom assumes trat tne Compeny v cont rue » cperatora ex stemoe

for tre forpsascile future

Lz part of tre r cssesgment of tre coprogr ateress of cdont ng tro go g

£re OIS ko reale ar ¢ shatgrerogr s

Coer

tre D roctars ~ave comsacres the current stee” “toe Groaps ouic by

racenttroc g nerfcrmance ma coters aro e potest o mnoct offoracoet

sostroraia ool ot oL

e rEr s

R e R

At 30 Seotember 2021 the Group had ava ioble Lgu aity of £130 "m (2020
£378 6m) ond adjusted ret deat of £79 §m (2020 £67.71) “he Group's
avalable iguid ty nas cecreased dur ng the year os a result of £37 2m
of term loan repayments and tre £23 2m ocquisiton of Retar Meetup in
Decemoer 2020 Irsurance proceads of £65% 0 (2020 £22.0m) for cvent
cancellat cns wers recewved ouri-g the year, more tnan cffsetting tre
operating cash outflows as a result of 1e contin_ed event disruction i~
tre first - alf of the Ai-ar cial year

Ir December 2020, simultaneous y with the Retall Meetun ocguisition, the
Group amendad its barking “aclities, updating the ferm loan repayment
schedue Ofthe £62 8m term can drown at 30 September 2021, £.0 8m s
now due for repayment in Maren 2022, £5 0mon June 2022, £6 Om in each
of Septemnber 2022 end November 2022 and £22 5m i each of November
2023 ang December 2023, In respect of ary further msurance proceeds
receved from cancellotion insurance c ams for FY2Z0 ana FYZ" events,
50% of the proceeds receivec will he used as ar early repayment of the
upccming lerm loar repoyments

after year eno, on 15 Noverber 2021, the Group agreed a 12-month
extersion to tre woiver af the hnonzial covenants wirn its lenders

The Group's quarterly cverage rat o covenant o not more than 3x,
ond interest cover cobe of not less thon 4x nave beer woved up to
andirc ucirg March 2023, ond repraced py a 2401 mirimum iguid ty
cevenant From Jure 2023 the leverage and 1nterest cover ratios wili be
reinstated Tous extends the covenant waivers to mere than s x mertas
beyond tre 12-ment~ period of assessnent

As mor«ets ~ave rcopened 1nrecert months, the Group ras ceen able to
resume rura g ovents across almest el of its markets These hove yiglded
a number of pas tive trends thet are stowing sigrs o° mproving further
goirg rto FY22, incluaing strong comestic oarhe pat'cn, bigher customer
spend, noreased visitor dersty, improved NPS sceres ana streng “erward
bookrgs for rext year's events

The acqu sition of Refall Meetup 1 December 2020 ond "21 Grouo in
Nevember 2021 nave coce’erated the Group's emnichanne strategy.
providierg odeihona! onl re capao’lity to del'ver events a~d serve ey
industry secters wvirtua y This hos giver the Group a oraven revenue
stream thot ados rewlience nthe gvent of any further d seupt on to tne
Croup’s in-perscr evert schedule

The Groop hos meoeltea o numper of Zceranos coied o different
cssumpticns, recard mg the aarchcn ane extent te woch COVIG- 9 rm ght
~ipacttre ous ~ess Foreach of our morkets we bove senst sea the
revar,e proTrand carh o eanac ot e ced odina ooty We roe
o gerec tre extort to v o0 COVID -9 canhimues to oot each of our
mar<ets v our g

essmnnt ol e sut ook Fartee pLrnoses ot cons genng

the Croups Go rg conenrn ert A nove fCCJSed 07 T LEner 58

& ABoseCose ood
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The Base Case, wh ch regreserts the Directors” current best estmate,
assumaes a return to ¢ full events ca erdor in FY22 This takes into accourt
that the mgjonty of our mareets Fave run events past-pandemic ard there
are no evenls schoduted 1o rurria the - st half o1 the -

few markets yet 1o return. We ac<row'eage that there is the possibility of

nanualyear in i e

disruptio~ due to new voaronie, hut nl thes stome fesl they will Anse o lirm ted
impact ¢~ our event schedule Tae leve s of both domestic ano, more
substenha'ly, imternclional atterdance have been aswumeo tc remain

be ow pre-panaermic «eyvels in FY22, before recoverirg to previcus levels
by FY24 Underthe Base Case scenario, available I'quidity is expected ta
remain in excess of £110m throughout the 12-month period from the date
of the Arnual Report.

The Downside Case has been medelled ‘e the purposes of ersu<ing

the [iguidity covenant 1s net breached auring tne perad of assessnent,

even f the speed of the recovery s.ows The Downside Case assumes a

sign “eant slowdowr in the ecovery of mternat-analiravel, o jus o third of
pre-nandemic levels It also factors in cons'dercble disruption to the event
schedule unhl after Morch 2022, gssuming reimoosed restr cticns mpact

our events in the UY, US and marmland Eurcpe This scenano alse ossumes
furtner disruption fo the event schedu e 1 poth Cring and South Africa,
as a result of the recent reintraduction of restrichions and the slower
pace of recavery respectively Inrospo=se to this scerario playing cut,
further cost savings have beer assumed, including a delay to planned
investrents, reduced discretionary bonus payments ond variab e event
savings as a resdlt of the [ower internationcl revenues and event

cance lations Liqudity is expectec to remain in excess of £70m
throughout the 12-month oericd from the date of the Arnuol Report

Bath scercr as therefare have mater al headroom over and aoove

the £L40m mmirmum ligu'dity covenant in place for the duration of the

going concern assessment While beyond the pericd of assessmaent,

tne rertroduction of covenants from June 2023 was oisc corsideres )
The Group 1s expeciea to meet both coverants when they resume under i
the Base Case scerarg, but coud breach the leverage roho under the
Downsice Case inthe quarter ending June 2023 without cdetional

ritigating octicns beng token

Firaly, a reverse stress test case bas becr developed, fo determine o
scenario urder whicn the Group's mimimum iqudiy covenant might be
breoched Ascencrawhere there 15 o refurr to @ situahon beyond the
he.ght o tne pandemic woulo be regu red to breach the coverart during
the poriod o assessment 1hs seenao assumes signi—cart disruption to
the evert schedule over g oeriod of tne next *0 mcnths, with no events abe
to loxe place for therest of ne hraraal vear with 1+ & exception of cvenrs
i Russio ano Udrainge, whic are assumed ‘o resume i e firal quorter
Ths assumpton 15 boseo on these regiors having proved oble te run
everts successfu ly wh e oca voconat onotes o7e low and restrictons

have been ir place e sewnere glebolly

Even uncer this extreme scenor.o tre Groop of 11nas ava lao € Laud by
of et least £30m wet=im tne per od ¢ assessment but wl breach the

e gued ty covenant botweer Octaoer ond Decembe: 2022

Annuai Report and Accounts 2021 Hyve Group ple

Further, the Group can implement o number of mtigoting achorsif
required, rcluding out rot imited to

® The pursult of further insurance proceeds The Group has a numoer
of outstanding cla ms that 't continuas to pursue, as well as cdort onol
cover taken out 1 respect of the UK Gavernment's Live Events
Re nsurgnce Scheme

& Deferral of term loar repayments The Group has repayments due :n
ca'endar year 2022 totaling £°7 8m, but has a supportive lender group,
wiicn has agreed fo the deferra of scheouled repayments of the term
loan in the recent past nresconse to the outoreak of COVID 19

s [sposal of events or portfolios of everts 1r the last 24 maorths the Group
has successfully disposed of the Group's ABEC, Kazakhstan, Azerbaijan,
Uzbekistan and Fasterers businesses The Group has ¢ number of
desirap e assets tnat are curreatly not being considered for d sposal
for strateg’c reasons but could oe sold to provide addit onal icuidity
f absolutely necessary

® Costsovings The Group has implemented o matenal cost savings
programme n resocnse fo tre COVID-19 outoreak oreviously and
can activate turther measures i* necessary Further irvestrmerts in
FY22 can be deferred or removed to heip ease hquidity Last year
the Group proved thot it could act auckly to implement cost savings,
oven those relaled 1o staft red Lotiors as ovigenced by the two waves
of redundancies

Eaquity rarse The Group's investors have previously supported injecting
additioral can taiinte the business Tmis was most apparertic o
downside scerano inrespect of the May 2020 rights 1ssue which
raisea £126 6m

Baseo on the current and projacied levels of hquidity, uncer a range of
moaelled scenarios, the Directors be eve thot the Group s we | placed to
manage is “nenoal eoligations and o ner pusiness risks satstoctonly

The Directors have been ap e to form o reasc~able cxpectation that

the Group has aoecucte resources Ic continue in cperction for at

least 12 monts s from tre sigring do'e of these iinancial stoterrents

The Directars therefore cors'der it appropriate to adopt the gomg cancern
pasis of acco.ntir g i preparing the Annuct Repors fira-cal sraterets

Basis of consolidation

The Group accounts consclidate the accounts of Hyve Group ple and

te subsidiory undertaxrgs contrelled oy the Compony drawn up fo

30 September each year Central s achieved wrere the Company has
power aver the nvestes, is exposed. or ~os nghts, ta vanable retuine fram
its imve 'vernent with the ‘nvestes, anc bos the abiity to use .ts cower to

afrec i rotams

The Compaory reassesses whetrer or mof f contro s oninvestee * facts ard
¢ rcumstarces iraicate trat there are cnanges to ore o more of the triee

elements of contre 'isted cbove
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Notes to the consclidated accounts

2 Basis of accounting continued

Or acqguisthon, the assets ond l'abiltios of a subsidicry are measured

at tser forr volues ot the cale o ocgu s her Any eacess of the cost of
acquistion oser the far values of *he -aenlifiacle ret azsats 5 recogrised
as goocwlil Tre interest of moa-controll ng snareno'ders is stated at the
nan-contraling interest's proportion of the farr volues of assets and
lablties recegrisec

Consohdaton of a subsid ary begns when tre Company ootairs control
over the subsidary ond cecses wher the Company loses control of the
subsidiary Specificaily, the results of s.bsidiaries acguied or disposed of
dusing tre year are included i~ ciofl or loss from t-e dete the Company
qains cortrol unhl the acte when the Compaay ceases to cortra e
subsidiory Frofit ar less end each comopo ent of othet co™ i ehensive
‘ncame ore attrbuted o the owners of the Company ond to the
non-controling interests “atal comprehensive recome of the subsid anes
15 altr:butes to the owners of the Cempany and to the non-cantral irg
I~terests eve~ (fth s results © toe ran-cortro Log interests hoving o
aefcit balgnce

Where nece<sary. agjost e s are mads to the “rancial staterrents of
subs digries to bring the eccourting pelicies used 'n I're with thase used
by the Group

Ali~tra-group transact ons, baionces, 1mcome ana exortsoy are
ehmnoted g~ consolidat on

Non-conirgl ing ‘nterest n tre ref assels of consol doted subsid aries s
iwentfied separately from t-e Group s eca 'y reren Nen-corncling
nforests consist of the amount of those interests os at the date o tae
arigimal business como nation ane the ~on-cantre | rg ~ferest's share of
chonges ™ eauity since e date of the comiinat on tosses app icab e to
the mem-coetreiing interests 1n excess of the'r nterest ir tne subsdiar cs
eguity are gl ceotec oga nst nor-cortroling rterests cvenif this cesults
I~ aachicl balarce

Changes rthe Group's ‘rterests ir subs aianes thot de rot result ina ass
of ce~tra gre accountec for gs equ ty transacticrs “he carryirg amount
ot the Croup’s mterests and e non-control ing interests are ogjusted

‘o eflec the c~o- gesin therr relah.einteress in e cucsicionies Any
aiftererce berween the o oust oy whico *Fe sor-controling nterests
are acusted ano the farr va ue of the corsicerotion pec a or receved s

recogn sea direct'y in souty and attnouted to the owrers of the Comaany

Business combinations

‘re ccaushon of sunsdier €318 accountea for uL g e coou s hiee

mstroe Teg costofthe ocqust o ¢ meqeureo al tre oggregate of

‘orvaues ot tre cate of errrarge ot cesets g van, woites toutten

CTCESUMTa and U Ty atrumients tsues oy tre Groun im exchonge

‘or contee oftre coawree Ary costs altr butan e to tre oue movs

cemnc ol oo are axpenscn asecty to tre Coregt anaten vroonn stofess

Tre oo e pertmails a-ves looiltee g A coe g ol L

meettor comat ars for recagt o under IFES

Srereisgrsea ottoor

‘g de ot soqui ton ooto, oxcent o con-currer ] cose

LR AR LTI TR L

ol rorae doearva e sl

harm-currenst gieos et dite B=Nalalo o RNl ol oS otal

Govaw lonsirg on acgusit or s recogmised as ar asset ard mitaly
reasured at cost, beng the excess of the cost of the busi~ess como nat or
over the Group't interest i~ the net fair val..e of 1the idenifable gssets

I abiites and contingent | aolities recognisea I the Group's interest inthe
nel fan val.e of the acq.iree’s identifiable assess, habilimes ard contingent
ianihities exceeds the cost of the business comb ~atior. the excess 15
recognised immediately i the iIncome staterment

Any contingent consideratior te be trarserred by the acaurar wil be
recogrsec at farr value ot the acawsition cate Subsequent changes ta the
foir value of the contingent consideratior, which s classihen as o o cisl
gty that s within tre scooe of IFRS 9, w lt oe recogrised ~ the incame
starement as INves mert INcome or “norce cost

[he interest of m noty snarenalders intre cequ ree s inthal y mecsured
oz the nen-confrolling irterest's prapori-or of tne net far value of the
assets, lao-tes and contingent 1abilties recogrised

A step acquisthon ocqurs when the Groua antains contror cver an enhity

by acquirrg an addtionclirterest ntnat entity If thet entity 15 a busiress,
the (rouc's previous y nele souity interest 1s remeasured to fair vatue et
the dote the contrallirg interest 1s acquren Any aifference 1~ the previo sly
helg equity interest 1s recogrised ¢s o goin o less in the rcome state ment
Ary cmounts previous y recorced Ik ofner compretensive ncome releting
te the invcslee are rectassined and included - the calculahon of e ga'n
ar loss as of the acqu sit on date |0 e step acqu sit oam waich cortrelis
coteined, put the Group does rat ourchase a | of the remaiming ownershio
interests, @ ~or-cantroling rterest g recerded neguty at bre acawsten
dote at fe r value

Non-current assets held for sale
Non-rurient assets fand disposal groups) classfied os held ‘or sole are
measured at tne lower of carry rg amount aro ‘arr va ue ess costs te se |

Nor-2arrent assets and dispesal groupe are clossited ae 7 eld ter =alrat
the r corryimg amcunt wil be recovered througr @ sale transachor <ather
thar through cort'nuirg use " s condbion is regarded cs met gy wher
tne sole s highy proebao e and tha asset (or d.sposa group) 1s ovalabie
far 'mmed ate sale 1n ts present coraihior Manogement rust be
cemmittec fo the sole waicn shoule be expected ta qual fy “er recegriton
as ¢ covpleea sale wrehir 07 e year from ke dale of classficonicr

wWhenthe Group s commiPed o ataepar volv rg esso’corfra’ of a
cabad ary all of v e ossets o d hab it es of thot sussidiary are classtes
as cele ‘orsa e when the crtenia oescr ped cbove ore met, regord s3s
of whethertre Grous wll reta na non-control g interest eots former
sups gy after thesa e

.

Waen the Group @ committon tc o sae plan

stan

CACN TG C S0

~eeste otim g asseo ato o g oot o0 of g cvestment 3800 ate,

reg mestmest of tne port oo of tan ascst et v tee asscc ote trotw |

b d apiees s doasifes oy s dfutorale v e s O e S der ey

cornwnare met Grd the Growg 0 scont ~Lestre uie of tog eourty mintron

coperesiratisclos Foageclaa ol A rrroimroneten

relze e i

ferrotbas ot o cle-af o osrele o

P Of Sat

e lernun

sa'e coct tues fe te cocountea for s gt cuty retioc

cecfrre enuty motocd nttre tvie of o snoin wens e




Strategic repert Governarce O Financigl statements

2 Basis of accounting continued

After tne d sposcl fakes place, the Group cocounts ‘or any retaired
interest in the assodiate In accoroance wth IFRS 9 unless the retained
interest cont nues to De an associate, in which case the Group uses the
ety metkad (see the nrrnimt ng peocy regoraing imeestmerts in
associates below)

Discontinued operations

T-e Group clossifies an operation o¢ giscontinued when it has disposed of
or intends to dispose of ¢ business componert that represents @ separate
major ne of business or geographical area of eperatons The post-tax
profit or loss of the discontinued operanions s shown as a single lire on the
‘oce of the Consoidated 'reame statemert, seporate from the continuing
ooeraling rexults of the Group When anoperation s dassfied asa
discontinued operation, the comparative Consol doted 'rcome statement
is represented os if the operotior hao been discont ruec from the start of
the comperative yeor

Goodwill

Gooowill arising on consoldation represents the excess of the cost ot
acquisinan over the Group's Interest ~ the fair value of *he 1dentifiacle
assets and hab lities of a subs'diory ot tne dote of coquisit on Goodwrl s
recognised as ar asset and reviewed for impa-rment at least anrualiy
Any imoa rment s recognised mmediate.y ir the Consoldated ircome
statement and s not subsequently reversed

For the ourpose of impairmert teshing, goocw | s allgcated to each of

the Group's cash-generatng uni's [ZGUsY expected to benefit from the
synergias of the combinotion CGUs to which goodw I hos been a lceated
are tested for impoirment annua ly, or more frequertly wnen thers 1s an
irqication that the uat may be impaired If the recovercbhie amount of

the CGU s less than the carrying volue of the unit, the mparrment foss s
allocated firs to red e e carrying armount of any gooedwll allccated to
the urit and then to otner assets of the unit, oro-rata based or the carryirg
amount of each asset in the unit

On aisposal of a subsicicry, the ottributable amcunt of goedwil. is included
In the dete ~nation of 17e profil of loss on disposal

Goodwil on acguisitior of o ‘oreign ent ty 1s treated os on asaet of the
fareign entity ond translated ot the clasing rate

intangible assets

Computer seftware isin tally meosured ot purchase cost Customer
relationships, trademarks cro icences, perpetual tecnro ogy censes
anc visiter databases are miticlly measured at farr velue Computer
software, customer relationsps, trodemarks and lcences aond v stor
daaooses have a dofirte useful e aro are canried o* cosl o “ar Jolue
less accuray sted omort solior Amort sat ons ca'calated ug ng the
strangit- ne method to a locate the cast over tne r estimated useful e
The estimated usefu Ives are fypica ly between trroe ang "2 yezrs ‘ar
customer relat onsn ps, for tredermarks up to 20 years a~d for vis for
acraba-c botwesn ez ans sight vears Comiporter toflwerer arosl 00
cvir fee yeais Tre amooisehioe charge = induner inaariarisiot.s
expenses in the Corsoudeted rcome stotemoat
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Impairment of assets excluding goodwill

At each balance sheet date, the Groun reviews the carrying armounts

of iz fangible and intongible assefs to defermire whether there s any
indicotior that those assets are imoaireo. If ary such indicction exsts, the
recoveranle omount of tre asset 1s est mateo in order to determine the
extent of the imparment (if any) Where the assat ases rot generote cash
flows that areindecendent fram other assets, the roup eshiroles The
recoveranle amount of the CGU to which the asset belongs An rtangib e
assct with an ingefinite usetul life s wesed terimpasire ent onnually ard
wnenever there 15 an indication thet the asset may be impaired

Recoverable amourt s the lugher of fair volue less costs to se'l ara vatue
i Lse Inassessing value in use, the eshmated future cask Cows are
disco.nted to *harr present value usicg a discount rate thot reflects carrent
maorket assessments of the hme volue of money ard the nsks pecific to te
asset for which estmates of T.ture cash flow s Fave not been adjusted

¥ the recoverable amount of an asset (or CGU) s est mated 16 be less than
its carryrig amount, tha carrying amaunt of the asset far CGU) is reduced

ta its recoverable amount Animparrment s recogn’sed mmediately as ar
expense Theimpairrment chorge s included in admimistratve expenses
the Consaudolea income statement

Where an mparrment loss subseauent y reverses, the carry'ng omount
of the asset (CGUY s increased fo the revised estmaote o its recoverab e
armcuat, but so that the increased carrying emaount coes not exceec the
carrying amount that wou d hove aeen determingd had o maairment
0ss been recognised far the asset (CGU) n prior yeors Areversa of ar
mpairment loss ¢ recognisea 1n the Consol'dated ‘ncerme statement
immed ately, un ess the relevant assetis caned at @ reva ued amount,
inwh'en case the reversal of the imna rment loss strectec as o

revaluchon increase

Preperty, plant and equipment
Praperty, olont and equiament s carried ol cost less occumutated
acpreciation ord ory recognised imparrmenrt loss

Deprecatior s charged to write off the cost of asse's oser then eshmales
useful lives, nsing the stra ght-line metnod, ¢n the fellowing bases

Leasenols -and ang buldings - term of lease

Pla~t cnc equ pment - 2te W years

Asvess - old under fir ance leczes are depreciated over then expedicd
usetul nves o the same bosis as cwred assets, or wrere sharter, aver the

term of the recvent lecse

Twe gomn o oss ansitg oo the disposal or retirement of ar assel s
delerwined o2 the atference betweer the soles croceeds ons he
coreyrg vaue smount of the esset ard s recogrised v tne Conselidatea

rcorme stoterment
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Notes to the consolidated accounts

2 Basis of accounting continued

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an enhity over whic™ tag Group s 1n a posibon to exercise
significant i~fluence Sigrificant influgnce i+ the power fo pariicipate in the
“nanciol ond operating palicy decisior s o the 1nvestes but is nc® cortrzl
over those palicies

A jo'nt verture s anent ty over wh €= the Group 5 © d posit on to exercise
jont contral Jc nt contrel existe when dec'sio~s ancut the act vities of the
ety mequre the unanimous consent of the nartes sharing contra

1he results anao gssets and habi it es of gssoc.ates ono joint vertures ore
i-rorporated ir theze fnoacial state~e--c Lapg the equity rmethod of
account’ng lnvestments in ossocates and joint ventures are carried 17

the Statement of Francicl costicn of cost oz adjusted by pos! accusimon
cranges - the Group's share of nel asscts of tne associate or jo rtventure,
less any mMpairment nthe value of iIngiv gual nvestments Losses of

an asscoate or joint venture in excess of Group’s iInterest it thet ent ty
(whicn includes any ang-term nlerests that, ~ substarce, form part of
the Group's net irvestment N the Gssociate or joint verture) are reccgnised
only fo the extent that tne Graus "as incurren legol or construchive

ob igotions or mede payments o Dehalf of the asscciate or joint verture

Where a Group company fransacts witn o~ associate or jomt veature of
the Group. profits and losses are eliminated o 17 e extent of 're Group's
interestin toe rerevont assotiate o jaint venture Losses may proviae
ev dence of ar impairmert of the asset transferrea mwines cose g
Cpo’cpr’wofe provesion |s mage for Wnpmr'ns‘n‘r

Other investments

Other mvestments cre ert tes over weich the Group does not hove
aignificart i-fluence Cther investmentc are clzssifeo as ossets nald af
forr value thraugh prodt arlose wirh chonges r fair value reporteor
the \nccme stoteraent

Provisions

Provisions are recognisea when the Group nas ¢ present ool gohen as
araesult of post events 111z probocle that or outfiow of resources will be
cegured o settle the obl'gotion and g religble estmate can be meoce of
the amgunt of the obngation. Provisions are ¢ scountea to orese~t volue
where the effec iz rrotenal

Financial instruments
Classes of financial instruments

The (srour cggregetes ts ~agrah

L~ ta s clasce: poseg or fred

catue grachorastansic: Theaetgls of crar cial i oL by clas are

dsc'neea n-ote 22 tofre sccourts

Financicl assets
Al

A e -Cnpe 3T IPRS R are

Ul e o oe

treba: -

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash ana cash equivalents comprse cash on bo~d ana on gemand
deoos ts, ard of1er short-term hignly l'au d ~vestrmieonts that are read, y
co-vertible to o <nown a oun of cash ond are s_bject o an msigrificart
“1sk of changes in vaiue

Trade and cther receivables

“Trade rece’vaoles onc otner recevab o8 are measured on it o!
recoguticn ot farr value, ana are subsequently measured af amorhised
cost. less cry imnarrment Trade recewvables are recognised of the ecrier
of settlement of tne performance ob.igaticn or the Group having en
enforceab e right of noyment rected to performance abl gat on re ates

The goin or loss or revaluahon of deferrec ono contingent consiaerchon
recelvab e s recogn’sed in the Consaidoted ircome statement as

imvesiment revenue or a finance loss

Impairment of financial assets

Ihe Group o ways recogr ses lifet'me expected credit osses (ECL] for
trade recevaeles The EC o trese Arancial assets aie est'rored using

o provisior matrix based on the Group's historical crecit loss experence,
adjusted for faciors t-at ore speafic to the debtors, ger erol econzmic
corciticons ano ar assessment of both tne current as well as tre forecast
arrectior of corait ons at tre reporting date inciucing hime va ue of maney
wrere approonate

For all other irancial assets the Grouprecognizes litetine FOL whan
trere nas been o sigrificort increase ir cred’ sk ance intial recogrimor
owever iFthe credit ngk or tre fraciglingt omert bos notincreaseo
signficantly s ~cein hal recagnition. the Group measures the los:
allowarnce ‘or tra- Frgnzial imsrrurert o an a~ount equal ‘o

1Z-mortk ECL.

L fet'rne =CL recresents the expected credit 'osses that wa resu t from

all possiole oetault evers over *Fe expectea ife of o ~ranoghnztru~ ert
In contrast, 12-msntk =CL reprasents toe portion of Yfetime zCLthat 5
expected tcres.lf trom defellt everts o @ Frencalinstiument - ot are
poss ble w thin 12 montns affer the reparting cate

Financial liabilities
The Group classifes s nrorcal habiles iota the follzwirs categories
writter eaulty opt oos, ban< borrowings. and trace ard other payob es.

Sirgroal labilit e arerecegmused ontre Group = Statemer of hirangal
pas ter when the Groap becomes o party 1o the cortraciual provsions
o the retrumignt

Written equity opticns
Ayt

sotb osce cr mutin'e sett ement oot cnt-ot comte »s o

o the Greup fo purcrase eawty © o suns CiGry TGr catt g vzt

oz roracthomlty ‘o b e s JzLe O theeC.rot o TUTE

an a~icattenaa tothe an fy srecocroed recuty cm 2 to recegait oo

of awrMer eouteont ey oo gD Ty L sdusnuuerTy rev esturea througn

cutsa ez et et

Te wrin s ol 'e 0Ly CL

Gue ety o g attee
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2 Basis of accounting continued

Bank borrowings

Interest-bearing iocs and overdrafts are recorded at tre proceeds
receved, net of drrect issue costs ard stated ot omortised cost using the
effective intergst iate method The amiorhised cost calculation it revized
when necessary ta teflect changes in the espected cash flows and the
expected hfe o the morrowings includ'r g the effec’s of the exercise of
any prepayment, call or similar aphons Any resulting adjustment te the
carry'ng amount of the borrowings is recognised as inferest expense in
the income statement Loen ard overdraft ‘nterest and ossocioted costs
that are considered to be financing in nature are preserted as financing
actities in the cosh flow statement

Trade and other payables

Trade payables ore measured at intial recogiticn ot forr value and

are subsequent y measured at amorhsed cost Trode payanles are
derecognised in full when the Group is ¢'scharged from its obligatien,

it expires, 1z carceled or replaced by @ new hability with substantally
maodifed terms Trade and ot~er payables are short-term and there is
nointerest chargedin comnechor with these ~ence the effective inverest
method 's not app 1ed.

“he gain or loss on revaluation of deferred and centingert cons deration
payable is recognised in tre consolidated income statement as nvestment
reven.e or a firarce cost

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Tre Groups activines expose it 1o te financia! rigks of changesin foreign
cusrency exchange rates and changes in interest rates. The Group uses
derivative fir a-cial nstroments such as fo-eigr exchange forward
contracts and interest rete swaps to hedge these exposures

Derivatives are imitialy recagnised ot fa rvolue ot the date a dervative
cortract is entered into and ore subseguently remecsured to therrfar
value ot the end of each reporting period The resulting gein or loss 1s
recogrised in the Consolidated 1ncome stotement uniess neoge
accounting has been appliee by designating the derivative as a hedging
instrument in on e igibie nedg'ng relaniansnip, The Group designates its
denegtve inar dal insh oments as hedging instrumerts incass 1w
hedge rolehicrshins A derivative is presented os o non-current gsset
or a non-current 1ab ity if the rema ning motur ty of the instrument s
more tham 12 morths and it s not exnectes to be realised or seffled
wath m 12 maonths Other derivatives are preosented os current assets ar
current abilities

At the ‘ncention of the hedge relationsa p, the Group documents the
relatiorsh’p oetween the kodging imstrument ano the hedged ifem,
along w'th the r s« mancge ment objectives and strategy for unaertaxing
var ous nedg’ng transcchors Atincepton of the hedging re otonshep,
ara or an ongoing bosls, the Group porforms ar assessmert of hedge

effecrveness to confim she subeislerce of anecaro~ic relaticr-big,

cred tris< ooes not dominate value charges taat result fram thot ecsamic

relaticret’n, aad the designated heage rahio s comsistent witn the risk
meaagerment stratogy

Annugl Recort and Accounts 2021 Hyve Group ple

Derwvative instruments are nitally recogrised at foir velue ot the date
a derivative controct is entered into and are subsequently measured ta
therr fair volug ot the end of each fnanaal year The effective porhan of
changes in the far value of dervatives thot are aesignoted and gual fy
as cash flow hedges are deferred in eauty

Toe gain of lossreloting to any ineffechve porfion 1= recagrised
immediately 'n the Consolidated income statemert as investmert revenue
of firarce costs respectvely Amaunts deferred in equity are recycled in
the Consoiidoted iIncome statement in the periods wnen the heaged item
is recognised in the Consolidated ncome statement, in fne same line of
the Censolidated income statement as the recognised bedged item

Hedge accourtirg is discentirued wher the hedging instrumenrt exaires
or it sold. termunated or exercised, or no longer qualifes far hedge
accounting, Any cumulative gain or wwss deferrec in eguity at that ime
remoins in equity and 1s recagmised wnen the ‘orecast transaction s
ulhmatety recognised in profit or loss Wren a forecast transachon 13 no
Ionger exnected to cocur, the cumulstive gain or loss trat was deferred
in equity is recognisec immedictely in the income statement

The Group's use of “nancial derivetives 1s governed by the Group s
financral polrctes Further details o7 these policies can be found w the
Strategic repart on pages 110 62

Fair values

The “air volue 1s defi-ed os the emount at whick a inancial instrument
could be exchanged inan arm's ength tronsachen between informed and
wiling parhes ana is calcutaten by reference to market rates d scounted to

current valuc

The Group determines the far value of its hnancial insruments vsing
market prices far quoted nstruments and wide'y accepted valuation
technaues for other instruments

Valuaton technioues include discounted cash flows, standard velustion
mode's basec on market porameters, dealer quotes ‘or similar
‘nstruments and use of comparable arm's 'fength fransactions

Revenue

Revenue 1s measurec at the fair varue of consideration receved or
recevable and represents cmounts receivabie for goods and services
provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts, VAT and ather
sales-reloted taxas, ana provisions for returns and cancellations

Revenus *from exhio'tiors and conferences, wretner in-person or virtua,,
s reccgrised woen the event s neld, ne'ng the point in e trat services

are orevideo to the customer ard performance obl'gatiors hove been

=atished

ayntents 12r ovents are nermally reccives nodvance of the
event dates Centiactualy committed revenues ard b lings, to tro extent
that the amaounts howve fa'len due ord there 1s an enforceable rgat to
aayment a~a case receved n acvarce, and arrectly attnibutable costs

relating to future events, are ceferred

Thear conbs deferned are included ir e Stgemert of incnool prarion
as ae‘erred 1ncome and nrepayments resoectively urtl the evert nas
comp eted Deferred reeme balarces e uded i current hab dies of the
report ng date w ll be recogrizsed os reverue w tn n 12 maonths Trere‘ore,
the oggregate amoust of tee tracsact o1 price 11 resoect of noformance
chligations arae w so <hed ol he reooing acte s e oefored

Imcorme bolatce arch wll be comsiicd wiit i one year
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Notes to the consolidated accounts

2 Basis of accounting continued

I*an evert s articipoted to moke c loss tnen the prepeid evert costs i
excess of the deterred ircome -eld 1~ the State~ e+ of financicl positior
at the end of a financiat yvear are writven offin full Where matenal.
transcchion prices and discounts ore eppropriate y a'locatec between
pertormance ob igaticrs based on tre market price of products

Marketing and advertising services revenues are recogrised o~ issug of
the reloted publcation, over the oerioc of the advertising subscrpton, or
aver the period when the marketing serv'ce s proviced, or a straight-lire
basis "he perfor—ar ce obhgaohons are satisted cver time and this reflects
when *he custorrer cenghts from the services providea The performance
obligatiors ore d'stinct. being events neld or puslicchors issueg Where
materol, transaction prices ard discounts are appropr ately ailocotea
between performance cb igations oased on the market price of prooucts
Payments far such services are normally received i advance of the
marketing or advertis ng period

Interest ‘meorme s accrued on at me basis, by reference to the ornaipal
ourslanding and al the etloctive ntcrest ra'e apphoable

Income from investments s recogrisea when the sharebolders’ nights to
recewe poyment have beer establshed

Due to the nature of the business, trere 1s cn mmateral value of
trensachion price allsca'ed tz urnisonished e tormance coligatiors
There are no matenal contract assefs ansing or work performed to
e wer performaree cbigatons

Barter transacticns

Revenue relat ng to barter frarsachions s recorded at ‘a r value anc
the t m ng of recognmit o is nlire wth tre anove Expenses trom oarter
tramsactions ere recorded at far va ue a~d recogrised as incurrec
Barter trarsactions tyocal y invalve the tracing of thaw space or
conference p'aces in exchange for services orovided af evenls or

reg’a advertising

Taxation
The tax expense represents tne sum of tax currently poyable ero
aeferred tax

‘becurent tox charge s bosed on e raxcble pref* To the yea using the
tax rotes ond ows thet have beer enccted or substont vely encctec by tha
palonce shee dale Taxacle crott didtars rori oot crott as reported in toe
incame stotement beccuse 't exc uaes iterms 0° 1come or exoense that ore
toxop € or cecuc’ ole i~ other years a~o it furtter ercludes termu trot ore
~ever toxan'e or geduct ble

Deferrec tox s tre tox expectes o o0 POyOS'E C7 "ECCVENLD 2 00
difteresces heteaer e rarryng omn ot gt a- e ard ekl =

tre reancial sater ertr o atre co espor amg tox bases et re

smner of torohle pro® oo a i 300 cred o crgtre coloe s

enargty reccg conl for

shect ooty method Defer-eatoxian

zll ~g<onlate e corgry orfzier (e

only t the extert that 1112 probasle “hat taxable pro™z will he avallab e
agains wh ch deauctible temuorary differen-es can ee uihsed S .ch
aszets and labiliies are not recogmised i the "emporary difference anses
fraom goodw | or fram the ‘niha recogntan {other tnan 1~ 6 busrass
combynotion] of cther assets ang b hes o o lransadchon Thob dees aol
o™er *he tox profit or t-e accounting profit

Dleferred tox Ighilities ore recognised for daxable temoorary differences
arising on investments 1 subsidicr es and ossociotes ard irterests in jo nt
vertures, except where tne Groupas able to contral the reversar of the
temporary difference ano 't 1s proboble tha: rhe temporary difference

wil ral ~everse in the forescecoie futu-e

Tre carying value of ceferreq tax assets s reviewed of cach nelance
sheet date and reduced to the extent tnet 15 no enger probaoie thet
su=cient taxable protts will be available 1o allow all or part of the asset
to be recovered

Deferred tax s colculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply 1Ir tre
penod when tne liability iz settled or the osset s realised Deferred fax iz
chargeo or creaitec in the iIncome stafement, except where 1t re ates to
tems chargeo or creaited directly fo eauity, in wheh cose the deferred
tax is also dealt with n equity

Deferred tox aszets ano hobihies are offse” when "here 1s g legally
s against ¢ .rrent fox hatn ihe-

enforcearte rignt fo set 2% curront fax ac
ar~d wher they reiate to income taxes levied by the same laxotan
autnority ond tre Group intends to settle ts cur-enttox assets ard
wotlibes or a ret casis

& currenttax orowvision s recogrised when the Greuo bas a oresert

obl gahon os a result of o past evert, it s prooabie fact the Group will be
reaurred fo sette that chligotion ond o rellable estimate ce~ be made
of tre amnaout of the abigat or Tre provisior 15 the best est mate cof the
considorat'on requirea te settle the present obligat or at the balorce
sheetdate, taking into account the risks and uncerta nhes surraunding
tne oblgator

Insurance proceeds

The Group bos nsurcnce poboies 1 place r respect of event
postponements a~d cance iotiors Tre gross preceeds from ¢ oiris
urder these poicies are recogrsed r tie incame stotenent as ofaer
oporating income when the rece’pt of the oroceeds s virtual y certair

Government grants

Cover~mert grants gre rotrecogn seo urh there s regscron e assurance
traf the Group wil' comply wiir the concit ons attach ng to trem ang thar
tregrentswil perecelved HOVErrcent grarts ure tecopniced - oot

oricye o g systeohs Bass over tre per ods mowmick tae Groun

recogr soe gs cxoneroes bie celotes costs for vk fne gracts ace ate-ar

tc cemnensote Govermmertgrartstrat ore rece voo e as cemoensaton
forexcerser s
I T EDGTE TICY IO
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2 Basis of aecounting continued

Foreign currencies

Transactions 'n foreign currencies are recoroed of the rate of exchange
at the date of the transachion or treir cortractual rate wnere applicacle
tonetory assets and ionilities denorinated in ‘oreign currencins At the
end of each hnonaial year ore refronzlaled at tne rates of exchange
prevailing af thet date Non-manetory ossets ano hab I'hes are translated
at the rate prevailing at the date tre farr value was determired Nor-
monetary tems that are measured in terms of histerical cost 'na foreign
currency are nof retrensleled, Gains and osses ansing an the settlement
af monetary tems, and on the retransiat'on of monetary items, are
included i~ income ‘or tre period Exchange differences arising on the
retrerslation of non-monetary iteris carried ot fair value ore included 1~
income ‘or the pernod except for differences ansing on the refranslatios
cf non-monetary ‘tems in respect of whick gains or losses are recognised
directly i~ other comprehensive mcome Fer such non-monretory itemns,
any exchange component of that gain or loss is recogrsed 'r other

Ccomprenens ve income

Details of the Croup's accounting policies for ferward controcts anc
octions are incluced in the policy on denvatve fironaal insiruments

On consolidation, the monthly mcome statements of overseas aperations
are translatea at the avercge ratas of exchange for each monrth, and
each Stotement of Ainancal position ot the rates ruling ot the end of each
fnorciol yeor, Exchonge differences ansing ore classihied as equity and
transferred to the Group’s translahon reserve. Such translation differences
are recogn sed s Income or s expenss in the periad in wh'ch the
operation s cisposed of The Group deems an cperation to pe disposec
o when it has lost contro of the troce and assets of that cperation

Unaer ‘he exemphen permit-ed from 148 21 {-he effects of changes

i forengn exchange rales) cumulalve hanslation differences for all
foreign operations priar to 1 Octeber 2004 have been freated as zere
Cansequently, ony gain or loss on disposa, wil exciude trarslot on
differences irat crose prior to 1 October 2004

Goodwill ana farr value egjustments ansing on the ccguisitien of o
foreign entity are trected as ossets ard lab:it es of tne foreign ontity
ond franslated at the clasing rate

Employee Share Ownership Trust

1 ¢ financial state ments ircluge the aszers and lrabilitios of the Limployco
Share Ownership Trust (ESOT} Shares in the Company neld by the

FSO7 have beer valued of cost and are held n equity “he costs of
adairistration of the 2SO1 e wrirler o te proft or lass s 1incurrea

WHere euch shares are subsecuently sald, cny net cons'deration received
15 1ncludeo inequity attricuteble to the Compony's ecuity holdors

Pension and other retirement benefits

T e Group operotz: detines condiibutien pension plans mom L ihple rego
arounc the Group Cortribuhons poychle are chorgeo to the irceme
stoterment as tiey fo ldue os or opercting exoanse,
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Share-based payments

Equity-settled

The Group issues equ ty-settlea share-based poyments to certom
e~ployees These are measured o1 foir value (excluding the effect of
aor-marcet-basea vesting cond hoas) at the date of grant. The fair value
defermined af the grant cate of the eauity-settlea share-nased poyraerts
5 expensed on a straight-1 ne pasis over the vesting penicd, nased on the
CGroup's estimate of snares that wil. eventually vest and adjusted for tre
effect of nos-market-based vesting coraitiors

Cash-settled

Tre Group operates o cash-settled share-based compensation plan for
the benef- o certair employcrs, Cash-sctiled share-based poyments
are measyured a* far value {excluding 1€ effect of no~-market-based
vesting cerditons) ot each reporting date The fair value is expensca

o1 ¢ strorght-line baosis ever the veshing per'ed, with o carrespondirg

increase '~ labiities

Fair value 1s measurec using o Black-Scholes mocel The expectec ife
used In the mode! has beer adjusted, for the effects of ron-teansferability,
oxercise restrictions ana behavicural cons'derations based on
management’s best eshmate

Leases

The Group assesses whether o contract is o7 contains a lease ot 'ncept'on
of the confract The Group recognises a nght-of-use asset and a
corresooraing lease lability with respect to ol lease orrangements 'n
whic~ 1115 1& lessee, except for short-term leases (oefined as legses with
a lease term of 12 months or less) and ieases of low volue assets. For these
leases, the Group recognises the leose payments as operating leases
expensed directly to the income state~ent.

The lease tabilty s intally measured at the present va ue of the lease
oayments thot are rot paid of the commencement date, using tne discourt
rate implait with the ease “he leasa habilty is presenied as o separatfe
ime in the Consolidated balonce sheet The lease habihity 15 subsequently
mregsured by ircreasing the carrying orrourt so refiect interast on the
iease Lablity (using the discount rate used at commencemert) and by
reducing tre corrying amount 1o refiect -he fease poyrments made

The Group remeasures the lease habrity (ond makes o corresponding
adjustment to the related night of use assef) whenever

* Aleose controc iz medified ard the legss modificatonis not accaurtea
for as o 2eparcte lease, in which case tne lease hability is remeasured

besed artha lease term of e modifiea lease by ciscourting the rovises
lease payments wang a tevises clcount rate ot b e effective dowe of

the moarfcahon;

® “helecse naymenls crange due fc chenges in an iroex of rate or
o change s expectea oayments, 'nwn’on coses tne lease iohilty
s remeasured by d scourting the revised lease paymerts using o

charg.d discuarrale al the o vodive dasc of b oo o won
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2 Basis of accounting continued

Tre rght-of-use assots comprise fre n hor measurement of tne
corresporang lease habi 'ty, lease poyment: made at or be‘ere the
commencement day, less any lease 1ncentives rece ved end vacant
aroperty provisions Trey are subseauent y measured of cost iess
accumuoted depreciator ard iImporrment osses Right-of-use cssefs are
depreciated aver the expected lease term of the under ying asset. The
deprecction starts at the commencement dofe of the lease. The Group
cppl es 1AS 36 to aetermine whether a right-of-use asset 1s impa.red and
acceunt- for oy oenlilied imparmoent loss agoins “he right-ot-use asset

Headline results (notes 5 and 11)

in addtian to the statutary results, headlre resu ts are prepared for tne
come staterment, indluding measures - relation o operatir g proft,
profit before tox and diluted earnings cer s-ore, as *he Board consiaers
these meosures fo be the most appropriete way to meesure the Group's
perfarmaonce naway thatis comoarable to the oricr year

The Group presents neacl ne results (note 5) and headhine ailuted
earnings per snare (note "1} to provide additionar useful rformotcor or
busiress performance frencs to shorero'cers “hese resu'ts are used for
performance ana ysis ars incentive compensahcr arrangemeants for
employees Heoo re results exclude items that are commoenly excluded
arongst peer companies omortsation ard moormert of gooowill and
other inta~gible assets, transactan casts, restructuning costs, ntegrotior
costz, profitor loss on dizposal of busin
the cpimcn of the Directors would distort under'ying resu'ts The term

zses ard orheritems that i

‘heaslive’ 1s not o defined term Lnoe' IFRSs o7 d may ror thereore be
corrparonic o aimilarly itled profie mcasurerrents reporied by cthor
comnanes It snotiatendea to ve a subshiute “ar, or super or 1o, IFRS
rcgsu emerts of proht Rofer to note ! tar delails o aojushng iterrs
recorded for *he year ane reco~riles 1o sla'wary ocerching proft

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation
uncertainty

In t1e process of app ying 11e Grous's accountirg nolicies, a number of
Juagemerts ang estimictes have beer mode by mencgement Traose trat
have the mas egniTcont effect on tre a~ ounte recogr sed i tee Francicl
sfatements or hove t~e most r s< of couwrg o mateniol adjustment to the
cartying omounts of assete ord hamiltes wittin tre nex inancial year are
d scussed below

Critical accounting judgements
Adjusting items
Tre dassifconcn o” ooju

Slagrem: rean £ cgnihcat o aragerent

Jage~est oiter corsder ag tae —oture irtert ons of o transact on

TreGrososdel w2 cgfao nerane e cie o fimeawr-ineoth e
Vilessary Ircse ez s b ove cuen
crowndes ftrer cete s oo current pear aopt ng ters

Valuation of separately identifiable intangible assets

Tc determine the value of ceparately iden‘ifiable intangicle aszets or

a busness combnetion, erd deferred tex on thase intargible assets,

the Group ‘s required to maoke judgements when util sing va-uction
metnooolog £5 | he valugnon s basea upon discourted cash flows ~odels
ana includes judgemerts in re'ation to future cash f ows, discount rares
mlended toreflect t-e nsk-agjusted cost of capital ir tre tertrory of 11 e
cequisition, reverue forecasts ond the est mates for the use‘ul econemic
sig-ihcant judgements invalved in
cssessing what omounts snould be recognised as the estimated farr

lives ot infangible assets There are

value of cssets and labil'ties acgured through nusiness combinctans,
pert.cu criy the cmourts attr buted te seperate rtongib e assets such as
tredemarks and custemer re ationships These judgements mocctthe
amount of goodw| recogr sed on acqu siton Any provisional amounts
are subseq ently finolised within *he Y2-mo~*h meagsuremeni perica as
perrutted py IFRS 3 Business Combinahions, The Group corsiders the
advice of third-party independent vaiuers to identify and carcu ote ine
voluotior of ntarginle assets on acquisiticn Details of acquisthons 10 the
year are sel oul n note 13

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

impairment of goodwiil and intangible assets

Tnere are o "umber of estimaotes manogemert considers when
defermiring value i~ use, mast <igrificantly “he growtk rates cppliea to
foture cast flows and the discount rates usad to derive the present value
of those cash Fows Growtn rates eflect manage~—e-- = view of ne
long-term ferecast retes of growth, usima third party sources such as the
International Manetary Fund (IMFl where appropriate Discount rotes
are selected to reflect the nsk-adjus'ed cost of capital -or 17 & respeciive
terntorie: The most significar® areo of estiT atior unceriointy relates
‘oloreeost tast T ows of coch LOL Torecos! cash flows are based

on 8cod-ocproved budgets ard plans Augrificar: change inthe
assumptions used i geterm'ring the value in use of certa'n CCUs, could
potentialy resut manimoarment cnarge being recoga’sed rre ation
to trese CGUs

See rote "2 far further cetar!

‘me carryirg value of goodwll ond mtorg b e ossets o1 20 Septemper 202
S £732m (2020 £63 /m)anc £201 2 (2020 L£240 67 rescective y

Deferred consideration receivable

The voluatic~ of deferrec cors aerat or rece vab = of £9 81 {2020 £8 M),
TECagUIse s upeh aisposal of tie Seoup's bosinesces, 1= agnihicantly
rrpacted oy tre estimmchicn oF e ¢ acoust rote usen 1n ceterm fing the
preseetvsle of the connioe oo Tre aiccatrats ¢ selecten 1o refleet
tre r sk-cdusted cost of confo ‘orineterrtory qwh chime o sposolro

tawe~pace as wel cotreszesro creatrsk o tre buver A=y cont mgert

eemert ot tre oeferred cars narat o rece cobh e treccgnsecatte ¢

& Evant perfoomance

vCive ootea o the drectars nost et mote of e

of tme @ spD.en o Dus Test

Deferred tax assels

Deferrentex ostels ore recogr :

urretaranle poct e il e

ut sec Toeretore, trere
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3 Segmental information

Treiaroup has identined repartable seg~ e !s based o finonicial
informaton used by tne Exacutive D rectors in cliccaling resources and
makirg strotegic aecisions The Execut've Directors (consisting of the
Chief Execarive Officer and the Chief Finance and Qperations Ofhcer; are
considered to be the Group's Chiet Operoting Decision Moker The Croup
eval.otes performaonce on the kasis of headhne pra©t or foss before tox

The Group's reportable segments are operaticnal business urits and
groups of events thot are managed separately, citner besed on
geagraphic locohon or as portfolios of events

During the year tne Group has made chenges to 1s reporfonle segments
The Global Brands and UK segments nave merged ta form a new Gicbal
Communities segment, reflecting the new management structure in place
for these businesses Folowing the disposal of the Grouo's Korakhsta~
busnessir Apnl 2021, in oadition to the disposal of cur Azerboijen arc

Arnual Report and Accourts 2021 Hyve Group plc

Uzbekistar event portfalios i August 2020, Hyve has now completed
itz exit from Central Asia, The results of Certral Asia are treated as a
disccntrued operohon in botn the current and comporative pericds
and Certra Asia 3 no longer a reportaote segment for the Graup

In arder to enhance the trarsoarency of cur segmertal repert'ng and
present divsional cost boses which —ore accurstely re’ et the costs
required to run tre incividual segments, we heove rea’locates cny costs
whicn are incurred centra ly but can oe arrectly otiributab e fc the
segments This exercise has bean perfermed for both the current perod
and tne comparative pernod wh'ch has been restated.

The croducts and services offerea oy each business urst are de eel
across the Group The reven ,e ond headline pro—t bofore tox are
attributable ta the Greup's one orincipal activity, the ergarisahon of tfrade
exhib tiors, conferences and relatea activities and con be analysed by
operat’ng segment as fol ows

Eastern &
Global Southern Continuing Discontinued

Communities Asia Europe Russia operations operations Total Group
Year ended 30 September 2021 £00D L£000 £000 LO00 £000 £000 EQ00
Revenue 17,725 4,114 6,054 27,308 55,201 49 55,250
Segrent headline (lose)/profit before tax (21,030) (7,454) (1,944) 5,742 (24,686) (747) (25,433)
Gther operating incame 66,101 - 66,101
Unailecated costs (20,625) - (20,625)
Headline profit before tax 20,790 (747) 20,043
Adjusting tems (41,383) (3,604) (44,987)
Profit before tax {20,593) (4,351) (24,944)
Tax 5,010 (86) 4,924
Profit for the period (15,583) (4,437) {20,020)

The revenue inthe yeor of £55 2m includes £0.5m (2020, £2 ) of markehing and advertis'ng secvices revenues Neirdvidua customer omounts to more

than 10% of Group revenues

Other aperatirg nceme ne udes insUronce proceeds recerves In the yeor of £65 0 {2020 £22 Um) 1 relotion te cla ms regarding the cancellator or
postponement of o rumber of events that were scheduled to toke place in the current ard prior year The gross procends are recogn sea n e 1ncome
stolement a» other operating incame wher the receipt of the proceeds s virtually certair Please refer to the Chuef Firgnce ord Oparahons Offirer’s

statement ‘or further deta’l
Una lecated casts include

= t cad office cosls,

® Foreign excnange gamns ane losses on translial or of monetary assets and 1ebitities belo in Group subsiciary compan as that are denorurated ia

currencies cther than the funchonal currency of the subsidianes, ans

® Notlearcocosts
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3 Segmental informatien continued

The Grouc's share o profils from azscc otes o-d joint ventu es, capitol expenditure 2na cmornsanor a- a deprec ohicn can e analysed by operating

segment as folows

Eastern &
Global Southern
Communities Asia Europe Russio Total Group
Year ended 30 September 2021 L£000 £000 £00D LOOD LOD0
Share of results of associates and jeint ventures
Share of results before tax - 1,880 - 120 2,000
e - (443) - (z) (455)
Share of resu'ts after tax - 1,437 - 108 1,545
Capital expenditure
Segme~t copital expenaiture 120 71 96 134 421
Urialiocated copita. expenoiture 554
a75
Deprecigtion and amertisation !
Segment deprocatcn gad emortisation 27,684 1,588 140 283 29,695
Urallocaten depreciatior and amortisation 5,038
34,734

“re impairment charges in respect of goodwiil, integible assets, investments in assaciotes and je'nt ventures, anc ofther assets can be ara yseo by

operatng segment as fol ows

e
£000 \
Asia -
Global Commu-ihes 19,028
tastern & Soutnern Zurope -
Discont nuea cperations - :
19,028 263,423 !
Tme Group's assets and | ablties car be a-alysea by ooerat ng segment as ol cws
Eastern & .
Global Southern i
Communities Asia Europe Russia Tetal Group
30 September 2021 £ooo L£00D LO0% OO LOOO
Assets
Segmeant ossets 264,147 68,083 5,281 37,624 375,135
Unallocated assets 45,774
420,909
Liabilities
Segment labldes {84,350) (32,551) (3,814) (17,821}  (108,6136) .
U~aloccteo labiites (155,658)
i ’ i (264,294)
Net assets 156,615

a

Alassetsare ap: tesare o ocated o roporich’e segmioats excent for corts s cettrn y re G B 0NCEs, CL UG Y DIGRerty, TS

cempcor entae relor o e Tin o rsga at e fces ce tme Taue g bk lmae g acnrane e oo e g0 deracien)

rtorc eou omentana
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3 Segmental information continued
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Eactesn &
Olsbal Sauthern Condmang Coscmnhirued
Commwun b es A a Furope Ronsic cpraterns Lperalicns Tatat Groo
Year ended 30 Seplerrber 2420 (restnlen) £000 L0080 L0500 LU00 £002 Loz £000
Revenue 56,505 17,069 4,000 27,78 99,365 5717 105,082
Seg—en - eadlne {loss)/profit before tox {14,977 6,390 (3,058) (6.622) (-8.267) (918) (19,215}
Otaer operating income 22,578 - 22,578
Unal ocated costs 22,44/} 165 (22,282)
Headline profit before tax (18,136) (783) {18,9°9)
Adjusting items (296,851} 2,263 (294,628}
Profit before tax (315,027} 1,480 (313,547)
Tax 11,024 (216) 10,808
Profit for the period £304,003) 1,264 {302,739)
Lastern &
Clobinl Souther
Commurt g Asig Eurcpe Russic Tuta Croen
Yeor ended 30 Septernber 2070 (restaledt £0%0 L0309 £007 LOJ0 £002
Share of results of assaciotes and joint ventures
Shere of results before tax - 6,028 - {(280) 5,748
Tax - (1,536) - - (1,536}
Shore of resu ts after tox - 4,492 - {260) 4,212
Capial expenditure
Segment capital expend ture 132 51 17 93 293
Unallocated cap ka expenditure 1,649
1,942
Depreciation and amortisation
Segment depreciat'an and armartischion 24,900 3,946 2,084 822 31,752
Urallocated deprec otion and amortisation 4,997
36,749
The Group's assets and liab hes car be araiysed by coerating segrment as follows
Fasrerr &
Gleban Soulnera
Coammuanries Tevra’ Ao Eurcpe Fueen Toal Sroup
30 Seplemner 2020 (restated) £006 L20G Foon LOC0 Lo
Assets
Segmenrt assets 296,237 64,629 6,81 9,682 42,345 420,401
Unal.ocated gssets 36,705
457,09
Liabilities
Segmenrt habil hes (65,1641} (28,293) [3,°89) (7,428) (37,444 ("35,518)
Unallecatea wabihties (144,545
B (280.063)

Net assets

177,046
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3 Segmental information continued

Infornat o apout the Grouo's reverue by crig'n of so e ana ren-current assets oy gecgrephica location s defailec below

Geographicol information

Revenue’ Nen-current assets?
200 2020 2027 2020
oo £00D £000 Lo0s
Asia 4,317 16,940 46,377 49,331
Certral Asia 49 34 - 2,08%
Easter~ & Southern Eurcpe 5,401 3.613 2,340 2,844
Russic 21,398 17,243 18,170 °8,208
LK 9,31% 38,245 82,073 39,083
us 6,674 2,746 91,879 89,369
Rest of the world 8,100 23,181 94,243 170,294
55,250 "06,082 336,082 371214
1 e Lder revenae (rom difcor hnued ¢ peralinns
2 Noh-usrepd @ sed mrudade defoiied tox uset. o0 s iU s 3eiel? dawse ~dar held (o Lol
4 Operating (loss)/profit
Operating Tloss)/prof iz stoted after cha gingsAcrediting).
A0
2021 s daleal
£000 ]
Staft costs 46,957 47757
Redundarcy. severance and oayments in ieu of not ce (129} 3,940
Government grants - furlougn payments receved (35) {1.286)
Deprecation of property. plort and equ pment 5,702 5177
Amartisation of Intangin'e assets included w thin admr stoatve experses 29,032 31,576
Imparnent of g@odwwll - 195,518
Impairment of intongibies (note "4) 19,028 53432
Imsarment of investmerts - 4,473
(Frofi)flzes an disposal of subsiciary heldirgs [ro'e 17 197) -
Shor—terr legses - offices 161 481
Short-term leases — verues 7,654 32,229
(Gamiloss on dervatve hinanciol imstrumierts - eaaty cohions (rote 73) (8,807) {3,857
Fore'gn exchenge (gainy/loss on cperot ng act v hes 306 {2,806
Otner eperatng ncome 66,101 22,578

Cther coerat~g income or ses main y from insurarce orcceess rece ved in the year 17 re ahion to ¢ ¢1ms regardirg the cancellatian or postpanement of

a ~umber of gvents thot were screcuted to toke 0 oze ~the currert or pror year

02

E£0QDO
Carcel gt'on ~oyrgnce oreceeas 64,992
Soverament gad other funs ges 596 Y
Cither 513 g7
Cther aperot mgrcomn 66,101 22578
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4 Operating (loss)/profit continued

Auditor’'s remuneratien
The analys's of the auaiter’s remurerat.or s as fo'lows

2021 2020
LO00 [
Fees pavable to the Campaory's aud tor for the cudit of the Compony's anrual oocounts 408 410
Fees payable to the Cempany's auditor and .ts associates for other services
- Tne cudt of the Compary’s subsidiaries pursuent te legisiation 220 25
- Additioncl fees paid 1n relat on to tne 2020 gudit 100 -
Total audit fees 728 667
- Other services pursuant to legis'ation (interim review) 69 55
- Advice regord ng requlatary enguiries 12 -
- Report ng accountant work - nghts issue - 384
Total nor~qudit fees 81 439
809 1,100

Detai's on the Group's pol ¢y on the use of the auditor for non-audit services, the reasors why the auditor was usec rather than ancther supplier ana how
the auditar's independence and ohjectivity were sofeguarded are set out -+ the Audit Committes report o1 poge 75 Ko services were provded oursuart
to cortingent fee crrangaments

5 Adjusting items

2330
2021 {restated?
rooo coco
Operahng adjushng ttems
Amortisation of coqured irtangible ossefs (note 4] 27,770 28,154
Impairment of gonodwil (note 12} - ©95,518
Impoirmert of intangible assets (rote 14) 19,028 63432
Impairmeart of iInvestments In associates and Vs - 4,473
Feofr on gisposol of subsidiory taldings (rote 173 (189) -
Transaction costs or completed oro pending acaws tiors ard o sposcls 682 3,271
Integrotior costs
~ Integration casts - 53
Restructuring costs
- TAG - 823
Tax on ircocme ‘rom associates and joint ventures 455 536
Total operating adjusting tems 47,746 298,738
hnancing adsting iterms
Feva'uoton of assets and liab 1t es or completed acausiticns and disposals
- Ganen reva'uatior of equ ty optons (note 23) (8,807 13,857
- Loss/{gain} on revaluchor of deferred and centingert corsideration poyable (note 213 1,350 (0d)
- Loss on revaluohor of deferred and conf.ngert congderotic- recevoble (note ~9) 2,687 1,604
= Urwino of imputes imterest cnargea sr discountes deferned corsiderat an rece vaaole [rofe i9) (1,594) 849
write-off of previously copialisea cols 1viue coss or refmancing - 1.353
otal adjusting fems before rax } 41,382 296,891

ae 2ss from iscoatirued cperat ons s cdjusted for the o ow ng temn

2021 20
EODD [RINN]
Operabng adjusti~g tems
Lage Tprafdl o dieposat o d ~contnued cpeahons ote 17 . L 3,604 (2,283)
Discontinued operations — adjusting items T o ’ 3,604 o (2,263

Te QUG rEme @0 OEG S1E0 0 e O &F Finonce ars Lossabtons T fficer < staterr e



136

Hyve Group ple Annual Repc-!t ard Accounts 202

Notes to the consolidated accounts

6 Investment revenue

2021 Loan
£O00 £o0C
Interest recavaple from sark ceposits 163 617
Gaoim on reve uation of ecu ty cptions (note 23) 8,807 3.851
Gain on revaluchion of aeferred ord contingent considerct.on payable (nate 27) - 101
Uy nd of imputed interest charged on d scounted aelerred coraderahon rece vob'e {rote 13) 1,594 849
) 10,564 5,415
7 Finance costs
2021 P
£000 Lo,
Interest on bank locns 5,241 6,415
Bork crarges 2,350 ‘565
Loss on revaluchon of ceferred ara conhingent cansicerafion recevoble {note "4} 2,687 i,604
Loss on reva uat on of deferrec aro co~tnget consinerchion payable (ncte 213 1,350 -
Interest on lease labihies (note 27) 650 683
wirite-of' of previously capitalised aebt issue casts on refiranang - 1,353
12,278 1,620
8 Staff costs
2021 floan)
Number Numiber
The average morthly number of emp'oyeas (inc uding Directors) was
Acmiatrot on 298 375
Tech~icalond sa es 616 aas
94 HE;;
The r oggregate remunerat.cn compr sed” L£00D 000
Wages and sa'ares 38,413 318,697
Sacial secunty costs 5,212 6.341
Crhier o heret s 774 156
Det-eacortmbuion pens o screme carsibuicrs 792 989
Share-bosea nayrments 766 579
46,957 Y

The gefired contribuhion pensio” comnbutions relate to the ~casmzs - muliple regior- arcu-d *he Group

Deta s cf aud tee D rocters’ reémunerat’cn are shown - fie Repart o remurereten or sages 86 to 'Ch

Remuneroton of key marcgement oerserme!l s d s¢ osed 1n rote 28
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9 Tax on profit on ardinary activities

Analysis of tax caargeddcreant) for the year

Ar-ual Repert ana Accounts 2021 Hyve Group ple

250
2021 frectated;
L£00D LC00
Group taxation on current year vesult:
UK corporatior tax charge/(credit) on result for the year 1,231 {467
Aajustment to UK tax in respect of previous years 17 50
1,248 {417}
Overseas tox - current yecr 2,151 3,703
Oversens fox - prev.ous years (723) 472
1,428 4175
Current tax 2,676 3,/68
Deferred tax
Ong:natior and reversa| of temporary ditferences
Current year {6,176} (14,52/)
Prior year (1,510} (255}
(7,686 (14,782}
(5,010} (11,024}
The tax -mpact of the adjusting ‘tems outined within nete 5 and witkin the Conscol datec ncome slatement relates to the fol owing
2030 2030
2021 2021 lresdated) (restored:
Gross Tax impact Lross Tax impo:’
E£0O00 £ooo E0J0 L0200
Armortisation of acquired intangible assets 27,770 5,526 29,154 5,248
Impa’rment of goodwill - - “9E,518 -
Impa rment of intargib e gssets 19,028 5,206 63,432 11,369
Impairment of nvestmerts 'n associates - - 4,473 -
Change cf rote of deferred tax onintangible assets - {4,712) - (3,696)
Profit on disposal of subsigiary holdings 18%) - - -
Transcction costs on cempletes and pend rg acquisitons and dispesals 652 - 27 -
~ Integratior costs - - 531 -
Restructure costs (TAG) - - 823 -
Tax on ncome from assoc.ates and 1ot ventures 455 455 1,536 1,536
Revaluation of lebilit'es an completed acquisitons
- Gain on reva uctior of equity options (8,807) - (3,859 -
- Loss/(goin) o1 revaluction of deferred ond contirgent consideratian payable 1,350 - (104} -
- Loss on revaluahon of deferrec ard contingent consideraticnrece™vac e 2,687 - 1,604 -
- Urwind of ‘mpouted interest charged on discountec deferred considerat on rece vap'e (1,594) - (B49) -
wrore-oH of previously capidalised deblistue costs onefinsnzing - - 1,353 -
41,382 6,475 296,891 14,457
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9 Tax on profit en erdinary activities continued

The tox creoit for the year con be reconc led 1o the loss per the imcormie stotement as foliows

2021

£000
Loss o~ ardinary actvities before tox from cortinuing cperctions (20,592)
Less on ord’ nary achv hes mult'pled by standard rote of carporatior tax in the UK of 19 0% (2020 19 0%) (3,912) (59.855)
Efects of
{Frafif)/ioss on citnosal of subsidiary ~oldings (29 (i53)
‘rarsachon costs 181 585
Tax e¥ect 0* equity ophons and deferred ‘connrnige t consderaton (1,132} (608}
Impairmert of goedw I a~a ather 1ntang ble assetfs 283 38,166
Other exoonses not deduchinle for tox purposes €19 583
Tax e*ect of a~ octisation of iIntongicies (1,386) 157
Be-recognition of deferred tax ossets previously recognised - 3,414
Recogn tion of deferred tax pssets not arevcusly recogn sea (2,41} -
Mavement on provisiors for tax urcerta ntos (76} 396
Curre~t year losses ~of recogn sed as DTA 2,341 2524
withholding fax on overseas dividerds su®e-eq in the yzar 563 666
Teterred tax crovisien an repotriatior of cverceas pro-es 950 (.749)
“ax charge 1n respect of previcus period (2,215) 267
Crange ntax rate at whicn deferred fax 15 calcu ateg 2,072 2,94/
I Hfect of orfferent 1ax rates of subsimaries .n a-her yurearcfions (564) 1,036
Ausoc ole tax S (294} (200}

(5,010} (1,024)

Currert tax i~ the ame .rr of corporote ncome toxes expected 1o b= payacle or recoverable hases o ~he pro- 1101 "ha pericd a- adjasted for remi« thot
are not taxable or not deductio e ond s colculated us ~g tox rates and lows that were enacted or supstart vely enactec at tne date of the statement of
finaraicl pesition

The Groun see<s to pay tox ir accordarce with the gws 0" the courtries where 't does bus ness 1he Groun est matesaits fax or o country-by-courtry
zosis Current fox neludes crounts sravided ir resoect 07 uncertcin tax pos hions where monogement expects that, npon exarminct e of the urcerta ~ty
by o tax suthoricy in possession of all relevon- xrowleage. 1t is procakle thar on economic ouflow wil o< Wrile the Graup = confident t-a* ax renurrs
ore appiopnaiel prepored ara Fleo amounrs are provided in rescec of urcariair fox posans thot eflect the ik wirh respect 1o tax matiers zre

cens dered to inve ve uncertainty Provisions against unceta - tax posihors are mcasurec using o prebeon dy we.ghted exsected measure - where o7
the balonce of proboi. it es so~erirg will be paiz "o the tax outkorries cu* -here s “o cefirte outcere e proasiontsthe sLm o the probobility of the
weightea oulcomes nere arg 10 0mgo Tg d scuss ens v T tax autrorties relal ng to uncertain fax pesit ons

Atax charge of LBEO0C (2020 £276,000] hes veen recogn sed i» respect of d scontinuea operations

201
£000
Tox reletinrg to components of comarehe~swve niame
. - Deferreg . (130) -
Tox e ot g toc amousts creditea, ichargen i to ecu ty
Sogre cpt ors - Deferren 101 £’
™ N

{29) 5%
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10 Dividends

Arcuel Report and Accounts 2021 Hyve Group ple

260 020
Pershare Settledin cash Settled in scrip Ferchare  Setllsdincach Settleainecrp
p L£OOY £000 [ £ous Lo
Amounts recognised as distribytinns to equity balders in the year
Fina divideno in respect of the prior year - - - 6 13,012 -
Interim d vidend in respect of the current year - - - - - -
- - - 1.6 13,012 -

The Directors have not procosed a fnal dividena for tre yeor ended 30 September 2321

Under the terms o tne trust deed aated 20 Octaber 1998, the Hyve Group Emoloyees Snare Trust, whicn bolds 771,375 {2020 812,656) oidinary shares
representing 3 3% of the Campany’s ca'led up arainary share capitel, has agreec to wawe all dividends due to it each year,

11 Earnings per share

The caleulatian of basic, dilutes, head! ne basic ard head ire diluted earnirgs per snare s besed e the follewing numbers of shares and carrngs

2021 P
No. of shares Ne of shores
(eoo) (003,

Weighted average number of shores'
For bosic earnings per share 264,349 177,009
Effect of dilutive potential ordingry shares 132 3
For diluted and headline diluted earnings per share 264,481 14,32

Basic and diluted earnings per share

Tre calculotions of basic and diluted earnings per share ore based on tre loss for ihe financiol year a:inbutable to equity bolders of te porer o £12 2m
(2020 restoted: Ioss of £303 7m). Basc and diluted earnings per share were (7 3o ond {7 3)o respectvely (2020 restoted. (17 6)p and (171 &)p) No snare
ophicns (2020 ril) were exclucec from the weightec average ~umber of orcinary shares used In the calculation of the diluted earn ngs per share because

ther e¥cot woula hgve boen anti-dilutive

Headline earnings per share

T-e calculotions of headli-e basic erd diluted eormirgs per share are basco an the heaalire prof ‘o1 e finaroe! year ot nbutable to equity holders of
tre pare~t of £19.3m (2020 restated loss of £23.5m) Head'ine pasic and diluted sarn’ngs per snare were 7 3p ond /3p respectively (2020 restated (13 3)p

ana (13 3)p)

Basic and diluted earnings per share from continuing operations

T-e calculohons of basic and diluted e rings per shaie from condinuing operolior s cre besed on the loss for the Wi ar dial year atnbutoble to egu™y
helders of the parent from continuing operations of £14 8m (2020 restated. loss of £304 9m) Bos< ono dluted eermings oer shore from confinuing
operations were (5 6)p ond (5 6)p respectively (2020 restated (172 3)p and (172 3)p} No share ophiors were excluoed from tne weighted average number
of ardingry shares used ir. the calculation of the diluted ecri-gs pe share because then effec would have been armidilutive

Headline earnings per share from continuing operotions

Tre calk uiohors of headli-e bosic omd ailuted carnings per share are based on “he heaalice orot- -or rre inarciat year atinburable te equity bolders
of the parant from cartinuing operotions of £20 2m (2020 restotes loss of £22 5) Hecdhne bosic ond diluted earrurgs per share from cantinuing

cuerations were 76p and 7 6o respechively (2020 restated (12 7jp and (72 7)p respectively)

Impact of prior period error

The restatemert for the prior per oa ervor disclosen in rofe - Pas hod the ‘ol owing mpact on the colculot ons of basic and ol uted ecrmngs per share aned

heaali~e bosic and di'uted ecrm ngs per snae

A02L 20

20" bl P [ L N

Ba 1z Loa—aeanng L rae maniage dioteu earr g

P | s b pir ke R G | perseare pat rhags

e N il L0003 3 r

Reported {303,748} ("7 6) (17" ) (27.98%) r6) (3e)
Changes relat g te prior per od errors (note 1) a1 - - 489 03 03
Reslatec (303,66/] L7 8) (71 6) (23,4906 (3.3 (33
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11 Earnings per share continued

Avzco cilation of the loss ‘or ke financiol yeor attnicaacle 10 equiry ~olders o' the poren® ‘o fne - eadlne earnirgs ‘or the hrioricial year after taxs

orovaed be'cw

frevinten

2021
£O0v £002

Loss for the francial year ottnibutable to ecuity ho'ders of the parent (19,188} (303,667)
Amorhischon of ocou red Atangible assets 21770 23154
Imparment of gooow | (note 12) (re«lated) - 195,518
Imoairment ot intong b e assets (rote 14) 19,028 63,432
Impairment of investment n assocotes and Vs {(note 18) - 4,473
Loss/{prot i cr oisposcl of subad-ary ho'dings (note 17} (189) -
fossfpro©t »n disposzl of discorrinued aperations {notes 17) 3,603 (2.263)
Trensacter casts on completed and peraing acqus kens ard daposas 682 327
- I~tegratic~ costs - 531
Restructur rg costs {TAG) - 823
Revcluation of nssets ard labiities o1 completed acaustions ond d'sposals

- Gain en revaiyat an of equity options (note 23) (8,807) (3 851]
- loss/{gan on revaluahon of deferred and contingent cansideratior payob'e {note 27) 1,350 [QEA
- Loss on revaluahen of ceferred ond contingent consimershon receivable (rote "9} 2,687 © 604
- Unwe na ol imputea ntorest crarged o~ discountea deofer ga corsaerchion recevoble (oo 149} {1,584) {849}
Wite-off o wrevicusly caprelisod debl issac casts onrenarding - 1353
Tax e'fec” of other adjustments (€,019) 1°2,92';
~gad ine crofit for the fnaraal yeo: aftrib iable to egury holders of *he parent 19,323 {23,498)
—egdline prohi from discontirced ocerations 834 999
—eodline profit for the firanoal year attribigble 'c equity holders o the carent fram contnurg operations 20,157 (22,497)
12 Goodwill

Seodw |
oo

Cosl

At Octecber 2079 253,059
Addit ops through ous ness combiatiors (Festatea) 54,834
Faraigr exchange (restated) (8,294
Dispascl (1,827}
At 30 September 2020 (restated) 297,675
Adid hions through busimess comp nat 015 (hote 13; 12,747
Cispesals ‘3,680
Fcregn exchonge (5 7727)
At 30 Seplember 2021 300,950
Provision for impairment

ArC Octcher 2079 [43,289)

> snesals

—

iagermertrestaten

Foregn excrange

At 30 September 2020 (restated)
Cuncsas

Feraign excmarge

(233,897)

229

At 30 September 2021
Net boek value
At 30 September 2021 73,702

A4 30 Senternper 2020 {restgtec)
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12 Goodwill continued

Goodwill recogrised .r the yoar ended 30 September 2020 in respect
of the acauisition of Shoptalk nas been restated as disclosed in rote 1
The 'mpoirment cnarge recognised in respect of goadwill in the

year ended 30 Septemnber 2020 has olso been restated due to the
consequenhalimoact of the change in the cost of the Sheptalk
goodwill acquirec:

£

Coodw [l with a net bock vaiue of £1 77, held in respect of the Kazakhstan
busimess, was disposed of during the year follewing tne disposa of the
Group's remaring event po-téolio in the region (sce note 17)

Ine Group tests gonawill annualy for impairment, or more frequently if
there are ind cations that goadaw |l might ke impaired Tne recoverable
amcunts of the CGUs are determinea frem value in use co culahors

The key assumptions ‘or the value i use ca culations are tnose regardng
the Group's cash flow forecasts, fona-*erm growtr rates and discount raves
apulied 1o the forecas: cash flows

Cash flow forecasfs

Tre Group preperes cash flow lorecosts cased upon manogement's most
recent four-year finanticl plans preserted to and ecproved by the Soard
ond thereater extrapalotes toe planned cash flows

Tre cash flow forecasts used in the value in use calculotion have beae-
revised to take into account the lalest view of the Group's event schedu'e
and ifs recovery from the COVIT-T9 pandersic The profife of the recovery
differs across *he por'folio, infl .enced by cre-COVID hajecory, the
propartion of fhe customer base that s interrationa , the resil'erce of

the industry secter and speed of recovery oxnected by geograshy

Tre forecasts assume that in Tory coses tne effects of the pondemic will
confinue 1o be fell in the financal years ending 20 September 2022 and

Individually significant CGUs

Aol Report ond Accounts 2021 Hyve Group ple

30 September 2023, nowever, a fU | recovery 1s expected by the end of the
firancial yoar caaing 340 Sectorrbor 2074, suppanfed oy growth from the

GCreup's omnichannel strateay, includirg the impact of the Retoill Meetup

acqu sther (incluaed w tn n tre Shoptalk CGU)

Central costs are gliocates to the CGUs o The ealenl 11 at they ore
necessanly ircarred to gererate -he cashiirfiows ard can be directly
attributed, or allocated on @ reasenable ond consistent basis. The
methodology for allocating central costs has ceen refined during -he
year in arder fo aign with the latest corporate structure of the business
fo'lowing changes made as a result of the COVID-29 paademic and the
acquisitions of Retall Meetup and Snentale

Long-term growth rates

Growth rates beyord the detaled plons are based or IMF forocasts of
inflation <ates in the local marxets, as the CGus are expected to grow
inine with the'r re:evantunderiying markets cver the long term

Tnese growth rates, of between 1% gnd 4%, do not exceed the long-ferm
growth rotes for the economies 'n which trese businesses operate

Discount rates

Management estimates discount rates that reflect the current marcet
assessrments of the hme volue of money a~d nisks specific fo the TGUs,
There are o nurber of different inputs used i~ the buld-up o the aiscour?’
rates, including inflaticn rotes, nisk-free rales, market 1isk premiums ard
industry betas, taken from o numoer of Independent sources Includ'ng the
IME, Bloosmberg and Finoncia Times

The pre-tax d scount sates appled to the CGUs are between 2% ond 17%
{2020 10% ana "9%) The large voaanse in ciscount rates applied reflects
the differcnces in ris<s irhorent inthe reqons i whick the COUs oporate

Reccverable amount in

Goodwill Other intangible assets Leng-term growth rates Pre-tax discount rates excess of carrying value
2021 2020 20 2028 2021 2070 2021 20:0 201 2020
Signitcant CGU= £m £m £m Cmr % % 5 Lm £m
Russ'a 14.9 14 4 - - 4.0 .8 16.3 14 4 132.0 8903
China 9.6 95 1.8 29 2.0 565 127 18 18.8 Ve
Global Communities
Shipping & Specialised
Ergineering 16.2 168 41.5 461 19 13 12.0 103 141 -
Bett 0.7 - 40.2 430 2.0 15 12.6 "2 6.9 -
Shoptak 29.4 186 58.6 5" 2.4 16 12.5 103 39.6 -
Atrica Gl & Mirirg 0.8 28 27.7 324 313 1/ 151 132 141 -
UK - - 28.9 537 2.0 15 13.0 1.2 - 5.2
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12 Goodwill confinued Sensitivity to changes in assumptions
A new CGU, S~ipping & Spec.ol sed Engneering, has been formec Tne calcuction of value © use s most sensitive ta the dscount rales,

reprasent rg the Breakbuls ad CWIEME event portialios The svents qrowin rate: and {arecast cash flows used The Group haos corducred

s f ) p H ! to
ore now monaged as o sng e oertfolio with o sing'e leadershio team asensif vily onayss tak rg into corsderotion the mpact on these

. assumphions ar sing from o range of reasorobly possible trading ard
Theretore, strategic decis ons made 1n respect of e pertfolio. orir m sing ng Y o a

ias. in r 2rse i tire
respect of o single event impoct the cas-inflows of botn events ?_COFOWC scerarios. including U,n add fronal adverse Im?DC e fhe
COVID-19 outbreak The scerarics have been performed sepaorately,
Goodwill of £12 0m are Intangible assets of £9 9m recogrised in and n aggregate, for egcn CGU w th o recoverable value in excess of its
respect of the acgu-shor of Retall Meetup have beer al'ccatea te carrying value, with the sensitivitos summarised os ‘ollows
the Snoptalk CGU
® Adelay ir the recovery of Internatiore travel We have sensfised

impairect charges of £19 0m have been recognised nrespect of forecosts 1o foctor wn o slewer return it internotiona’ frave’ across
acquired intangible assets withir the UK CGU as o resut of the contnu~g our maorkets during FYZ22, as determinec oy the progress of the
wrpoct of COVID-19 or our UK-reto:l events, as well os the aliocation voccine re'lout 1o our geegrashies Urder thug seenang interrohicnol
of additional centra costs foliowing revisigns to the cost allocahen revenues are assumed te be orly 30% of pre-pandem ¢ evels in FY22
nethodaagy Tne imparment chorges are recognised within We have also includea tne subseauent impoact that this would Fave on
admirisirat ve expenses n the Censolidoted income statermenrt ' domest ¢ revenues

* Adecrease Inthe iong-term growth rota by 0 5%

rogsn meal and s Anncrease 1IN the discount rafe by "%
Pre-tox  mparmert e clasgbe  nlorgels
amcount 6 goeceiil assete The sersit vity aralys’s shows that no imparrment would result from erther
cGu rales Looo Loon o deray i irernationn irove!, o oecrense ¢ the jorg-term growth sote, on
Glebal Communities ncrease nthe disceunt rote, or an oggregale of these sensitivites, nary
uis 13.8% - 19.028 19,028 CGUwith headroom in excess o ds carrying volue at 39 September 2021

There wou d. however, be an ncresnental increase 19 the impa rment
cnarge 0 tne UK rncognised inrespoct of acquired intorgiole oesets

e Adeayinthe recovery of irternatiora trave wou dincrease the
impa rmert charge by FO om

& Adecrease n the long-term growth rate by 0 5% would increcse the
‘mpairmert crarge by £0 7m

& Anncrease ntre discount rate oy 1. wou a roredse the mpoirmert

chaorge by £.1&m

The aggregate of these tens tuities woula increase the impairmert chorge
rrespect of acquired intangble cssets by £3 0m
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13 Acquisitions

Retoil meetup

Or 21 Decemoer 7020 the Group acawred 100% of the share cap ta’
of Retail Meetup, LLC for 'mha’ conaideration ¢f £18 5m and deferred
cort'ngent consideration with o fa r value of acquizticn of £3 4m
The acqus Yior wos completed to supoort Hyve's digital evolution
and the delivery o its ormichanne strolegy

The deferred confingent cons deraticr re‘ated to ar earn-cut paymeant
based or tne EBITDA of the two Retal Meetup everts which took place
post-aequis Lo in FY2n The deferred contingent cansiderat'on was
colculated basea on monagement's expectatiors of EBITDA ot acquisition
The deferred cortingent consideration was subsequently settled i August
2027 for £4 7mi based o the hralised ZBITZA of the two events, resulting
inar addihoral £1 3m of consideration beirg poyab'e comoared with
management’s expactations at the hme of oequ’s hon

During the period the Group ircurred trarsacthion costs on tne aoquisiticn
of £0 3m, which are ncluded wittin admin‘strative expenses

Tre arounts fo be récogrised in respect of the iIdefiable a=sats
acquired and llabi thes gssumed are presented as ‘allows:

Foir value
£ouo
Intangible assets - Perpetua’ technology licence 9,523
Infangible assets — Trademarks 401
Identificble net assets 9,924
Goodw'll arnising o acoguistion 12,030
Total consideration 21,954
Satisfied by
Iritial cash corsideration 18,514
Defecred consideration 3,440
21,954
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition
Caosh consideraton pa d 18,514
Net cash outflow arising on settlement of deferred
consideration
Cash cons derotion paia 4,693
Total net cash outflow from acquisition
Total cash consideratan paid 23,207

Aanual Report aro Accounts 202" Hyve Group ple

The goodwall of £12 Crm ansirg from tne acquisthon reflects the strategic
value cf the acguisihion cf on 'nnovahve prosuct, including the expectat o
of rew contracts ard relghionsnps ard tre potential tor growth from
further digiial spir-off events from the Shoptalk and Groceryshop biand:
[he agoadwil of £12 0m s expected to be decuctible far tax purpases

The values used in accounting for the identi~atle assets of thiz ccauisine~
are provisicral at the balance sheet date If mecessary, odjustments wil be
mode to these carrying va ues ond the rolcted gooawill, within 12 menths
of the acquis ticn date

Ine acquirec busiress has contriputed £2 O0m fo Group revenue and £1 2m
16 statutory profit before tax Hod the acauisitton oocurred an ™ Cetober
2020, the acgured bushesses woula have contriouled £3 8m o Graun

revenue ang {2 &mto slavutory prott berore tax

Learnit

During the year the Group coquired the remaining 83° stoke of Learnit
worldwide L mited. The Group had previous y recognised an irvestme =t
of £1 5 {crese~ed within Investmen's in the statement of firarc:al
nosihon), consisting of its initial 1% stoke acguired ot a cost of £0 5m,
naddtion to further capitol contributions of £7 0m

Immediately before the acquisithen the Group’s imhial 1% interest was
equal to tne cost of the initial Interest ane therefore no ga 7 or loss was
recognised in relation 1o 1ts revaluahor Inthe previous financ.al year,
the Group haa mode capital contributiors of £10m. No additiong
considergtion was payable i~ the current financal year

At acquisition, iIntengib e assets of £0 97 (recog~ sed wholly nresoect

of frademarkst anc goodwl of £0 7m were recognised n respect of the
busness and ¢llecoted to the Bett CGU Deferred tax iabiit es of £0 3m
were recegn sed in respect of the trademarks The ‘nvestment o® £15m
was de-recogn sed folowing the eequisition of a controll'ng stake in

the business
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14 Ctherintangible assets

Serpatunl

Cutiorer Trodemiares Wie b tesbnelagy Comp-'er
celatnchios and o databote: e eices cof-nare Tetal
[Setela] EOOC L£o0z L0300 EOLD

Ceost
Ar1 October 2019 93,218 242,287 298 - 9.390 3456193
Addhons thraugh business combinaticns 9,208 43,792 - 4,070 - 63,070
Addificng - - - - 1,329 1.329
Disposals - - - - (3.649) (3,649)
Foreign exchenge (7,448} 43 (92} 107 (263 (1,648)
At 30 September 2020 100,977 282128 2086 477 6,807 404,295
Adattic~s through business combinations (note 13} - 1,270 - 9,523 8g 10,882
Addihors - - - - 104 104
Diaposola {1,938} 1,327 - - (1,109) {4,374)
tareign cxcharge (1,968) (3,024) (33) (179) 30 (5,174)
At 30 September 2021 ) 97,071 289,047 173 13,521 5,931 405,743
Amoriisation
At 1 Octooer 2078 41,633 27,596 2498 5,058 74,585
Charge for the yeor 10,664 i7.650 - 3403 2,422 ¥ 578
Imparrments 9,97 54,235 - - - 63,432
Dhsoosas - - - - (3,649 (3,649;
Foreign exchange (1,202) (717} (92) 8 (2°8) (2.227)
At 30 September 2020 60,492 99,064 206 348 3,613 163,723
Charge for the year 8,31 17,208 - 1,651 1,262 29,032
Impairments (note 123 1,169 17,859 - - - 19,028
Disnasols (1,938) (1,327) - - (945) (4,210}
lore gn exchange (1,437) {1,033) (33) (34) 47 (2,490)
At 30 September 2021 66,587 132,471 173 1,865 3,977 205,083
Net book value
At 30 Septermnber 2021 30,474 156,576 — 11,656 1,954 200,660
At 30 September 2020 40,485 193,064 - 3.829 3,794 240,572

The omortisation perod for custemer re'chionshps s setwean three and 12 vears, for trademarks 1 between three ara 20 years andg for visitor dataooses

cenweos Tve aro eight yoars and for perpetaal ook rolagy enscs between sever and T years Computern sob ware = amortsed Gver TVE years

The cacit cns to frademanxs ard licences ana cerpetuct technelogy 'cerces tarcugh pusiness combinchions relote to e purchose of Retar Meetup

(£3 9m) ond Learmt (£0 9} gs d sclosed im note 12 The mtangib'e assets acou red duning t-e yeor are cmort sed 17 aceordance witn the Group's

emorhisct on poicy for nicng b'e assets os detalea 'r rote 2 and hove Deen assessea for mMoarment as detaied 0 note 12

Individually material intangible ossets

Care

Gy TP Lerienti LOLL amcart

Bett Bett “rocemarks 63.863 37724 ‘6 B years
Srporg & Soec Gses BAg nean g CWIEIE Trodesares 47 (22 34 44 B &years
K U< Trocemariks 59,832 23233 5 E voans
Afren O &1 g tAeeglhoone rooe narss 22.089 ‘a9 ‘4 Oaears
Sroptc k Srootak Trocermiorks A8 CRZ 37,432 & 2 year:
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15 Property, plant and equipment

Rt of uee
e eholo 'ond Dl ara aseel Toa!
ard buidirgs VLT e (resiotea? veslated)
£000 Lo0c £OC0 £077
Cost
A1 Cctober 2019 5,303 8.746 15,686 29,735
Addit ans trrough busiress compinations {restated) - 75 4,935 5,00
Additions - 618 304 972
Disposa s - (2,48/4) (158) (2,643}
Foreign exchange {restated) - {458) a9y (1,747}
At 30 September 2020 {restated) 5,303 5,994 20,580 31,877
Additons through busiress comb notions (note 13} - - - -
Adaticrs 453 418 1.558 2,429
Disposals {3.211) (1,073) (273) (4,557)
Foreign excharge (19) (22) (376} {417)
L case madifications - - (964} {964)
At 30 September 2021 2,526 5,37 20,525 28,368
Depreciation
At1 Oclaber 20°8 3,202 5,680 - 8,882
Cnarge *or the year (restated) 184 1529 3,458 5,171
Disposals - (2,494} [£519)] (2,590)
Foreign exchange (restated) - (613} (88) {707)
At 30 September 2020 (restated) 3,386 4,102 3,274 10,762
Crnarge tor the year 1,490 960 3,252 5,702
Disoosals (3,062) (1,673) (129} (4,264)
Fore gn exchonge (12) 49 [¢3)] 16
Lease moaiticahons - - {1,085) (1,085)
At 30 September 2021 1,802 4,038 5,291 11,9131
Net book value
At 30 Seplember 2021 724 1,279 15,234 17,237
At 30 Septemiber 2020 1,917 1,892 17,306 21115

Allright- o L~e ai-ots @ e racogmised in respect of ofhice leases

“he right-of-use asset recogrised 1 the vear enced 30 Seplember 2020 in respect of the acquisihion of Shopta k has bee~ restoted as disciosed in rote 1
“ne deprecioficn charge recogrsed in respect of the right-of-use csset 'n tne year ended 30 Septenber 2020 nas alse been restated due to the
cansequental impoct of the cnonge i the cost of the right-of-use osset acauired

O lesse modif calion the cos- of the rigr ¢ of use assel was adiuséa o tne present value of the remaining future leose cayments ar d ihe accumulotes
depecahon recogmsed up ot e dote of modificatior wos dertecogrizen

16 Subsidiaries

Ahst of all subsiaicres, ire uding the name, courtry of ircarporatan aro proport on of awnerdhip nterestis presented in note 5 te tee Camoony's
scpoiate irardat stotenn oy

17 Disposal of subsidiaries and discontinued operations

Kazakhstan

Im Ag-l 2021 toe Croup onnources the digposal of ITECA LLP the coeratng company for 2% of the Group's non-core, reg.oroly focused events o
Kazakhstor, to 1CA (Y] L mited, o camparny owned ond eoeratea by o former consu tactto Hyve ntro reg'an “hs completes tne Group s plonnes exs of
its busiressin Centro, &s.c

“ota considorat or was 4 80, payanle ceer o ruTper of years Woen dscounted, the present vo ue ot the consideraton recervoc’e was £3 7
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17 Disposal of subsidiaries and discontinued operations continued

In odd ho~ to fxed poymer:s of £4 4, lhere s anadahonal omount of vanable consiseionon based o the - &t square metres sold at *he
disposed-of events tox ng place at the Atokent ve~ue in Kaza<hstan between the comp et an dote a~a 31 December 2021 At the disposa’ date
t~1s vanable consideration hed a fo < value of £0 4m

The net assets of tae entities disposed of af the date of oisposal were as fo'lows

LOUC
Gaodwll 1,660
Preperty, plant ond eaupment 238
“rade ond otner rece vaoles 1,294
Cesr and cash egu'va ents 1,278
Ot~er net liabilites . (2,212)
Net assets 2,255
Fa'r value of cors’'deratior rece’voa 3.085
working capitel payments (1,757
Dizposa costs (375}
Proceeds net of reloted selling expenses ] 959
Cumulative exchange differences (2,308)
Loss on disposal (3.604)
Satisfied by:

Cash o~d cosm equivale-ts -
Deferred corsigeraton 3,08L
3,085

Net cash outfiow arising on disposal:
Cons'deratior rece’vea 'n cash and cesh eauvalents -
Less woreng capite! poymenats (" 757
Less. cash and casn equ valents cispesed of [1,2/8)
) (3,029}

In ane wits tre requirements of IFRS 5. the Groun's exit frem Centra Asic bas been treatea os ¢ discontinued ocperchon, as i represents the d spcsal of
a comporent ¢f the entity a sesarate major | re of bus ness and o seporate gecgraphico: arec of business.

“he resuls o7 the girconinueo operatsms whick hove beer < clugea v tre Corwwhdsted slgtement of proht aro loss ae ot follows

Year ended 30 September 2021 Yeorerdea 30 tenenber 2220
Adjusting items Aductrg terme
Headline (note 5) Statutory Feaedline i *

cooo £000 £000 £003
Revenue 49 - 49 577 -
Cosat of sales . (472} - (472) (h,344) -
Gross profit {423) - (423) 373 -
Ad~nistrat ve exoerces (324) (3,604} (3,928) HET 37263
Operating (loss)/profit (747) (3,604) (4,351) (783} 2,263
(Lossiprofitbeforetax (747) (3,604) (4,351) (783} 2,263
Tax g0 lose) profe o (87) - (87) (278 -
(Loss)/profit from discontinued operations {834) {3.604) (4,438) (599 2,263
Attributable to:
wrers oF tog Comoany (834) (3,604) (4,438) {59y, 2263 *264
~g mrerests - - - - - -
. (834) (3,604) (4,438) E 2267 265
Earnings per share from discontinued aperations (p} ) -
Bos o (0.3) (1.7) 6 S
[.outen (0.3) 1.7) CE, 7

ot otme mooeae statemic ot nnie recr racntes o e s ter rns b o s d mrnst Susn cnertt ot o pornrt rues v bee or or e s
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17 Disposal of subsidiaries and discontinued operations continued

Fasteners

During the year the Group a so disposed of its 70% holding i1 ITE Ebseek 2xhihons Limited, ne operating company o tre Festerers avert in Shanghal,
for total upfront considerahion of 20 £~ After the disposal of nel assets of £0 /m ard tre release of cuulative exchonge differences ¢t £80 4m, a gan

an dicponal of £0 2mwaos rocegnized.

Tme non-controling interest of £0 9m held in respect of ITE Ehseas Extubit.ons Limited hos alse been disposed o

18 Interests in associates and joint ventures

Associates and joint ventures

Couniry of .ncorparaton Descaphor Croup rterest
ana operalion Heg slered addrese Frircioal activity of nodirg °
Joint ventures
Simostar ITE Incorporated in Hang Kong Rm 2701-2, 21/F, 42-46 G.oucester Rd , Jubilee
with operat'ons 1in China Centre, Wanchai, Hong Kong Exhio'tion orguniser Ordirary 50%
Debinde Unggul Indaresia 59 Lantai* |l <= Abduller Syafi Na 3 Bukit
Buana Mekmur Duri, Tebet Jckarta Selatan RT/RW, 013/05 Kel
BUKIT DUR] Kec TEBET KOTA ADMINISTRASI
JACARTA SELATAN Exhiphon crganiser Ordnary 50%
ITEMF Expo LLC Russia Verkhnyaya Krasnose'skaya Str. 3, Blog 2,
Flocr oz, Suite |, Room *, Maoscow, "07140 Exhibition crguniser Ordinary S0%
Tatal
£000
A11October 2020 37,444
Share of results of ossec’ates and jaint ventures 1,545
D derds received (1,958)
Foreign exchange 95
At 30 September 2021 37126
The Group recewved d v deras from S nostar of approximately £2.0m I . 2021 202u
Results of meterial joint venture at 160% share L£000 L0000
(2020° £4 Om) Ir 2027, no dividends were received from Deordo Caah arnd cash eauvolents .982 &07
(2020° £0 2m) or ITEMF Expo LLC (2020 £35m) I Current assets 1674 1890
The carrying value of interests in gssociates ond joirt vertures has neen . Non-current assets 213 263
assessed for impairmert of the year end The recoverable amounrts of Total assets 13,869 10,167
each .rvestrmeat were determined trom volue in use colculations, using Current iahilities (12,779) (7,981)
assumphions consistent wth thase applied im the goodwi'l ord infang ble . Non-current 1abil hes (39,872) (42,942}
assets imocirment review detailed in nate 12 ho mpairments were : Total liabilities (52,651) (50,923
ide~ifed inrespect of -he agssociates and joir* senires ' Revenue 7,575 18,450
For the year erdea 30 September 2021 there were urvecognsed losses Interest income 77 176
of £0 1m 17 respect of the investment 1n Debirdo which has o carrying Depreciotion and omorhisat o1 237 s
vatue o frilbfollowi-ge s mparmentin she crevicus Anaraalyear Profit from continuing operations 3,760 12.676
. . ) Tox ex0ese (8886) (3,042
Summrarized r- o aalimfarmighor moeepect of “he Gro ,psnwofle"\o\ Profit from cantinuing operations offer fox 2.874 2,604
ossociotes and joitt vertures s set out nelow |he sole mater al joint — -
Tolal comprehensive income 2,874 G,604

venture is Sicoctar ITE Thsvammanisea Feaeaalinfermahor beloa
represents smeuntern e oo otes ard joint ventur es finannal

statements arepared in gccordonce with IFRS
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18 Interests in associates and joint ventures continued

Arecorcihanan of the obove summansed fironaal information o the

19 Current gssets and non-current assets

Current assets

i 2021 2000
corrylr‘\i cm;)ur\f of f"lla «nterestin the matena joirt verture in the v I
Ceonszhideted hir a~cial state~er *s 15 shown below
" araatya see Trade and other receivables
c000 it Trade rece vobles 20,333 14,338
Net liabilities (38.782) (40,7567  Ctherrecewvables 1,602 3138
Prosartion of the Group’s cwnershin in the Deferrec corsidercton recevable 2,443 1278
Joint venture (19,391) (20.378) VYenue advarces anc prepayments - 1,059
Loar due to sharehelders 19,809 21,477 Prepoyrents RARY¥) 8,807
Goodwi | 33,556 33.515 fgxation arg socia security 68 5,111
Carrying amount of the Group's interest in 35,569 3305
the joint venture 34,074 34,608 Taxaticn prepayments 1,818 1,374

The oan due to srareho aers forms port of tne net investment » the joint
verture

Ine Group s nori-matenigl jont vertates have an oggregate proht after
tax from continuing operctions and teta comprehensve ncome o £0 2m
(20207 £1 2m}, o a 100% shore

Taxat on prepayments relcte o cverseas subsicicnes ara are ave 'able

‘or cHset against furure tox labiiies
5730

Frepayments incluge £3 6 {2020 £7 i, of precaid everts costs to fulfl
the Group's contracts with s customers

"he movements in deferred censiderat'on recevacle during the year are shown - the table below

LOGU
At 1Qctober 2019 5466
Arising on d'sposan 4,286
Cersiderat'or receven (818)
Unwna of mouted interest charged on discounted de‘erred corsioerat on rece voole 84a
Revaluct or of deferred cons'derctior receivab e
- Revaluatcn {4y7]
— Fore gr exchange (1,189)
At 30 September 2020 i 843
Aris ng on disocscl (nete 17} 3,085
Cons dercton rece ved (3385}
Uswind of imputea irterest chargea on d scountec aeferced cons derghior recavab.e 1,594
Reva'uahcn of aeferren conmicerat.on rece’vanle
- tMudificahon of zefcres cers derarionezovaole {3,1°2)
- Revaluction 207
- Foreign exchenge 130
At 30 Seplember 2021 i 9,600
Imcioed 1m moa-current assets 7357
Ircleaea ' current cssets 2,443

9,800
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19 Current assets and non-current assets continued

Tre modification of the deferred consderation recevable relotes to t-e
renegotichion of payment ferms @ad araounts outstand ng , amending the
far velue of the receveble

zon 2LE0
Cash und cesh equivalents £000 £000
Cash at bank and 1n hand 41,733 50,330

The casn ot bank and in hana comarzes cash beld by the Graun ard
short-term aeposts with o ong ral maturity of three months or less

The carrying volue of these assets approximates therr fair va'ue The casn
bolonce i represerted by £10 77 of stering, £5 5m of euros, £5 5 of
US dallars. £3.7m of Russian ruples, £4 9m of Indign rupees ard £11 4m
of other currenc’es. Surplus ‘unds cre ploced on sherf-term deposit with
floating rercsl 1ares

20 Bank borrowings

2621 2023

£000 L£000

Total drawdowns uncer deot toclity (124,423) (121,673)
Capitalsearehnancng fees 2,823 3,688
Bank loans (121,600) (117,985)
lncluded in current lab lites 11,751) (17,500)
Inc'uded in nen-current laoiiihes {109,849) (100,485)
(121,600) (117,985)

In December 2020 the Group ogress o number of amendments ta its debt
facilty agreement, 'ncuaing on amended repayment schedule for the
termloen and the applicaticn of 50% of insurance proceeds, to the extent
that such amount exceeds £82 5m, os an advonced payment towords
upcom ng term :can repaymerts

At 30 September 2021 the Groun had total avalable facilitigs of £272 8m
(2020 £260 Om), comprnis'ng a revolving credit facil ty of £150 0m {2020
£150 0m) and alerm loan of £62 8 (2020 £100 Om} Duning the year
£372m of term loan repayments werg meae. including £2 2moin respect
of 50% of insurance proceeds above £82.5m The upcoming scheauled
repayrents of the term loar, to be made ofter 20 September 202%, are
now D0 8moin March 2022 (23 0m less the £2.2m repaid n respect of
‘nsurance proceeds recewead), £5 Omn June 2022, £6 Om i Sentembor
20272 and November 022 £22 5rmin Novermce: 2023 and a final
repayment of £22 5m on the termingtion date 1in Decemiber 2023

Annual Report and Accounts 2027 Hyve Group ple

trterest is enarged onaay ubised ameurt at  rate of LIBOR plus ¢ margir
ranging from ™ 90% to 3 40% dependent on the Group's leverage retio
under the debt facility cgreement. In lire w th the FCA’s anacurcement of
tre cessation of GBP LIBOR by 31 December 2021, the reference to LIBOR r
tre dect faciiity agreemert wl be amended to SONIA in Decemnber 2021
The debt faciity 1s secured by csset pledges ond debentures gven by
number of Group companies

At 30 September 2021 t1e Group noo total orown amounts urder the debt

focility agreement of £124 4m (2020 £72°.7m), all of which denominated in
sterling, and hod £8& 4m (2020 £12& 3m) of u~rdrawn committed fac ['tes

All borrowings are ananged at foatrginterest rates, thus exposing the
Group to interest rate nizk The Group uses interest rate swaps to requce
this risk At 30 Seotermber 2021 the netional amount hedged was £47 3m
(2020 £100.0my, reducing due te the term nation of part o the Group’s
interest rate sweps folow'ng the term lea~ repeyments during the yeor
Please refer to note 23 for further nformation, Al barrowings are secured
by a guorartee betweenr d number of Group compan s

As ot 30 Seotermber 202" there are cop fal sed fees of £2 8m (2020 £3 7m)
v relahion to the Group's current gebt foclity

In the previou: inancigl year the Group actamed wawers for the leve oge
rahic and rterest cover covenants onits debt focil hes up fo and including
tAareh 2022, repracing themn wath a minimum bauidity test, whoreby the
Group must ensure tnat the aggregete of cash and urdrawn debt facilities
s not less than £40m at the end of eoch manth, except between April ard
October 2021 being not less than £30m Subsequent to the year ended

30 September 2021 ihe Group has secured ar extension of the covenant
waovers up to and includ rg Marcn 2023 wath the scme unimur liguidity
test remaining n piace
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21 Current liabilities and non-current liabilities

Current liabilities

2021 win

£ooo [l
Trode poyooes 1,324 AFY
Taxation ara scaal security 837 1167
Other payob.es 10,833 28,888
Accrucls 25,489 19784
Deferred considerahon B35 881
Lease | abiibes 3,347 3,503
- 42,665 58,354
BDeferred ircome
— Current 72,277 61,276

- Nom-current -

Trade paycbhies a~d accrua s principa ly comprise amounts outsta~d ng

for trade purchases onc cngoing costs The Directors corsider that the

carrying value of frade paycbles aporoximetes the r forr value

22 Provisions

During the year ended 30 September 2027, £271m (2020 £63 67 of the
deferrec meome ba'ance of £61 3m af 30 Septeniner 2020 (F79 7m at

30 Septemoer 2079) was recagn’sed as revenue in the censalidoted

income staterment. Tris was lower than the balonce of deferred income
ncluded 1n current aaan hes of 30 Septemoer 2020 as a resuli of even?

cancellohicrs and postpocments

Otner payables include refund | abil'hes in respect of cancelled svents of

£7.47 (2020 £23 6m)

The moverents im de‘erred cons'ceration payable dur ng tne year cre

shown it the toble oelow

Total

£000
At 1October 2020 881
Arns’ng o1 ocquistion (note 13) 3,440
Congsideratior paia (note 13) 4,683)
Revaluation of deterrea coraiderat an poyobln 1,350
Fore'gr exchange (143)
At 30 September 2021 835

el
neLranee o

chare options [hapian Cirhe
LO00 Luns i

A110ctober 2020 8 1,670 39 1.717
Charged{creaitea) to pro™t o Joss 37 - (33) (2}
Ut'l sed in the year - (170} - (705
Foreign excrange - {145) - (148}
At 30 September 2021 45 1,355 - 1,400
Inc'udea 1n current nao it o _
Inciuced nnor-current oot hes 1,400

) 1,400

HNatorol e rarce an arg e oot oo e coloulotad by ofarence to e e ployer’s lhaterclirsuoroe <o nne poiernal oo rotea of the aifference

oetween tne exerc se onice ond share price ‘or those share optons where the share prce exceeds the exeraise orice at 30 September 202°

The amourts inc uded nrespectof dlao dat ors orovsons wi I be *u' y ut. sec by the end o the eose term 1~ 2028 “re dicpidatiors ore baseo or the

mest i kely omount far settement
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23 Financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities

Detalls of the accouniing pelaies and methods aocotes, inc uding tre crter a for recognton, tre basis of measurement ara the nasis an wh ch income
ond expenses are recoarised I© respect of each class of inaraal asset and hirarc ol heoibity are disclosed in “he occourtirg policies roe on poges 126
and 2/

Categories and maturities of financial assets and liabilities
Finoraial aszets and liabilities ore classified according to the follow ng categenes in the ‘oble below

Carrying
30 September 2021 amount & Contractual Less than Greater than
£000 fair value cash fiows 1year 1- 2 years 2 - 5 years 5 years
Non-derivative financial assets
Cash ord cash equiva’ents 41,733 41,733 41,733 - - -
Trade and other recevanles
Trade recevanles 20,333 21,886 21,886 - - -
De‘erred corsideration 9,800 16,661 2,669 2,400 8,648 2,944
Other receivables 1,602 1,602 1,602 - - -
73,468 81,882 67,890 2,400 8,648 2,944
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Bank loans (121,600) (121,600) {11,751) (6,000) (103,849} -
Amertised cost
Trode payab es {1,324) (1,324} {1.324) - - -
QOther poyables {10,833) (10,833} (10,833) - - -
Accruals (25,489) (25,489} (25,489) - - -
Deferred consicderation {835} (835} (835) - - -
Lease liao Iities {16,722) {18,788} {3,348) (3137) (8,157) (4,146}
Derivative financial liabilities
Equity opt on haonilihes - - - - - -
Interest rate swaps (85) (85) {73) (12) - -
(176,888) (178,954) (53,653) (9,149) (112,0086) {4,146}

The Group seeks to Tinimise the eFects of Interest rate risk by using derivative h~ancial Instruments to heage the nisk exposure The use of financal
gerwvatives 1s governed by the Group's poticies approved by tre Boore, Camplarce with policies and exposure imits is reviewed by the Boarc on o
contingous bosis The Greup does ~o* er~erinte inanaal irstruments, including denvative Sancal instiuments, for spec.lative parposes

The Dinectars consider that =g carnryrg amounts of firasccl assets ond hacilihes recorded ot amortced costin he Arancel s*gtentents eporoximale
to the’r falr va ue cue to the shart matunty of the instruments

151



152

Hyve Group plc Arnua Report and Accou~ts 2021

Notes to the consolidated accounts

23 Financial instruments continued

30 Seoremrber 2020 (restaled) :;rrfi): :‘g Contraclual Lees than 1sreater than
£000 far value wash o, 1 year 1- zyears 2-5Syears 5 years
Non-derivative financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 50,330 53,330 50,330 - - -
“rade and otner receivaebles.
Trade receiveo es 4,338 18,5861 18,561 - - -
Deferred consigerat'on £,143 17,350 T268 i) 8,82 6,775
Other recevables 3,138 3138 3138 - - -
75,949 89,379 73,297 1125 8,182 5775
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Bark loan and overdrafts (n7,985) (117,985) ('7.500) (17,509) (82.985) -
Amortisea cost.
Trade poyables (4,731) (4,731) [4,731) - - -
COther oayables {28,888) {28,888) {25,888) - - -
Accruals (19,184) 19,184) (19,184) - - -
Deferrea cons.deration (857) {881) {8&1) - - -
Lease nabilties (18,835) {21,367) (3,555) {2.97) {11,039) {3.852)
Derivative financial liabilities
cauty optio~ habil ties (9,393} (9,426) (9.426) - -
Interest rate swaps {873 (873} {/48) (28] - -
(200,770} (203,335) (84,913) (20,546) 94,0724) (3,852)

Fair value hierarchy

The followi~g table categaorises the Group’s “nanciel instru—er-s which are * eld ot fair value 1Mo one of three levels 1o refiect the degres to which

observeble .mputs are uses in aetermining their far va ues

¢ Leve i. Fair volues measured using oucted prices (uncojusteo} r act ve markets for identcal assets or okt es

® Leve 2 barr va ue meosured using Inputs, other than quoted crices ~cluced within Level T that are observable fer the asset or | abi ity either directy

or Indirectly

e leve 3 Fawr values measured usng inputs for the osset or lab [ty that ore not boseo on oaservable mar<et data,

Fair value Level1 Level 2 Level 3
30 September 2021 £000 £000 o000 £060
Assels measured at fair value
Deterred cors.cerater 9,800 - - 9,800
Total 9,800 — - 9,800
Liabilities measured ot fair value
Intercst rete swops (85) - (85) -
tquity ophions - - - -
Deferred cors derat o (835} - - (835)
Total (920} _ (85) (835)

Frv e

3T Soplemiber £y [t
Assets measured at fair value
Deferrea co-s'aerat o~ 5143 - - E"43
Total T 8143 - - f43

Liabilities measured at fair value
I~torest rote swapEs

kguty corcns

Deterreo o

Total

rot oo
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23 Financial instruments continued

Level 1 finoncal Instruments are voled bosed aon quoted bid cricesin an
active markedt . eva' 2 Anarcialmsirumer s are megsuren oy discourted
cash flow for - rerest rate swaps ‘uture cash flows ore est'mated based
on forward irterest rates (from observoble yeld curves at the end of the
renorting pencd) and controct interest rates, ciscounted at arate that
reflecrs the credit 11s< o° the vancus counterperhes

Ueferred and contingent considerat.on paycble or receivable balances
are clasvhed as level 2 financial ingrumerts and recogmsed at fair val.e.

Level 3 reconciliation of equity options

L£o00
At10ctober 2020 9,393
Ga'r on revaluation of equity aptions (8,807)
Foreign exchange (586)
At 30 September 2021 -

All level 3 amcunts credileo to the Consclidoted income statement in the
year are attr butabie to the charge in unreal’sed goins or losses relating o
those habilities held cf the end cf the reporting period

As oisclosed in note 31, the equty ophon previously held in respect of ABEC
is vo'ued ot £l {2020 £9 4m), followirg the Grouo’s lawyers’ aovice that
the opt'on exerc.se is nvalio and unerferceable, both in respect of the
cpltion exercizes of 15 Noverber 2020 ord 13 December 2020 as weil as
ony subsequent cttempl to exercise the ophon 1n o future peniod

The equ ty opticns he d1r respect of Scoop and Fasteners, which had o
value of £nil gt 30 September 2020, nave exorrec during the year

Following the expiry of all of the Group's egu ty option 1ot ihes during
the year, the balances recagnised in the equ iy option reserve hove been
recyclea through retaned earaings

Financial risk management

In the course of ds busiress the Group = oxposea to a numbcer of hnancial
risks: market risk including ‘oreign currency and interest rate), credit r sk,
iquidity nsk and capitel risk Th s note presents the Group's exposure to
cach of the above ris<s The Groun's object ves, policies and processes for
mensuring and managing nisks can be ‘oundin the Strotegic review on
oages 1 to 62

Annual Report and Accounts 2021 Hyve Group ple

The Beard has overall responsibiity for the estabishment ard oversight

of the Group’s risk managemert framework The Board has estanlished
poices todent fy and analyse risks faced by the Group, to set appropriate
risk | mits and controls end fo moatar risks cnad adhererce te | mits

Market risk management

Market risk is the risk that changes n tareign exchange rates and interest
rates wllaffect *ke Gro peincor e or the value of s holdings of inonrial
instruments The object ve of market r sk merogement is tc manage ond
control market risk exposures with'n occeptable parameters, whi e
optimueng the returr or risk

The Growp's aclivities expase 1t crnimaniy to the finanuial nisks of changes in
fareign currency exchange rotes ano interest rotes The Grouo erters inte
dervotive rnancialinstrarers to marage 1t exposure fo Inferest rate risk
Market risk exposures are measured using sensihivity ana ysis

Foreign currency risk management

The Group undertakes certain transact ons denominatec in foreign
currencies and thersfore exposures to exchange ra-e fluctuotons orise
Exchange rate exposures are managed through ratural hedging
arrangements where 0css ble

The carrying amounts o the Group's forergr currency denominated
monetary assets and monetary I'abilities ot the reporting date are

as fo'lows.
Financial assets
2021 sl
£ooo [Rehivl
cUR 8,150 6,879
GBP 20,772 23,032
uspD 8,241 15,431
RUB 14,602 7,091
INR 8,751 7825
Other 13,952 15,751
73,468 75,949
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23 Financial instruments continued

Financial liabilities

2021 PN

L0000 L0080

LUR (1,920) (3,57
GBP 148,870 “5°034
usD 10,409 '2,836
RUB 4,364 13.641
INR 21,610 15,974
Other 3,555 10,436
176,888 200,770

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

The sens tvity analysis below oetails t-e impoc of @ 107% strengthening 1 the Groug’s sigrificont currencies ogeins’ sterfing opelied to e net moretary

assets o7 aoilities of fhe Group 107 s the senstivity rate that represents management's assessment of the reasonably possiote chonge n foreign

excnange rates

2021(£C00) usp EUR RUB INR Other
Menelary assets 8,241 6,150 14,603 9,751 34,724
tMonetary Iabilt es (10,409) 11,920 (4,364) (21,610)  (152,425)
Net monetary assets/A{liao it eg) (2,168) 18,070 10,239 (11,859) (17,701)
Currency impact
Fratit betore tax gain{loss) 240 459 a7g (1,864) {382)
Zguity goin (25) 1,348 260 684 1,103
2020 £060) LD Eow R RE e
Moretory ossets 15431 6.8'9 7,001 7,825 38,783
tonetary nabi ifies 12,838) 5 [ 3.641) 5,974 116°,4/0)
Net mersetary ( 'obiities)/ossets 2595 9.9/ {£,550) (8.749) (122,687}
Currency impac
Frznt before tox {loss)/gain 285 535 386 {1.367) (583
Eguity gc ns(oss) 488 462 {1,034) 590 E64
The follewi- g sigrifican- exchonge rates versus sterhir g apphed aunng “Fe ycar ang nire prior year

Average Reporting date

201 2070 2021 2020
EUR 114 10 118 170
uso 1.37 T30 1.35 129
RUB 101.95 98.36 95.13 131 £9
InNR 100.63 95°8 99.98 94 74

Interest rate risk management
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23 Financial instruments continued

Interest structure of financiol liabifities

Arnual Report and Accounts 2027 Hyve Group ple

2011

£000
Financial habil ties at var'ab e rates
Bank loan and overorafts 121,600 117,905
Tne follewing averoge interest rates appied en the Group’s bank oon during the year ond inthe pror year

2021 pioav
GBP 3.3 34
EUR 0.0 24
UsD 0.0 00

Average irterest rates applicable to cash balances were 0 39310 2021 and 1.59% n 2020

Inferest rate sensitivity onalysis

T-e sensitivity aralysis below has been determined based on the expozure 1o mterest 1ote: for financial assets and firarcial Faol 1es at the balance sheet
date with al other variables neld constant, t1e table below demonstrates tne sersitvity to o 1% cnarge 11 interest rates applied to the major currencies o°

net vaniable rote assels/iabil hies. *% s the seqsitvity rate that recresents maragement’s assessment of the reasonably possibie change ininterast rates.

USD dencminated EUR denominoted GBP denominated RUB denominated INR denominated Other
L£000 2021 20I0 2021 202C 20 00 200 2020 2023 20z0 2021 2020
Coshanc cash equivalents 5,456 4.431 5,508 2,284 10,754 28,717 3,739 895 4,890 4,831 11,386 9,163
Bank loon and overdrafts - - - - (121,600) (117,985) - - - - - -
ket variable rate assets/
{haorties) 5,456 4,43 5,508 2,294 (110,846} (89,268) 3,739 895 4,890 4,831 11,386 9,163

USD denominated EUR denominated

GBP dencminated

RUB denominated INR denominated Other denominated

LOL0 2021 2020 2021 202C 2021 2000 2021 2030 200 2020 2021 2020
Frofi- cefore Yax - gane (loss)

+ 1% charge ir 1~terest rates 85 44 55 23 (1,108} (893) a7 g 49 48 114 92
- . cnarge nnterest rates {55) {44} (558) (23) 1,108 893 37 Q) (49) (48] (114) {92}

Interest rate swap contracts

With effect from 78 November 2017 the Growp enlereo info two interes:
refe swan ogreements to exchange the "oating rete of iIrterest paid an its
bon< boriowings for fixed rates on the tnst 50 O of the Group's GEP
debt at that hme, calculoted or ogreed notienal principal amounts of
£300-nand £20.0m Urder the agreements, three-month GBP LIBOR was
cxchanaged tor fixed rates of O a7 and (0942 bo b with o maturity dato
of 30 November 2020, At the bo'ance sheet date, the rotioncl prircipal
amounts of these mterest rate swans was £ fclowing their maturity in
Novembe- 21120

tollowing the Group s rtefincnung in December 2078 and with etiect trom
28 February 2020, the Group e~tered nto two new mterest rate swop
agreement: to oxcl arge the flconng rale of inferest carg omal: bork
borrowr gstor “xadretes onforberro cnal por coal orecand of

L£38 0m and £32 U, rereasing the total not ono prncipal emount e
£°00 Zr of the Group's GBP aebt up uatt 30 November 2070, Undeor these
agrec et e et GE LB~ war =xddarged fo fixed toe s

of 0 R&. and 0 B0 botn v th o maturity date of 36 November 2022

The bler gea fixed rate of cllinterest ra*e swape wos 0 70% 1o fo ond
nciuding 30 November 2020, which tner fe [ to 0 B0°. when the earl er two
-rterest rate swaps matured One of these interest rate swop agreemerts
was collapsed dur ng the year Attermination, the fair va ve of the irterest
rate swap of £0 2m waos recognised n the Consolidated income statement
At tne balance sheet date. the nohenai princioal amcunts of the reman’ng
‘rterest rate swap was £47 3m

The i erest rare swaps 0w desigraied os cast flow hedges toeduce
tre Group's cozk flow exposure resulting fro~ vanabls irteres rates o
borrow ngs. Settlement of the nterest role swaops are scheculed to follin
I'me vt e toan interest payments every guarter

These ontengenrent aie gesgned ¢ add cos notenhal vgaficant interes
rete expesures over the next 14 monaths fram the balo-ce sheet date o~d
cre exnected to affest she Corachdared r core vaterent oot oo

e per od.

Whenthe Groun's debit focilt es trans t onto the re'event cternotive
referesce rate at the poit of the cesscton of the mpacted LIBOR 1ote
the Croup wiil seek to transtion its ricrest rate swan crrangomonts te
the semie a ternative refererce rate fo cortrue fc appropriately ~edge

e mterasd rote ask
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23 Financial instruments continued

Credit risk management

Credt r'sk arises becouse o counterparty may fal to perform s
contiactual obligotons Tre Group s principal inancaial assets are cash
and cash equivalents, tfrode and other recevables ard deferrec
consideration rece vable "he Group cons.ders ts max mum exposure
te credt ris< ic be as fol'ows

Credit rating of financial assets {excluding loans and receivables)

201 2070

£000 L420

Cash aond casn equivclents 41,733 50,330
Irage recevon es (nef of bad deot provsion} 20,668 14,338
Deferred cons’'cerahion [Uraicounted) 16,661 17.350
Otrer rece.vables 1,602 3,138
80,664 85,156

The Group's credit r s s primari y attributab e to s trooe and cther
rece vables “ne Groun has adopted a policy of crly dea!ing with
credirworthy co .nlerpartes cs a means of ~ligot ng t~e sk of irancial
loss from defaults The Group's anjective 1s to ensure all custorers have
paid before any serv £e 1s provided to them The corcentration of cred.t
risk 15 lmiteq aue to the customer base be ng large arc unrelated

The agong profile of e Group s gz recdivables and - o details o he
Greup's al owarces ‘or coubtfu recevobles car ge secn below

Ihe creait r sk or hgu.d funds arises cue 1o wnere tne lowd funds are held
Ihe teratores in which Hyve onerates do net always nave banks with b.gh
credt rotings oss grned by interrational crecit rot rg agercies sucr as
Mooay's ara Fitch 172 Group aims to momimuse tne exposure to cred T s«
by minimuising the eve of cash held nsucn banks The Group's exposure
and credit ratings cf its counterperties are cont rucusy mon tored ang e
aggregate value of tronsactiors concluded s sorecd emorgst aooroved
finangial vt hizne

2021 220

coog L000

Irvestmerts grade A a~d above anx 33,383 4" 538

Imvestmerts grode B ara above 20% 8,350 8,792
lmvestments grade C or be ow

cr ~at rated 0% - -

“00% 4,733 50330

The saurces of the creait ratings are Moady's and Fifch

Ageing profile of trade receivables based on event date

2021 Men
LoD folole]
Not past due 20,053 14,307
Past due 1-30 days 280 3

Past due 3'-60 days - -
Past due 61-90 daoys - -
Past due 81-120 doys - ,
Past due more than 120 days -

20,333

4,338

Monagemenrt reviews cebtors baseo on when ar event has beer e d
“he Grouop inveices on receipt of signec contracts, w tn paymenis tyoica'ly
due 1n stage: ntbeecd up toc events Any overcue amounts, after the
stage paymert due cote, are reviewed and chased

Trade rece vanies net past oue represent contracts with custermars for
‘uture everts It therefore includes receivables for eveats faking place -~
2022 Customers are typ cal'y due to sett e tie fu ' contractual amaurt ¢t
least 20 qays befere a~ evert
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23 Financial instruments continyed

The trace recevables omounts presented ir the Conscl.oolea statement
of financial posion are ~et of allowance- for oo btful recerables,
echimoted by the Group's ~anagement baved an prior expenence, specific
credit lssues and thoir assessment of the currert economic eavironment
Trade recevables consist of a large number of custommers spread acrass
dverse moustries ond gengraphical areas and the Group s exposure 1o
credit nisk s influenced mainiy by ‘re indwidual characensacs of each
custemer 1he cemogrophics of the Graup’s custormer nase, ncluding
default r1s< of the ndustry ard country, In wn'ch the customers operate,
hios less of an influence o credif risk

The Group a woys recognises afetme ECL tor tfrade receivabnes Tne ECL
o~ these fraraal assets ore eshimated using o provision maotnx based on
the Graup’s histericol credit Ioss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specitc to the debtors, gereral economic condisions ard ar assess~on®
of poth the current as well as the forecast directior of cond t ons at the
reporting dote, nclucing tme value of money wnere appropriote

The details of the movement in the alowance for doubtfu. recevables are
shown belaw

Allowance for doubiful receivables

2021 2020

£000 LO0T

At 1 October 4,223 5,053

Arising on acquisition - 27
Allowances made in the pened ond amounts

recovered during the yeor (592) 2,891

Recevasles written off os unrecoverable {2,078) (3,748)

1,553 4,223

The Iifet'me ECL recogrised i the per ad materaly relote to recevabies
im respect of everts thot have token place 11 the period The Group ro
longe- expects to recover these oebts due to the current economic
clirmate fo lowing the nandemic ono the passage of hme since these
events tock proce.

Ageing of impaired receivables

2o 2020

£000 £0ad0

Past due 0-3 morths 359 39
Past due 3-6 morths - -
Post due more than 6 montas 1,194 4,84
1,553 4,223

Arnual Report and Accounts 2021 Hyve Group ple

Liquidity risk management

Liquichity risk s the fisk tnat the Group wi | not be able o meet its
obl'gahons as they fall due Suchk risk may result from inadeqguate morket
depth of dizruption or rehrancing croblems Ultimate responsbil’y for
lquidity nisk managemert rests with the Board of Directors They hove
burt o~ sopropriate | auidity risk manogement framewaork for the
managemenrt of the Group's short, medium and long-term “unding

and llguidity management regurements

The Group -nanageas hguidity risk by ensur ng conhbinuity of fund ng
for operat'onal meeds through cash depesits and debt ‘ac lihes
asappropiate The Group does not use any supphet “narcrg
arrongements

The Group's pr roipcl source of berrow:ngs is provided through 'ts debt
facilities which comprised a revaiving credit facility of £150 0m (2020,
£350.0m} and aterm loan of £62.8m (2020 £100 Gmy) at 30 Septemnber
2021 Tne upcoming scheculed renayments of the term loar, to be made
after the 30 September 2021, are now £0 87 in March 2022 (£3.0m less
the £2 2m repalc in respect of Insurance procoeds rece ved) £50m n
June 2022, £6 Om in September 2022 ard November 2022, £22 5m ir
Novermber 2023 ano a final repoyment of £22 5m on the ferminaton
date in Decomber 2023. See note 30 for further irformation on the
Group's net debt and firanci-g habilihies

In the previous anancial year the Group obiamed wawers for *he leverage
rotio ard interest cover covenants on its debt facit.es up to and iIncluding
March 2022, replocing them with a mirimum Lawdity test, whereby the
Croup must ensure that the aggregote of cesn and undrawn debt faciihes
s not less tran £40m ot the end of each month, except between April and
Octooer 2021 e ng not less tran £30m Sussequent to the year erded

30 Seotember 2021 the Group has secured an extension of the cavenart
wavers up to ara including Maren 2023 with the same minmur Fau'orty
test remeoiming in place
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23 Financial instruments continued

As disclosed ir the going concern and wiapil'ty staterents or poges 60

to 62, the Group's long-ter™ projections have been rev ewec agairst the
Group's banking covenarts, irclud ' ng the marthly £40 micmum quidity
coveront up fo and Incluaing March 2023 before revert rg to quartarly
leverage and interest cover rat as frem june 2023 Based o~ tne various
scenarios consicered, the Group s expecteo to have moterial ava’ able
laaaity throughaout the fize-year vicbily period end nave headraom

June 2023 These measures bave orotected the ousiness aganst a
prolonges mpac of LOVIL-19 and provide confdes cear ine Group's
abibty "o withstero cantirued disraphion aver the ~ext five years

The Group's ova loble hquiaity means thot, even under dowrside
sLenanos, e pusiness would cortinus to bavs agmificant iguidey
headroom onits existing facilties In all assessments, there 1s an oplicn to
axtend the patentic mitigations available, suck as turther reduction in
expendture deerr ~g term loon repayments, reising caationa cootal

urder the minimum | quidity covenart test Unde« a dewnside scenano, via the equty markets ¢+ the disposal of assets, # reauiced

the loverage oo covenont could be breachicd inthe sl querter aften if i i
Capitaf risk management

retur=sin june 2023 The Group nas mare than 18 marths in which fo ta<e
The Grous manages s cap tal fo ersure thet evtities in the Group wil

rmitigat ng action to avord @ breacn, giving amn e time to implement one
- be able to continue as go'rg concerns while moxmising the returr te

or o ~umber of the mitigating achors dentfied in ~ote 2 -
stakeholders through the spt misaticn of the debt ord equity ba'onces

Since the oibreak of COVID-19 manager-en” - as taken sigrifican? The capital structure of the Group consists of cosh ord cosh ecuivolerts
action fo strengthen the Group's iquidity posif on anc protect te aro bank oo whicn are disc osed 11 note 19 ana note 20 oro aquity
long-rerm finoncial prospects of the cuuness T+ ese meogswesinclude attributable to eguity bo'ders of the parert, comprising ssued copital,
raising £126 6m through a rights fssuye in Moy 7020, delivering sigrificant reserves crd rete rea ecrnings as disclosed in note 26 and A the

cost savings and renegohat ng bonang covenants over the perod untl Cansoldatea staterment of changes in equity

24 Deferred tax

Aveleroled

[B7 Hegyanee Sese ¢ Repatretor
depser abon “uDs redgec Y wf parade Tatal
£070 £000 L0590 £000 Rl
At 1 Octooer 2019 (38,393) a9 20 ™ (1,800) {32.108)
Credit{charge) 1o proft or loss 11,935 (3,070} "3 (27} RS 24,624
Creditt{charge) to other comprebensive Income - - - 222 "z (7) - 322
Acou'sition of suasidiary - 736 - 2,715 - - - 3,481
Foreign excharge - 459 (57) (39) () - - 368
At 30 Seplember 2020 {restoted) 3,037 (25,263) 8,792 43) 149 657 (52) (13,313}
Credit‘{c~arge) to proht or lass 429 2,924 3,848 1,270 (2} 167 (950} 7.686
Charge to other compretensive rcome - - - - (130) - - (130)
Creaitfo eouity - - - - - 101 - 101
Acquisit on of subsciary - {252) - - - - - {252)
toreign exchange - 56 (55) (20) - - 1 (18)
At 30 September 2021 3,466  (22,535) 12,585 1,207 17 335 {1,001)  (5,926)

{rrain zeterres max as<ets and labilier Fave been oreet onthe above sorle Tre follcairag = the aravas o deterred tax calences tor frear-ial reportin
G P q

pUrDOses
2021
L00O
Deferrec tox 1aan it es (11,633}
Deferraa tox cssets 5,707
) B (5.926)

Teferned tax $ooteg zea o termporgey 2IfEtences ans T g netwee Tt tox pater ot owseh and labilies ar s cir o ying on ot im the ststeert ©F

cocoglpouticr Teferenrox s caleuta=a Largior ster oo d laws that taws o

cerartzonr s pdan el easoes ot repTIng oe oo

Gna v o ars expectec o aco y wher the re atec acorres tox asset < reguzed o the oeterrec fox ooty st o
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24 Deferred tax continued

A charge to the mar UL corporation tax rate, ernouncea 'nthe Budget or
I March 2027, was substantively ernacted for IFRS and UK GAAF purposes
on 24 May 2021, The rate apolicao e from 1Apel 2023 wil be 25% Deferren
trix neser=sinhilities nave heen revalued to that rate to the extent that they
are expected to unwand ofter thot aote Any omounrts expected to unwira
prior to 1 Apr’l 2023 have been calcu'ated af the current rate of 19%.

Deferred tax asscts are recognised (for the carry forwara of unused tax
Iosses, accelerated copitol allowarces and other terporary differe~ces)
where (gl there are sufficient deferrsd tox hakilities retating to the some
toxat o outhority and the same taxoble entity whicn ore expected to
reverse 11 the same perioo as the aeferred lax asset wil unwind: or (o) to
the ex'errihal based or o review of expected pohis, hat iHs croboole
thot future taxoble profit will be avalable against which the unused losses
and ax credits can be utiised

Az at 30 Septemnber 2027, the Group has unusea tax losses of £99 1
(2020 £32 7~) available for offset aganst furure profits. A deferred tox
asset Fos been recogrused 1 respect of £53 Om (2020 £43.6m) of such
losses No deferrea tax asset has been recognised ir respect of the
remaining £46 1m (2020 £471m) as 1t is not consideren proboble thot
there will be future taxable profits avalable The unrecogrised losses
may be carried forword inoefi~itely with the exceplior of losses of £6 2m
(2020 £& 3m) ansingin certain purisdichions whae~ expire netween five
and 0 yecrs

No deferrec tax osset has been recogrised ir respect of deductble
ternpotary diferences of £5 8m (2020 £7 87} as it 1s nct considered
probable thot there will be fut.re taxable profits ava'lable giver the
impact of the cur<ent pencemic The unrecogn sec assets may be carried
ferward indefirite'y

Atihe ba arce sheet date, the aggregate amount of temporary
differences oszociated with undizrbuted earning: of subsidignies for
which deferred tax 1abilitics have not peer recogn sed waos £7 6m (2020
£7Gm; No hability - as beer recogrised in especd of these differences
because the Group is 1 o peshen to centrol the tirirg of the reversal of
the lemporary oifferencos ana il s propacle thaf soch aif'crences will ne

reverse 'n the foreseeoble ‘uiure
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25 Share capital
2021 dost
£000 L0007
Allotted and fully paid
265,128,707 ard nary shares of 100 eccn (20200
265,128,107 ot -Up each) 26,513 268,453
20 0.0
Kumber of homber of
shares zharez
At 1 October 265,128,107 74,161,846
Snare placement - 7,4*6,180
Rigrts issue - 83,550,081
Al 30 September 265,128,107 265,128,107

The Company ~as one cass of ardirary snares which carry no right to
fixed ircome Atthe Extroordinary Generol Meeting neld or 17 Nove river
1998, snaseholders approved the estabiskment of the Hyve Group
Emplayee Share Owrership Trust (507} The lerms of tne €507 allow the
trustees to transfer shares to employees who exercise options under the
Company’s Share Ootion Schemes, to gront optians to employees ond fo
accumulote shares by buying 'n the mar<et or subscribing for shares at
market vaiue, The ESQ0 s capaale of hold ng @ maximum of 5% of the
Company’sissued ordinary shave capital The ESOT reserve anses in
cornection with the ESCOT The amount of the reserve represents the
deduchicn in arrving af snare ho'ders’ funas for the consideration pand
for tne Compary’s shores purchased by tne ESOT which had net vested
uncondihorally of the enc ot eac- financal year

The ESOT beld 771,375 shares -r Hyve Group plc at 20 Sentcmber 2021
(2020 812,656 shares) Duning the year 280,893 nominal share options
under the Employees Performonce Share Plan were gronted agairst ESOI
he'c shares The market value of tne ordinary shares held by the ESOT at
30 September 2021 wos £0 9 {2020 £.0.5m)

The Company Ras agreed o maoke ovalabe to the =501 ar irferest-free
laan of up to £12 &m for the nurpese of buyirg shares At 30 Septemper
2021, the amount of the loar drawn down was £12 Om The Hyve Greup pc
Carrpany proht ond loss accou- and bolar ce sheetirclude b e results of
the ESOT for the year ended 30 September 2021 The trustees have waived
their current and future nights fo all env'dend enhtlerment on the shares
held by the ST 41,281 opt s were exercised from ESOT during the year
(2020 nil) The total corsideration for the ophions exercised frorm =501 was
Lril (2020 £ni) 3,460,870 outsiarairg ophiors are to pe sett'ed oy ESOT,
s¢ all shares held by the ESOT are under option os of 30 September 2021
Details of the optiors imissue and therr exarcise dotes car be seer at note
268 to the accaurts
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26 Non-controlling interests

4TED

2021
£000 cuou
At 1 Qctober 21,922 22,803
v derds payable to nor-cortiol 1ng intcrests {671) {1,809)
Disposa’ of ror-controling interest (note 17) (870) -
{Loss}oroft o ordinary achvilies after taxanon (832) 328
At 30 September 19,549 21,922
Sommarised fir ancighirformanon in recpect o the Group’s one subsidiary that has matenal nar -controling inferests ABEC 15 se' ot below
Tre cummansed f-arcal nformation below recreserts amneunts betore irtra-group el ingtions
Statement of financial position
2021 2020
£o00 Lo
Cash ard cesk equivalents 1,297 1142
Irage ond otror recevables 3,849 4,188
Non-current gssets N 85
Total assets ' ) 5,277 5,415
Trage ana otrer payables (5,127) (2,/05
Total liabilities ' ' {5127 (2,/04)
Nt ossets 150 271
Equw‘ry attributable ko owners o 1ne Compe Ty ) - 90 ‘,62;
Non-con~treli~g nferests 60 1.084
150 2711
Income statement
200 2n2
£000 COL
Revenue 496 779
Cost of saes (909} 4,3/
Gross {loss)/profit ' (413) 2,808
Otericcome ‘ 23 ‘IG.
Admirisirat ve cxpenses (1,602) (",034)
Operating (loss)/profit ) ) ) (1,992) ) .884
Interast expense i ’ 44) -
[nvestment revonue - ) - 349
{Loss)/profit before tax ' (2,036) 2,233
Tox expense - {82) {939}
(Loss}/profit for the year (2,118} 1,294
fLosvi‘croht attnbutable te owners of *he Compary 1,271} 777
essl et atnuutable to e ronocos b llieg e osts i {847) ©'7
h ) (2,118) " 294
Cash flow statement
200
LOg0
Net case Taws 1 or opeat g activities 377
B L Y e Y o3 A LN S TR I FL I [X] M (118}
fwtra o o e Prars caa h e (44)
CILEIn €T Dgerses ) 7 (60)

Netincrease/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 155
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27 Leases
Tre Group s nght of use asses are misclosed in note "5 Allng' - of-use assets ora lease lab Ntier ore recogrised it respect o° ofhce leates

The Croup's eose kobilities ot 30 September 2021 are gs fal'aws.

Total

LOO0

On transiton *7,038
Principa. lease payments (3,940)
Interest on lease 1abiltes 687
Acguired througn business combinations 4,935
Additions 304
Disposals {52)
Foreign exchange (137)
30 September 2020 18,835
Princ:pal lease payments - (4,015}
Interest on lease habilihes 650
Lease adjustments 12
Additions 1,558
Disposals (148)
Foreign exchange (270)
30 September 2021 16,722
Current lecse lighilities 3,347
MNon-current lease haoilites 13,375
16,722

The Greup's average loase term uroer IFRS 615 5 6 years The averoge {BR useo for yeor ended 30 Seotember 2027 to discount lease o lifies was 3 5%
(2020 3.5%)

Maturity of lease liobilities

Carrying amount & Centractual
fair value cash flows Less than 1year 1= 2 years 2 - 3dyears 3-4yeors 4 - Syears Greater than 5 years
(16,722} (18,788) (3,347) {3138) (2,817) (2,669) (2,671) (4,146)

Iotal cash ourfows 1~ tespect of leases was £4 Om (2020 £ 9~

Shert-term Icase expenses far tne year erded 30 September 2021 were as follows:

2021 20040
L£LO00 £.007
Ofhee leases 161 481
Venue eoses 7,654 12,229
Total 7,615 32,710

There were o iow-vilue lease experses that were not also shorf-term lease experses
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28 Share-based payments

Tne Companry cperates hwo share opton scnemes,

Share option plans

The Company cperetes o share opt.on pon for certair emiployees of the Group Ootors are exercsab'e of o pree equa to the aversge auoted market
price of tne Company’s share o0 tre date cf grant The vest ng penod s typicol y tnree years and the cohions are exerc.sable up to 10 yeors fram grant ng
I he ophions are forfeited if the employee lecves the Group before the opt ans vest

Performance share plans

The Cempany eperotes o Perfornance Share Plan (PSP) for executves and certan employees Awards unde- the PSP are at an exercise value of 10
Awords con be made to an employee over shares up to a maximum of 100% of bose salery, or "50% for the Chief Execut ve ona 120% for the Cruef
Financial Gfncer, eac year based on market value Tre vesting pernod is three years and awargs are exertisable up 10 10 years from the date of grant
Lor condhicna awards tne vesting 1s automahc on the satisaochion of performance targets The ophions are forteited if the employee loaves the Group
before the opticns vest The awaras are alseo suoject to o performance target Further defails of the perfermance tergets con be found in tne Report on
rernuneration on page 90

Deta Is of the share options outstarding as at 30 September 2021 ore ay foliows

Weighted
average
Number of exercise
share opfions price {p)
2021 2021 026
Share option plans
Quistand ng ot begining of period 453,127 123.3 558,884 i18 4
Adjustre-t o reflect borus element of ng~s i=cue - - 196,706 -
Lopseo aurmo the perioa (238,570) 120.7 {302,463) Ta3
Exerc'sed dur ng the perioa o - -
214,557 126.1 453,127 "23.3
Perfarmance share plans
Outstand:ng ot beg'nn'ng of perioa 1,929,457 10.0 1,422,554 0a
Adpust e o reflect ponus elemert om nge s ssue - 10.0 836,705 100
Grartea during the per'ed 1,749,314 10.0 1720 100
Lopsed dunirg tne period (87,869) 10.0 (447,013} 00
Exercised during tne peniod - 10.0 - o
3,590,202 10,0 1,929,457 na

The teta ~umoer cf exercisoble cphions 1o the share opt on p ars s A (2020, mi) ano '~ the perfor o ace share plone 's 3,478 (2020 3,478)

The weightec average share orice af tre dote of exercise for share opt cns exerc sed gunirg tne period was rml Tee ootons outstarding of 30 September
2020 heo a weig-ted cveroge exercise prce of 8 2p, ene o weghted overage remair’rg contractuc ife of 520 days
Intee yeor enden A0 Sepioraoer 2027, PSP opt cas wore gromied in Deceraoer 2020, january 2021 ara Moy 2021 Tre oggregele of te est mated farr
va'ue of these optiors 15 £1,083.675
The rputsintc tre Ponto Corlo “ar tre retrurments stuse aur ng e year are as “o'lows

Performence

share plan
2021

Ve g-ten overoge sturn prooe w0p
We grtec cvercge exerrise nrce - -
487% 33
3 years 3 gr
0%
0.0%

- ot Cuetarear ce Sver tne ey nus yeCr

sConp et comingt & G geterm s e exnelten et g

nere Lres o mcoe’ nose e wonre oo cns oF soaroter re s ot

FLrTaniL cnne

1maer fre toto cogrenc oor

sofegi coutywott g oo

SQyTe T C.‘”C"g!"’*"’i"lf,
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28 Share-based payments continued
Cash-settled share-based payments
The Group issues to certa i emnloyses share appreciaton rights (SARs) that reauire the Group to poy the intrinsic va ue of the SAR fo the employee at

the dote of exercise The Group recorded habihhes of 2134000 (2020 £64,000) ond a charge of £73,000 (2020 £23,000) 1re total infrinsic value of
30 September 202t was £ni (2020 fmi )

29 Related party transactions

Transachions between the Compony and its subsidianes, which are re oted part'es, nave been eliminated on consoligot v and are not disclesed 1 tris
note. Trarsachions between the Group and its joint ventures, where relevart, ore disc ased pelow

Trading tronsactions

During the year encea 30 Sentember 2021 the Group cnarged maragement ‘ees of £168,000 (2020 £321,000) to Sinostar | 'k, the Group's joint venture
operationin Heng Kong ond Ching,

Remuneration of key management personnel

Tne remuneration of Directors and the Executive leam, who are 17e key management persanne' of the Group. 1s set aut below 'n aggregate for each of
the categories speciliod 1o 1AS 24 Related patty Qisglosaies s urtnor informaton oboot the remuncraton of individual D ctors is provided in the quarted
part of tre Repert on remuneration on pages 86 fo 105

2021 L
LO00 Looc
Short-ter~ employee benehis 2,742 1,780
Share-based payments - -
Gther long~term benefts 166 143
2,908 1,923

30 Net debt and movements in liabilities arising from financing activities
At At
1 October Nan-cash Foreign 30 Segtember
2020 Cash flow movements exchange 20
£000 £000 £000 £000 Lo
Cash at bank and on had 50,330 (8,956} - 359 41,733
Cash and cash equivalents 50,230 (8,956} - 359 41,733
Debt due with™™ ore yeor (17.500) 5,749 - - (11,751)
Debt due after ene year (100,485) (8,104) (1,260) - (109,849)
Adjusted net debt (67,655) M, 1) (1,260) 359 (79,867)
Lease liobilihes (note 27) (18,835) 4,015 (2,172} 270 (16,722)
Net debt (86,490) (7,296) (3,432) 629 (96,589)
I &l
1 Darober Mun.cash Foreigr 30 heotember
a0y i floe, rovesmenls exchange shea
£050 Cuco £00 £ono £000
Costat bank and on hane 33,027 17,036 - 267 50,330
Cas=nana cesh egquivolents 33,027 17,036 - 267 50,330
Dent aue w trin one year {17.50Q) - - - {17,500)
Deot cue ofter ane yeor {127,205} 28,1 (7,353) (38) (700,485)
Azjusted nof dest (11678 45,147 {,353) 220 (67,665
Lease habil tiss (~ote 27) B - 3,940 (22.912) 13/ (18,835}
Net debt (111,678 49,087 {(24,2865) ) 366 {86,490

baclood weith e b e mos coce gulieye o 2 4 o 2020 rotranl cdloa of CAT T PS4 e {2lee 12 A ot repayreents onthe Droup’s doottaa ity end
£69 6™ (2020, £145 3m) of arawaowns on tae Group's dent fuo ty A1 30 Septembas 2627 the Group bad £88 4m (2020 L128 3m) cf undrawr deont

fac ties.
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30 Net debt and movements in liabilities arising from financing activities confinued

Aralysiz of changes n other financing liabidites:

At Al
1Qctober Neon-cash 20 September
2020 Cath flow movements 2021
£000 L£000 L£000 E£000
Interest payable {315) 6,556 (6,331) (00)
A af
T Onsber Ner-as-n
o] Tass roeer erts
EOOT L0100 LOGO L0430
Interest poyable {35} 7,980 (7,980} (315)

Interest payab'e af 33 Septemoer 2021 of LO ¥ (2020 £0 3m] s recognised os o current lob ity withie aceruols.

31 Contingent liability

On 15 hovember 2020, the minenty shareho cers of ABEC 1ssuen not co of
the excreise of their out cption 1N respect of "9.8% of the total shores of
ABEC for considerat o of INR 676 7m {apprex mote y £6 8m) As misclosca
in ~ota 3" of the FY20 Annua' Report, the validity of the oot on exercise

was under rev ew, as was the cmount of the cla m Supsequently, ar

13 Decembar 2020, the mircnty shorerolders of ABEC issued notice of the
vxiiose of “hen pot opronir respect o the < nal 20 2% of ‘he tolal shores of
ABEC for consideratior of INR 676 8 (aporox mately £E 8m) “he val dity
a~d omounts of coth ophicn exerc ses were iIn cispute at tre yeor end

At 30 Sentember 2027 the Group was engagea in |t gation witn the
mmnority sharenc cers The Greup's lawyers' adyv ce wos that thoy cons cer
tre Croup likely te succeed nthe ihgation Accord ngly, ro provision

was mece os gt 30 Seatermber 2021 as marogemert d'a not expect any
econemic outflow i arise as a result of the lisigationr respect of the
cplion exercizes

The Group's lawyers advice waos that the opt on exercse s nve - d anc
u~enforceable, batn 1~ respect of the option exercises 6° 15 Novemoer 2020
aaa 13 Decernber 2020 as wel: as any subsequert attemst tc exerc se the
opticn nafuture perioa Accereing'y, o put option haoilty of £irm' (2020

£9 4m) was recogn.sec at 30 September 2027

Acortingent ao Ity of £'3 6m s aisc osed, represerting the total value
claimea by the minority shareralaers

Suosequentto tre yeor end, the or.gina agreemnent w thin which the put
aoten ar g naly ex sted hos beer superseded as tre (zreup has cisposea
ofats 607 shorenc ang 1m ABEC 1o tne miner ty sharencice s end all

“tgotor o ceer witndrawn

32 Post balance sheet events

Subsequent ic the year erd the Group has secured o '2-month extensien
toits leverage ono nterest cover covenant wa vers, up to anainc uding
March 2023 A m imum ligu'd'ty test, wnereby the Group must ensure
tnat the aggregaote of cask ard undrawn deot fact hesis not less than
£.40m at the end of each mentk, w il be in pace througr te the end of the
walver per od

O 2 November 2021, the Group completed the d-sooscol of its 60%
srarehc'aing 1 ABEC Exn mtions & Corfererces Pyt Lid, the cpercting
campzny for o oartfol o of exa pihors 1n Inaie including the ACETECH
constructior events “ae Group bas rece ved upfront consideraticn of

£10min respect of the disposal

G 18 November 2021 the Greus completes the coquis hion o 100% of the
share can ta of 121 Group (HK) Limited and 121 Partners Limted {121 Group)
forimba cons deration of coproximately £2°n The estimatea total

coms derahio after earn-out s expected to be between opprex mately
£4im ara £50m based on the inanaa. perfermance ot "21 Groap over

a tiree-year pericd. Due fo the prox mity to the dete of signing of these
accounts, the acccurt ng ond disclosure impact of tis ccowishion nos not
beer firglized

in oroer to furd tne intha consideration for the acousitor, cn

18 November 2027 the Group comp eted o o acementwith inst tutiora
imvesters ¢f 13,818,698 rew ord nory shares to ra se gross proceeds of
£14 B, im acot on to a o rect subserintic of 12,694 102 new croinary
skcres ay ivestment fu~ds ma~aged by Strateg ¢ Vo ue Portners, LLC
(S¥PGlabel) te ro se gress proceeds of £14 3m
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Company statement of financial position
30 September 2007

2024
2021 prelated
Hotey £080 rooe
Fixed assets
Irvestments 5 118,034 117,770
Intangib.e assets ) 25 33
| - 118,059 17,802
Current assets
Debtors due within ope year B 580,887 439,034
Cash at hanc anc in hana 16,194 26,491
597,081 465,525
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 8 {94,836) (26,563)
Net current assets 502,245 438,962
Creditors: amounts falling due after one year 8 (71,233) (60,485)
Net assets 549,071 496,280
Capital and reserves
Cerlea uo share capital 9 26,513 26,53
Snare premium occount 160,271 160,27°
Merger reserve 2,746 2,746
Capital redemphon reserve 457 457
ESOT reserve (3,083) {3,175}
Proht and loss aceount 362,167 309,458
Shareholders’ funds 549,071 496,280
1 Sesults ‘dnr the yedr e~ded 30 Szptember 2020 have boan rectated to refleet the adjustments mu 25 to trans’sr pooing andinternal management fes rachurgss See note § for
further detan

1¢Company reported ¢ cront for the “nancial year ended 30 September 202107 £52 Cm {2020 res"atea £4& 6m)

Tre accounts of the Company, registered nurmber 01827339, were opproves by the Boord of Drectors and signed on therr oebalf, on 16 December 2021,
by

John Gulliver
Chuief Fimance ard Operaticns Officer
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Company statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 30 September 2021

Corled up Share

Lerger  rederiobon

FLEaerod e v

LU Lonn Loz
1 October 2079 (restated} 7416 279,756 2,746 457 378,283
MNet oss for tne year - - - - - (48,582) {48,582)
Total comprehensnse loss tor the year - - - - - (48,582)  {48,582)
Excrcise of shere opticns - - - - (288) - (388)
Dwidends - - - - - 3.002) {13.012)
Cop'tel cortrbution - - - - - 60 &0
Share-based cayme~ts - - - - - 494 494
lssue af shares - p acement 596 49.413 - - - - 50,039
Issue of shares - subscripton 146 i°.283 - - - - 1.429
Issue of shores - rights ssue 18,355 99,632 - - - - 17,987
Captel reduction - (279.813) - - - 2/9,813 -
30 September 2020 (restated) 26,513 160,27 2,746 457 (3175) 309,468 496,280
Net .css for tre year - - - - - 52,026 52,026
Total camprehensive loss for the year - - - - - 52,026 52,028
Exercise of share oot ons - - - - 92 (92) -
Cividencs - - - - - - -
Captal contribution - - - - - 264 264
Share-based payments - - - - - 501 501

30 September 2021 7 26,513 160,271 2,746 457 (3,083) 362,167 548,071
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Motes to the Company accounts

1 Basis of preparation and accounting policies

Treze separate fnonaal siaterments of -he Compary “ave been prepaiec
1 aecardance witn applaoble United Kingdarm accourtng stardards,
irelud ng Finoncio’ Reporting Stanaard "02 - “Tre Financial Reporting
Stardard applcable in the United Kingdom ond Reaubl ¢ of Ire'ana’
(FRS102). and witr the Co~panes Act 2006 The firancial s'a-emerts
nave been prepared or the historical cost bas.s

Hyve Group plc is the Pareat Coempany of the Hyve Group (the Group) and
s prineipal activity 1s 1o act as the u himate bolging company of the Groun
Tre oddress of «-e reqistered office 1z gven on page 178

As permitted by FRS 102, the Compony hos taken ndvantage of the
aisclosure exemptions avar able under thet stardard in relation 1o
snare-hosed payments and related party fransochicns The Directors’
rencrt, Corporate governance staternent and D rectors’ remunerat on
report disclosures are on pages 72, 68, ana 88, respectvely, of this repert

The Compery has faken advantage of secthon 408 of the Camponies
Act 2006 and hos not induceo its own proht and loss accour i these
financial staterments The Compeny has also adocted *be following
disclosure exemnptions

e rhereaunement lo present o sfotement af cash flows and related notes,
a-d

e Frioncahnsirument disclosures, imdduding

- categonias of iranaial mstr.merts,

iterns of income, expenses, gains o1 losses relating to hnand ol
instruments; ard

exposure to ard maragemrer: of inancial ricks

The princ’pal accounting polcies are summarised be ow Taey have all
been apphed corsistently thraughout the year and tne preceaing vear
Tre Directors have made ro antical judgements in applying these
acrount ng pohe es darirg the year. and there are ro sigrificor areas
of estimatior uncertatmty.

Going concern

The Directors have ¢ reasenable expectetion that the Company has
adequate resources to continue 1IN existence for the foreseecble future
The Company therefare contimues to odopt the go rg concern basis i
preparing it firaraol statements Please see No'e 7 of the conschooted
Rrarciol staternens for further dztall

Investments and impairment reviews

Fxed asset investments incluc'ng sunsidianes are snownr af cost less
orovision far any impairmert Where the reccverab e amount of the
ryestment s iess than the carrying amcunt, onomparmert is recogrisecd
Ipairment revicws are undertaken at least annuclly, o mare frequently

where there s ar rdicahion of imopormet

Intangible assets

b arg o eascedimriolly et purcis-c castar d ruve o detie e

usetul e ard are corrned at cast less occumu'eted amor tsat or
Amorhsafion s coltu ated usng the ctra ght- ire mcthon to a'lcecte the
cost nuer tho v ost maoted useful [9e The eud natea usefullves arcunto

20 vyears

Annual Report and Accounts 2021 Hyve Group ple

Provisions

Provisions cre recognisec when tae Company nas o present legal
obligatior a= arewt of past events s crobocle thot an cutflow of
resouices will be requ red to sett e the cb goton and @ reliob e est mate
can be maae o the amount of the soigoton

Financialinstruments

Finarcial gssets and fngncio liobiltes are recogrises on -he Company s
palance sheet when the Company becomes a narty 1o the contractuai
provisiors of the instrurngent

Trade debtors and creditors

Trade debtors ond credtors are stated ot tneir nermunal value,

Trode debtors ore reduced by appropriote a lowaences ‘or estimated
wrecoverable amounts

Bank borrowings
Bank overdrafts are recorded at tne proceeds recelved, not of direct 1ssue
costs Nimar ce charges are actounted for on an scoruol basis te profit

or loss

Equity instruments
Equ'ty instruments issued by the Company are recordec at the proceeds
receved, net of direct issue costs

Toxatien

Current tax, includinrg UK corparation tax and foreon tax, 1s provided
at amourts expected to be poid (orrecovered) using the tax rates and
laws that have been enocted or substartive'y enacted by the balance
s~eet date

Deferred tax 1s recagnised in resces of all irming d frerence: ha' have
originates but 7ot reversed ot the balonce sheet date where transactcrs
or events thot resut v an coligatior fo pay more taxn the future or a
ght to pay less tex in the future have occurreo at the ba ance sheet date
Timing differences aie differerice: between t-e Group s taxable profits
ard s rosalts as stated in o hinarcial stateerts snat arise from the
inclusion of pams and lossesin tax assessments in penods different from
thase .nwhich sheay are recegrised in the ingncial staterients

A net de‘erred tox asset 12 regarded as recoveroble and therefore
recognisea on y to the extent that, om the pasis of all ovaiable evidence,
it car be regarded s more hkely than not that there will pe suitoble
taxable crofits hom whir the foture ceverzal of the under lying Timing
di¥erences can be deducted

Detorrad sax i ral recogrised wren ixed gty are revalaed nnless by
the balonce sheet date there 1s o oine ng agreement o sell the revaluco
assets ¢nd tre gain or loss expected 1o cr'ze or soic hos neen recogmised
tee Troncal s'etements Nether © deferred tax recagnizes when faed
cssets are sold ong it s more Pkely thaa net that the taxaote gam wrl be
rallea over, oeirg chargeo ta tax oy if ond woen the replacement assets

are sold

Deferred tax 1s measured ot the overage 1ax retes that are excected
L apply ©the pen
tc revoree, basee on tax rates anc 1awe that hove been eractea o

1eoahic e ng aiferer oo~ ore expeced

substortively enacted by the balance si-eet dote

167
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Notes to the Company accounts

1Basis of preparation and accounting policies continued

Foreign currencies

Transactions I7 fore’gn currencies are recordec of the rate of excherge at
the dale of the tfransaction Monetary assets and | abiibes dencmincted n
[reign currencies ot toe ba ence sheel dote ore retranslated of tae rates
of exchange preval ng ot thot date Non-monetary assets and nchi ties
are trarsloted at the rate preva ing ot the date the fair volue was
determrined Gains ana lesses anising on retranslat'on of moretery cssets
arcnciuded In proft or loss for the perios

Employee Share Ownership Trust

The fnaricial statements imclude e assets and llobilities of the Employee
S~ore Ownership Trust (ESOT). Shares 1in the Company hela by the

SOT have beer valued aof cost and are held it equity The costs of
aami-nctrahon of 1 e ESOT are writ'en off to profit or loss as incurred

Weere such shores ore subseauently sold, any net carsiderat an received
simcuded in equ ity cliroutable to the Company’s equity noiders

Share-based payments

The Company ‘ssues equity-settled share-oased poyments to certa’n
ermployees These ore ~easured at fair val.e (excluo ng tre effect of
ron-market-basea vestng cond tians) at the dote of gront 7 ne far vaive
determired at tre grent date of the ecu ty- settled snae oased poyments
s exsensec 0N o straignt- ne bosis over the vesting perod, bosed on the
Compary's eést mate of shares thot will aventuol y vest ard odjusted for the
ef*ect of non-market-based vesting conditions

Forr vao ue s meosurea using a Blacs-Scholes mocgel [he expected ife
Leeo i the masel hos been adjacted, tor the nticets ot ~on-sra-sferabili-y,
exercise restiict ons and belavioura cors derahons based on

norcgrment’s best estimate

Detenls of the Compony's equity-settled snare-bases payments are
1nc udea - note 29 to the Group occounts

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation
uncertainty

Estmates ord Judgemerts cre cort'rua ly evaluated ond ore bosed cn
a1 ster cal experience end other ‘acters, includ ng expectations of “uture
events that ¢vc oeleved lo be reascrable under the ¢ rcumstonces

Critical judgements in applying the entity's accounting policies
Tre Comoory aoes not make any cr hical judgemertsinapp v rg the

entty's aocountitg oo ces

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Tne Compory mokes an estimate of the recovercble value of its
irvestments gnd debters belences including inter-compary ba ances

as disclosed within -hese finanaal statements (efer 1o notes & and 6]

The Compony rev ews ts mvestmerts for mnparnent whocrcves cvems or
cnanges increunstances ‘nd<cote that tne carry ng ameunt may not be
supoorted by ts urder y'ng assets The recoverabl ity assessment requres
the Drrectors to make estimates regard rg the probabiity of the future
earnings potential of the courterparty Anvimparrment cherge of £75.0m
was recognised in the prio” year in relahion to the Company's debtor
bolarces At 30 September 2021 the Directars are sehished that the
remain rginvestment and debtors bo onces ameunts as disclosed

arc recoverchble

Prior-year error

Guring the year, the Lrectors idenhfed thot certain sransfer preing and
‘nternal maragement fee recharges tnct were processed in the year
ended 30 September 2020 reated to the year ended 3Q September 2078

To correct for these transoctiors and recognise them n the relevant
periad, “he trar sactions ha -¢ been removed ‘rom re profit and loss
account ‘or the year ended 30 Septemper 2020, ncreasing adm rishiatve
expenses oy £1 3m OF tne totar of £1 37, transactions of £0 5m had rot
orev ously been recogrised 1 the year ended 30 September 2018 and
frerefore v e profi-ono los- account as at 1 Octeber 20°% has rereaswea by
£0 5™ Amounts owed fo Group urdertakings nave cecrecsed by £0 8T
s al 30 Sestemoper 2020 Gs ¢ result of the agustments There wos no
mpccton tre tox charge for the vear

Company Income Statement
2kt

o0
Administrotive expenses £1,301)
Increase in loss for the financial year (1,301)

Company Statement of Financial Position

Amcunts owed by Group unoertokings

Change in net assels

Fetairecd ecrnings

Change to total equity

2 Profit/(loss) for the year

e Ly sochion Ade ol el o

rap e AC ZUUE roo~corale nonl

ang st account ar statement of comprere~s ve rocome s presentec in

respd iotibe norert’ cripgay The oot or lmes atir e rgkhle 1o e

Compary <0sc csec o thefooiroie fo e Comipory s co'oree smert

‘roalatirzremurerator o gua t onc obher ser. cesis nisr gseg
cta

coted e

wr cansra - arcal g




Strateqic report Governance O Financial statements Annual Report ond Accounts 2021 Hyve Graup ple 169

3 Staff costs

a} Number of employees
The overage ~umber of persons (ncludirg Directars) enp oyes by the Company dunng the yeor wos as folowns

2021 2Udi
Neo. M
Drectors 7 6 b
b) Employee costs
Their cggregate remurerchcn compr sea
2021 2000
L000 £0AOD
Wages ard salaries 2,288 1,081
Social security costs 316 149
Share-based payments 502
3,106 1,230
Highest paid Drector 1,254 5
4 Dividends
20 2020
Pershare Settledincash Settledin scrip Her share  Seftedincath  wetled inscnp
p LO0CO 000 ) £00C L2003
Amourts recognised as distribub.ons fo eauity ho ders n the year
Final drividend im respect of the orior year - - - 18 13,012 -
Irternm dividend i réspect of the current year - - - - - -
- - - 1.6 13,012 -

Ihe Directars have not proposed o Fnel dvidens “or e year ended 30 Seatermber 2221

Under the terms of the trust ceed datec 20 Cotober 1998, the Hyve Group Employees Shore Trust, wr.ch holds 777,375 (2020 812,656) ordinary shares
represert ng 0.3% of the Company’s collec up ordinary share cap ta, hos agreed to waive o | dividerds due to it each yeor

5 Fixed assets
Investments in subsidiaries
The Campary bas inyvestments i~ the ‘al'ow rg subsiciary underfak ngs Tne prircipal actwity of all tne comparies | sted s the organischcn of exhioians

and corfererces

Narre Adaress Etfectinc holding
ABEC Exk.bitions & Conferences 533, Loxmi Plaza, Laxmi Inqustral Estate, New Link Rood, Ardhen (West),
Pyt Ltd Mumba: — 400053, India Ordimary shares &0
dirgate Holdings Lid 42 Dositheou, Strevelos, N'cosia, 2028, Cyprus mOmlncry shares 100
Beoutex Co LLC Verkhry Va 4A, Kyiv 04071, Ukraine Orainary shares i 100
Breakbu k Ireland LTC{_- B 5 Lepps Quay, Cork, Ireland T"2 RwW7D - Oramary shares —H}_O
Breovouik US Heidee Ire One Gateway Certre, Suite 2500, Newark, NJO7:02, USA - Oreirary shares 100
I"S‘j;okou!k US Opco lhe One Gotewoy Centre, Suite 2600, Newark, NJ07°02, USA Crdinary snares 100
Fio-raark § <l Vig cel Cestello 4. 40724 Bologna, ltaly Croinary snares 100
Groceryshoo, LLC i B0S Third Avenue, 26th Floor, New York, NY10158, USA ’ Croirary shares el
Hyve {Europe) Exhibitions Ltd 2 Kingdorn Street. Lerden, Englond, W2 6)G T Cirdinary shares ‘o0
;yve (Uéj Exhiotcrs [td 2 Kingdom Street, Lordor, :'.nglo%d-. W2 E6)G - Orcirary shares E
Hyve Asa Exhibtors [1d 7 Sute 1004, 10t~ F sor, ch'k ot Arerica Tower, 12 Harcourt Roan Central, ’

Hong Kerg Cirainary slﬁcrm;‘ i Al
Hywve éeoufy Fuarciik AS T Moy Coddes (_‘:mn‘e;‘ Floza <ol 7 Sish, Istanba Tukey Crdincry shores Relel
Hyve Buid Fuc’c-;'\: »?\ g - 1% Mepe Tadde Calden Tloza Kot / SIGl!‘j“fE_"Lh‘l -‘Ull‘\f:}*ﬂ R C_)r_c‘:ncry shares ."JU

Hyve Crro \"‘ter;uﬂ :;,nc:l cxbib trgos
and Canterences Servees {Be ing) F-L30Z-2, 3/b werdertulVarld Comme-cial Faza, 38 -ast 3id Ring
Co Lt Kartn Road, Cragyarg D str of, Beyng, Crina Crd nery Jbores 100
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5 Fixed assets continued

hame ~ddreee E—alve ~olding

Hyve Enterprises Ltd 2 Kingdom Street, Lardor, England. W2 6]G Ordinary shares 00
Hyve Eurasicn Exhibitions Lid 2 K'rgdorm Sireet, Londor. Englerd, W2 6)G Ordinary snares =
Hyve Eventos Lioa R Des Ehseu Guilrerme, 53/59 - CJ 81, Paraiso, Sao Paulo - SP, Broz |

04004-030 Ord'nary shores 100
HYVE bvents (Shonghot) Comoanry Ltd Unt 2822, F/28, No 1045 Middle Huahai Road. Xuhu District, Snanghal,

China Crdinory snares 100
Hyve Events S A Ltd 2 Xingdom Street, Lancan, England, w2 6]G Orairary shores 100
Hyve Events Services Ltd 2 Kingdom Street, Lordon, engiana, W2 6]G B Qrd.nary shores 100
Hyve =verts Soutn Africa [Py} Ltd StoreMill Office Park, 12 Correrstone House 157 “loor, 300 Acacio Road,

Darrerwooc, 2194, South Africa Oreinary snares no
ryve Events South A'rca Howoco a2 ingdom Street, London, Eng'and, W2 8)G Oronary shares 'EE
Hyve Exoo Internotiona LLC Verbriaio Krasnoselskaya st,2/2, Moscow, Russ'a Ord nary shares 100
Hyve tootwear Ltd 2 Kirgdom Street, Londen, England, W2 6)G Crdinary shares 100
Hyve Fuarcilia & S 19 Maoyts Coddes Golden Plaza Kat 7 Sigh, tstonbul, Turkey Orcinery shares 106
Hyve Ho aings Lid+ 2 Kingdom Street, Lordon, Eng'and, W2 )G Ordirary shorgs 100
Hyve I~ Private Lto 205, Second Floor, Harsa Bhawan, B No 64-65, Nekru Puace, New De by,

1004, Inda Croinary snares 100
Hyve Infernatongl Everts Lto 2 fingdom Street, Lonaaon, England, W2 6)G Qroinary shares 100
Hyve Moda Footwear ch; 2 K ngdom Streel, Londan, Eng ana. W2 §)G O-drary shores 1030
Hyve Moda Lid 2 kingdom Street, London, Englard, W2 6)G Grdinary shares 100
thyve Oversens Lid 2 ¥ingdorn S17ed, Loneen, Erglend, W2 8)G Orgintry sna‘es 100
Hyve Shangha Exhbitons Co, Ltd Room "703, 5e~a Buldi~g, No 575 Wusong Rd, HongkodD strect,

Shongha, Cn'na - Ordinary shares iy,
Hyve UK Events Lt 2 <ingdom Street Londen, Ergland, W2 6)C Creinary snares 100
Hyve US L mited 2 K ngdom Sffee{ Lenden, Erg'ond, W2 6]G Craonary shares WOGf
Hyve Worldwide BY Business Certer Demka, Dembkaweq *1, 3555 HW Utrecnt, e hetherlands Grd'rary shores 130
Intermeoia Exk bihars ang 2 <imgdem Street, London, England, W2 ]G
Conferences Lo Cranary snares 100
Internctione Trade ara Exhioit ons Ltd 2 Krgaom Street, Lerdor, England, W2 6JG Ordirary shores “DO)
ITt Asia Paaf ¢ SDN B-12 i A-T1-0ZA, Enpire Tower Office, Empire Subang Jalar SS1£/1 47500

Subarg Joya, Melaysia Crdinary enares 1o
ITE Ag1a Pte Ltd 8 Shenfon way #21-07, ;QXA Tower Simgapore 06881 QOrainary shares el
I"t Euras'a~ Exn bihgrs FZ LLC Al Sha'bo Tewer Z6th Floor - Office 2613 Sheiv~ Zoyea Rooa - Duba LAS Qrd'rary shores ek
ITE 2xpo UK Ltd . 2 Kingdom Street, Lonacn, England, W2 6)G Crdimary srares 100
ITE Globel LLC Vernn cia Krasrcseiskaya st,3/2, Mescow, Russic Cramnary shares 100
I"E Group Ltd 2 <ingdom Street, Londor, Engiarc, W2 §)G Osd'rary shares W
ITE I~ternationa Hc\ommgg BvY Suginess Center Derm«o, Demkoweg 11 3555 HW Uhr.\rht, The Netqer arcs Orc'mcry:'mfes 100
7S Imtermat cr el Trads ara Erb bt 68 14 10 8 G CAS BAT7 Forar K, Alge'\ow
=URL Ord ~ary shores "3

ITE Overseas hic'd ~gs BY

SBusi~ess Cente Demdg, Demicoweg 7 3568

TE Russ o LLC U< Lta

5
2 ¥ rgoem Strect, Lonoen, Ergone, W2 E)G

Hyd Utegernt, " re Netner oros

Jocket Reou rea Ltd

z <mgdom™ Srreet Lonoor, sng oro W2 60

Crdingry smares
Cira ~ory 57or

Ordrary grares

leor~tiwer o Lic

z K ngoe™i Street Leroon g, W2 B

Cro movy crares

[

U~t T 4% F Bocs &%
o

oo Uentre, A0

mzre s g

Yerrray Vo 4b <y o Jal ) ez me
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PTITE Exbibihions Indonesia Ltd

JI Maritim Reya No 44 Cllandak Barat, Jakarta Selatan, De Jakorte,
Inconesia

Ordinary snares

RAS Howdings Lid 2lrgdom Street, London, Ergland, w2 675 Ordircry shares Q0
RAS Publ'sking Lid 2 Kirgdom Street, London, Englaond, W2 6)G Crdinary shares 00
Regent US Holdco Inc 1209 Orange Street, Wilmington, New Castle County, De'oware 79801, USA Ordinary shares 200
Retoll Meetup, LLC 6505 Third Avenue, 26th Flogr, New York, KY10158, USA Ordinary shares 100
Scoop Internatienal Fashion Ltg 2 Kingdom Street, London, Ergland, W2 6]G Ordinary snares S5
Shanghal AIGE Exhibiton Service 1td - Raom 1007, Building B, Twin Towers, Ho 618 Xirzhuan Road, Sargpang

District, Shanghai, China Ordinory shares /0
Shootalk Commerce, LLC 805 Third Avenue, 26tn Floor, New York, NY10158, USA Ord-naory shares 100
Shopiolk Europe Ltd 2 Kingdom Street, Londaon, Ergland, W2 6]G Ordinary shares 100
Summit Trade Events Lid 2 Kingdom Street, London, England, W2 6]G Ord nary shares 100

The Company nas guaranteed tne habilihies of tne ‘o'lowing subsidiary undertok.ngs in erder that they quaiify for the exemption from cudit grantes by
sechon 4794 of the Companies Act “he Directors of the Compony expect that the possibhity of this guarantee peing celed upon is remote

Reqister ed
Subsidiary Lnderiolings rumbers
Intermedia Exh.b-hions & Confarences Lid 03640582
Hyve Eurasian Exhibitions Lid 07307385
IEG International Ltd 03448919
Hyve Enterpr ses Lid 03372928
Hyve Overseas Lid 02926434
Hyve Events Services Ltd 03942985
Hyve Heldings Lid 06975153
Hyve (US) Exnibitions Lta Q7841956
Hyve (Europe) kxbibitions Lid 07843009
ITE Russ'a LLE UK Lid 06975105
RAS Holaings Lto 04211246
Summit Trade Events Lid 0644690/
Hyve US Ltd 08707579
Hyve tEvents South Africa Lia 09374049
Interrat.oncl Trade and Exhibiticas Lo 10128746
Hyve Moda Ltd 04211308
RAS Publ'shing Lta 02725777
Hyve Moda Foctwear Lo 02924254
Jecket Required Ltd 07563504
Scoop Internationa' Foshier Lid /441467
Sheptalk kurope Ltd 0440875
Learnit Worldwide Ud T T Tsarou
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5 Fixed assets confinued
Subsidiory undertakings

Captal
Share o syt en Tolal
£200 LO0T roAn
Cost
1 Ootober 2020 1,526 30,247 144,742
Capita contribut-on - 264 264
30 September 2021 111,526 30,51 142,037
Provision for itnpairment
1Octoher 2020 and 30 September 2021 429 23,574 24,003
Net book value
30 September 2021 111,097 6,937 118,034
30 Septenber 2020 m,097 6,673 172770
Intangible ossets
Traaerorks
EUCO
Cost
1 October 2020 103
Adaitions inthe year -
30 September 2021 103
Amortisation
' Qctober 2020 70
Chorge inthe year 8
30 September 2021 78
Net book value
30 September 2021 25
30 September 2020 33
& Debtors due within one year
2021
coog
Amounts owed by Greup undertek nas 579,871 438,927
Prepaymerts and accrued iIrcome 332 -
Otrer dectors 229 64
Defereqtox (note 7) 455 34
580,887 439,035
The amouts owes By Groun yncerioengs ore poyeble on cemicns ond bear ro cterest
Acmga seent charge of D 112020 £75 Om)was rocegn sea rtne yeor = respect of amcunts cwea oy G-oup undertoxngs
7 Deferred tax
froenglaznie sheeraztehe L e cory f Qs W et oszes D e 270 LS T sloilesle o offcet agonsT f e Cioft of wh it o aeferred foe

bosrorboer cveannodoest o wroredicracily wodoic o botrpar e
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8 Trade and other creditors
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2021 LOEG
£000 000
Bonk loaon 1,751 17500
Caroorotins tax - 2,603
Armcunts twed to Group undertakings 82,831 6,781
Accrucls Q0 2
Other creditors 164 162
o 94,836 26,563
Amounts due after one year
Bank ‘oan 71,233 60,485
The amounts owed 1o Group undertakings are payable en demard and bear ro interest
9 Called up share capital and reserves
2021 2021
£000 LOZ0
Allotted and fully paid
265,128,207 ardirary snares of 10p each (2020, 265,128,107 of 10p each) 26,513 26,613
2021 ]
Number of hembser of
shores shares
At1 October 265,128,107 74,161,846
Share placement - 7.416.180
R gnts issue - 163,650,081
Af 30 Seotember 265,128,107 265,128,107

The Cempary has ome closs of ordinary shares whch carry ro ngat to
fixea inco~e Attre [xiracrairary General Meeting held on 17 November
1998, shareholders approved the establishrment of the Hyve Group
Employes Share Qwnership Trust (ESCT). “he terms of the E30T arlow the
trustees to transfer shares to employees wha exercise ophans under the
Company’s Shere Option Schemes, to gra~t ophons to empioyees and fo
accumulote shares by buying in the market or subseribing far shares at
mar<et valye, The ESOT is capabe of holding a maximum of 5% af tne
Company's issued ord nary share camital The ESCOT reserve arises in
cornechicn with the £307 The emount of the reserve represents the
deduction i arriving ot sharcho ders’ funds for the consideration paid
for the Campary’s shares purchased by the ESCT wh'ch had not vesteo
arcondirionally ¢t the &7 o of each rnonaal year

ihe ESCT held 771,375 shares in Hyve Group pc ot 30 September 2021
(2020 812 656 shares), Duning the year 2,°80,893 nomiral shore apt'ans
under the Employees Performance Share Plan were granted agoinst ESOT
Feld shares. The market value of tre crdinary shares he a oy tne ESOT at
30 Seaternber 2021 was 20 9m (20207 £.0 5m}

The Cempany has agreed to maoke avalable to the £301 ar rterest-frac
-oan of up to £12 5m for the purpose of buying shares At 30 Septemper
2021, the amecunt of the leon drawn gown was £12 0 The Hyve Group pc
Company proft and loss account ong balar ce sheet include the results of
tme E80T for the year enced 30 Septemoer 2021 The frustees have wavea
their currert and future rights to all d vidend erttlement on the shares re'd

i by the ESOT 47,281 options were cxercsed from E501 during the year

{2020 n ). 1ne tatal consideration for the apt ans exercised frem ESOT was
£ri (20200 £nil} 3,460,870 autstanoirg optiens are ta be settled by ESOT,
soa'l snores held by the ESOT are under option as ¢t 20 Sentember 2021
Detar's of the oprions rissue and their exercise dotes can be seen of note
28 to the accounts.
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Glossary

Alternative performance measures (APMs)

In accerdance weth the Gu cel nes o~ APMs 1ssuen by the Europeor Secur tes ond Markets Authornty (ESMA), addihiona informaehion s prov aea or the
APMs used by the Group pelow

I erepe ing of inancal iormation, the Group uies cetom measures ba' are nol 1eaured ander Frs T asdiignal measw es grovide coaitional
wformaten o the perforrmonce of the bos ness ond frends to stokeboiders These rmeasures ore cons stert with incse used imfernally and are orsdered
wrportant 1o urde slanding the e a-¢ ol performaonce aea posrion o' the Crocp AF Maare consiaered to be cnumiporant meas.ie fo monior how

tae Group 1s nerforming because th s provaes a mearingful comper sen of how the busiress is managed ord measured or a day-to-day oass and
achieves consistency and comparability between report'ng penods

These AlMs may < ot oo directly comparag'e with sirmilae ly itlca proht meosores reporteo by other companics o-.d *hey are et inlendeo to be a
substitute for, or superior to, HFRS measures

Closest equivalent Reconciling items to
APM statutery measure statutory measure Definition and purpose
Headli~e proit Frofir/(lass} Adjusting items —eaaline proh- be‘ore tax iz proft/{lass) before tax ard adjusting items, as presented - note &
hefare tax oefore tax as dscloseo In oddition to providing a more comparab'e set of results year-cn-year, this.s alsa in ine witn
Innote 5 s'miler adjustea measures usec by our peer companies ara there‘ore facktates comparscr
across the industry
Refer fo tre Chiof Finonciol Ciffice's sigterment fa- a reconchansr «o “he s'arutcry measurea,
and explanctions of the amounts aajusted “or
Headl ne Operat ng Cperatna Heaol~e operating profi- i operating profit be"ore aperating agjusing “ems, as presented in
operat’ng profr adjusting iters ~cte 5
proft as gisclosed 2021 020
n mote 5 £000 LOnz
Operating profit/(los<) {18,878) {308,822)
Operat rg adjusting tems {rcte 5} 47,746 298,738
Headline operating prof*/{lass) ) 28,868 (ro084)
Heaclne Ooerating Operat rg Heoalne operating proft morgir is ~eadlire operahrg profit oz o percentoge of rever Le
operatng profir margn aapustirg tems
profs ~argin as aisc osed
n-ate 5
Heaal ne Ooerat ng Cperatirg Heasl re EBIT DA 1L Feadline operaning pre™t before operonrg adjustirg items, deprecianon of
EBITCA prof adjusting tems oroperty, o ant ono eguipmert and amertisahion of corouter software
as disc osed cz:nzl; L‘”\,&U
r ~ote 4, )
Cperatirg prof-Alozs) (18,878} (308.822)
cepreciation i )
of property, Opercting adjusting fems (nofe b} 47,746 298,/38
oontare Beprecichior of proporty, p ont and equ pment (note 15] 5,702 5200
equpmentgne  ATertsat or of comouter softwore (note 4] 1,262 2422
cmaortisatior Hecdl re =BI"DA 35,832 (2467
of comcuter
softwoie
het asbt “oocash Reconc: afon hetden' s uarres as co:b and o~ eg.ivo e eter dedocigbarclcare ara leate
Eau o ertyans of rer dent as i hes
bo-~« gut anag frote 20)
ecie Gn tes
Aojusten Tosn gt o Rocnro. chon AssLh sarkleac:
~et aebt cQu va BT g5 uirot deont Tee Hoora ccns uer o z ci e Group's

DT GO ircte s0: coeotec ews brat ooy cew on zacotesmentbergth Fsascairge

u-e that con ne uzed to gores

act o e Groun s cosn ons

~oectearcis oho oo oe oo
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Reconciling items to
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Definitien and purpose

Adjusted ret
debt neadlne
EBITLA

Nore

N/

Adjusted net debt hecdl-ne ZBI7DA s the rato of adjusted ret debt fo hecdline EEITDA

Cash conversion

Naone

WA

Cash conversion s defined as beacli-e casn gererated fro~ operaticns os o cercenioge of
headline operating cioh before non-cash rems —~eadline cas- ge-ergred from operctiors
is cash gencrated from operotions before ret venue ut lisat on, the cash impact of odjustng
itemns included in the de*ritio- of headline proft befure fax af*er ad;usting for ony wrorg
pocket true-ups through working copital agjustments or ccauwsit ens or d sposals Heodline
operating proht before non-cosh tems 1g meodline operating proft before foreign exchange
gains/losses, depreciation andg amortisaticn

2021 2020
£000 £003

Cash generctea from operotions 30,416 7,754
Net venue utillsatior {72) 903
Adjusting Hems
Integration costs - 531
Restructuring costs - B23
Transocton costs on campleted and perding acquisit ons
ard disposals 682 3,270
Adjustment to retioct tinung of cash flow ter above
adjusting tems - 793
Adjusted cash flow from ocperations 31,026 74,074
Headline aperating profit/(loss) 28,868 (10,084)
Depreciation of property, plant ond equipment (rote 15) 5,702 5,201
Amortisation of computer software (note 14) 1,262 2,422
Fore.gn exchange loss/(goin) or operatng activities 306 (2,642)
Headline operating profit/{loss) on a cash basis 36,138 {5,103)
Cash conversion 86% -276%

Headline basc
eornings
per share

Bosic earnirgs
per snare

Adijusting items
n e earnings
ner shere note
{mete 11)

Profit after tax a‘trbutable to owsers of the Parent and nefore “he impact of adjusting items
awvided by the weighfed average rumber of ordirary shares inizsue curing the hro-cial year

Headline dituted
earnings
per share

Diluted earmings

rer snarc

Adjusting items
n e earn.ngs
ner share note
(ncte 11)

Frofi- cftar tax atibutable to owner:s of the Parent and befere "Fervpact of adjusting items,
ovided by the weighted average number of ordinory thores inivsue sunng the I anciol year
odjusted for the e¥ec s of any cotenticlly dilutive options unless are aluve

Headline
effed tive
tax rote

tHective tor
rote

Adjusting items

The rcome tax charge for the Group excludirg the tax impact of cdjusting items, d vioed oy

and the tax impact beadline proat beore ‘ax

of agjust rg items
[mote 5 ard
note 91

[he measure s auseful rdicator of the ongaing lox rote ter tre Group

2021 220

flililed L£000
Tex cred t per ncome staterment 5,010 1,024
Tox or snare of resuts of associates ond joint vertures (455) (1535
Tox impoct o* adjusting itens (6,020) 112,92%)
Headline tax charge ‘-'-(?;;55) (3,433
Headline profit/(loss) before tax 20,780 (81373

Headline effective tax rate 7% -9
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Glossary
Closest equivalent Reconciling items to
APM statutery measure stetutory measure Definition and purpose
Heod!ne return None Qperoting Heodhre ROCH s co'tulored as meodhne cperot- g proftt (e before odiusting vems) draded
crncoptal adjusting iters by ~et assets excluding all alances relating tc any proviscss dnarcal instruments interest-
emplayec as d sclosed becrrg sob/ltes ond cash ar cask equivalerts
 note 5 i 2021 2620
Headline return on capital employed {ROCE) E£000 LU00
Headline operating profit/{loss) (A) 28,868 £10.084)
Non-current cssets:
GCooowll 73,202 63.6/8
Other rtcngio e ossets 201,160 240,572
Property, plent and equ pment 17,237 205
Irterests nassoc’'ates and jo nt vertures 37,726 37.444
Deferred cansweration recenab's 7,357 £.865
Deferred tax asset 5,469 460
Current assets:
Trade ard otner recevebles 35,569 3373
Tax prepaymert 1710 1,374
Current liabilities:
Trade ang other payab 'es {42,664) (58,354}
Corporatior tex {1,160) (",374)
Deterred income {72,277) (61,276}
Non-current liabilities: ,
Deferred tox Labiity (M,713) (13,773}
Deferred income - -
Capital employed (B) ’ 251,016 270,462
Headline ROCE (A/B) ' - ’ 1.5% R
li<g-*er-like MNare NsA Like-for-ike (or underlying) results are statea o @ conslant currency oas s, after exclua ng
eveats which teok place nithe current penied, but d'd not toke ploce under cur ownershp n the
comparotive oeriod and after excluding events wh ¢ tock o ace in the comparatve penod,
but did not take p.ace under our cwnersaipa the currert pericd This excludes ,
® Bienna events, ‘
e rrgoiferecces e everter o ronnonly ore ¢ the cutient or comparative penads,
duc o chorges n the svent defes),
* Lounches,
® Conceleaordsposed of evert: thot did rot take ploce under our ownership 1 tae
currert yeor,
® Acqureq events ~ tee current perod, cra
e Afourcd esents nthe comparat 2 parsottatod ret tace o ace LGer oU camersN D
~thecomperat ve perca (e 1roy tocc poce pre-arau s ton)
e L L LN < L SO L A T R T RN N | 1oL T O T S|
steratory, measures
Forware [SLlC) L) Trewara bncitn sre actares ey Salyean Jrec Atk e

[SLTAE IR

ctoten trecs are cs ot cote o vy Dece~ine

SLOT yeqr,
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Shareholder information

Financial calendar

Pre-c ase cnnouncement
Prelminary resuts cnnouncemenrt
AN

1 trading update

Q2 tradirg update

Imterim results announcement

Q3 trooing upaate

O Financial statements

/ October 202

"6 December 2021
3 February 2022

3 february 2022
6 April 2022

17 May 2022

5 july 2022

Shareholder profile at 30 September 2021

Percertage Fercentage
ol tatal Ored nary of issuea
Number of  shorehaolders ~hares zhare caprol
Range o holdings sharahaolders ) mlhen; U
1-100 344 3475 10,714 0.00
i01-1,000 301 30 40 06,312 Q04
1.001-10,600 139 14.04 5'6,286 0°9
*0,001-100,300 77 7.78 3,174,923 120
“00,001-1,000,000 a5 859 27,234,821 10.27
1,.000,001-
999,993,999 44 4.44 234,085,044 8829
Totals 890 100.00 265,128,107 100.00
Fercertage Perzaniage
af total Ordinary of Issuen
HNuamber of shareholders shares <hare coptal
Category sherehalders e Gmilhan; P
Private indmiduals 662 66.87 431,078 018
Negminee
companies 227 2293 172,873,267 66 20
Lirmited and pubiic
irmited companies 64 6 46 13,760 651 5°9
Other organsations
ana banks 37 374 78,06313 29 45
Totals 990 100.00 265,128,107 100.00

Share price

Loncon Stack Exchange, pence per 10p share

Hignest
Lowest

152 10
45 S8p

Avnua Report and Accounts 2021 Hyve Group ple

Dividend calendar

Denidernas susperdedintespect of F naraial year ended 30 September
2027, future cividends w | be xept under revigw

Share dealing services

Tre Compary s Registrer, Equinit Limired, ofters o telephone cno inter ~et
aealng service, Snareview, which provides o simple and conver ent

waoy of buy'ng ana selling shores. For telepnone dealings o'ease call
0345 603 7037 betweer 8 30am and 430pm, Monday to Fricay, and for
internet dealings please log or to www.shareview.co.uk/dealing

Electronic communications

Shareholoers can elect to receive shareholder documents electronically
by registering w th Shoreview ot www.shareview.co.uk This will save on
porting ond distribution costs, crealing eovronmental benehts When yo.
register, you will be ser anemail nohcgtior to ray when sharenolder
documents are avalable on our webste and you wi | be proviced with o
lirk to that informotion When registering, you w'l nead your shareholder
refererce nu~ber, which can be fourd on your shaie certircate or aroxy
form. Please contact Equinit” Limited i you recuire any assistance or
turtner information
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Diractors, advisers and other information

Directors
Richard Last

No~-Executve Charmaon

Nicholas Backhouse
Nan-Executve Director

Sharon Baylay
hom-kExecutwe Director

Jehn Gulliver

Chief Tingrice and Ocerations Officar ‘appointes ! Gotober 2027

Stephen Puckett

Nor-Executive Senior Indepencent Director

Mark Shashoua
Chief Txecutive Officer

Company Secretary

Jared Cranney

Registered office
Hyve Group plc

2 ngdom Street
Londg™

W2 6)G

Auditor
BDO LLP

55 Baker Street
Llonden

Wil 7EU

Solicitors
Macforiones LLP
20 Cursitor Street
Lonacr

ECanL”

Principal bankers

Barclays Bank plc
1Churchel Pace
Landon

k14 5HP

Citibank

33 Cenadao Souare
Lo~aon

E14 5LB

Hayfin Capital Management LLP

One Fag'e Place
Lendon
SWiY GAF

HSBC Bank UK plc

60 Queen Victoro Strest
Lendor

=CanN 41R

Company brokers
Numis Securities Lid
45 Greshom Street
London

EC2v /iBF

Registrars
Equiniti Ltd
Aspect House
Spencer Read
Lare ng

West Sussex
BN9S 6DA

Public relations

FTi Consulting Lid
200 A'dersgote Strest
Lorgaon

EC1A 4HD

Website
hyve.group
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